
 

  
 

 

 
Mayor 

Bob Barrett 
 

 
Palo Verde 

District 
Ron Aames,  
Vice Mayor  

 
Acacia  
District 

Tony Rivero 

 
Ironwood  
District 

Dave Pearson 

 
Mesquite  
District 

Cathy Carlat 

 
Pine 

District 
Carlo Leone 

 
Willow  
District 

Joan Evans 

City Council Meeting 
Notice & Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
City Council Chamber 
8401 West Monroe Street 
Peoria, AZ  85345 

 
Study Session 

 

 5:00 P.M. Convene 
 
Roll Call      

Final Call To Submit Speaker Request Forms 

Study Session Agenda 

Subject(s) for Discussion Only 

1. Open Space Preservation Program Update 
2. Old Town Metrics 
3. Major General Plan Amendment, Senate Bill 1598 - Aggregate Mining 

Call To The Public (Non-Agenda Items) 
If you wish to address the City Council, please complete a Speaker Request Form and return it to the clerk 
before the call to order for this meeting. The City Council is not authorized by state law to discuss or take 
action on any issue raised by public comment until a later meeting. 

Adjournment

5



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
Page 2 of 9 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

 7:00 P.M. Convene 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 

Final Call To Submit Speaker Request Forms 

Presentation 

4. Recognition to Tim and Willy of KMLE Country Radio and Willy Townsend, Peoria Sanitation, 
regarding Peoria’s recycling efforts. 

Consent Agenda 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  All items listed with “C” are considered to be routine or have been previously reviewed by the City Council, 
and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember so requests; in 
which event the item will be removed from the General Order of Business, and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 

Consent 
 
5. Minutes 

Discussion and possible action to approve the following: 
 
July 3, 2012 Study Session Minutes 
July 3, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

6. Ratification of Ordinance No. 2012-14 

Discussion and possible action to ratify the adoption of ORD. 2012-14 amending Section 2-207 of 
Chapter 2 of the Peoria City Code and establishing the updated Community Services Department 
Fees Table for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 

7. Code Amendment, Chapter 14, Banner/Special Event Signs 

Discussion and possible action to adopt ORD. 2012-17 amending Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code 
(1977 Edition) pertaining to Banner/Special Event Signs by amending Article 14-34 "Signs".

6



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
Page 3 of 9 
 

 

8. Code Amendment, Chapter 14 (1977 Edition), Temporary Use Permits and Zoning Ordinance 
Amendment Notification; and Chapter 16 (1992 Edition), Music Festivals 

Discussion and possible action to adopt ORD. 2012-15 amending Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code 
(1977 Edition) pertaining to Temporary Use Permits and Zoning Ordinance Amendment Notification 
by amending Article 14-39, Administrative Procedures, and to adopt ORD. 2012-16 amending 
Chapter 16 of the Peoria City Code (1992 Edition) pertaining to Special Events. 

9. Contracts, Raftelis Financial Consultants and Duncan Associates, Comprehensive Impact Fee Study 

Discussion and possible action to: (a) approve contracts with Raftelis Financial Consultants and 
Duncan Associates in amounts not to exceed $59,860 and $99,200 respectively to complete a 
comprehensive impact fee study and update in order to conform to the current Development Fee 
Statute; and (b) approve the use of reserves and a budget adjustment in the amount of $99,200 
from Development Fee contingency to various Development Fee Accounts as described in the Fiscal 
Analysis. 

10. Grant, Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC), Crime Victim Assistance Program 

Discussion and possible action to: (a) accept $10,800 from the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 
(ACJC) for Peoria’s participation in the Fiscal Year 2013 Crime Victim Assistance Program; and (b) 
approve a budget transfer in the amount of $10,800 from the Proposed Grants Contingency Account 
to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Grant Account. 

11. Purchase, Fire Engine, Lake Pleasant Fire Station 

Discussion and possible action to: (a) purchase a Type-3 Fire Engine for the Lake Pleasant Fire Station 
during Fiscal Year 2013; and (b) authorize a budget amendment in the amount of $101,500 from the 
General Fund Contingency account to the Fleet Reserve Fund Trucks and Vans account. 

12. Intergovernmental Agreement, Arizona Child Abduction Response Team, Law Enforcement 
Services and Resources for Child Abduction Cases 

Discussion and possible action to authorize the City Manager to execute an Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the participation of the Peoria Police Department in the Arizona Child Abduction 
Response Team. 

13. Intergovernmental Agreement, Maricopa County Department of Transportation, Exchange of 
Transportation Maintenance Services 

Discussion and possible action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement with Maricopa County 
Department of Transportation for the Exchange of Transportation Maintenance Services (Entente 
Program).

7



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
Page 4 of 9 
 

 

14. Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment, Regional Public Transportation Authority, Americans 
with Disabilities Act Paratransit Service, Fiscal Year 2012 

Discussion and possible action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment #1 for 
Americans with Disabilities Act Paratransit Service with the Regional Public Transportation Authority. 

15. Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment, Regional Public Transportation Authority, Americans 
with Disabilities Act Paratransit Service, Fiscal Year 2013 

Discussion and possible action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment #3 for 
Americans with Disabilities Act Paratransit Services with the Regional Public Transportation 
Authority. 

16. Design, Construction and Operation Agreement, Salt River Project, Aquifer Storage and Recovery 
Well 

Discussion and possible action to approve an agreement with Salt River Project for participation in 
the development and construction of a joint Aquifer Storage and Recovery Well. 

17. Authorize Expenditure, Seattle Mariners and San Diego Padres, Ticket Convenience Fees 

Discussion and possible action to authorize the expenditure of $118,714 to pay the Mariners and 
Padres their respective share of Tickets.com convenience fees that have been collected from 2008-
2012. 

18. Transfer Cash Reserves and Budget Appropriation, Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Fund 

Discussion and possible action to: (a) approve the cash transfer of reserves in the amount of 
$700,000 from the Insurance Reserve Fund to the Workers' Compensation Fund; (b) authorize a 
budget appropriation transfer in the amount of $700,000 from the General Fund contingency 
account to the Workers’ Compensation Fund claims account to provide for the expected costs of a 
workers’ compensation claim; and (c) approve a budget appropriation transfer in the amount of 
$465,000 from the General Fund contingency account to the Workers’ Compensation Fund claims 
account to properly reflect claim liability for Fiscal Year 2012 as determined by an actuary. 

19. Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Amendments 

Discussion and possible action to approve the attached budget amendments for Fiscal Year 2012. 

20. Investment Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Discussion and possible action to accept the Investment Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012.

8



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
Page 5 of 9 
 

 

21. Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008, Ventana Picachos, Northeast Corner 89th Avenue 
and Calle Lejos 

Discussion and possible action to approve the Petition for Formation and adopt RES. 2012-94 
intention and ordering formation of proposed Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008, Ventana 
Picachos, located at the Northeast Corner of 89th Avenue and Calle Lejos; and adopt RES. 2012-95 
ordering the improvements within the proposed Maintenance Improvement District and declaring 
an emergency. 

22. Deeds and Easements, Various Locations 

Discussion and possible action to adopt RES. 2012-96 accepting Deeds and Easements for various 
Real Property interests acquired by the City. 

23. Designate Roadways, Establish Rights-of-Way, Various Locations 

Discussion and possible action to adopt RES. 2012-97 designating Real Properties to be used as City 
roadways and authorize the establishment of Public Rights-of-Way to be opened and maintained by 
the City as a Public Street. 

24. Abandonment of Public Utility Easement, 75th Avenue and Thunderbird Road 

Discussion and possible action to adopt RES. 2012-98 authorizing the abandonment of the City's 
interest in a public utility easement on the south side of Thunderbird Road west of 75th Avenue and 
declaring an emergency. 

25. Bridge Construction and Access Easement, Maricopa Water District Canal, Old Carefree Highway 
Alignment 

Discussion and possible action to approve a Bridge Construction and Access Easement that will allow 
for a crossing of the Maricopa Water District (MWD) canal approximately a mile and a quarter west 
of Lake Pleasant Parkway on the Old Carefree Highway alignment. 

26. Field Allocation Policy 

Discussion and possible action to approve the Community Services Department Field Allocation 
Policy for use when allocating park fields and associated amenities offered by the City. 

27. Final Plat, Vistancia North Phase III Parcel F1 Phase 2, Vistancia Boulevard and Westland Road 

Discussion and possible action to approve the Final Plat of Vistancia North Phase III Parcel F1 Phase 
2, located at Vistancia Boulevard and Westland Road, subject to stipulations.

9



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
Page 6 of 9 
 

 

28. RePlat, A Portion of Trilogy at Vistancia Parcel C12, Trilogy Boulevard and Claret Cup Road 

Discussion and possible action to approve the RePlat of a Portion of Trilogy at Vistancia Parcel C12, 
located at Trilogy Boulevard and Claret Cup Road, subject to stipulations. 

Regular Agenda 
 

New Business 

29. Public Hearing - Liquor Licenses, Various Locations 

PUBLIC HEARING: RE: (a) A New Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) for Sumo Sushi & Grill, located 
at 16055 N. Arrowhead Fountain Center Drive Building B, Seung J. Lee,  Applicant, LL#20005768; (b) 
a New Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) for Humble Pie Pizza Wine Spirits, located at 15703 N. 
83rd Avenue Suite #100, Thomas R. Aguilera, Applicant, LL#20005990; (c) a New Restaurant Liquor 
License (Series 12) for Taps, located at 9780 W. Northern Avenue Suite #1110, Theresa J. Morse 
Applicant, LL#20005160; and (d) a New On-Sale All (Bar) Liquor License (Series 06) for Peoria Pines 
Golf & Restaurant located at 8411 N. 107th Avenue, Scott P. Richmond, Applicant, LL#20005659. 
 
Staff Report: 
Open Public Hearing: 
Public Comment: 
Close Public Hearing: 
 
COUNCIL ACTION: Discussion and possible action to recommend approval to the State Liquor Board 
for (a) a New Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) for Sumo Sushi & Grill, located at 16055 N. 
Arrowhead Fountain Center Drive Building B, Seung J. Lee,  Applicant, LL#20005768; (b) a New 
Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) for Humble Pie Pizza Wine Spirits, located at 15703 N. 83rd 
Avenue Suite #100, Thomas R. Aguilera, Applicant, LL#20005990; (c) a New Restaurant Liquor 
License (Series 12) for Taps, located at 9780 W. Northern Avenue Suite #1110, Theresa J. Morse 
Applicant, LL#20005160; and (d) a New On-Sale All (Bar) Liquor License (Series 12) for Peoria Pines 
Golf & Restaurant located at 8411 N. 107th Avenue, Scott P. Richmond, Applicant, LL#20005659. 

30. Code Amendment, Chapter 14, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Parking; Recreational Vehicles; Utility 
Trailers 

Discussion and possible action to adopt ORD. 2012-18 amending Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code 
(1992 Edition) pertaining to Parking; recreational vehicles; utility trailers. 
 

31. Electronic Billboard Ad Hoc Committee 

Discussion and possible action to create an Electronic Billboard Ad Hoc Committee to review citizen 
survey information and input. 

10



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
Page 7 of 9 
 

Call To The Public (Non-Agenda Items) 
If you wish to address the City Council, please complete a Speaker Request Form and return it to the clerk 
before the call to order for this meeting. The City Council is not authorized by state law to discuss or take 
action on any issue raised by public comment until a later meeting. 

Reports from City Manager  

32. Council Calendar 

33. Reports with Presentation 

A. Building and Development Activity Projections 
B. Crime Shield Crime Prevention Program 

 
34. CMInformational (The following items are included for informational purposes only.  There will be no 

separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember so requests.) 

A. Home Owner's Association Budgeting Class Information 
 

Reports from City Council 
Reports from the Mayor  

Adjournment

11



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
Page 8 of 9 
 
 

Vistancia Community Facilities  
District Board Meeting 

 

 Convene immediately following Regular City Council Meeting 
 

VCFD Roll Call 

Final Call To Submit Speaker Request Forms 

VCFD Consent Agenda 
 

CONSENT AGENDA:  All items listed with “C” are considered to be routine or have been previously reviewed by the City Council, 
and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember so requests; in 
which event the item will be removed from the General Order of Business, and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 

35. Minutes 

Discussion and possible action to approve the June 5, 2012 VCFD minutes. 

36. Investment Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

Discussion and possible action to accept the Investment Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 

 

Call To The Public (Non-Agenda Items) 
If you wish to address the City Council, please complete a Speaker Request Form and return it to the clerk 
before the call to order for this meeting. The City Council is not authorized by state law to discuss or take 
action on any issue raised by public comment until a later meeting. 

Adjournment 
 
NOTE:  Documentation (if any) for items listed on the Agenda is available for public inspection, a minimum 
of 24 hours prior to the Council Meeting, at any time during regular business hours in the Office of the City 
Clerk, 8401 W. Monroe Street, Room 150, Peoria, AZ 85345. 

12



City Council Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, August 21, 2012 
Page 9 of 9 
 
 
 
Accommodations for Individuals with Disabilities.  Alternative format materials, sign language interpretation, assistive listening 
devices or interpretation in languages other than English are available upon 72 hours advance notice through the Office of the City 
Clerk, 8401 West Monroe Street, Room 150, Peoria, Arizona 85345   (623)773-7340, TDD (623)773-7221, or FAX (623) 773-7304.  
To the extent possible, additional reasonable accommodations will be made available within the time constraints of the request. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 
In addition to the City Council members noted above, one or more members of the City of Peoria Boards and Commissions may 
be present to observe the City Council meeting as noticed on this agenda. 
 
City Council Meetings can be viewed live on Channel 11 (Cox Cable) and are available for viewing on demand at 
http://www.peoriaaz.gov/content2.aspx?id=2151.  

13

http://www.peoriaaz.gov/content2.aspx?id=2151�


CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
Date Prepared: July 30, 2012  Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012     
 
 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Chris M. Jacques, AICP, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
THROUGH: Susan J. Daluddung, AICP, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Open Space Preservation Program Update (STUDY SESSION) 
 
 
Purpose:  
 
This report is intended to inform and solicit input from the council on the status and progress of 
the citywide Open Space Preservation Program, including an outline of next steps for moving 
forward.   
 
Background/Summary: 
 
In alignment with the City Council policy goal to “preserve our natural environment” and 
supporting policy directives in the City’s General Plan, staff has been working on an Open Space 
Preservation Program.  The goal of the Program is to identify areas that merit special 
consideration and then attempt to strategically assemble them over time into a meaningful 
network of connected open spaces for a variety of users.  This could be accomplished through 
outright acquisition, conservation, developer dedications, agency or conservancy partnerships 
and/or regulatory tools that help guide future development in a responsible and sensitive 
manner.  The Program will be dynamic and is intended to balance the need for open space 
resource protection against the respect for property rights of individual land owners who 
currently own some of the more unique natural features within the City’s Planning Area. 
 
To assist staff in the identification of priority focus areas (PFAs), the City has enlisted the 
expertise of its consultant, AECOM, to develop a GIS-based predictive and decision-support 
model to enable classification of lands in Peoria according to environmental and development 
criteria. The work on the Open Space Decision Support System (OSDSS) is currently nearing 
completion.  The OSDSS is currently under further refinement through incorporation of 
comprehensive cultural resource data and information about existing Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) managed trails located north of State Route 74 (SR74).  
 
Following a presentation to the Sustainable Development Subcommittee on February 1, 2012, 
staff has continued work on defining the priority focus areas along with initiating discussions 
with agencies and major stakeholders along with public outreach.  The public outreach process 

14

rhondas
Typewritten Text
SS#1



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 3 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

consisted of a series of four (4) public meetings to provide information about the program 
purpose, scope and elements and solicited input to ensure elements are in alignment with 
community values.  The meetings occurred at: 
  

• June 6, 2012 – Development and Community Services Building (4 attendees)  
• June 12, 2012 – Vistancia Elementary School (29 attendees) 
• July 12, 2012 – Peoria Chamber of Commerce (40 attendees) 
• July 26, 2012 – Sunrise Mountain Library (26 attendees)   

 
During the public outreach process, City staff learned of concerns circulating within the OHV 
community (Off Highway Vehicle) that the Program (and City) was intending to close off the 
existing BLM-managed Boulders OHV area north of SR74 and west of the city limits.   A letter 
was quickly issued by City staff on June 12, 2012 (attached) clarifying the purpose of the 
Program and refuting any misconceptions. To be clear, the City has never contemplated or 
expressed any intent to acquire, restrict or alter this recreation area on BLM-managed land 
outside of Peoria’s municipal boundaries.  In addition to the concern about closing existing 
trails, City staff generally received positive feedback about the Program direction and the 
OSDSS model.  
 
Thus far, the outreach process has also included  presentations to the Historic Preservation 
Commission (January, 11, 2012) and the Parks and Recreation Board (June 21, 2012). The Parks 
and Recreation Board passed a motion expressing support on the progress and direction of the 
Program and the accompanying OSDSS model. Staff is also intending to present an overview of 
the Program to the Planning and Zoning Commission in the fall.   
 
Concurrently, staff has also been busy with agency and stakeholder engagement initiating with 
a June 6, 2012 kick-off meeting. The meeting included representatives from Arizona State Land 
Department, Maricopa County Parks Department, and the Arizona Game and Fish Department.  
Staff have also met individually with other agencies due to scheduling conflicts.  The agency 
process will help to ensure that the Program and OSDSS model are in alignment with the goals 
and strategies of these other agencies, along with garnering support for the program.   
 
Finally, staff is progressing on work identifying Arizona State Land Department parcels that may 
be classified as suitable for conservation via the Arizona Preserve Initiate (API) process. The API 
program provides the opportunity for the City to leverage existing funds against any remaining 
2013 Smart Growth matching grant funds to acquire open space.  
 
Previous Actions: 
 
October 19, 2010:  Award of Contract to AECOM  
February 1, 2012: Sustainable Development  Subcommittee Presentation  
 

15



Council Communication   
Page 3 of 3 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Options:  
 
A: Remand the Open Space Preservation Program back to the Sustainable Development 

and Public Services Subcommittee for renewed consideration.   
 
B: Provide guidance on the Open Space Preservation Program and direct staff to continue 

work on the agency and stakeholder coordination with the goal of returning to a City 
Council Study Session with a Final Draft of the recommendations.   

 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Provide guidance on the Open Space Preservation Program and direct staff to continue work on 
the agency and stakeholder coordination with the goal of returning to a City Council Study 
Session with a Final Draft of the recommendations. 
 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
There are no budgetary impacts at this time.    
 
 
Narrative:   
 
At this time staff is completing work on the OSDSS model, along with continuing the Agency and 
major stakeholder engagement process.  Finally, staff will continue to identify State Land 
Department parcels suitable for the Arizona Preserve Initiate (API) designation with a goal of 
making an application for any remaining 2013 Smart Growth matching grants funds. 
 
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:   Open Space Preservation Program information brochure 
 
Exhibit 2:  June 12, 2012 letter regarding the Boulders OHV Recreation Area  
 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Shawn Kreuzwiesner, Engineering Planning Manager, ext. 7643 

16



City of Peoria, arizona

oPen SPaCe PreServation Program

17

smithc4
Peoria



Peoria, Arizona is distinctive from the standpoint that within Maricopa County, there are few other places with 
such a variety of landscape, cultural features and habitat.  Two major rivers flow through the northern portions 
of the City, one connecting the largest lake in the Western portion of the County.  

The Lake, located in the foothills of the Hieroglyphic Mountains is surrounded by some of the last vestiges of the 
Sonoran Desert in the metropolitan area.  The Sonoran Desert is one of the most beautiful, unique and fragile 
environments on the planet.  Although one of the hottest deserts in North American desert, it receives enough 
rainfall to support a diverse and lush environment.  The desert is dominated by the Saguaro Cactus (Carnegiea 
gigantea) which is found in limited areas of Arizona and Mexico. 

The area between the two rivers is considered by many to be among the richest reserves of cultural sites.  
Considering the area’s unique ecology and biodiversity, the significance of the cultural sites, and the beauty of 
its viewsheds, the City of Peoria is determined to preserve and manage the best of the character through the 
Peoria Open Space Open Space Preservation Program.

What iS the Peoria  oPen SPaCe 
PreServation Program?

Identify ecologically and 
historically significant 
land

Provide abundant, high 
quality recreational 
opportunities

Create an extensive 
open space network for 
future generations to 
enjoy

Prioritize desirable open 
space properties for 
acquisition

Key elementS of the viSion for the Peoria oPen SPaCe PreServation Program:

18



The Peoria Open Space Preservation Program is 
comprised of four priority districts based on landform, 
resource and topographical features. They include: 

Lake District: Lake District refers to the area 
surrounding Lake Pleasant, the largest Lake in the 

Phoenix metropolitan area. Lake Pleasant Park 
encompasses the majority of land in this district and 
provides a variety of recreational opportunities.

Desert Lowland District: The Desert Lowland 
District is characterized by flat terrain with rocky 

mountainous outcrops and sinuous tributary washes. 
Significant to the Floodplain District is the Palo Verde 
cultural site, which has been recently added to the 
National Register of Historic Places.

Bajada District: The Bajada District is 
characterized by fan-shaped debris flows. When 

neighboring alluvial fans coalesce along a mountain front, 
the resulting landform is a bajada.

Hillside District: The Hillside District encompasses 
the foothills that run adjacent to the Bajada 

District.  This District is distinguished by prominently 
mountainous terrain.

1

3

2

4

1

3

2

4

Lake 
District

Bajada 
District

Desert 
Lowland 
District

Hillside 
District

19



The Peoria Open Space Decision Support System 
(OSDSS) identifies and prioritizes areas that 
merit special consideration for protection to 
achieve the vision and goals of open space 
preservation. The goal of the Peoria Open Space 
Preservation Program is to protect natural and 
cultural resources while balancing future growth 
and recreational needs.  The purpose of the 
OSDSS is to provide the City a mechanism to 
update open space prioritization and criteria over 
time to meet the changing needs of the City. 

Peoria oSDSS

20



Criteria
Prioritization begins with determining which criteria will be 
input to the OSDSS:

Resources
Are there important natural or cultural resources in the area?

Risk
What is the risk or urgency of protecting the site?

Visibility
How visible is this area, and does it have important scenic 
qualities?

Cost
What is the relative dollar value of protecting this area?

Access
What level of access is appropriate for the area’s use?

Distance
Is the area close to other protected areas or parks?

Ownership
Does the existing land ownership complicate purchase, lease, 
or management agreements?  Or, does it facilitate conservation 
agreements?

oSDSS moDeling ProCeSS

riSK viSibilityreSourCeS

DiStanCeaCCeSSCoSt

oWnerShiP

21



1 32 4 5 76 8 9 100

W
as

he
s 

&
 R

ip
ar

ia
n

W
et

la
nd

s

H
yd

ro
lo

gy

S
lo

pe
 >1

5%

C
ri

ti
ca

l W
ild

lif
e 

A
re

a

H
is

to
ri

c 
S

it
e 

&
 T

ra
ils

Inputs to the OSDSS include GIS datasets such as wildlife 
corridors, wetlands, cultural sites, washes, etc. These inputs are 
weighted from 1-10 based on the community’s values and their 
level of importance for open space and protection. 

The weights are averaged for each land unit to determine its 
attractiveness for open space acquisition. The City has the 
ability to continually alter weights and criteria to reflect current 
visions and needs.

valueS

22



filterS
The OSDSS assesses open space land protection through multiple 
filters to provide a holistic analysis possible. These filters include:

Resource Protection
Prioritizes key cultural and historic sites based on their sensitivity

Low/ Minimum Public Cost
Prioritizes lands based on lowest cost to the community 
(dedication, public lands, protected by code)

Best Value 
Areas with high resource value for lowest cost

Complete Open Space Program
Combines all three filters

23



Existing protected areas include dedicated open space and other non-saleable lands, such as city and regional parks.  
This plan identifies four additional key open space types to meet the prioritization goals represented in the Vision. Each 
open space type emphasizes certain resource types, but may protect other resources as well.  The graphs below illustrate 
the values and weights applied to the open space type.  For example, to identify priority natural/sensitive areas, resources 
such as critical wildlife habitat, areas with protected species received the highest weighting.

SePARAtiOn BuffeR

Primary purpose is to 
provide separation or a 
buffer between existing 
and/or planned 
development. May also 
contribute to protection of 
view sheds or view 
corridors.

PASSiVe

Emphasis on protecting 
important viewsheds; also 
provides opportunity to 
experience natural 
environment and isolation 
from urban development.

HeRitAge/ CuLtuRe

Protects sensitive cultural 
resources.  The intent of 
these areas is to provide 
protection from mining, 
urban development, OHV 
use, and grazing; areas 
emphasize conservation 
over public use.

nAtuRAL/ SenSitiVe

Protects areas of general 
wildlife importance in 
conjunction with other 
sensitive resources and 
wildlife corridors.

Key oPen SPaCe tyPeS

24



c

c

c

BLM

Park

Traditional models (inset) overlay resources to identify 
localized areas of interest. The OSDSS model goes one 
step further, defining contiguous focus areas based on how 
resources relate to one another.  As seen in the diagram 
above, this method provides a more connected method of 
open space utilization.  The system focuses on protecting 
multiple resources, their local and regional connectivity, 
and a mosaic of habitats and experiences. 

Focus areas are areas of interest that were identified 
through the OSDSS as having the highest level of 
importance for protection. Each area is generally defined 
on the Focus Areas map (next page) to allow flexibility in 
the development of subsequent implementation strategies 
or negotiations. Each of the four open space types are 
represented; the Agua Fria corridor is a combination of 
both Natural/Sensitive and Heritage/Culture resource 
considerations.

c Cultural Site Focus Area

a
 h

o
liS

tiC m
o

D
el

oSDSS moDel

c

c

c

BLM

PARk

Traditional Model

Level of 
Prioritization

25



B
al

d
y

M
o

un
ta

in

B
ig

S
pr

in
g

B
la

ck
M

ou
nt

ai
n

B
ur

ro
S

pr
in

g

B
ur

ro
S

pr
in

g

C
al

de
rw

oo
d

B
ut

te

C
ha

lk
y

S
pr

in
g

C
ho

lla
M

ou
nt

ai
n

C
oy

ot
e

S
pr

in
gs

D
rip

pi
ng

S
pr

in
g

E
as

t W
in

g
M

ou
nt

ai
n

G
ar

fia
s

M
ou

nt
ai

n

G
ov

er
no

rs
P

ea
k

H
el

lg
at

e
M

ou
nt

ai
n

H
or

se
S

pr
in

g

C
as

tle
 H

ot
S

pr
in

g

In
di

an
M

es
a

K
ee

fe
r

H
ill

Lo
w

er
La

ke

M
itc

he
ll

S
pr

in
g

M
or

ga
n

C
ity

 M
in

e

M
or

ga
n

C
ity

 W
el

l

M
ud

S
pr

in
g

P
ik

es
P

ea
k

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ca
ny

on

Rich Gulch
S

ad
dl

eb
ac

k
M

ou
nt

ai
n

S
hi

rtt
ai

l
H

ill
s

S
ol

o
S

pr
in

g

S
pr

in
g

Va
lle

y

S
un

ris
e

M
ou

nt
ai

n

S
w

ea
t

P
ea

k

Tu
le

S
pr

in
g

Tw
in

B
ut

te
s

W
es

t W
in

g
M

ou
nt

ai
n

W
hi

sk
ey

S
pr

in
g

W
hi

te
P

ea
k

W
ild

B
ur

ro
M

es
a

W
in

dy
W

el
l

Boulder Creek

Castle
 Cree

k

Coles 
Wash

Co
tto

nw
oo

d 
Cr

ee
k

Cottonwood Creek

Cow Creek

Dry Wash

French Cree
k

Gar
fia

s W
as

h

Morgan
 City

 W
ash

Padelford Wash

Tu
le 

Cre
ek

Weir W
ash

White Peak Wash

Twin Buttes Wash

Humbug Creek

Sku
nk C

ree
k

New River

Agua Fria

P
rin

ce
M

ou
nt

ai
n

La
ke

 P
le

as
an

t
Re

gi
on

al
 P

ar
k

SR 74

S
R 

74

LO
O

P 
30

3

SR
 7

4

H
W

Y 
30

3

LOOP 101

LOOP 101

P
FA

2
B

P
FA

1
A

P
FA

1
D

P
FA

1
E

P
FA

1
G

P
FA

1
F

P
FA

1
H

P
FA

1
J

P
FA

1
B

P
FA

1
C

P
FA

1
I

P
FA

1
1

P
FA

1
0

P
FA

9

P
FA

8

P
FA

6

P
FA

7

P
FA

3

P
FA

4

P
FA

5

P
FA

2
C

P
FA

2
A

He
lls

 C
an

yo
n 

W
ild

er
ne

ss

Pe
o
ria

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a

M
aj

o
r 

R
oa

d
s

3
0
3

, 
1
0

1
, 

S
R
 7

4

W
at

er
/W

as
he

s

Pr
o
te

ct
ed

 O
p
en

 S
p
ac

e

Pe
o
ria

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

cu
s 

A
re

as

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

P
as

si
ve

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

S
ep

ar
at

io
n
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

N
at

ur
al

 /
 S

en
st

iv
e 

P
rio

ri
ty

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

H
er

it
ag

e 
/ 

 C
u
ltu

re
 P

ri
or

it
y

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

O
p
en

 S
p
ac

e 
Fo

cu
s 

A
re

as
W

it
h
 P

ri
or

it
iz

at
io

n
 

0
1.

5
3

0.
75

M
ile

s

Priority focus a
re

a 
 A

gu
a 

Fr
ia

 N
ort

h (P
FA6)

Prio
rit

y 
fo

cu
s 

a
re

as
   

La
ke Pleasant Heights North (PFA

2c)

Prio
rit

y 
Fo

cu
s 

A
re

a 
 B

LM
 (P

FA
1a

)

Pr
io

r
it

y 
Pr

o
je

C
tS

 
fo

r
 t

h
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f 

Pe
o

r
ia

26



B
al

d
y

M
o

un
ta

in

B
ig

S
pr

in
g

B
la

ck
M

ou
nt

ai
n

B
ur

ro
S

pr
in

g

B
ur

ro
S

pr
in

g

C
al

de
rw

oo
d

B
ut

te

C
ha

lk
y

S
pr

in
g

C
ho

lla
M

ou
nt

ai
n

C
oy

ot
e

S
pr

in
gs

D
rip

pi
ng

S
pr

in
g

E
as

t W
in

g
M

ou
nt

ai
n

G
ar

fia
s

M
ou

nt
ai

n

G
ov

er
no

rs
P

ea
k

H
el

lg
at

e
M

ou
nt

ai
n

H
or

se
S

pr
in

g

C
as

tle
 H

ot
S

pr
in

g

In
di

an
M

es
a

K
ee

fe
r

H
ill

Lo
w

er
La

ke

M
itc

he
ll

S
pr

in
g

M
or

ga
n

C
ity

 M
in

e

M
or

ga
n

C
ity

 W
el

l

M
ud

S
pr

in
g

P
ik

es
P

ea
k

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Ca
ny

on

Rich Gulch

S
ad

dl
eb

ac
k

M
ou

nt
ai

n

S
hi

rtt
ai

l
H

ill
s

S
ol

o
S

pr
in

g

S
pr

in
g

Va
lle

y

S
un

ris
e

M
ou

nt
ai

n

S
w

ea
t

P
ea

k

Tu
le

S
pr

in
g

Tw
in

B
ut

te
s

W
es

t W
in

g
M

ou
nt

ai
n

W
hi

sk
ey

S
pr

in
g

W
hi

te
P

ea
k

W
ild

B
ur

ro
M

es
a

W
in

dy
W

el
l

Boulder Creek

Castle
 Cree

k

Coles 
Wash

Co
tto

nw
oo

d 
Cr

ee
k

Cottonwood Creek

Cow Creek

Dry Wash

French Cree
k

Gar
fia

s W
as

h

Morgan
 City

 W
ash

Padelford Wash

Tu
le 

Cre
ek

Weir W
ash

White Peak Wash

Twin Buttes Wash

Humbug Creek

Sku
nk C

ree
k

New River

Agua Fria

P
rin

ce
M

ou
nt

ai
n

La
ke

 P
le

as
an

t
Re

gi
on

al
 P

ar
k

SR 74

S
R 

74

LO
O

P 
30

3

SR
 7

4

H
W

Y 
30

3

LOOP 101

LOOP 101

P
FA

2
B

P
FA

1
A

P
FA

1
D

P
FA

1
E

P
FA

1
G

P
FA

1
F

P
FA

1
H

P
FA

1
J

P
FA

1
B

P
FA

1
C

P
FA

1
I

P
FA

1
1

P
FA

1
0

P
FA

9

P
FA

8

P
FA

6

P
FA

7

P
FA

3

P
FA

4

P
FA

5

P
FA

2
C

P
FA

2
A

He
lls

 C
an

yo
n 

W
ild

er
ne

ss

Pe
o
ria

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a

M
aj

o
r 

R
oa

d
s

3
0
3

, 
1
0

1
, 

S
R
 7

4

W
at

er
/W

as
he

s

Pr
o
te

ct
ed

 O
p
en

 S
p
ac

e

Pe
o
ria

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
Fo

cu
s 

A
re

as

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

P
as

si
ve

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

S
ep

ar
at

io
n
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

N
at

ur
al

 /
 S

en
st

iv
e 

P
rio

ri
ty

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

H
er

it
ag

e 
/ 

 C
u
ltu

re
 P

ri
or

it
y

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

O
p
en

 S
p
ac

e 
Fo

cu
s 

A
re

as
W

it
h
 P

ri
or

it
iz

at
io

n
 

0
1.

5
3

0.
75

M
ile

s

M
ap

 K
ey

FO
C

U
S

 A
R

E
A

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

O
w

ne
rs

hi
p

Natural /Sensitive

Heritage/Cultural

Passive

Separation Priority

P
F

A
1a

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

N
or

th
 o

f S
R

 7
4 

 &
 W

es
t o

f L
ak

e 
P

le
as

an
t

B
LM

X
X

P
F

A
1b

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

C
as

tl
e 

H
ot

 S
pr

in
gs

 R
oa

d 
 &

 P
ho

to
 V

ie
w

 
R

oa
d

P
ri

va
te

X
X

X

P
F

A
1c

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

C
as

tl
e 

H
ot

 S
pr

in
gs

 R
oa

d 
 &

 W
an

de
r L

an
e

P
ri

va
te

X
X

P
F

A
1d

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

B
ul

la
rd

 A
ve

nu
e 

&
 J

en
ny

 L
in

 R
oa

d
P

ri
va

te
 a

nd
 

S
ta

te
 L

an
d

X
X

P
F

A
1e

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

C
ot

to
n 

La
ne

 &
 H

on
da

 B
ow

 R
oa

d
S

ta
te

 L
an

d
X

X
P

F
A

1f
H

ie
ro

gl
yp

hi
c 

M
ou

nt
ai

ns
C

ot
to

n 
La

ne
  &

 S
ta

te
 R

ou
te

 7
4

P
ri

va
te

 
X

X
X

P
F

A
1g

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

W
es

tl
an

d 
D

ri
ve

 &
 R

oc
ka

w
ay

 H
ill

s 
R

oa
d

S
ta

te
 L

an
d 

X
X

P
F

A
1h

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

E
l M

ir
ag

e 
R

oa
d 

@
 1

/2
 m

ile
 n

or
th

 o
f D

es
er

t 
H

ill
s 

R
oa

d
P

ri
va

te
X

X

P
F

A
1i

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

1/
2 

m
ile

 w
es

t o
f 1

07
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

&
 D

es
er

t 
H

ill
s 

R
oa

d
P

ri
va

te
 

X
X

X
X

P
F

A
1j

H
ie

ro
gl

yp
hi

c 
M

ou
nt

ai
ns

10
7t

h 
A

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
S

ta
te

 R
ou

te
 7

4
P

ri
va

te
X

X
X

X
P

F
A

2a
B

la
ck

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
75

th
 A

ve
nu

e 
&

 R
oc

ka
w

ay
 H

ill
s 

R
oa

d
S

ta
te

 L
an

d
X

X
X

P
F

A
2b

Ta
bl

e 
M

es
a

75
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

&
 M

in
gu

s 
R

oa
d

S
ta

te
 L

an
d

X
X

X
P

F
A

2c
La

ke
 P

le
as

an
t

1/
2 

m
ile

 w
es

t o
f 8

3r
d 

A
ve

nu
e 

&
 s

ou
th

 o
f 

B
ea

r C
la

w
 R

oa
d

S
ta

te
 L

an
d

X
X

X

P
F

A
3

P
ic

ac
ho

 W
as

h
S

ar
iv

al
 W

as
h 

&
D

ov
e 

Va
lle

y 
R

oa
d

S
ta

te
 L

an
d

X
X

X
P

F
A

4
P

le
as

an
t P

ea
ks

R
ee

m
s 

R
oa

d 
@

 1
/2

 m
ile

 n
or

th
 o

f D
ov

e 
Va

lle
y 

R
d

Vi
st

an
ci

a 
O

S
X

X
X

P
F

A
5

P
ri

nc
e 

M
ou

nt
ai

n
W

es
tl

an
d 

D
ri

ve
 &

 L
on

e 
M

ou
nt

ai
n 

X
X

X
X

P
F

A
6

N
or

th
 A

gu
a 

Fr
ia

 R
iv

er
10

7t
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

&
 J

om
ax

 R
oa

d
B

O
R

, P
ri

va
te

, 
S

ta
te

 L
an

d
X

X
X

X

P
F

A
7

W
es

t A
gu

a 
Fr

ia
 R

iv
er

 
Te

rr
ac

e
11

5t
h 

A
ve

nu
e 

&
 D

ix
el

et
a 

D
ri

ve
B

LM
, P

ri
va

te
, 

S
ta

te
 L

an
d

X
X

X
X

P
F

A
8

S
ou

th
 A

gu
a 

Fr
ia

 R
iv

er
U

ni
on

 H
ill

s 
R

oa
d 

&
 1

11
th

. A
ve

nu
e

B
LM

, P
ri

va
te

, 
S

ta
te

 L
an

d
X

X
X

X

P
F

A
9

C
al

de
rw

oo
d

92
nd

 A
ve

 @
 1

/2
 m

ile
 n

or
th

 o
f D

yn
am

it
e 

B
lv

d.
B

LM
, P

ri
va

te
, 

S
ta

te
 L

an
d

X
X

X
X

P
F

A
10

S
un

se
t M

ou
nt

ai
n

83
rd

 A
ve

nu
e 

&
 H

ap
py

 V
al

le
y 

P
ar

kw
ay

B
LM

, P
ri

va
te

, 
S

ta
te

 L
an

d
X

X
X

X

P
F

A
11

N
ew

 R
iv

er
 D

am
 

Im
po

un
dm

en
t A

re
a

75
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

&
 D

yn
am

it
e 

B
lv

d
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
P

ri
va

te
X

X
X

Priority focus 
ar

ea
 C

al
d

er
w

oo
d B

utte (PFA9)

27



City of Peoria
Planning and Community Development Department
9875 North 85th Avenue
Peoria, Arizona  85345
Phone 623.773.7601

Chris Jacques, Planning and Community Development Director
Chris.jacques@peoriaaz.gov
623.773.7200

Shawn kreuzwiesner, Engineering Planning Manager
Shawn.kreuzwiesner@peoriaaz.gov
623.773.7643

ContaCt

www.peoriaaz.gov

28

smithc4
Peoria



 

Community Development Department    
 

 MEMORANDUM  
 Planning Division 

                                 
 

 
DATE:  June 12, 2012 
 
TO: All Interested Parties        
 
FROM: Chris Jacques, Planning & Community Development Director    
 
SUBJECT: The Boulders OHV Recreation Area 
   
 
 
Over the last several days, our staff has received nearly 50 emails from local OHV users 
expressing concern about a rumored closure to the Boulders Recreation Area on BLM-managed 
land north of State Route 74.  Let me assure you, that this has never been contemplated by the 
City nor has the City ever expressed any intent to acquire, restrict, or alter this recreation area.  
Not only is this area within BLM-managed land, it is outside of Peoria municipal boundaries. 
 
So what is the City working on? 
 
The City is working on an implementation strategy to identify key areas for special consideration 
– areas that we can then attempt to strategically assemble over time into a meaningful, network 
of connected open spaces for a variety of users. This could be accomplished through outright 
acquisition or developer dedication, agency partnerships and/or regulatory tools that help guide 
future development in a responsible and sensitive manner. 
 
There’s no question that Northern Peoria has some of the most remarkable topography and 
pristine desert areas in the Valley. Open space and recreational opportunities are key quality-of-
life variables for its citizens.  It is important that future development occurs in a balanced, 
responsible manner and that open spaces (for a variety of users) are part of a connected system, 
rather than disjointed “islands.”  
 
The resulting Open Space Program is not being developed as a regulatory document, but rather 
as a guiding document for future planning and recreation efforts.  For example, the Program may 
help inform updates to existing ordinances such as the Desert Lands Conservation Overlay and 
the Hillside Development Overlay or how we treat “edges” between development and open 
space. 
 
To date, the City has developed an inventory of known wildlife habitats, topography, wash 
corridors, and archaeological resources compiled from a variety of studies and Area Drainage 
Master Plans (ADMP) prepared over the past decade or so.  To facilitate the identification of 
areas warranting special consideration, staff has been working through its consultant (AECOM) to 
develop a computer-based decision model. This model enables the classification of lands 
according to environmental, cultural and developmental attributes.     
 

 

 

29



 

 
 
To this end, I continue to welcome all input as we proceed through the process of developing the 
Peoria Sonoran Preservation Program and I thank you in advance for your participation. 
 
          

30



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
Date Prepared:  July 31, 2012 Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012   
 
 
TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Scott Whyte, Economic Development Services Director 
  Chris Jacques, Planning & Community Development Director 
 
THROUGH: Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Old Town Metrics  
 
 
Purpose: 
To establish a baseline system of measurement for the Old Town area to measure against future 
outcomes.  
 
Background/Summary:  
Old Town is an area of City Council interest pursuant to the adopted Old Town Revitalization Plan and 
within an area identified as an Investment Zone under the Economic Development Investment Strategy 
(EDIS). Interest has been expressed in developing barometers or indicators to assess the success of 
strategic actions and policies. 
 
However, we need to be careful in how we design and interpret indicators. As structured, the totality of 
the actions and strategies (from the Old Town Plan and EDIS) over time should incrementally improve 
the environment which in turn advances the plan objectives. In many cases, there is no direct 
correlation or translation between a singular action or program (e.g. 84th Avenue Streetscape Project) 
and success in revitalization efforts.  For example, the 84th Avenue project advances the Plan by 
improving the appearance and form of Old Town. However, by itself, it is unlikely to translate into new 
business starts, higher occupancy rates, increased sales tax collection or other common economic 
indicators.  
 
It is proposed that the City identify a range of economic and community “snapshot” indicators for a 
defined area of Old Town. Some of the indicators will relate to specific economic development initiatives 
while others will be area-wide barometers. Broadly speaking, the indicators then paint a picture of the 
emerging health and vitality of Old Town over time.      
 
Accordingly, the Economic Development Services, Planning and Community Development, and 
Engineering Departments have identified a proposed structure to assess the impact of public and private 
investment in the Old Town area based on the Council adopted entertainment district boundaries.  A 
draft matrix identifying the key data elements and outcomes relating to this endeavor, as well as a map 
of the target area are attached (see Exhibits A and B).  
 
Included are the proposed data sources, many of which depend on regular primary research. Such 
activity is time intensive for staff and does not yield 100% reliable information. Additionally, it has been 

31

rhondas
Typewritten Text
SS#2



Council Communication   
Page 2 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

proposed that the City facilitate the formation of an Old Town Business Association, which could be 
beneficial. This would also require a great deal of staff time and is not currently accounted for in the 
department budget. 
   
Previous Actions: 
This item was considered by the Economic Development Advisory Board (EDAB) at its May 10, 2012 
meeting and by the Council Subcommittee on Sustainable Development and Public Services on June 6, 
2012. 
 
Options: 
A:  Recommend that this approach be forwarded for approval by the City Council; or 
 
B: Reject this approach and provide direction on a new approach. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that this item be forwarded for approval by the City Council at its next regular 
meeting. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
Actual staff cost impacts to implement the indicator program will be determined based upon direction 
provided by the City Council during the study session discussion. 
  
Exhibits: 
 
Exhibit A:   Draft Old Town Economic and Community Indicators  
Exhibit B: Old Town Entertainment District boundary map 
 
Contact Name and Number:   
 
Paul Zampini, Economic Development Coordinator (x7642) 
 
  

32

Rectangle



 

Exhibit A 
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY INDICATORS 

FOR OLD TOWN PEORIA  
 
Overall target area: 
Boundaries of the adopted Old Town Entertainment District.  
 
Objective: 
To establish a baseline measurement of the Old Town Entertainment District to measure against 
future outcomes.  
 
Desired Outcomes: 

o Reduction in property vacancy rate 
o Increase in tenant base and mix (qualitative metric) 
o Increased private capital investment 
o Improve perceptions of Old Town (safety, place to visit/invest) 
o Increase transit viability 
o Realize completion of the Old Town Revitalization Plan 
o Improve quality of life 
o Increase in employment 
o Increase in sales tax growth 
o Increase in visitation to Old Town 

 
Recognized Constraints: 

• Value impaired properties exhibiting judgments, liens, debt in excess of value 
• Out-of-state owners not motivated to reposition idled or under utilized properties 
• Economic demographics are constrained in terms of income levels and extent of 

discretionary income available to support a more robust market 
• Physical appearance and perception issues  

 
Engineering CIP Data: 

  
   

  Infrastructure 
Projects 

Federally 
Leveraged 

Funds 
Public City Investment Other Public Investment 

(ADOT) 
  Baseline 2011 Baseline 2011 Baseline 2011 

1    
  

 
 
 

2    
  

 
 
 

3    

  

 
 
 

 
 

34



 

 
 
Economic Development Project Specific Metrics and Data: (see Exhibit B) 

 
 

Community Health Metrics: 
These metrics are benchmarked against other areas in Peoria. 
 

Target Area Metric Unit of measure 
FY 

2010 
FY 

2011 
% 

∆  2011/2010  
Attractability 

  
National Citizen Survey/New Survey 
- Citizens' perception of safety 

% respondents "Feel Very safe or 
somewhat safe" in Peoria's 
downtown area        

  Attendance at Old Town Festivals # of attendees       
    Pioneer Days # of attendees       
    Fiestas Patrias # of attendees       
    Holiday Festival # of attendees       
  Crimes # of incidents reported       
  Livability Calls (aggregate) # of incidents reported       

 
Graffiti calls # of incidents reported 

   
  

Pre-Application Meetings for Old 
Town Sites # of pre-apps completed       

 

   

  
Project 

Property 
Value 

Vacancy 
Rate 

Private/Public 
Investment 

Tenant 
Mix 

# 
FTEs 

Sales 
Tax 

Growth 

Sq Ft 
per 

tenant 
mix 

  Baseline 
2011 

Baseline 
2011 Baseline 2011 Baseline 

2011 
   

1 
Old 

Smitty’s 
Building 

  

Private=  Retail    

Public =  
Services    
Professional    

2 
Peoria 
Town 
Center 

  

Private=  Retail    

Public =  
Services    
Professional    

3 
Commercial 

Rehab 
(Phases 1 

and 2) 
  

Private=  Retail    

Public =  
Services    
Professional    

4 
Washington 

Street 
Properties 

  

Private=  Retail    

Public =  
Services    
Professional    

5 Peoria 
Place   

Private=  Retail    

Public =  
Services    
Professional    

35



 

  
Site Plan project submittals for Old 
Town Sites 

# of site plans submitted, excluding 
cell towers       

Stability 

  Water disconnects 
# of residential units disconnected as 
of July1       

 
Residential Rental Properties % of homes in area that are rentals 

   

  
Average SF of the rentals 

   

 
Target Area Sales Tax growth 

Sales tax reports for each project 
area compared to baseline year 

   

 
Target Area Property Tax growth 

Property tax assessed compared to 
baseline year 

   

 

Target Area Commercial or Retail 
Vacancy 

Commercial or retail SF vacancy 
compared to baseline year 

   Development and Redevelopment 

  Target Area Land Acquisition 
For land banking, metric is number of 
parcels acquired       

  
Target Area New Retail 
Development 

Growth in project sales above 
baseline       

  
Number of new jobs created 

   

 

Target Area New Commercial 
Development Number of new jobs created 

   

  

Growth in project property tax 
above baseline  

   Transit Viability / Sustainable (re)development 

  Target Area Population Density 

# of residential units * (avg. 
person/unit)  within 1/2 mile radius 
of transit center       

  
Target Area Accessibility of services 
from transit 

listing of # and type of neighborhood 
services within 1/2 mile radius of  
transit center (e.g. bank, convenience 
grocery, day care, cleaners, salon, 
etc.)       

Old Town Revitalization Plan Progress Report (narrative statement of qualitative and quantitative progress towards plan 
implementation 

 
Data Sources  
Real estate brokers 
Property management companies 
Property owners 
Tax and business licenses 
County Assessor’s Website 
MAG 

Various Citizen Surveys 
 
Attendance at city events 
GIS 
Pre-App data 
Water meter data (disconnects) 

36



Exhibit B - Old Town Entertainment District

City of Peoria Old Town Entertainment District for the purposes of meeting the 
A.R.S. Section 4-207 definition of Entertainment District

Peoria Ave.

Varney Rd..

Mountain View Rd.

87
th

 A
ve

.

83
rd

 A
ve

.

79
th

 A
ve

.

85
th

 A
ve

.

Olive Ave.

Hatcher Rd.

Jefferson St.

75
th

 A
ve

.

Grand Ave. 81
st

 A
ve

.21

5

4

3

Washington St.
Old Smitty’s building

Peoria Town Center

Commercial Rehab 
(Phase I & II)

Washington Street 
Properties

Peoria Place

1

2

3

4

5

37



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared: July 30, 2012  Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012     
 

 
TO: Carl Swenson, City Manager  
 
FROM:  Chris M. Jacques, AICP, Planning & Community Development Director 
 
THROUGH: Susan J. Daluddung, AICP, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Major General Plan Amendment, Senate Bill 1598 - Aggregate Mining  
  (Case GPA12-0002) 
  STUDY SESSION 

 
Purpose:  
 
This is a request for City Council to consider a proposed amendment to the Land Use Element of 
the General Plan pertaining to aggregate mining. The amendment is intended to update policy 
guidance in compliance with recent changes in State Law (SB 1598).    
 
Background/Summary: 
 
Overview – Senate Bill 1598 
On April 28, 2011, Senate Bill 1598 was signed into law by Governor Brewer. Although this bill is 
commonly known as the “Regulatory Bill of Rights,” it has two distinct and unrelated areas of 
focus. The first portion of the bill essentially affects process decisions and timeframes, appeal 
procedures and the substantive manner in which we conduct reviews and inspections for the 
issuance of “licenses,” permits and other approvals. A staff team is currently working on this 
portion of the bill as a separate item and information will be forthcoming as new procedures 
are developed later this year. 
 
The second portion of this bill pertains to aggregate mining (e.g. sand & gravel, mineral 
extraction) and how mining operations are represented within the General Plan. For the 
purposes of policy discussion, this agenda item will address only the aggregate mining 
component of the legislation. This item is being processed as part of the 2012 Major General 
Plan Amendment cycle. 
 
SB 1598 – Aggregate Mining 
SB 1598 amended Arizona Revised Statutes Section(s) 9-461.1 by adding a definition for 
“aggregate” and 9-461.05.C.1 by adding subsection (g) as highlighted below. Staff believes this 
provision requires the City to identify currently permitted aggregate mining operations on the 
General Plan Land Use Map; and establish policies that protect these operations from 

38

rhondas
Typewritten Text
SS#3



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 4 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

incompatible land uses with the intention of minimizing conflicts between mining operations 
and residential developments.  
 
A.R.S. 9-461.  Definitions 
 
1. “Aggregate” means cinder, crushed rock or stone; decomposed granite, gravel, pumice, 

pumacite and sand. 
 
A.R.S. 9-461.05.  General Plans; authority; scope (excerpt) 
 
C.  The General Plan shall consist of a statement of community goals and development policies.  

It shall include maps, any necessary diagrams and text setting forth objectives, principles, 
standards and plan proposals.  The plan shall include the following elements: 

 
1. A Land Use Element that: 

 

 (g)  Includes sources of currently identified aggregates from maps that are available 
from state agencies, policies to preserve currently identified aggregates sufficient 
for future development and policies to avoid incompatible land uses, except that 
this subdivision shall not be construed to affect any permitted underground 
storage facility or limit any person's right to obtain a permit for an underground 
storage facility pursuant to title 45, chapter 3.1. 

 

To this end, staff has met with the Arizona Department of Mines and Mineral Resources and 
collected information on existing, permitted mines.  Staff has identified ten (10) mines within 
the City’s Planning Area (Exhibit A). Aggregate mining operations exceeding five (5) acres in 
area are required by Arizona statute to file “Reclamation Plans” with the Arizona State Mine 
Inspector. These plans detail the total acreage of the mining site, the disturbed (e.g. mined) 
acreage, and the manner in which the owner/operator will restore the site once mining activity 
has ceased.   
 
Within the City limits, any new proposed mine (non-State Land) requires City Council approval 
of a Special Use zoning overlay.  This overlay requires an Operation Plan, Re-use Plan, Closure 
Plan, regulatory permits and a financial guarantee to ensure that operators abide by the 
approved plans. Additionally, the SU overlay identifies specific setbacks for various structures 
and activities including blasting, haul roads, production equipment and the like. 
 
In terms of new General Plan policy guidance (Exhibit B), staff has identified a Draft Goal that 
promotes compatible land uses in areas of close proximity to existing or planned mining 
operations. Subsequent objectives and policies follow attempting to balance the existing mines 
from encroachment of new incompatible uses and discourage new mining locations in 
proximity to residential uses or recreational areas.  
 

39



Council Communication   
Page 3 of 4 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Previous Actions: 
 
Sustainable Development Subcommittee (6/6/12) 
The proposed amendment was presented to the Sustainable Development Subcommittee on 
June 6, 2012.  As part of the discussion, staff identified several potential policy items for specific 
consideration. The items are referenced and outlined below: 
 

 In what manner should the General Plan Land Use Map be modified to meet the 
requirement to “include sources of currently identified aggregates” and promote 
compatible land uses?  
 

Staff has researched and inventoried the location of all known aggregate mining operations 
within the City’s Planning Area. Information collected from the Arizona Department of Mines 
and Minerals was identified as specific points on the Land Use Map (Exhibit 1). The overall size 
and extent of the mining area has not been identified. Because mining operations have a “finite 
life span” and ultimately will be restored, staff does not recommend the creation of a new 
mining land use category.  
 

 When in close proximity to aggregate mining operations, what types of land uses 
should be considered to be incompatible?  

 
In an attempt to define the ambiguous language of SB1598 regarding the requirement for 
jurisdictions to avoid incompatible land uses and identification of sufficient aggregate material 
for future development, staff has prepared a new goal, objective, and three new policies in a 
manner consistent with the current General Plan format (Exhibit 2).  
 
Options: 
 
A:   Direct staff to forward the General Plan Amendment to the Planning & Zoning Commission 

as proposed by staff; or   
 
B: Direct staff to forward the General Plan Amendment to the Planning & Zoning Commission 

with specified modifications; or 
 
  C: Remand the General Plan Amendment to the Sustainable Development Subcommittee for 

renewed consideration based on policy matters of concern. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Receive the presentation materials and provide staff with direction on the proposed General 
Plan Amendment relating to aggregate mining pursuant to Senate Bill 1598. 
 

40



Council Communication   
Page 4 of 4 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Fiscal Analysis: 
       
There is no fiscal impact to the City with the Study Session presentation. 
 
Narrative:   
 
Upon receiving a directive from the City Council to move forward, this General Plan 
Amendment would be revised as warranted and moved to the Planning & Zoning Commission 
for a recommendation. The recommendation would then be forwarded to a future City Council 
meeting for final action. 
 
Exhibit(s): 
 
Exhibit A:   Proposed changes to Land Use Map – Identifying Existing Mining Operations 
Exhibit B:   General Plan Land Use Amendment Language 
  (deletions/additions shown as strike/underscore) 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Adam D. Pruett, AICP, LEED Green Associate, Senior Planner, (623) 
773-5168   

41



XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Î#*

Î#*

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

XW

Î
#*

XW

XW

Î#*

XW

XW

XW

XWXW Î
#*

Æ

ÆÆ
Æ
ÆÆ

Æ Æ

Æ

Æ
Æ

Æ

Æ

Lake
Pleasant
Regional
Park

Bald
Eagle
Nesting
Area

Saddleback SAP

C.A.P. Canal

Beardsley Canal

Ag
ua

 Fr
ia 

Ri
ve

r

Peoria
Lakes
SAP Ne

w R
ive

r

Lake Pleasant
Heights SAP

Loop
303
SAP

Camino
a Lago
SAP

Old Town SAP

Triana Park 
SAP

 Maricopa Co

Yavapai Co

WADELL DAM

CAMP DRYER 

DAM

NEW RIVER DAM

Skunk Cree
k

McMICKEN DAM

BELL RD

RE
EM

S 
RD

CLOUD RD

JOMAX RD

75
TH

 A
VE

67
TH

 A
VE

83
RD

 A
VE

91
ST

 A
VE

99
TH

 A
VE

CI
TR

US
 R

D

DY
SA

RT
 R

D

MINGUS RD

WANDER LN

OLIVE AVE

CACTUS RD

10
7T

H 
AV

E

11
5T

H 
AV

E

PEORIA AVE

BU
LL

AR
D 

AV
E

SA
RI

VA
L A

VE

CO
TT

ON
 LA

NE

DIXILETA DR

GREENWAY RD

EL
 M

IR
AG

E 
RD

BEAR CLAW RD

JENNY LIN RD

HONDA BOW RD

JOY RANCH RD

CAREFREE HWY

BEARDSLEY RD

NORTHERN AVE

LIT
CH

FIE
LD

 R
D

PHOTO VIEW RD

DYNAMITE BLVD

DOVE VALLEY RD

DEER VALLEY RD

THUNDERBIRD RD

UNION HILLS DR

DESERT HILLS RD

LONE MOUNTAIN RD

PINNACLE PEAK RD

ROCKAWAY HILLS RD

HAPPY VALLEY PKWY

CIRCLE MOUNTAIN RD

(17
90

0)

(12
30

0)

(13
10

0)

(13
90

0)

(14
70

0)

(15
50

0)

(16
30

0)

(17
10

0)

(9000)

(8000)

(52200)

(50600)

(49000)

(47400)

(45800)

(44200)

(42600)

(41000)

(39400)

(37800)

(36200)

(34600)

(33000)

(31400)

(29800)

(28200)

(26600)

(25000)

(23400)

(21800)

(20200)

(18600)

(17000)

(15400)

(13800)

(12200)

(10600)

O:
\PR

OJ
EC

TS
\IT

\G
PA

_L
U_

20
11

\G
P2

01
2\G

P2
01

2_
AZ

_m
ine

s0
51

41
2.m

xd

74 74

I
0 0.9 1.8 2.7 3.60.45 Miles

In areas of Old Town and Saddleback Specific Area Plans (SAP), Land Uses do not match the standard Land Use
 types and the graphics are muted.  Please reference the SAP for specific Land Uses.

NOTE: This Map is based on imprecise source data, subject to change and FOR GENERAL REFERENCE ONLY. 

Legend
Æ AZ Mines

Business Park
Business Park/Industrial
Community Commercial
Golf Course
Industrial
Mixed Use
Mixed Use - Business Park
Mixed Use - Neighborhood
Mixed Use - Regional Comm
Mixed Use - Residential Low
Mixed Use - Residential Med
Mixed Use-Community Commercial
Neighborhood Commercial
Office
Park/Open Space
Public/Quasi-Public
Regional Commercial
Residential/Estate
Residential/High
Residential/Low
Residential/Medium
Residential/Medium High
Sports Complex Mixed Use
Town Center Mixed Use
Water

Boundaries
Peoria City Limits
Maricopa Yavapai County Line
County Island
Lake Pleasant Regional Park
Specific Area Plans
Planning Area Boundary
Proposed Utility Corridor

Circulation Plan
Road Class

Highway
Arterial
Collector
Highway (Future)
Arterial (Future)
Collector (Future)

Interchanges
XW Full Diamond

Î
#* Half Diamond

December 6, 2011

City of Peoria
General Plan

42

adampr
Typewritten Text

adampr
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



  Exhibit 2 

2.B. GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

The following goals, objectives and policies are developed to define the essential components of 
the Land Use Element.  They are listed under the following categories: Smart Growth, 
Residential Communities, Employment Related Development, Mixed-Use Development, Infill 
Development, Resort Development, and Amendments to the General Plan. 
 

 

GOAL 4: 
PROMOTE COMPATIBLE LAND USES IN AREAS OF CLOSE PROXIMITY TO EXISTING OR 
PLANNED AGGREGATE / MINERAL MINING LOCATIONS 

 

Objective 4.A: 
Provide equal protection for residential development and aggregate mining operations. 

Policy 4.A.1: 
Discourage new residential zoning where future residences would be adjacent 
to an existing or planned aggregate / mineral mining operation.  

Policy 4.A.2: 
Discourage new mining operations adjacent to or in close proximity to existing 
residential development or existing or planned City recreation areas. 

Policy 4.A.3: 
Promote non-residential development such as business park and industrial uses 
adjacent to existing mining operations. 

 

43



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
Date Prepared:  July 27, 2012 Council Meeting Date:  August 21, 2012     
 
 

 

TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William Mattingly, Public Works – Utilities Director 
 
THROUGH: Susan K. Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Recognition of Tim Hattrick and Willy D. Loon for their support of Peoria 

Recycling Program and recognition of Peoria’s own Willie Townsend for his 
dedication to the program. 

 
Purpose:  
 

The City would like to recognize Tim Hattrick and Willy D. Loon for their support of the Peoria 
Recycling Program while they hosted a popular morning radio program on KMLE-FM (107.9) 
and recognize Peoria’s own Willie Townsend, Solid Waste Equipment Operator, for his 
dedication to the program. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 

Tim Hattrick and Willy D. Loon hosted the “Tim and Willy Show” on KMLE-FM (107.9), also 
known as “Camel Country 108” from 2008 until July 2012.  During this time, they supported the 
City of Peoria’s recycling program by hosting Willie Townsend, City of Peoria Solid Waste 
Equipment Operator.  Willie Townsend called the radio station every Wednesday morning to 
talk about the importance of recycling in the Valley and Peoria specifically. During these weekly 
interviews, Mr. Townsend, known on the radio as “Willie the Wizard” would provide listeners 
with helpful hints and tips about recycling.  
 
Tim and Willie have been friends of Peoria’s recycling program from the beginning. They hosted 
an informational video on recycling that was produced when the program was initiated back in 
2007.  
 
Previous Actions: N/A 
 
Options: N/A 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: N/A 
 
Fiscal Analysis: N/A 
 
Exhibit(s): N/A 
Contact Name and Number:  William Mattingly, Public Works – Utilities Director, 623-773-5151 

44

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Presentation



 MINUTES OF THE PEORIA CITY COUNCIL  
 CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA 
 COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 July 3, 2012 
 
 
A Study Session Meeting of the City Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona was 
convened at 8401 West Monroe Street in open and public session at 5:00 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Barrett; Vice Mayor Ron Aames; Councilmembers 
Cathy Carlat, Joan Evans, Carlo Leone, Dave Pearson and Tony Rivero. 
  
Members Absent:  None 
 
Other Municipal Officials Present:  Carl Swenson, City Manager; Susan Daluddung, 
Deputy City Manager; Susan Thorpe, Deputy City Manager; Steve Kemp, City Attorney; 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk; Andy Granger, Engineering Director; Katie 
Gregory, Interim Management and Budget Director; Stacy Irvine, Interim Fire Chief; 
Chris Jacques, Planning and Community Development Director; Bill Mattingly, Public 
Works and Utilities Director; Brent Mattingly, Finance Director; Jeff Tyne, Interim 
Community Services Director; Linda Blas, Deputy City Clerk. 
 
Audience:  Approximately five members of the public were present. 
 
Note:  The order in which items appear in the minutes is not necessarily the order 
in which they were discussed in the meeting. 
 
Subject for Discussion only: 
 
1. Update on Citywide Sustainability Efforts 
 
Susan Daluddung, Deputy City Manager, outlined the agenda for the presentation on 
Citywide sustainability efforts. 
 
Mindy Russell, Management Assistant, reported on the projects funded by the $1.3 
million Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant awarded to the City in 2009.   
 
Ms. Russell shared some of the community education and outreach activities including: 
 

• Peoria’s Power Pals 
• Puppet shows 
• Magic shows 
• Appearances at special events 

 
 
 

45



City Council Study Session Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 5:00 p.m. 
Page 2 of 5 
 
Bill Mattingly, Public Works Director, reviewed some of the City’s ongoing efforts toward 
sustainability including: 
 

• Citywide energy reduction measures 
• Solid waste recycling 
• Expansion of the reclaimed water distribution system 

 
Mr. Mattingly reported on the awards and recognitions the City has received for its 
sustainability plans over the past three years including: 
 

• LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) Gold award for the 
Municipal Court Expansion 

• 2012 Energy Star rating from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency for the 
Development and Community Services building 

• 2010 U.S. Green Building Council Big Green award for Citywide green programs 
and practices 

 
Chris Jacques, Planning and Community Development Director, discussed the key 
goals contained in the draft Sustainability Action Plan, including: 
 

• “Sustain and Gain” University 
• Signature sustainability event 
• LEED Silver standard adopted for all new and remodeled City building projects 
• Decrease use of disposable and non-renewable products 
• Diversity local economy 
• Traditional neighborhood design  
• Promote alternative fueling options 
• Reduce heat island effect 

 
Mr. Jacques highlighted the following ongoing focus areas regarding sustainability: 
 

• Outreach 
• Education 
• Measuring results 
• Integration into organization operations 

 
Dr. George Basile, Arizona State University, addressed the Council regarding 
leadership, success and sustainability.  Dr. Basile’s discussion included information on 
how the City can strategically move toward creating a more sustainable community.   
Dr. Basile provided information on creating a strategic alignment between business 
drivers and emerging market needs. 

46



City Council Study Session Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 5:00 p.m. 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 
2. Development Services User Fee Cost Recovery Policy 
 
Katie Gregory, Interim Management and Budget Director, presented a draft policy on 
Development Services User Fee Cost Recovery.  
 
Information provided included: 
 

• Background on user fees 
• Cost of service overview 
• Procedures for adjusting fees 
• Cost recovery targets 
• Pricing considerations 
• Public review and access 

 
Ms. Gregory outlined subsequent steps to be taken regarding the Development 
Services User Fees Cost Recovery Policy. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding pricing considerations and stakeholder input.   
 
The consensus of the Council was to proceed with providing the draft policy to 
stakeholders for review and to have the policy submitted to Council at a future meeting. 
 
Mayor Barrett recessed the Study Session Meeting at 6:52 p.m. 
 
The Study Session resumed at 8:09 p.m. following the adjournment of the Regular City 
Council Meeting. 
 
3. Development Impact Fees Study Update 
 
Katie Gregory, Interim Management and Budget Director, presented a brief overview of 
the schedule for updating the Development Impact Fee Studies and Infrastructure 
Improvement Plans. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the use of impact fees, fee categories, and statutory 
requirements. 
 
4. Field Allocation Policy 
 
Jeff Tyne, Interim Community Services Director, summarized the recreational use of 
fields in Peoria’s parks and outdoor facilities. 
 

47



City Council Study Session Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 5:00 p.m. 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 
Brenda Rehnke, Recreation Manager, outlined the agenda for the presentation 
pertaining to: 
 

• Demand for field rentals and lighting 
• Prioritization 
• Informal practices 
• The need to formalize a Field Allocation Policy 

 
Marc Brust, Sports Program Coordinator, provided information on the current practice 
utilized to allocate fields by categorizing the following user groups: 
 

• City of Peoria programs and events 
• Peoria Unified School District requirements 
• Individual resident and not-for-profit requests 
• Non-resident and corporate requests 

 
Discussion ensued regarding lighted fields in public parks within Peoria. 
 
Chris Easom, Operations Supervisor, discussed the process for allocating fields when 
booking events at the Peoria Sports Complex including: 
 

• Dedicated use for major league baseball teams 
• Reservations throughout the year on a first-come, first-served basis 
• Long-standing relationships based on historical use 
• Contractual obligations 
• Economic development 

 
It was consensus of the Council that the proposed Field Allocation Policy be placed on a 
future City Council Meeting agenda.  
 
5. Trail Lighting Policy 
 
Kirk Haines, Parks Manager, provided information to Council for consideration of a 
policy on lighting multi-use trails. 
 
Mr. Haines presented images of the current trail system, examples of lighting, 
residential concerns and cost considerations associated with the lighting of trails. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding lighting the trail system.   
 
 

48



City Council Study Session Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 5:00 p.m. 
Page 5 of 5 
 
The consensus of the Council was to survey citizen input on trail use, safety and lighting 
considerations during the Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trails Master Plan 
Update and pursue development of a long-term strategy and draft policy on trail lighting. 
 
Adjournment: 
 
Being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was duly adjourned 
at 9:02 p.m. 
 
 
 
 ____ __________________________________ 
                                                                               Bob Barrett, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct summary of the 
proceedings of the Study Session Meeting of the City Council of Peoria, Arizona held on 
the 3rd day of July, 2012.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this 21st day of August, 2012. 
 
(Seal) 
 
______________________________________ 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk 
 
 

49



   

MINUTES OF THE PEORIA CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
July 3, 2012 

 
 
A Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona was convened at 
8401 West Monroe Street in open and public session at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Following a moment of silent reflection, Councilmember Pearson led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Barrett; Vice Mayor Ron Aames; Councilmembers 
Cathy Carlat, Joan Evans, Carlo Leone, Dave Pearson and Tony Rivero. 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Other Municipal Officials Present:  Carl Swenson, City Manager; Susan Daluddung, 
Deputy City Manager; Susan Thorpe, Deputy City Manager; Steve Kemp, City Attorney; 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk; Andy Granger, Engineering Director; Katie 
Gregory, Interim Management and Budget Director; Stacy Irvine, Interim Fire Chief; 
Chris Jacques, Planning and Community Development Director; Claudia Luján, Interim 
Human Resources Director; Bill Mattingly, Public Works and Utilities Director; Roy 
Minter, Police Chief; Jeff Tyne, Interim Community Services Director; and Linda Blas, 
Deputy City Clerk. 
 
Audience:  Approximately five members of the public were present. 
 
Note:  The order in which items appear in the minutes is not necessarily the order 
in which they were discussed in the meeting. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:    All items listed with a “C” are considered to be routine or have 
been previously reviewed by the City Council, and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilmember so 
requests; in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of Business, 
and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 
Mayor Barrett asked if any Councilmember wished to have an item removed from the 
Consent Agenda. 
 
Councilmember Rivero requested that Agenda Items 4C, 6C, 14C and 15C be removed 
for separate discussion. 
 
Councilmember Pearson requested that Agenda Item 16C be removed for separate 
discussion. 
 
 

50



Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 7:00 p.m. 
Page 2 of 8 
 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Rivero, seconded by Councilmember Leone, to 
approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of Agenda Items 4C, 6C, 14C, 15C and 
16C.   
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
CONSENT – New Business: 
 
1C Disposition of Absence 
 
Excused the absence of Mayor Bob Barrett, Councilmember Cathy Carlat, and 
Councilmember Joan Evans from the Special Study Session held on June 20, 2012. 
 
2C Minutes 
 
Approved the following minutes: 
 
June 19, 2012 Special Meeting and Study Session 
June 19, 2012 Regular Meeting 
June 20, 2012 Study Session 
 
3C Code Amendment, Chapter 2, Community Services Department Fees 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-14 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA AMENDING CHAPTER 2 OF 
THE PEORIA CITY CODE (1992) BY AMENDING TABLE 2--
207 PERTAINING TO FEES CHARGED BY THE 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

 
Adopted ORD. 2012-14 amending Chapter 2, Section 2-207 of the Peoria City Code 
(1992 Edition) pertaining to Community Services Department Fees for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
4C Contract, Quest Civil Constructors, Trunk Sewer Rehabilitation 
 
Clerk’s Note:  This item was heard separately at the end of the Consent Agenda. 
 
At the request of Councilmember Rivero, Agenda Item 4C was pulled from the Consent 
Agenda for separate discussion. 
 
 

51



Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 7:00 p.m. 
Page 3 of 8 
 
 
Joe Kurrus, Engineering Supervisor, provided an overview of the Trunk Sewer 
Rehabilitation program.   
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Rivero, seconded by Vice Mayor Aames, to award 
a construction contract in the amount of $1,753,059 to Quest Civil Constructors for 
repair and rehabilitation of 5,811 lineal feet of trunk sewer main as part of the Trunk 
Sewer Rehabilitation project (UT00296). 
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
5C Contract Amendment, Combs Construction, Beardsley Road; Lake 

Pleasant Road to 99th Avenue 
 
Approved Contract Amendment No. 2 with Combs Construction in the amount not to 
exceed $182,600 for the improvements on Beardsley Road between 99th Avenue and 
Lake Pleasant Road. 
 
6C Intergovernmental Agreement, Peoria Unified School District, School 

Resource Officers 
 
Clerk’s Note:  This item was heard separately at the end of the Consent Agenda. 
 
At the request of Councilmember Rivero, Agenda Item 6C was pulled from the Consent 
Agenda for separate discussion. 
 
Roy Minter, Police Chief, provided an overview of the School Resource Officer program. 
 
Joe McCord addressed Council in support of the program and the addition of a School 
Resource Officer to the Liberty High School campus. 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Rivero, seconded by Councilmember Evans, to 
authorize the City Manager to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Peoria 
Unified School District to assign four Peoria Police Officers to the campuses of Peoria, 
Sunrise Mountain, Centennial and Liberty High Schools as School Resource Officers. 
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
7C Intergovernmental Agreement, Maricopa County, Agua Fria Truck Road 

Reliever 
 
(a) Approved an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Maricopa County for the 

design, right-of-way acquisition, utility relocation, construction, construction 
management, operation and maintenance of the proposed truck route reliever; 
and  

52



Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 7:00 p.m. 
Page 4 of 8 
 

 
(b) Accepted Maricopa County funds in the amount of $250,000 and approved the 

associated budget transfer to establish budget authority for Maricopa County’s 
share of the project cost. 
 

8C Intergovernmental Agreement, Maricopa County Flood Control District and 
City of Surprise, 115th Avenue, Union Hills Drive, and 107th Avenue 
Drainage Improvements 

 
Approved an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Flood Control District of 
Maricopa County (FCDMC) and City of Surprise to Design the 115th Avenue, Union 
Hills Drive, and 107th Avenue Drainage Improvements. 
 
9C Grant, Technology Act, Library Services 
 
(a) Accepted a grant in the amount of $13,750 from the Library Services and 

Technology Act (LSTA) Grant administered by the State Library, Archives and 
Public Records for the funding of eReaders; and  

(b) Authorized appropriate budget amendments. 
 
10C Deeds and Easements, Various Locations 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-78 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF PEORIA, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
ADOPTING A RESOLUTION FORMALLY ACCEPTING 
DEEDS AND EASEMENTS FOR PROPERTY RIGHTS 
CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF PEORIA.  
 

Adopted RES. 2012-78 accepting Deeds and Easements for various real property 
interests acquired by the City and previously recorded by the Maricopa County 
Recorder's Office. 
 
11C Designate Roadways, Establish Rights-of-Way, Various Locations 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-93 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF PEORIA, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
ADOPTING A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
ESTABLISHMENT OF PUBLIC STREETS, TO BE OPENED 
AND MAINTAINED BY THE CITY. 

 
 

53



Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 7:00 p.m. 
Page 5 of 8 
 
 
Adopted RES. 2012-93 designating various Real Properties to be used as City 
roadways and authorize the establishment of Public Rights-of-Way to be opened and 
maintained by the City as a Public Street. 
 
12C Map of Dedication, Deer Valley Road, 91st Avenue to 95th Avenue 
 
Approved a Map of Dedication for Deer Valley Road, from 91st Avenue to 95th Avenue, 
subject to stipulations. 
 
13C Final Plat, Umbria Estates, 101st Avenue and Williams Road 
 
Approved a Final Plat of Umbria Estates, located at 101st Avenue and Williams Road, 
subject to stipulations. 
 
14C Budget Adjustment, Fire Department Operating Divisions, Operating 

Expenses 
 

Clerk’s Note:  This item was heard separately at the end of the Consent Agenda. 
 
At the request of Councilmember Rivero, Agenda Item 14C was pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for separate discussion. 
 
Katie Gregory, Interim Management and Budget Director, provided a review of the 
request for a budget adjustment to cover operating expenses for the Fire Department. 

 
Motion was made by Councilmember Rivero, seconded by Councilmember Leone, to 
(a) approve a one-time budget adjustment in the amount of $342,000; and (b) authorize 
the use of reserves to cover one-time operating expenses/overages in the Fire 
Department Operating Divisions. 
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
15C Budget Adjustment, City Attorney's Office, Legal Services 
 
Clerk’s Note:  This item was heard separately at the end of the Consent Agenda. 
 
At the request of Councilmember Rivero, Agenda Item 15C was pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for separate discussion. 
 
Katie Gregory, Interim Management and Budget Director, summarized the request for a 
budget adjustment for legal services and litigation expenses. 
 
 
 

54



Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 7:00 p.m. 
Page 6 of 8 
 
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Rivero, seconded by Councilmember Leone, to 
(a) approve a budget adjustment in the amount of $50,000 from the General Fund 
Contingency Account to the Civil Legal Services Account; and (b) approve the use of 
General Fund reserves for the purposes of funding City litigation costs. 
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
16C Modification, United States Postal Service, Zip Codes 
 
Clerk’s Note:  This item was heard separately at the end of the Consent Agenda. 
 
At the request of Councilmember Pearson, Agenda Item 16C was pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for separate discussion. 
 
Steve Kemp, City Attorney, provided information regarding areas within the City that 
have addresses and/or zip codes associated with other jurisdictions.  Mr. Kemp 
reported that previous requests to have addresses and zip codes consistent with the 
rest of the City of Peoria had been rejected by the United States Postal Service.  
 
Motion was made by Councilmember Pearson, seconded by Vice Mayor Aames, to 
approve staff’s recommendation that no further action be taken to modify zip codes in 
the City not having Peoria designations. 
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
17R Confirmation - City Manager Appointment of Community Services Director 
 
Carl Swenson, City Manager, introduced John Sefton for selection of Community 
Services Director and provided background on Mr. Sefton’s professional experience and 
qualifications. 
 
Motion was made by Vice Mayor Aames, seconded by Councilmember Pearson, to 
confirm the City Manager appointment of John Sefton as Community Services Director, 
effective August 20, 2012. 
 
Upon vote, the motion carried 6 to 1, with Councilmember Leone voting “no”. 
 
 
 
 

55



Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 7:00 p.m. 
Page 7 of 8 
 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  (NON-AGENDA ITEMS) 
 
Reports from the City Manager: 
 
1. Council Calendar 
2. Reports with Presentation – None 
3. Informational 
 
Carl Swenson, City Manager, informed Council that their Agenda packet contains 
information related to the following items: 
 

a. Council Subcommittee Update; and 
b. Update on Electronic Digital Billboard Sign Civic Engagement Plan 
c. Staff Acknowledgements 
 

Mr. Swenson recognized the following staff members for the outstanding jobs they 
performed on an interim basis: 
 
 Stacy Irvine, Interim Fire Chief 
 Katie Gregory, Interim Management and Budget Director 
 Jeff Tyne, Interim Community Services Director 
 Claudia Luján, Interim Human Resources Director 
 Corina Russo, Interim Assistant to the City Manager 

 
Reports from City Council: 
 
Councilmember Leone reported on the various City of Peoria activities he attended. 
Councilmember Leone urged the public to attend the All American Festival at the Sports 
Complex on July 4th. 
 
Councilmember Carlat reminded citizens to attend the fireworks display at Lake 
Pleasant this evening and at the Sports Complex on July 4th. 
 
Councilmember Pearson congratulated the Council and staff on a productive evening.  
 
Councilmember Evans encouraged attendance at the July 4th event to be held at the 
Peoria Sports Complex. 
 
Vice Mayor Aames reported on the various City of Peoria activities he attended.  Vice 
Mayor Aames reported that the Maricopa Association of Governments selected Peoria 
to receive two 2012 Desert Peaks Awards in the Regional Partnership category. Vice 
Mayor Aames accepted the awards on behalf of the City for the Domestic Violence 
Protocol Evaluation Project and the Regional Wireless Cooperative. Vice Mayor Aames 
urged citizens to vote in the upcoming election on August 28, 2012. 

56



Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
July 3, 2012, 7:00 p.m. 
Page 8 of 8 
 
 
Reports from the Mayor: 
 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 Being no further business to come before the Council, the meeting was duly adjourned 
at 7:54 p.m. 

 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Bob Barrett, Mayor                                       
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct summary of the 
proceedings of the Regular Meeting of the City Council of Peoria, Arizona held on the 
3rd day of July, 2012.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held and that 
a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this 21st day of August, 2012.                                                    
 
 
(Seal) 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk 
 

57



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
Date Prepared:  July 31, 2012 Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012 
 

TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 

FROM:  Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk 
 

THROUGH: Susan K. Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 

SUBJECT: Ratification of Ordinance No. 2012-14 
 

 

Purpose:  
 

This is a request for City Council to ratify Ordinance No. 2012-14 adopted on July 3, 2012.  
 

Background/Summary: 
 

Pursuant to City Charter, Article VII, Section 6.3, titles of proposed ordinances shall be posted 
not less than twenty-four hours before the meeting at which action is taken.  On July 5, 2012 
the City Clerk’s Office determined that the title of ORD. 2012-14 pertaining to fees, approved 
during the budgetary process, and charged by the Community Services Department for FY 2013 
was not posted prior to the City Council Meeting held on July 3, 2012.  Upon discovery, the City 
Clerk’s Office notified the City Attorney’s Office; it was determined that the item would be 
placed on the August 21, 2012 agenda for ratification. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 

On July 3, 2012, the City Council approved ORD. 2012-14, which updates the Community 
Services Department fee schedules.  Prior to this step, all fee changes were reviewed and 
consented to by City Council through the FY 2013 and FY 2012 budget process.  
 

Options:  
 

A: Ratify the adoption of Ordinance 2012-14 amending Section 2-207 of Chapter 2 of the 
Peoria City Code and establishing the updated Community Services Department Fees 
Table for Fiscal Year 2013 as approved during the budget process. 

 
B: Deny the request to ratify the adoption of Ordinance 2012-14 amending Chapter 2 of 

the Peoria City Code pertaining to fees charged by the Community Services Department 
for Fiscal Year 2013. 

 

Staff’s Recommendation: 
 

Staff recommends that Mayor and Council ratify the action of the Peoria City Council on July 3, 
2012 and adopt Ordinance No. 2012-14.  
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 

Ratifying ORD. 2012-14 has no fiscal impacts.   
 

58

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 6



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Exhibit(s):  ORD. 2012-14 
 

Contact Name and Number:  Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk, 623-773-7340 

59



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-14 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA AMENDING CHAPTER 2 OF THE
PEORIA CITY CODE (1992) BY AMENDING TABLE 2-207 
PERTAINING TO FEES CHARGED BY THE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

THEREFORE, it is ordained by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria as follows:  

SECTION 1. Chapter 2 of the Peoria City Code (1992) is amended by amending Section
2-207(a), Table 2-207 pertaining to the Community Services Department and fees which shall
read as follows:  

See Table 2-207.  

SECTION 2. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any Court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
Ordinance.  

SECTION 3. This Ordinance shall become effective in the manner provided by law.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona, this 3rd day 
of July, 2012.  

CITY OF PEORIA, an Arizona municipal corporation  

 

Bob Barrett, Mayor 

60



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-14 
Page 2 of 2  

ATTEST:  

__________________________________________ 
Wanda Nelson, City Clerk  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

__________________________________________ 
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney  
  
Published in the Peoria Times 
Publication Dates:  July 5 and July 12, 2012 
 
Effective Date:  _____________________________ 

61



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared: July 23, 2012   Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012     
 

 
TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Chris Jacques, AICP, Planning & Community Development Director 
 
THROUGH: Susan J. Daluddung, AICP, Deputy City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: TA 12-0001 – Banner/Special Event Signs 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
This is a request for City Council to consider a request to amend Section 14-34, Signs, of the 
Zoning Ordinance with respect to Banner/Special Event Signs. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
In April 2009, the City adopted temporary changes to the City’s Sign Code pertaining to Special 
Event and Grand Opening signage to allow these types of signage to be displayed for more days 
per year. That amendment was largely in response to the economic climate and the respective 
visibility and marketing needs of businesses within the City.   

 
In January 2011, due to the prolonged economic downturn, the sunset date was extended until 
June 30, 2012 for the code changes to Special Event and Grand Opening signs.  Additional types 
of temporary signs were also permitted within this sunset period, specifically “swooper” 
advertising flag signs and A-frame (e.g. sandwich board) signs. 
 

This is a City-initiated amendment extend the sunset date of the changes previously approved 
by City Council from June 30, 2012 until June 30, 2014.  The changes were intended to provide 
additional support and flexible options for businesses through temporary advertising signs and 
were largely in response to the challenging economic climate.  Based on the persistence of 
economic instability, staff is recommending a two-year extension on the regulations set to 
expire June 30, 2014.  
 
The extended sunset date will also allow staff to analyze the results of the temporary sign 
regulations, in particular, the advantages and disadvantages of allowing advertising flags and a-
frame signs as types of Special Event Signs, and of extending the permissible time frames for 
Special Event Signs and Grand Opening Signs.   
 

62

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 7



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 3 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

The table that follows provides a comparison of the permanent Sign Ordinance regulations, 
versus those temporary regulations that expired June 30th, 2012, and would be extended by the 
proposed amendment. 
 

Comparison of Existing vs. Proposed Sign Standards 
 Sign Ordinance (without sunset clauses) PROPOSED EXTENDED SUNSET 

Until June 30th 2014 Sunset 

Special Event Signs (Permit required per event) 

Timing 
 

 14 days/ 4x per year (56 days total)  

 A minimum of 30 consecutive days must 
pass between each event 

 30 days/ 4x per year (120 days total) 

 No minimum break between sales is required 

Banners Maximum size = 32 square feet total, no limit 
on number of banners 

 NO CHANGE 

Balloons Permitted  Permitted if less than 24 inches in diameter 

A-Frames Not permitted  1 per business 

 Max. height = 36 inches 

 Maximum size (sign copy area) = 6 square feet 

Swooper 
Flags 

Not permitted  2 per business 

 Max. height = 15 ft  

 Max width = 3 ft  

 Maximum flag size = 32 square feet 

Grand Opening signs (No Permit Required) 

Timing 30 days 60 days, within the first 6 months of obtaining a 
business license 

Allowed 
signage 

Banners, balloons, streamers, search lights, 
flags, pennants, inflatable structures, 
merchandise or other attention attracting 
media and devices. 

Banners, balloons, streamers, search lights, flags, 
pennants, inflatable structures, merchandise or 
other attention attracting media and devices. 
PLUS: Portable A-frame (or similar design) signs 

 
Previous Actions: 
 
The substance of the proposed amendment (with a sunset date of June 30, 2012), was originally 
approved by City Council on January 4, 2011.  The proposed amendment with an extended 
sunset date of June 30, 2014 was presented to the Planning & Zoning Commission on June 21, 
2012 where the Commission voted unanimously (5-0) to recommend approval of Case TA 12-
0001 to the City Council.   
 
Options:  
 
A:  Approve as recommended; or 
B:  Approve with modifications; or  
C:  Deny; or 
D:  Continue action to a date certain or indefinitely; or 
E:  Remand to the Planning & Zoning Commission for further consideration.  
 
 

63



Council Communication   
Page 3 of 3 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the City Council concur with the Planning & Zoning Commission’s unanimous 
June 21, 2012 recommendation to approve an Ordinance amending Article 14-34 of the Zoning 
Ordinance as identified in Case TA 12-0001.    
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       
This request is not expected to have immediate budgetary impacts to the City.  
 
Narrative:   
 
No further action would be necessary should the City Council take action to adopt the proposed 
Ordinance.   
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  June 21, 2012 Planning & Zoning Commission Staff Report with Exhibits 
Exhibit 2:  Ordinance 
 
Contact Name and Number:   
 
Melissa Sigmund, Planner, x7603 

64



ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
REPORT TO THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

j:\commdevelopment\development review\text amendments\ta2012\ta12-0001 _banner&special event signs\p&z\ta12-0001_p&z staff report.docx TA 12-0001 – Page 1 

CASE NUMBER: TA 12-0001 

DATE: June 21, 2012 

AGENDA ITEM: 5R 
 

Applicant: City of Peoria 

Request: Amend Article 14-34 (“Signs”) of the Zoning Ordinance to 
extend the sunset date on current regulations for 
Banner/Special Event Signage and Grand Opening Signage.  
 

Support / Opposition: As of the date of this printing, Staff has not received any 
written or verbal support or opposition to this request. 

Recommendation: Approve as requested. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
1. In April 2009, the City adopted temporary changes to the City’s Sign Code 

pertaining to Special Event and Grand Opening signage. That amendment was 
largely in response to the economic climate and the respective visibility and 
marketing needs of businesses within the City.   
 

2. In January 2011, due to the prolonged economic downturn, the sunset date was 
extended until June 30, 2012 for the code changes to Special Event and Grand 
Opening signs.  Additional types of temporary signs were also permitted within 
this sunset period to provide additional support and flexibility to local businesses, 
specifically “swooper” advertising flag signs and A-frame (e.g. sandwich board) 
signs. 
 

3. Given the continued vulnerability of the economic climate, the business-
responsive changes allowed under the current sunset clause continue to be tools 
that that City can leverage to assist local businesses.   
 

 

65



Staff Report TA 11-0001 
June 21, 2012 
Page 2 

j:\commdevelopment\development review\text amendments\ta2012\ta12-0001 _banner&special event signs\p&z\ta12-0001_p&z staff report.docx TA12-0001– Page 2 
 

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Proposed Changes 
4. This amendment seeks to continue the benefits of the previous temporary 

changes to regulations for Special Event and Grand Opening signs through June 
30, 2014.  The table that follows provides a comparison of the permanent Sign 
Ordinance regulations, versus those temporary regulations set to expire June 
30th, 2012, unless the sunset date is extended (as proposed by this amendment).   
  

Comparison of Existing vs. Proposed Sign Standards 
   
 Sign Ordinance (without 

sunset clauses) 
PROPOSED EXTENDED SUNSET 

Until June 30th 2014 Sunset 

Special Event Signs (Permit required per event) 

Timing 
 

 14 days/ 4x per year (56 days 
total)  

 A minimum of 30 consecutive 
days must pass between each 
event 

 30 days/ 4x per year (120 days total) 

 No minimum break between sales is 
required 

Banners Maximum size = 32 square feet 
total, no limit on number of 
banners 

 NO CHANGE 

Balloons Permitted  Permitted if less than 24 inches in 
diameter 

A-Frames Not permitted  1 per business 

 Max. height = 36 inches 

 Maximum size (sign copy area) = 6 
square feet 

Swooper Flags Not permitted  2 per business 

 Max. height = 15 ft  

 Max width = 3 ft  

 Maximum flag size = 32 square feet 

Grand Opening signs (No Permit Required) 

Timing 30 days 60 days, within the first 6 months of 
obtaining a business license 

Allowed signage Banners, balloons, streamers, 
search lights, flags, pennants, 
inflatable structures, 
merchandise or other attention 
attracting media and devices. 

Banners, balloons, streamers, search 
lights, flags, pennants, inflatable 
structures, merchandise or other 
attention attracting media and devices. 
PLUS: Portable A-frame (or similar 
design) signs 

66



Staff Report TA 11-0001 
June 21, 2012 
Page 3 

j:\commdevelopment\development review\text amendments\ta2012\ta12-0001 _banner&special event signs\p&z\ta12-0001_p&z staff report.docx TA12-0001– Page 3 
 

 
5. The extended sunset date will also allow staff to analyze the results of the newly 

implemented sign regulations, in particular, the advantages and disadvantages of 
allowing advertising flags and a-frame signs as types of Special Event Signs, and 
of extending the permissible time frames for Special Event Signs and Grand 
Opening Signs.   

 
Administrative Procedure 
 
Public Notice 
6. Public notice of this proposed amendment to the Zoning Ordinance was provided 

in the manner prescribed under Article 14-39.  The time, date, and place of the 
hearing has been published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in 
the City at least fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing.   

 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
7. Based on the following findings: 

 
 The proposed amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives and policies 

of the General Plan as identified in Section 14-34-2, Intent of Article 14-34, 
Signs, of the Zoning Ordinance; and 

 The proposed amendment constitutes an improvement to the Zoning 
Ordinance by enhancing opportunities for the promotion of businesses and 
organizations within Peoria in a difficult economic climate, while preserving 
public safety and welfare; and 

 Upon review of the application, the Planning Manager has determined that a 
Proposition 207 waiver is not required for this application. 

 
It is recommended that the Planning and Zoning Commission take the following 
action: 
 
Recommend to the Mayor and City Council approval of Case TA 12-0001, a request to 
amend the Peoria Zoning Ordinance as contained in Exhibit A. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit A: Proposed changes to Article 14-34  
   (deletions/additions shown as strike/underscore) 
 
 
Prepared by:  Melissa Sigmund 
   Planner 

67



 

 EXHIBIT A 

ARTICLE 14-34 
SIGNS 

(Amended by Ord. Nos. 2011-01, 2012-XX) 
 
 
14-34-8 SIGN TYPES AND REQUIREMENTS 
 
A. Permitted Signs.  The following signs are permitted, subject to the criteria listed 

under each sign: 
 

4. Banner/Special Event Sign.  A temporary sign which is used for the promotion of 
goods, services, or events for a specified period of time.  (Ord. No. 2011-01) 

 
a. Special Events. Sign used to promote a sale or special event.  

 
4) For a period extending no later than June 30th, 2014 2012, the following 

allowances for special event signage shall apply: 
 

17. Grand Opening Signs.  A sign used for the introduction or promotion of a new 
business, store, shopping center, office or the announcement of an established 
business changing ownership.  (Ord. No. 08-07) 

 
a. All businesses shall be permitted to display Grand Opening Signs, on a one 

time basis, for a maximum of thirty (30) consecutive days; 
 
 1) For a period extending no later than June 30th, 2014 2012, the following 

regulations for grand opening signage shall apply: 
 

68



 
 
 
 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2012-17 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PEORIA, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING CHAPTER 
14 OF THE PEORIA CITY CODE (1977 EDITION), BY AMENDING 
ARTICLE 14-34 “SIGNS” OF THE PEORIA ZONING ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SEPARABILITY AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Peoria, 
Maricopa County, Arizona, held a public hearing on June 21, 2012 to consider case TA12-
0001, a proposed amendment to the Peoria City Code, after notice in the manner provided 
by law; and 

 
WHEREAS, due and proper notice of such Public Hearing was given in the 

time, form, substance, and manner provided by law including publication of such in the 
Peoria Times on June 1, 2012; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Peoria, 
Arizona at its regularly convened meeting of June 21, 2012, voted to recommend to the 
Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona that amendments be made to the Peoria 
City Code (1977 edition); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona, have 

considered the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 
Peoria, Arizona, and deem it to be in the best interest of the public health, safety and 
welfare of the residents of the City of Peoria, Arizona to amend Article 14-34 “Signs” of 
Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code (1977 edition): 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City 
of Peoria, Arizona as follows: 

 
SECTION 1.  of Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code (1977 edition) shall be 

amended to read as indicated on Exhibit A.  
 

SECTION 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on the 
date provided by law. 
 

SECTION 3.  SEPARABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
phrase or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any 

69



ORD. 2012-17 
August 21, 2012 
 

 

court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, 
Maricopa County, Arizona this 21st day of August, 2012. 

 
 
 

 
 

Bob Barrett, Mayor  
 
 
 
 

    Date Signed  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 
 
 
Published in: Peoria Times  
Pub. Dates: August 24, 2012 and August 31, 2012                           
Effective Date: 

70



ORD. 2012-17 
August 21, 2012 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Article 14-34 Signs 
 

(Amended by Ord. No. 2012-XX) 
 

14-34-8 SIGN TYPES AND REQUIREMENTS 
 
A. Permitted Signs.  The following signs are permitted, subject to the criteria listed under each 

sign: 
 

4. Banner/Special Event Sign.  A temporary sign which is used for the promotion of goods, 
services, or events for a specified period of time.  (Ord. No. 2011-01) 

 
a. Special Events. Sign used to promote a sale or special event.  

 
4) For a period extending no later than June 30th, 2014 2012, the following 

allowances for special event signage shall apply: 
 

17. Grand Opening Signs.  A sign used for the introduction or promotion of a new business, 
store, shopping center, office or the announcement of an established business changing 
ownership.  (Ord. No. 08-07) 

 
a. All businesses shall be permitted to display Grand Opening Signs, on a one time 

basis, for a maximum of thirty (30) consecutive days; 
 
 1) For a period extending no later than June 30th, 2014 2012, the following 

regulations for grand opening signage shall apply: 
 

 

71



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared: July 23, 2012   Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012     
 

 

 

TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Chris Jacques, AICP, Planning & Community Development Director 
 
THROUGH: Susan J. Daluddung, AICP, Deputy City Manager  
 
SUBJECT: TA 12-0002 – Temporary Use Permits, Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

Notification, and City Code Special Events 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
This is a request for City Council to hold a Public Hearing to consider a request to amend Article 
14-39, Administrative Procedures, of the Zoning Ordinance to update regulations regarding 
Temporary Use Permits and text amendment notification requirements, and to amend Chapter 
16, Municipal Events, of the City Code to update the definition of “Temporary Special Event or 
Activity”. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
Temporary Use Permits/Special Events 
This is a City-initiated amendment to update zoning regulations regarding Temporary Use 
Permits and the City Code definition of “Temporary Special Event or Activity”. 
 
The Planning Division, together with input and feedback from other City departments, recently 
undertook the process of revamping the City’s internal review process for Temporary Use 
Permits (TUPs).  Previously, applicants often had to obtain several different permits from 
various departments, which could entail filling out multiple applications forms and then going 
to multiple City buildings to submit and pay for individual applications.  The new process 
consolidates applications and reviews for Planning, Fire, Building Development, Site 
Development and Police, allowing applicants to receive multiple approvals through one 
application process.  The process also distributes application information to a wider group of 
representatives from City departments that may need to comment on or be aware of possible 
events, enhancing interdepartmental coordination and communication.  This facilitates an 
efficient and thorough evaluation of potential Temporary Uses, while streamlining the process 
for ease of use and understanding by applicants. 

 

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 8



 

Council Communication   
Page 2 of 3 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

As the TUP process was evaluated, the codes governing the process were reviewed as well, and 
it became apparent that amendments were also needed to modify the ordinances regulating 
the TUP process.   The key proposed change to Chapter 16 of the City Code is to eliminate 
references to private property in regards to the Special Event process.  This will allow for a clear 
delineation between the processes for events held on City-owned property (approval through 
the Special Events Committee) versus events held on private property (approval through the 
Temporary Use Permit process).   
 
The proposed changes to Section 14-39 of the Zoning Ordinance have been crafted in response 
to questions and comments that have been raised over time through the code’s 
implementation, both by applicants and internal staff discussion/interpretation of the code.  
The changes are intended to clarify the TUP process for the applicant, staff review of the TUP 
application, and code enforcement officials.  Highlights of the changes include the following: 

 Clarifying the triggers for when public notice of the event must be posted on the site. 

 Time limits have been altered to allow shorter more frequent events on a property, but 
the total number of TUPs in a given year will be limited per property, instead of per 
applicant. 

 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Notification 
A change is also proposed to the noticing requirements for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments 
to allow the City to utilize the City website for providing the full text of proposed Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendments instead of printing the full text in a newspaper ad.  A general 
summary of proposed amendments would still be published in a newspaper ad, but the City’s 
website would a more effective media for citizens interested in finding out more information.  
Updates or changes to proposed amendments, or additional case information could be posted 
on the website as needed, instead of relying on a static print ad.  In addition, the City’s website 
offers near instant accessibility from anywhere in the world at any time of day, while hard copy 
newspapers are only available at a limited number of locations. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment portion of this recommendation, Case TA 12-0002, was 
presented to the Planning & Zoning Commission on June 21, 2012. The Commission voted 
unanimously to recommend approval of Case TA 12-0002 to the City Council.  The proposed 
City Ordinance Amendment was presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission for 
information only, and no action was taken. 
 
Options:  
 
A:  Approve as recommended; or 
B:  Approve with modifications; or  
C:  Deny; or 



 

Council Communication   
Page 3 of 3 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

D:  Continue action to a date certain or indefinitely; or 
E:  Remand to the Planning & Zoning Commission for further consideration.  
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the City Council concur with the Planning & Zoning Commission’s unanimous 
June 21, 2012 recommendation to approve an Ordinance amending Article 14-39 of the Zoning 
Ordinance as identified in Case TA 12-0002.  In addition, staff recommends City Council approve 
an Ordinance amending Chapter 16, Municipal Special Events, of the City Code as identified in 
Exhibit 3. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       
This request is not expected to have immediate budgetary impacts to the City.  
 
Narrative:   
 
No further action would be necessary should the City Council take action to adopt the proposed 
Ordinances.   
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  June 21, 2012 Planning & Zoning Commission Staff Report with Exhibits 
Exhibit 2:  Ordinance for proposed Zoning Ordinance Amendment 
Exhibit 3:  Ordinance for proposed City Code amendment 
 
Contact Name and Number:   
 
Melissa Sigmund, Planner, x7603 



ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
REPORT TO THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

j:\commdevelopment\development review\text amendments\ta2012\ta12-0002_tups\p&z\ta12-0002_p&z staff report.docx TA 12-0002 – Page 1 

CASE NUMBER: TA 12-0002 

DATE: June 21, 2012 

AGENDA ITEM: 6R 
 

Applicant: City of Peoria 

Request: Amend Article 14-39 (“Administrative Procedures”) of the 
Zoning Ordinance to update regulations regarding 
Temporary Use Permits and text amendment notification 
requirements. 

Support / Opposition: As of the date of this printing, Staff has not received any 
written or verbal support or opposition to this request. 

Recommendation: Approve as requested. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
1. Temporary Use Permits are issued by the Planning and Community 

Development Department to allow a variety of short-term uses on private 
property.  Typical uses receiving Temporary Use Permits include Christmas tree 
sales lots, fireworks sales lots, and carnivals/fairs.  Temporary Use Permit 
regulations are intended to ensure that such uses are conducted in a manner 
that is not detrimental to surrounding properties. 
 

2. Planning Staff, together with other City Departments, has recently evaluated and 
amended the internal review process for Temporary Use Permits.  Previously, 
applicants often had to obtain several different permits from various departments, 
which could entail going to multiple City buildings to submit and pay for individual 
applications.  The new process consolidates the reviews for Planning, Fire, 
Engineering, Building Safety, and Police, and distributes application information 
to an even wider group that includes representatives from additional City 
Departments.  This facilitates an efficient and thorough evaluation of potential 
Temporary Uses by garnering feedback from a range of City divisions and 
bringing it together for ease of use and understanding by applicants.  
 

3. During the evaluation, it became apparent that there was a need for clarifying or 
modifying a number of TUP-related regulations in Article 14-39 of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

75



Staff Report TA 12-0002 
June 21, 2012 
Page 2 

j:\commdevelopment\development review\text amendments\ta2012\ta12-0002_tups\p&z\ta12-0002_p&z staff report.docx TA12-0002– Page 2 
 

4. A copy of the proposed City Code Amendment that will go before City Council 
along with this Zoning Ordinance amendment has been provided for reference 
purposes.  (Exhibit B) 
 

5. The proposed amendment also seeks to provide a more informative and cost-
effective option for the noticing of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments. 

 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Proposed Changes 
 
Section 14-39-13 Temporary Use Permits 
6. The proposed amendment specifies that Temporary Use Permits pertain 

specifically to events on private property, to differentiate this process from the 
Special Event process required for events on City-owned property.  

 
7. The triggers for posting requirements have been simplified.  The amendment 

clarifies that posting is required for uses that block driveway entrances, to avoid 
confusion between the terms driveway and drive aisle.  In addition, posting will 
not be required for Temporary Uses that are located in landscape areas, 
because many landscape areas such as grass fields or areas covered in 
decomposed granite are preferable sites for such uses to occur and do not 
negatively impact the general public. 
 

8. The review decision timeframe has been removed from the Code to be relocated 
to the Temporary Use Permit Application for consistency with other review 
processes.  Providing review times in the applications/process guides creates a 
streamlined information source for applicants, and allows for flexibility to 
administratively update timeframes based on staffing availability and caseloads, 
and the availability of other departments to complete their portions of the TUP 
reviews. 

 
9. The permit time limits have been altered in order to clarify the number and 

duration of Temporary Uses that are permissible on a particular site.  The time 
limits are intended to allow a reasonable number of Temporary Use occurrences 
on a specific site, while balancing the potential for multiple or extended 
Temporary Uses to negatively impact neighboring properties. 
 

Section 14-39-6 Notices 
10. An option has been added to allow the full text of a proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 

Amendment to be provided on the City’s website in lieu of printing in a newspaper ad.  
This will make the contents of proposed text amendments more readily available to the 
public, as the City’s website is accessible at anytime.  In addition, this option makes use 
of a media that is becoming increasingly popular throughout the population, while 

76



Staff Report TA 12-0002 
June 21, 2012 
Page 3 

j:\commdevelopment\development review\text amendments\ta2012\ta12-0002_tups\p&z\ta12-0002_p&z staff report.docx TA12-0002– Page 3 
 

maintaining a general summary of proposed changes in traditional print media.  Lengthy 
amendments can become cumbersome and costly when printed in full in a newspaper 
ad.   
 
Administrative Procedure 
 
Public Notice 
11. Public notice of this proposed amendment to the Zoning Ordinance was provided 

in the manner prescribed under Article 14-39.  The time, date, and place of the 
hearing have been published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation 
in the City at least fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing.   

 
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
12. Based on the following findings: 

 
 The proposed amendment constitutes an improvement to the Zoning Ordinance 

by clarifying the Temporary Use Permit process and allowing greater flexibility for 
Temporary Use Permit applicants while continuing to minimize potential negative 
impacts on property owners adjacent to proposed Temporary Uses; and 
 

 Upon review of the application, the Planning Manager has determined that a 
Proposition 207 waiver is not required for this application. 

 
It is recommended that the Planning and Zoning Commission take the following 
action: 
 
Recommend to the Mayor and City Council approval of Case TA 12-0002, a request to 
amend the Peoria Zoning Ordinance as contained in Exhibit A. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Exhibit A: Proposed changes to Article 14-39  
   (deletions/additions shown as strike/underscore) 
 
 
Prepared by:  Melissa Sigmund 
   Planner 

77



Article 14-39 Administrative Procedures 39-1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

ARTICLE 14-39 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 

 (Ord. No. 2011-03 2012-XX) 
 
14-39-6 NOTICES (Ord. No. 2010-24) 
 
B.  Newspaper Ad 

1. For all cases requiring a newspaper ad, notice shall be published at least once in 
a newspaper of general circulation in the city. The notice shall include a general 
description of the subject property and a statement of the proposed application.   

 
a. For cases involving a public hearing, the ad shall be published at least fifteen 

(15) days prior to the hearing.  Such public notice may be combined with 
public notice for other matters to be heard at the same public hearing. 

 
b. Newspaper ads for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment cases shall also 

include the text of the proposed amendment and a general description of any 
regulations proposed to be amended.  The text of the proposed amendment 
shall be provided either in the newspaper ad or through the City’s website. 

 
 
14-39-13 TEMPORARY USE PERMITS 
 
B. General.  Every Temporary use on private property shall require a Temporary Use 

Permit as herein stipulated. 
 
C. Permitted Temporary Uses.  The City may grant a Temporary Use Permit for any of 

the following uses. 
 

1. Carnivals, circuses, or similar special events. 
 
2. Outdoor sales events, such as Christmas tree sales, pumpkin sales, or similar 

holiday-related events. 
 
3. Outdoor sales of consumer permissible fireworks. (Ord. No. 2011-03) 
 
4. Temporary municipal uses.  (Ord. No. 05-22) 
 
5. Off-site retail sales of souvenirs, gifts, and food incidental to a sporting or cultural 

event. 
 
6. Tent revival or fellowship meetings. 
 
7. Craft shows, home and garden shows, festivals, or similar events. 
 

78



ARTICLE 14-39 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 

Article 14-39 Administrative Procedures 39-2 

8. Outdoor concerts, paid admission events, and events involving the distribution of 
alcoholic beverages. 

 
9. Such other uses as the City may deem to be within the intent and purpose of this 

Section. 
 

 
D. Application.  A property owner or duly authorized agent may submit an application for 

a Temporary Use Permit.  The applicant shall obtain the official application materials 
from the Department.  Submittal requirements shall be as outlined on the official form 
and any other requirements that the Department deems necessary to understand the 
proposal, including Site Plans prepared in accordance with Section 14-39-911, “Site 
Plan Review,” of this Article.  The applicant shall submit the official application and 
associated materials, together with the applicable fee, to the Department. 

 
E. Posting.  Temporary Uses which, in the opinion of the Department, meet all the 

following criteria shall not require posting: 
 

1. The use and/or structure complies with all applicable codes and Ordinances; 
 
2. The use and/or structure does not interfere with pedestrian access ways, fire 

lanes, driveway entrances, landscaped areas, or traffic visibility at driveway 
entrances or street intersections; 

 
3. Parking on the property is adequate to serve any existing permanent use and the 

temporary use; 
 
4. The temporary use shall not be conducted between the hours of 10 P.M. and 7 

A.M.; and 
 
5. The City Engineer, or designee thereof, approves vehicular access for the 

proposed temporary use. 
 
Temporary uses which, in the opinion of the Department, do not meet all of the 
above criteria shall be posted.  For such temporary uses, the City shall post the 
subject property within five (5) working days following submittal of the application 
 

F. Review and Approval 
 

1. Application for a Temporary Use Permit shall be reviewed by the Department 
who shall approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the application. Approval 
shall be given only when in the judgment of the City such approval is consistent 
with the intent and purpose of this Section of this Ordinance. 

 
In considering the application, the Department may include, but are not be limited 
to, the following conditions: 

 
a. Regulation of parking, dust control measures, and site lighting. 
 
b. Regulation of hours of operation. 
 

79



ARTICLE 14-39 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 

Article 14-39 Administrative Procedures 39-3 

c. Regulation of site ingress and egress. 
 
d. Assurance of compliance with building, fire, electrical, and all other 

appropriate codes. 
 
e. Such other conditions deemed necessary to carry out the intent and purpose 

of this Section. 
 
f. All signage proposed for the temporary use or event shall be in compliance 

with Article 14-34, “Signs.”  All signage shall obtain a separate sign permit.  
(Ord. No. 04-211) 

 
2. For proposals that require posting, the Department shall render a decision no 

sooner than five (5) and no later than eight (8) working days from the date of 
posting.  For proposals that do not require posting, the Department shall render a 
decision no later than five (5) working days from the date of submittal of the 
application. 

 
2.3. The Department shall notify the applicant, in writing, of the decision to 

approve or deny the application, and shall state any conditions for approval or 
reasons for denial in said letter. 

 
3.4. Issuance of Permits.  To be issued a permit, the applicant shall sign an 

agreement with the City stating that upon cessation of the use or expiration of the 
permit, whichever occurs first, the premises will be promptly cleaned and 
restored to substantially the same condition existing prior to commencement of 
the temporary use. 

 
4.5. Time Limits and Renewal of Permits.  All Temporary Use Permit 

approvals shall be subject to a time limit as set forth by the Department or Board 
of Adjustment.   

 
a.  Temporary Use Permits for off-site construction yards or residential sales 

may be permitted for the duration of the project, or as determined by the City. 
b. All other A Temporary Use Permits shall be limited to a maximum of thirty 

(30) consecutive days per event, and the cumulative total of all Temporary 
Uses shall not exceed ninety (90) days per calendar year per lot.  Not more 
than twelve (12) Temporary Use Permits shall be granted per lot or complex 
per calendar year.  granted for no longer than sixty (60) days, except for off-
site construction yards or residential sales or construction offices which may 
be permitted for the duration of the project or as determined by the City.  
Continuation of the use beyond the stipulated time limit shall require the 
submittal and approval of a new application.  Approval shall be made subject 
to any further conditions that the Department deems necessary to assure that 
all adverse impacts to the surrounding properties are minimized to the fullest 
extent possible.  (Ord. No. 04-211)  

c. Each occurrence of a Temporary Use and each distinct Temporary Use on a 
property shall require separate submittal and approval of a Temporary Use 
Permit Application. 

6. When renewing Temporary Use Permits; the department shall adhere to the 
following: 

80



ARTICLE 14-39 ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 

Article 14-39 Administrative Procedures 39-4 

 
a. Off-site construction yards and residential sales and construction offices 

lasting up to one (1) year may be renewed once or for a period as determined 
by the City.  (Ord. No. 04-211)  

 
b. All other renewals shall not exceed a period of sixty (60) days, in accordance 

with the following:  
 

1) Temporary uses lasting up to thirty (30) days shall be not be renewed 
more than twice within a one (1) year period. 

 
2) Temporary uses lasting thirty (30) to sixty (60) days shall not be renewed 

more than once within a one (1) year period. 
 

G. Appeal of Decision to Board of Adjustment 
 

1. Upon receiving notification of the Department’s decision to approve or deny the 
application for a Temporary use Permit, the applicant or any party in interest, 
aggrieved by the decision may file an appeal to the Board of Adjustment.  Such 
appeal shall be filed in writing, within seven (7) calendar days of the decision. 
Any appeal to the Board of Adjustment shall follow the procedures outlined in this 
Article, Section 14-39-14, “Appeals to Board of Adjustment,” Sub-section I, 
“Temporary Use Permit.” 

 
2. Upon appeal, the Department shall file all material on the matter with the Board 

of Adjustment.  The Board shall review the case based on the material filed by 
the Department and on information presented at the hearing.  The Board shall 
uphold the action of the Department, remand the matter back to the Department 
with instructions for further review, or overturn the action of the Department. 

 
 

 

81



EXHIBIT B 

 

FOR REFERENCE ONLY 

CHAPTER 16 – MUSIC FESTIVALS MUNICIPAL SPECIAL EVENTS 

Sec.16-1. Municipal Special Events; Activities; definitions 

(a)  Definitions. For purposes of this Section, the following definitions shall apply: 

 

(1)  “Special Events Committee” shall mean a committee comprised of designated 

representatives from involved City departments, specifically the Police Department, Fire 

Department, Community Development/Code Compliance, Engineering, Public Works, 

Community Services, Office of the City Attorney, and any other City organizational unit 

which may be impacted by a specific proposed Temporary Special Event or Activity. 

(2)  “Temporary Special Event or Activity” shall mean any of the following organized 

activities: 

a. Any indoor or outdoor public gathering or celebration that uses City-owned 

property for any of the following activities: 

i.  Entertainment. 

ii.  Dancing. 

iii.  Music. 

iv.  Dramatic productions. 

v.  Amusements, festivals, or carnivals. 

vi.  Sale of merchandise, food, or alcohol, including sidewalk sales. If the sale 

of such items is only incidental to the purpose of an event and the event 

otherwise does not qualify as a Temporary Special Event or Activity (such 

as the sale of shirts and hats at a sporting event), then this Section shall not 

apply to the event. 

vii.  Parades, walks, bicycle rides, or runs that will not comply with the normal 

or usual traffic regulations or controls or are likely to impede, obstruct, 

impair, or interfere with the free flow of traffic. 

viii.  Any temporary extension of premises of an existing use. 

b.  Any activity taking place on private or City-owned property which requires a 

State issued temporary extension of liquor licenses premises or a special event 

liquor license. 

c.  Any activity taking place on private or City-owned property used as a public 

gathering place that involves a substantial deviation from the current legal land 

use, or legal nonconforming use, such as provided in subsection (a)(1) above, as 

determined by the Special Events Committee. 

d.  Any activity taking place on private or City-owned property which may require 

for its successful execution City services provided to a degree significantly over 

and above that routinely provided under ordinary circumstances, as determined by 

the Special Events Committee. 

(Ord. No. 07-28A, 10/04/2007, Enacted and amended) SUPP 2007-4 

82



 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2012-15 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PEORIA, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING CHAPTER 
14 OF THE PEORIA CITY CODE (1977 EDITION), BY AMENDING 
ARTICLE 14-39 “ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES” OF THE 
PEORIA ZONING ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SEPARABILITY 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Peoria, 
Maricopa County, Arizona, held a public hearing on June 21, 2012 to consider a proposed 
amendment to the Peoria City Code, after notice in the manner provided by law; and 

 
WHEREAS, due and proper notice of such Public Hearing was given in the 

time, form, substance, and manner provided by law including publication of such in the 
Peoria Times on June 1, 2012; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Peoria, 
Arizona at its regularly convened meeting of June 21, 2012, voted to recommend to the 
Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona, that amendments be made to the Peoria 
City Code (1977 edition) of the Peoria City Code; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona, have 

considered the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 
Peoria, Arizona, and deem it to be in the best interest of the public health, safety and 
welfare of the residents of the City of Peoria, Arizona to amend Article 14-39 “Administrative 
Procedures” of Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code (1977 edition): 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City 
of Peoria, Arizona as follows: 

 
SECTION 1.  of Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code (1977 edition) shall be 

amended to read as indicated on Exhibit A.  
 

SECTION 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on the 
date provided by law. 
 

SECTION 3.  SEPARABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
phrase or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any 

83



ORD. 2012-15 
August 21, 2012 
 
 

 

court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, 
Maricopa County, Arizona this 21st day of August, 2012. 

 
 
 

 
 

Bob Barrett, Mayor  
 
 
 
 

    Date Signed  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 
 
 
Published in: Peoria Times  
Pub. Dates:  August 24, 2012 and August 31, 2012                         
Effective Date: 

84



ORD. 2012-15 
August 21, 2012 
 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

ARTICLE 14-39 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES 

 (Ord. No. 2011-03 2012-XX) 
 
14-39-6 NOTICES (Ord. No. 2010-24) 
 
B.  Newspaper Ad 

1. For all cases requiring a newspaper ad, notice shall be published at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the city. The notice shall include a general 
description of the subject property and a statement of the proposed application.   

 
a. For cases involving a public hearing, the ad shall be published at least fifteen (15) 

days prior to the hearing.  Such public notice may be combined with public notice for 
other matters to be heard at the same public hearing. 

 
b. Newspaper ads for Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment cases shall also include the 

text of the proposed amendment and a general description of any regulations 
proposed to be amended.  The text of the proposed amendment shall be provided 
either in the newspaper ad or through the City’s website. 

 
 
14-39-13 TEMPORARY USE PERMITS 
 
B. General.  Every Temporary use on private property shall require a Temporary Use Permit as 

herein stipulated. 
 
C. Permitted Temporary Uses.  The City may grant a Temporary Use Permit for any of the 

following uses. 
 

1. Carnivals, circuses, or similar special events. 
 
2. Outdoor sales events, such as Christmas tree sales, pumpkin sales, or similar holiday-

related events. 
 
3. Outdoor sales of consumer permissible fireworks. (Ord. No. 2011-03) 
 
4. Temporary municipal uses.  (Ord. No. 05-22) 
 
5. Off-site retail sales of souvenirs, gifts, and food incidental to a sporting or cultural event. 
 
6. Tent revival or fellowship meetings. 
 
7. Craft shows, home and garden shows, festivals, or similar events. 
 

85



ORD. 2012-15 
August 21, 2012 
 
 

 

8. Outdoor concerts, paid admission events, and events involving the distribution of 
alcoholic beverages. 

 
9. Such other uses as the City may deem to be within the intent and purpose of this 

Section. 
 

 
D. Application.  A property owner or duly authorized agent may submit an application for a 

Temporary Use Permit.  The applicant shall obtain the official application materials from the 
Department.  Submittal requirements shall be as outlined on the official form and any other 
requirements that the Department deems necessary to understand the proposal, including 
Site Plans prepared in accordance with Section 14-39-911, “Site Plan Review,” of this 
Article.  The applicant shall submit the official application and associated materials, together 
with the applicable fee, to the Department. 

 
E. Posting.  Temporary Uses which, in the opinion of the Department, meet all the following 

criteria shall not require posting: 
 

1. The use and/or structure complies with all applicable codes and Ordinances; 
 
2. The use and/or structure does not interfere with pedestrian access ways, fire lanes, 

driveway entrances, landscaped areas, or traffic visibility at driveway entrances or street 
intersections; 

 
3. Parking on the property is adequate to serve any existing permanent use and the 

temporary use; 
 
4. The temporary use shall not be conducted between the hours of 10 P.M. and 7 A.M.; 

and 
 
5. The City Engineer, or designee thereof, approves vehicular access for the proposed 

temporary use. 
 
Temporary uses which, in the opinion of the Department, do not meet all of the above 
criteria shall be posted.  For such temporary uses, the City shall post the subject property 
within five (5) working days following submittal of the application 
 

F. Review and Approval 
 

1. Application for a Temporary Use Permit shall be reviewed by the Department who shall 
approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove the application. Approval shall be given 
only when in the judgment of the City such approval is consistent with the intent and 
purpose of this Section of this Ordinance. 

 
In considering the application, the Department may include, but are not be limited to, the 
following conditions: 

 
a. Regulation of parking, dust control measures, and site lighting. 
 
b. Regulation of hours of operation. 

86



ORD. 2012-15 
August 21, 2012 
 
 

 

 
c. Regulation of site ingress and egress. 
 
d. Assurance of compliance with building, fire, electrical, and all other appropriate 

codes. 
 
e. Such other conditions deemed necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this 

Section. 
 
f. All signage proposed for the temporary use or event shall be in compliance with 

Article 14-34, “Signs.”  All signage shall obtain a separate sign permit.  (Ord. No. 04-
211) 

 
2. For proposals that require posting, the Department shall render a decision no sooner 

than five (5) and no later than eight (8) working days from the date of posting.  For 
proposals that do not require posting, the Department shall render a decision no later 
than five (5) working days from the date of submittal of the application. 

 
2.3. The Department shall notify the applicant, in writing, of the decision to approve or 

deny the application, and shall state any conditions for approval or reasons for denial in 
said letter. 

 
3.4. Issuance of Permits.  To be issued a permit, the applicant shall sign an 

agreement with the City stating that upon cessation of the use or expiration of the permit, 
whichever occurs first, the premises will be promptly cleaned and restored to 
substantially the same condition existing prior to commencement of the temporary use. 

 
4.5. Time Limits and Renewal of Permits.  All Temporary Use Permit approvals shall 

be subject to a time limit as set forth by the Department or Board of Adjustment.   
 

a.  Temporary Use Permits for off-site construction yards or residential sales may be 
permitted for the duration of the project, or as determined by the City. 

b. All other A Temporary Use Permits shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) 
consecutive days per event, and the cumulative total of all Temporary Uses shall not 
exceed ninety (90) days per calendar year per lot.  Not more than twelve (12) 
Temporary Use Permits shall be granted per lot or complex per calendar year.  
granted for no longer than sixty (60) days, except for off-site construction yards or 
residential sales or construction offices which may be permitted for the duration of 
the project or as determined by the City.  Continuation of the use beyond the 
stipulated time limit shall require the submittal and approval of a new application.  
Approval shall be made subject to any further conditions that the Department deems 
necessary to assure that all adverse impacts to the surrounding properties are 
minimized to the fullest extent possible.  (Ord. No. 04-211)  

c. Each occurrence of a Temporary Use and each distinct Temporary Use on a 
property shall require separate submittal and approval of a Temporary Use Permit 
Application. 

 
6. When renewing Temporary Use Permits; the department shall adhere to the following: 
 

87



ORD. 2012-15 
August 21, 2012 
 
 

 

a. Off-site construction yards and residential sales and construction offices lasting up to 
one (1) year may be renewed once or for a period as determined by the City.  (Ord. 
No. 04-211)  

 
b. All other renewals shall not exceed a period of sixty (60) days, in accordance with 

the following:  
 

1) Temporary uses lasting up to thirty (30) days shall be not be renewed more than 
twice within a one (1) year period. 

 
2) Temporary uses lasting thirty (30) to sixty (60) days shall not be renewed more 

than once within a one (1) year period. 
 

88



 
 
 
 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. 2012-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PEORIA, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING CHAPTER 
16 “MUSIC FESTIVALS” OF THE PEORIA CITY CODE (1992), BY 
AMENDING THE CHAPTER TITLE, AND AMENDING SECTION 16-1 
“MUNICIPAL SPECIAL EVENTS; ACTIVITIES; DEFINITIONS” OF 
THE PEORIA CITY CODE; PROVIDING FOR SEPARABILITY AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Peoria, Arizona as follows: 

 
SECTION 1.  Chapter 16 of the Peoria City Code (1992) shall be amended to 

read as indicated on Exhibit A.  
 

SECTION 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on the 
date provided by law. 
 

SECTION 3.  SEPARABILITY.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
phrase or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any 
court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, 
Maricopa County, Arizona this 21st day of August, 2012. 

 
 
 

 
 

Bob Barrett, Mayor  
 
 
 
 

    Date Signed  
 
 
ATTEST: 

89



ORD. 2012-16 
August 21, 2012 

 

 
 
 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 
 
 
Published in: Peoria Times  
Pub. Dates: August 24, 2012 and August 31, 2012                          
Effective Date: 

90



ORD. 2012-16 
August 21, 2012 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CHAPTER 16 – MUSIC FESTIVALS MUNICIPAL SPECIAL EVENTS 
Sec.16-1. Municipal Special Events; Activities; definitions 
(a)  Definitions. For purposes of this Section, the following definitions shall apply: 
 
(1)  “Special Events Committee” shall mean a committee comprised of designated 

representatives from involved City departments, specifically the Police Department, Fire 
Department, Community Development/Code Compliance, Engineering, Public Works, 
Community Services, Office of the City Attorney, and any other City organizational unit 
which may be impacted by a specific proposed Temporary Special Event or Activity. 

(2)  “Temporary Special Event or Activity” shall mean any of the following organized 
activities: 
a. Any indoor or outdoor public gathering or celebration that uses City-owned 

property for any of the following activities: 
i.  Entertainment. 
ii.  Dancing. 
iii.  Music. 
iv.  Dramatic productions. 
v.  Amusements, festivals, or carnivals. 
vi.  Sale of merchandise, food, or alcohol, including sidewalk sales. If the sale 

of such items is only incidental to the purpose of an event and the event 
otherwise does not qualify as a Temporary Special Event or Activity (such 
as the sale of shirts and hats at a sporting event), then this Section shall not 
apply to the event. 

vii.  Parades, walks, bicycle rides, or runs that will not comply with the normal 
or usual traffic regulations or controls or are likely to impede, obstruct, 
impair, or interfere with the free flow of traffic. 

viii.  Any temporary extension of premises of an existing use. 
b.  Any activity taking place on private or City-owned property which requires a 

State issued temporary extension of liquor licenses premises or a special event 
liquor license. 

c.  Any activity taking place on private or City-owned property used as a public 
gathering place that involves a substantial deviation from the current legal land 
use, or legal nonconforming use, such as provided in subsection (a)(1) above, as 
determined by the Special Events Committee. 

d.  Any activity taking place on private or City-owned property which may require 
for its successful execution City services provided to a degree significantly over 
and above that routinely provided under ordinary circumstances, as determined by 
the Special Events Committee. 

(Ord. No. 07-28A, 10/04/2007, Enacted and amended) SUPP 2007-4 
 

91



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  August 7, 2012 Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012  
 

 
TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Katie Gregory, Budget Coordinator 
 
THROUGH: Jeff Tyne, Management and Budget Director 
 
SUBJECT: 2012 Impact Fee Study and Contracts   
 

 
Purpose:  
This purpose of this request is for the City Council to: 
 

1) Approve a two (2) year term contract with three (3) one (1) year extensions to 
Raftelis Financial Consultants in an amount not to exceed $59,860;  
 
2) Approve a two (2) year term contract with three (3) one (1) year extensions to 
Duncan Associates in an amount not to exceed $99,200, and; 
   
3) Authorize the on-time use of reserves and a budget adjustment in the amount of 
$99,200 to facilitate the contract approvals.  

 
Background/Summary: 
Under Arizona Revised Statutes 9-463.05, municipalities in Arizona may assess development fees to 
offset infrastructure costs associated with providing necessary public services to new development.  

The City currently assesses development fees for water and wastewater improvements, water 
resource acquisition, public safety requirements, transportation needs, library and park capital 
needs.   On April 26, 2011, Governor Brewer signed SB1525 into law which significantly amended 
the development fee enabling legislation.   
 
Municipalities have until August 1, 2014 to be in full compliance with SB1525. Prior to August 1, 
2014, the City will be required to complete a new fee study, using new land use assumptions, and 
meeting the new legal procedural requirements contained in SB1525.  
 
The city received six proposals from four consultants for the fee study and update.  The responses 
were evaluated by a project team composed of key members from the Budget Office, Planning and 
Community Development, Public Works-Utilities, Community Services and Economic Development 
Services.  As a result of the selection process, a strong consensus was reached by the evaluation 
committee identifying Raftelis Financial Consultants and Duncan Associates as the top choices.   

 
 

92

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 9



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 4 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Previous Actions: 
On July 3, 2012, staff updated City Council on the status of the impact fee study and provided 
council with the opportunity to discuss initial thoughts on any policy considerations they would 
like staff to explore during the fee update. 
 
On December 6, 2011, City Council amended the city’s IIP and fee schedule to comply with the 
initial requirements of SB1525. 
 
On December 18, 2007, City Council adopted the current Infrastructure Improvement Plans and 
fee schedule.   
 
Options: 
A:  That the Mayor and Council approve the impact fee study contracts for Raftelis Financial 
Consultants and Duncan Associates, and approve the necessary budget adjustment in the 
amount of $99,200 to cover the cost of the General Government portion of the update. 
 
B:  That the Mayor and Council not approve the contracts and/or the budget adjustment and 
provide staff further direction regarding the impact fee study and update.   
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that Council approve the contracts with Raftelis Financial Consultants and 
Duncan Associates to complete a comprehensive impact fee study and update in order to 
conform to the current Development Fee Statute.  
  
Staff also recommends that Council approve the use of reserves from impact fee funds, and a 
budget adjustment in the amount of $99,200 from a Development Fee contingency account to 
various Development Fee Accounts as described in the Fiscal Analysis. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
Funding for the Utilities Impact Fee Study (Raftelis Financial Consultants) is available in the 
FY2013 Capital Program - Water/Wastewater Expansion Fee Update Project (UT00070) .  Total 
amount available is $125,000; however the contract amount is set at $59,860 generating 
savings in that project. 
 
Funding for the General Government portion of the study was not budgeted in FY2013 due to 
the uncertainty in costs associated with meeting the new statutory requirements.  Therefore, a 
budget adjustment is needed to establish the proper budget appropriation in the various 
impact fee accounts.  
 
Approval of the General Government Impact Fee Study will require the use of reserves from 
various impact fee funds.  Also, given the available appropriation in the Neighborhood Park-

93



Council Communication   
Page 3 of 4 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Zone 2 contingency account, staff requests a budget adjustment in the amount of $99,200 from 
account 7904-7904-570000 to the following funds and accounts:   
 

Fund Name Fund-Account Amount 

Neighborhood Park Fees - Zone 1 7901-7901-520099  $    4,960.00  

Neighborhood Park Fees - Zone 2 7904-7904-520099  $    4,960.00  

Neighborhood Park Fees - Zone 3 7905-7905-520099  $    9,920.00  

Citywide Community Park/Facilities Fees 7910-7910-520099  $    9,920.00  

Open Space Dev. Fees 7915-7915-520099  $  14,880.00  

River/Trails Dev. Fees 7920-7920-520099  $  14,880.00  

Law Enforcement Dev. Fees 7930-7930-520099  $    4,960.00  

Fire Dev. Fees 7935-7935-520099  $    4,960.00  

Streets - Zone 1 Dev. Fees 7001-7051-520099  $    9,920.00  

Streets - Zone 2 Dev Fees 7002-7052-520099  $  19,840.00  

 
TOTAL  $  99,200.00  

 
Narrative:   
SB1525 placed greater restrictions on several fee categories by redefining “necessary public 
services”. Fees collected for libraries are limited to facilities of 10,000 square feet or less, and fees 
for Parks and Recreation facilities may not be expended on parks greater than 30 acres, or 
community centers greater than 3,000 square feet. In addition, development fees cannot be 
assessed for equipment that supports various public services, such as vehicles and computers for 
libraries, except for police and fire.   
 
In addition, municipalities are required to utilize “qualified professionals” in the development of a 
new impact fee study and infrastructure plan.  These firms meet the required criteria and are 
prepared to begin work immediately.  Service will include the compilation of current land use and 
population data, identification of expected demand factors and levels of service, a review of 
expected capital facility costs, a review of credit calculation methods and an evaluation and 
summary of various fee methodologies used to calculate legally defensible impact fees for the City 
of Peoria, development of the required Infrastructure Improvement Plan and a number of meetings 
with various stakeholders from the development community.  

 
The next step, once the contracts are approved, is to hold a project kick off meetings with city 
staff and representatives from the development community.   

 
Exhibit(s): 
 
Exhibit 1:  Raftelis Financial Consultants Contract 
 
Exhibit 2:  Duncan Associates Contract 
 

94



Council Communication   
Page 4 of 4 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Contact Name and Number:  Katie Gregory, (623) 773-7364 

95



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  July 16, 2012 Council Meeting Date:  August 21, 2012 
 

 
TO: Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Roy W. Minter, Chief of Police  
 
SUBJECT: Authorization to accept $10,800 from the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

(ACJC) Crime Victim Assistance Program 
 

 
Purpose: 
 
This is a request for the City Council to accept $10,800 from the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission (ACJC) for Peoria’s participation in the Crime Victim Assistance Program.   
 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The Peoria Police Department desires to continue participation in the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission (ACJC) Crime Victim Assistance Program that provides support services to victims 
of crime and assists with funding of the Victim Advocate position. The Peoria Police Department 
has been awarded $10,800 in grant funding.  This award would provide funding for personnel to 
deliver direct services to victims of crime. 
 
By combining this grant with funds awarded through the Arizona Department of Public Safety 
(DPS) Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) Crime Victim Assistance Grant Program, the Department has 
been able to fund a Victim Advocate, who provides crisis intervention, support, and referrals to 
crime victims.  This advocacy is made available to victims from the time a crime occurs until the 
case is closed or submitted for prosecution.  In addition to providing crisis response and follow-
up referrals, the Victim Advocate is responsible for screening, training, and supervising a team 
of volunteers assigned to the program. 
 
With continued participation in the ACJC Crime Victim Assistance Program, the Peoria Police 
Department will be able to continue addressing the emotional and informational needs of 
victims of crime. 
 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
This is the sixth consecutive year that ACJC has awarded funds to the Peoria Police Department 
for participation in the ACJC Crime Victim Assistance Program. 

96

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 10



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Options:  
 
A.  Accept the awarded grant and continue to participate in the ACJC Crime Victim Assistance 
Program and request a budget adjustment of $10,800 from the Proposed Grants Contingency 
account (7990-7990-570000) to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Grant account (7526-
7772-510000). 
 
 
B.  Do not accept the awarded grant and suggest alternate funding sources for the Crime Victim 
Assistance Program. 
 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Accept $10,800 from the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission for Peoria’s participation in the 
Crime Victim Assistance Program and request a budget adjustment of $10,800 from the 
Proposed Grants Contingency account (7990-7990-570000) to the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission Grant account (7526-7772-510000). 
 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
Request a budget adjustment of $10,800 from the Proposed Grants Contingency account (7990-
7990-570000) to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Grant account (7526-7772-510000). 
 
The match requirement for this grant will be fulfilled by pairing this grant with funding awarded 
through the Arizona Department of Public Safety (DPS) Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) Crime 
Victim Assistance Grant Program, combined with funds provided by the Police Department. 
 
 
Narrative: 
 
Once approved by City Council, the grant agreement will be executed as needed. 
 
 
Exhibit 1:  Grant Agreement: ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077 
 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Brenda Hope, x.7072 

97



  
ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 

Crime Victim Assistance Program 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

 
ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077 

State Funded Grant Program 
 

This Grant Agreement is made this 31st day of May, 2012, by and between the ARIZONA 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION hereinafter called “COMMISSION” and Peoria, through Peoria 
Police Department hereinafter called “GRANTEE”.  The COMMISSION enters into this Agreement 
pursuant to its authority under the provisions of A.R.S. § 41-2405 (B)(6), and having satisfied 
itself as to the qualification of GRANTEE; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed between the parties as follows: 

 
1. This Agreement will commence on July 1, 2012 and terminate on June 30, 2013.  This 

Agreement expires at the end of the award period unless prior written approval for an 
extension has been obtained from the COMMISSION.  A request for an extension must be 
received by the COMMISSION sixty (60) days prior to the end of the award period.  The 
COMMISSION in its sole discretion may approve an extension to further the goals and 
objectives of the program, and to determine the length of any extension. 
 

2. GRANTEE agrees that grant funds will be used in accordance with applicable program rules, 
guidelines and special conditions. 
 

3. The COMMISSION will monitor GRANTEE performance against program goals and 
performance standards and those outlined in the grant application. Substandard performance 
as determined by the COMMISSION will constitute noncompliance with this Agreement. If the 
COMMISSION finds noncompliance, the GRANTEE will receive a written notice which 
identifies the area of noncompliance, and the appropriate corrective action to be taken.  If 
the GRANTEE does not respond within thirty (30) calendar days to this notice, and does not 
provide sufficient information concerning the steps which are being taken to correct the 
problem, the COMMISSION may suspend funding, permanently terminate this Agreement or 
revoke the grant.  
 

4. Any deviation or failure to comply with the purpose and/or conditions of this Agreement 
without prior written COMMISSION approval may constitute sufficient reason for the 
COMMISSION to terminate this Agreement, revoke the grant, require the return of all 
unspent funds, perform an audit of expended funds, and require the return of any previously 
spent funds which are deemed to have been spent in violation of the purpose or conditions 
of this grant.   

 
5. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by the Executive 

Director or by persons authorized by the Executive Director on behalf of the COMMISSION 
and GRANTEE.  Any notice given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
considered to have been given when actually received by the following addressee or their 
agents or employees: 
 

A. If to the COMMISSION: 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

1110 W. Washington Street, Suite 230 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 
Attn: Program Manager 

 

98



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 2 

 
 
 B. If to the GRANTEE: 

Peoria Police Department 
8351 W. Cinnabar Avenue 

Peoria, Arizona 85345 
Attn: Chief Roy W. Minter 

 
6. For grant awards above $100,000, GRANTEE may make budget adjustments of up to ten 

(10) percent of the total grant among approved budget categories excluding equipment.  
Written approval from the COMMISSION in advance is required if GRANTEE wishes to make 
adjustments or reprogram in excess of ten (10) percent or if GRANTEE wishes to purchase 
equipment not previously approved.  

 
For grant awards less than $100,000, GRANTEE may make budget adjustments among 
approved categories excluding equipment as long as there are no changes to the purpose or 
scope of the project.  If GRANTEE wishes to purchase equipment not previously approved, 
written approval from the COMMISSION in advance is required.   

 
APPROVED LINE ITEM PROGRAM BUDGET 

Personnel: 
              Salaries 
              Fringe Benefits (for salaries/overtime) 
              Overtime 
Professional & Outside/Consultant & Contractual Services 
Travel In-State 
Travel Out-of-State 
Confidential Funds 
Operating Expenses: 
             Supplies 
             Registration/Training 
             Other  
Equipment  
             Capital 
             Noncapital 
TOTAL 

 
$8,100  
$2,700 
Not Approved 
Not Approved 
Not Approved 
Not Approved 
Not Approved 
 
Not Approved 
Not Approved 
Not Approved 
 
Not Approved 
Not Approved 
$10,800 

Positions Funded: 
Victim Assistance Coordinator 

 
7. It is agreed and understood that the total to be paid by the COMMISSION under this 

Agreement shall not exceed $10,800 in state funds.  The matching amount for this award is 
$10,800.  
 

8. Every payment obligation of the COMMISSION under this Agreement is conditioned upon the 
availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment of such obligation.  If funds 
are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, this Agreement may 
be terminated by the COMMISSION.  No liability shall accrue to the COMMISSION in the 
event this provision is exercised, and the COMMISSION shall not be obligated or liable for 
any future payments or for any damages as a result of termination under this paragraph. 
 

9. GRANTEE agrees to retain all books, account reports, files and other records, (paper and/or 
electronic) relating to this Agreement and the performance of this Agreement for no less than 
five (5) years from the last financial report submitted to the COMMISSION. All such 
documents shall be subject to inspection and audit at reasonable times, including such 
records of any subgrantee, contractor, or subcontractor.   

99



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 3 

 
 

10. GRANTEE agrees to abide by Federal and State laws and provide accounting, auditing and 
monitoring procedures to safeguard grant funds and keep such records to assure proper 
fiscal controls, management and the efficient disbursement of grant funds.   
 

11. For the purpose of this grant, a capital expenditure is $5,000 or above.  If GRANTEE’S policy 
defines a capital expenditure as less than $5,000, GRANTEE will use its own policy. 
 

12.  GRANTEE agrees to maintain property records for equipment purchased with grant funds 
and perform a physical inventory and reconciliation with property records at least every two 
years or more frequently based on GRANTEE policy. GRANTEE agrees that funds will not be 
used for the construction of new facilities. 
 

13. GRANTEE agrees to follow its own agency equipment disposition policies when the 
equipment is no longer needed for the grant program. If GRANTEE has no policy, reference 
the Uniform Accounting Manual for Arizona Counties authorized by the Auditor General for 
disposition guidelines and guideline development.  
Link: Uniform Accounting Manual for Arizona Counties http://www.auditorgen.state.az.us 
 

14. GRANTEE agrees that all salaried personnel (including subgrantee personnel) whose activities 
are to be charged to the award will maintain timesheets or certifications to document hours 
worked for activities related to this award and non-award related activities. GRANTEE agrees 
to keep time and attendance sheets for hourly employees signed by the employee and 
supervisory official having firsthand knowledge of the work performed by the grant-funded 
employees.   
 

15. GRANTEE agrees that it will submit financial and activity reports to the COMMISSION in a 
format provided by the COMMISSION, documenting the activities supported by these grant 
funds and providing an assessment of the impact of these activities which may include 
documentation of project milestones.   In the event reports are not received on or before the 
indicated date(s), funding may be suspended until such time as delinquent report(s) are 
received.   

 
Mandated activity and financial reports are submitted according to the following schedule(s):    
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS  
Report Period: Due Date: 
July 1, 2012 to September 30, 2012 
October 1, 2012 to December 31,2012 
January 1, 2013 to March 31, 2013 
April 1, 2013 to June 30, 2013 
Annual Report 

October 31, 2012 
January 31, 2013 
April 30, 2013 
August 15, 2013 
August 15, 2013 

More frequent reports may be required for GRANTEES who are considered high risk.  
 
 
16. GRANTEE understands that financial reports are required as an accounting of expenditures 

for either reimbursement or COMMISSION-approved advance payments. Reports are due 
pursuant to the schedule above. 
 

17. The final request for reimbursement of grant funds must be received by the COMMISSION no 
later than sixty (60) days after the last day of the award period.  
 

18. All goods and services must be received or have reasonable expectations thereof and placed 
in service by GRANTEE by the expiration of this award. 

100



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 4 

 
 

19. GRANTEE agrees that all encumbered funds must be expended and that goods and services 
must be paid within sixty (60) days of expiration of this award.   
 

20. GRANTEE agrees to remit all unexpended grant funds to the COMMISSION within thirty (30) 
days of written request received from the COMMISSION.  
 

21. GRANTEE agrees to obtain written COMMISSION approval for all sole source procurements in 
excess of $100,000. 
 

22. GRANTEE agrees to obtain written COMMISSION approval prior to the expenditure of grant 
funds for consultant fees in excess of $450 per day.  
 

23. GRANTEE agrees not to use grant funds for food and/or beverage unless explicitly approved 
in writing by the COMMISSION.  
 

24. No funds shall be used to supplant federal, state, county or local funds that would otherwise 
be made available for such purposes. Supplanting means the deliberate reduction of state or 
local funds because of the existence of any grant funds. 
 

25. GRANTEE assigns to the COMMISSION any claim for overcharges resulting from antitrust 
violations to the extent that such violations concern materials or services applied by third 
parties to GRANTEE in exchange for grant funds provided under this Agreement. 
 

26. The parties agree to use arbitration in the event of disputes in accordance with the provisions 
of A.R.S. § 12-1501-12-1518. The laws of the State of Arizona apply to questions arising 
under this Agreement and any litigation regarding this Agreement must be maintained in 
Arizona courts, except as pertaining to disputes which are subject to arbitration. 
 

27. GRANTEE understands that grant funds may not be released until all delinquent reports and 
reversion of funds from prior grants are submitted to the COMMISSION.   
 

28. GRANTEE agrees that grant funds are not to be expended for any indirect costs that may be 
incurred by GRANTEE for administering these funds unless explicitly approved in writing by 
the COMMISSION.  This may include, but is not limited to, costs for services such as 
accounting, payroll, data processing, purchasing, personnel, and building use which may 
have been incurred by the GRANTEE. 
 

29. GRANTEE understands and agrees that misuse of award funds may result in a range of 
penalties, including suspension of current and future funds, recoupment of monies provided 
under an award, and civil and/or criminal penalties. 
 

30. Each party (as “Indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other party 
(as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs, or expenses, 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Claims”) arising 
out of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the 
extent that such Claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitee are 
caused by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indeminitor, its 
officers, officials, agents, employees, or volunteers.  If GRANTEE is a State agency this 
paragraph does not apply. 
 

31. Unless GRANTEE is a State agency, GRANTEE shall cause its contractor(s), if any to 
indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, 

101



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 5 

 
boards, commissions, universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees 
(hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, 
liabilities, damages, losses or expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of 
claim processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims” ) for bodily 
injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible 
property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts 
or omissions of GRANTEE’S contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, or 
employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or 
recovered under the Worker’s Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of such 
contractor to conform to any federal, state, or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation 
or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all 
instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligence or willful acts or omissions of 
the Indemnitee, be indemnified by contractor from and against any and all claims.  It is 
agreed that contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and 
judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable.  In consideration of the award of this 
grant, the contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the State of Arizona, its 
officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed by the 
contractor for the State of Arizona. Insurance requirements for any contractor used by 
GRANTEE are incorporated herein by this reference and attached to this Agreement as 
Exhibit “A”. 
 

32. GRANTEE agrees to notify the COMMISSION within ten (10) days in the event that the 
project official is replaced during the award period.  
 

33. No rights or interest in this Agreement shall be assigned by GRANTEE without prior written 
approval of the COMMISSION. 
 

34. GRANTEE agrees that no funds provided, or personnel employed under this Agreement, shall 
be in any way or to any extent engaged in conduct of political activities in violation of U.S.C. 
Title 5, Part II, Chapter 15, Section 1502. 
 

35. GRANTEE certifies that it presently has no financial interest and shall not acquire any 
financial interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of services required under this Agreement. 
 

36. GRANTEE agrees to cooperate and participate with any and all assessments, evaluation 
efforts or information and data collection requests, and acknowledges that the state grantor 
agency has the right to obtain, reproduce, publish or use data provided under this award and 
may authorize others to receive and use such information. 
 

37. GRANTEE shall provide the COMMISSION with a copy of all interim and final reports and 
proposed publications (including those prepared for conferences and other presentations) 
resulting from this Agreement.  Submission of such materials must be prior to or 
simultaneous with their public release. 
 

38. GRANTEE agrees to comply with the non-discrimination requirements of the Omnibus Crime 
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968, as amended; 42 U.S.C. 3789(d); Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as amended;  Section 504, Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended;  
Subtitle A, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) (1990);  Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 and the Department of Justice regulations 28 C.F.R. Part 54;  
The Age Discrimination Act of 1975;  Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations, 
28 C.F.R. Part 42, Subparts C, D, E, G and I; Department of Justice regulations on disability 
discrimination 28 C.F.R. Part 35;  all applicable state laws of A.R.S. § 41-1463; and Executive 
Order 2009-9.  These laws prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex 

102



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 6 

 
and national origin including Limited English Proficiency (LEP) in the delivery of service.  In 
the event that a federal or state court or federal or state administrative agency makes a 
finding of discrimination after a due process hearing against GRANTEE, GRANTEE will forward 
a copy of the findings to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs and the 
COMMISSION.  
 

39. GRANTEE assures that it will comply with all state and federal laws regarding privacy during 
the course of the award.  All information relating to clients is to be treated with 
confidentiality.  
 

40. GRANTEE agrees to comply with all grant management criteria included in the latest version 
of the ACJC Grants Management Reference Manual.   
Link: ACJC Grants Management Reference Manual 
http://azcjc.gov/pubs/home/021104_Manual_GrantReferenceManual.pdf  
 

41. If GRANTEE is a governmental political subdivision, GRANTEE agrees to utilize the Data 
Dictionary, approved and distributed by the COMMISSION, as the data entry standard for 
information systems when improving or updating an existing information system.  GRANTEE 
agrees to utilize the Data Dictionary as the data entry standard in any new system or when 
an existing information system is replaced.  The Data Dictionary is available upon request to 
ACJC.  
 

42. To support public safety and justice information sharing, GRANTEE, if a governmental 
subdivision, shall use the National Information Exchange Model (NIEM) specifications and 
guidelines for this grant.  GRANTEE shall publish and make available without restrictions all 
schemas generated as a result of this grant to the component registry as specified in the 
guidelines.   
Link: https://www.niem.gov/program-managers/Pages/implementation-guide.aspx 
 

43. To avoid duplicating existing networks or IT systems in any initiatives for law enforcement 
information sharing systems which involve interstate connectivity between jurisdictions, such 
systems shall employ, to the extent possible, existing networks as the communication 
backbone to achieve interstate connectivity, unless GRANTEE can demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of the COMMISSION that this requirement would not be cost beneficial or would 
impair the functionality of an existing or proposed IT system. 
 

44. If GRANTEE is a governmental political subdivision, GRANTEE should, to the extent possible 
and practical, share criminal justice information with other authorized criminal justice 
agencies.  The process control number (PCN) shall be used in accordance with A.R.S. § 41-
1750 when sharing data with other criminal justice agencies as electronic data systems are 
developed or improved. 
 

45. If GRANTEE is a state agency and the award is for the development of information 
technology projects for more than $25,000, GRANTEE must complete a Project Investment 
Justification (PIJ) and submit the justification to the Arizona Department of Administration 
(ADOA), with a copy to the COMMISSION.  GRANTEE agrees to submit required project 
status reports to ADOA by the due dates and submit copies to the COMMISSION.   
 

If GRANTEE is not a state agency and the award is for the development of information 
technology projects, GRANTEE will follow local technology policies and guidelines.   
 

46. GRANTEE agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, Immigration and 
Naturalization Form (I-9).  This form is to be used by recipients to verify that persons are 

103



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 7 

 
eligible to work in the United States. GRANTEE ensures compliance with A.R.S. § 41-4401 
federal immigration laws by state employers and contractors.   
 

47. In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-4401, GRANTEE warrants compliance with E-Verify and all 
federal immigration laws and regulations relating to employees and warrants compliance with 
A.R.S. § 23-214A.  
 

48. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 35-391.06 and A.R.S. § 35-393.06, the GRANTEE hereby warrants, and 
represents that it does not have, and its subcontractors do not have, and during the term 
hereof will not have a scrutinized business operation in either Sudan or Iran.   
 

49. This Agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to the provision of A.R.S. § 38-511. This 
Agreement may also be cancelled at the COMMISSION’S discretion if not returned with 
authorized signatures to the COMMISSION within 90 days of commencement of the award.   
 

50.  If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall not 
be affected thereby and all other parts of this Agreement shall be in full force and effect. 
 

51.  GRANTEE agrees to comply with all Special Condition(s) included with this Agreement on the 
Grant Agreement Continuation sheet. 

104



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 8 

 
 

 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

GRANT AGREEMENT CONTINUATION SHEET 
SPECIAL CONDITION(S)   

 
 
 
 

NONE 

Authorized Official Initials:_______
 
 

105



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 9 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed the Agreement the day and year 
first above written. 

 
FOR GRANTEE: 

 
 

Mayor or City Manager     Date 
 

 
Printed Name and Title 

 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
      Additional signature(s) if required by political subdivision   Date 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
        Printed Name and Title            Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 
   Clerk                 Date 

 
Note:  If applicable, the Agreement must be approved by the appropriate county supervisory board 
or municipal council and appropriate local counsel (i.e. county or city attorney).  Furthermore, if 
applicable, resolutions and meeting minutes must be forwarded to the Commission with the signed 
Agreement. 
 

Approved as to form and authority to enter into Agreement (Excluding non-profits): 
 
 

 
Legal counsel for GRANTEE       Date 

 
 

 
Printed Name and Title 

 
Statutory or other legal authority to enter into Agreement (Excluding non-profits): 

 
 

 
Appropriate A.R.S., ordinance, or charter reference 

 
 

FOR CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION: 
 
 

 
John A. Blackburn Jr., Executive Director     Date 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 

 
Revised 5/8/2012

106



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 10 

 
 

ARIZONA CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 
GRANT AGREEMENT 

Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit “A” 

 
Insurance Requirements for Governmental Parties to an Intergovernmental Agreement: 

None. 
 
Insurance Requirements for Any Contractors Used by a Party to the Intergovernmental 
Agreement: 

(Note: this applies only to Contractors used by a governmental entity, not to the governmental entity 
itself.) The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements and in no way limit the 
indemnity covenants contained in the Intergovernmental Agreement.  The State of Arizona in no way 
warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the governmental entity 
or Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this Contract 
by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and Contractor and the 
governmental entity are free to purchase additional insurance.   
 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Contractor shall provide coverage with 

limits of liability not less than those stated below. 
 

1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, personal injury and broad 
form contractual liability. 
 General Aggregate $2,000,000 
 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 
 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
 Blanket Contractual Liability – Written and Oral $1,000,000 
 Fire Legal Liability $    50,000 
 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 
language: “The State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, 
boards, commissions, universities and its officers, officials, 
agents, and employees shall be named as additional insureds 
with respect to liability arising out of the activities performed 
by or on behalf of the Contractor". 
(Note that the other governmental entity(ies) is/are also required to be 
additional insured(s) and they should supply the Contractor with their own 
list of persons to be insured.)  

b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State of Arizona, 
its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work 
performed by or on behalf of the Contractor. 

 
2. Business Automobile Liability 

  Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned 
vehicles used in the performance of this Contract. 

  Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 
language: “The State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards,  

107



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 11 

 
Exhibit “A” Continued 

commissions, universities and its officers, officials, agents, and 
employees shall be named as additional insureds with respect to 
liability arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of 
the Contractor, involving automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Contractor". 

b. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State of Arizona, its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its officers, 
officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work performed by 
or on behalf of the Contractor. 

 (Note that the other governmental entity(ies) is/are also required to be 
additional insured(s) and they should supply the Contractor with their own 
list of persons to be insured.)  

 
3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation
 Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $  500,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit                          $1,000,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the State of Arizona, its 
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its officers, 
officials, agents, and employees for losses arising from work performed by 
or on behalf of the Contractor. 

 
b. This requirement shall not apply to:  Separately, EACH contractor or 

subcontractor exempt under A.R.S. 23-901, AND when such contractor or 
subcontractor executes the appropriate waiver (Sole 
Proprietor/Independent Contractor) form. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 

contain, the following provisions: 
 

 1. The State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees and the other governmental entity shall be 
additional insureds to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by the Contract. 

 2. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect to all other 
available sources. 

 
3. The Contractor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is  
 made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insured’s liability.  Coverage  
 provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 

indemnification provisions of its Contract with the other governmental entity(ies) party to the 
IGA.  

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:  With the exception of (10) day notice of cancellation for non-

payment of premium, any changes material to compliance with this Contract in the insurance 
policies above shall require thirty (30) days written notice to the State of Arizona.   Such notice 
shall be sent directly to the GRANTEE and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission 1110 W.  

 

108



Crime Victim Assistance Program ACJC Grant Number VA-13-077                                    Page 12 

 
Exhibit “A” Continued 

 Washington, Suite 230, Phoenix, AZ 85007 and shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt 
requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with duly licensed or approved 

non-admitted insurers in the State of Arizona with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than A- VII.  
The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is 
sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the Arizona Criminal Justice 

Commission with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the State of 
Arizona) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed 
by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the State of Arizona before 

work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to 
commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  
Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract, or to provide evidence of 
renewal, is a material breach of contract. 

 
All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission 1110 W. Washington, Suite 230, Phoenix, AZ 85007.  The COMMISSION 
project/contract number and project description are to be noted on the certificate of insurance.  
The State of Arizona and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission reserve the right to require 
complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract at any time. DO NOT 
SEND CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE TO THE STATE OF ARIZONA’S RISK 
MANAGEMENT SECTION. 
 

F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractor's certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as insureds 
under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the State of Arizona separate certificates for each 
subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements 
identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements must have prior 

approval from the State of Arizona Department of Administration, Risk Management Section, 
whose decision shall be final. Such action will not require a formal contract amendment, but may 
be made by administrative action. 

 
H. EXCEPTIONS:  In the event the Contractor or sub-contractor(s) is/are a public entity, then the 

Insurance Requirements shall not apply.  Such public entity shall provide a Certificate of Self-
Insurance.  If the contractor or sub-contractor(s) is/are a State of Arizona agency, board, 
commission, or university then none of the above shall apply. 

 

109



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:   July 26, 2012 Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012  
 

 
 

TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Bobby Ruiz, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT: Type-3 Fire Engine for Lake Pleasant Fire Station and Budget Amendment 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
Staff is seeking approval from Council to purchase a Type-3 Fire Engine use at the Lake Pleasant 
Fire Station and to authorize a $101,500 budget amendment from the General Fund 
Contingency (1000-0300-570000) to the Fleet Reserve Fund Trucks and Vans account (3100-
3500-542502). 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The Fire Department currently has two (2) crew-cab 4x4 Brush Trucks, classified as Type-6 
vehicles, one of which is the assigned vehicle for the Lake Pleasant Fire Station. These two 
trucks are scheduled for replacement in FY 2013 and FY 2014 respectively. Fire Department 
staff are requesting to upgrade to a specialized Type-3 Fire Engine for the Lake Pleasant Fire 
Station, upgrading from the Brush Truck currently used at that location. The Type-3 Fire Engine 
the department is seeking is four-wheel drive, has pump and roll capability, increased ground 
clearance, and would be the preferred vehicle for the Lake Pleasant area. It would also have 
increased interior room for the additional manpower the department is about to receive, as a 
result of being awarded and accepting the SAFER Grant.  
 
The FY2013 Budget includes $231,000 for the replacement of a Type-6 Brush Truck and the 
Vehicle Replacement Program includes $187,000 in FY2014 for the replacement of a second 
Type-6 Brush Truck. Staff recommends using $101,500 currently programmed in the FY2014 
Vehicle Replacement Program to supplement the funds needed for the acquisition of a Type-3 
Fire Engine in FY2013. The remaining funds programmed in FY2014 should be adequate to 
allow staff to replace the remaining truck as planned, utilizing the existing pump and associated 
equipment from the Brush Truck being replaced. The savings from reusing this equipment, 
which is still in excellent condition, will provide the financial capacity to upgrade the truck 
budgeted in FY2013 to a Type-3 Fire Engine. 
 
An ancillary benefit of acquiring a Type-3 Fire Engine is that as a highly requested piece of 
apparatus for all Wildland fires, it is capable of returning up to $30,000 to the City for a two 
week deployment to a State or Federal wildfire. 

110

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 11



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

 
Previous Actions: 
 
None. 
 
Options:  
 
A: Council can choose to accept the recommended upgrade one of the Type-6 Brush Trucks to a 
Type-3 Fire Engine use at the Lake Pleasant Fire Station and approve a FY2013 Budget 
Amendment supporting this change. 
 
B: Council can choose to maintain the current vehicle replacement schedule replacing the Type-6 
Brush Trucks with like vehicles. 
  
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Approve the purchase of a Type-3 Fire Engine use at the Lake Pleasant Fire Station and to 
authorize a $101,500 budget amendment from the General Fund Contingency (1000-0300-
570000) to the Fleet Reserve Fund Trucks and Vans account (3100-3500-542502). 
 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       
This recommendation is expected to have no cumulative financial impact, as the measures can 
be achieved within existing programmed expenditures. 
 
Exhibit(s): None 
 
Contact Name and Number: 
Fire Chief Bobby Ruiz 
623-773-7380 
bobby.ruiz@peoriaaz.gov 
 

111

mailto:bobby.ruiz@peoriaaz.gov


CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  July 24, 2012 Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012  
 

 
TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Roy W. Minter, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Child Abduction Response Team 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
This is a request for City Council to authorize the City Manager to execute an intergovernmental 
agreement to join the formation of a regional Child Abduction Response Team (CART) to 
include the City of Peoria Police Department. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The CART Team started in the east valley and has proven to be a proactive tool in locating 
missing or abducted children.  The CART team’s purpose is to provide a pool of specialized 
investigators which are available to focus dedicated and intensive investigative, preventative 
and general law enforcement efforts primarily with regard to cases involving abducted children.  
The use of CART provides law enforcement agencies with access to a wide variety of resources 
by pooling individual agency resources while conducting large scale investigations involving 
child abduction. 
 
The success of the CART team in the east valley has prompted the formation of a Central Region 
CART team which would include west valley agencies.  This agreement includes several 
neighboring cities and towns including: City of El Mirage, the Town of Wickenburg, the Luke Air 
Force Base, the City of Avondale, the City of Surprise, the City of Glendale, the City of Buckeye, 
the City of Goodyear, the Maricopa County Sherriff’s Office, and the City of Tolleson.  The 
location of these jurisdictions in relation to each other makes it advantageous to enter into 
agreement to receive and extend mutual aid in the form of law enforcement services and 
resources to respond to child abduction cases. 
 
If approved, the proposed agreement will be in effect until July 1, 2020.   
 
Previous Actions: 
 
There is no previous action on this item. 
 
 

112

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 12



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 07/2011 
 
 

Options:  
 
A: Authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement to join the Child Abduction 
Response Team to receive and extend mutual aid in the form of law enforcement services and 
resources to respond to child abduction cases. 
 
B: Choose not to participate in this agreement. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Discussion and possible action to authorize the City Manager to execute an Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the participation of the Peoria Police Department in the Arizona Child Abduction 
Response Team. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       
There is no additional cost to the City to participate in this program. 
 
Narrative:   
 
Once approved by City Council, the agreement will be executed as needed. 
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  Intergovernmental Agreement 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Heather Cammarata, 623-773-7069 
 

113



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
FOR THE CREATION AND PARTICIPATION IN THE  
ARIZONA CHILD ABDUCTION RESPONSE TEAM 

CENTRAL REGION 
 
 

This agreement is entered into pursuant to A.R.S. §§11-951 et seq., and A.R.S. §13-
3872 among the City of El Mirage, the Town of Wickenburg, the Luke Air Force Base, 
the City of Avondale, the City of Surprise, the City of Peoria, the City of Glendale, the 
City of Buckeye, the City of Goodyear, the Maricopa County Sheriff’s Office, and the 
City of Tolleson.  The aforementioned agencies shall herein after be known collectively 
as the Arizona Child Abduction Response Team agencies (CART) and other public 
agencies, as that term is defined in A.R.S §11-951, which after invitation by the CART 
chiefs, comply with the provisions of A.R.S §§11-951 et seq. and files an authorizing 
document with the County Recorder in the County in which the agency is located in that 
references this Agreement.  A public agency shall become a Party to this Agreement as 
of the date that agency files with the appropriate County Recorder, notwithstanding that 
A.R.S. §§11-951 et seq., no longer requires such recordings. Each CART agency shall 
provide a copy of its fully executed Agreement to every other member agency.  In 
addition to the above, all members to this Agreement may also be collectively known as 
or referred to as the Parties. 
 
I. PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to create an Arizona Child Abduction Response Team 
(CART).  The primary goal of this Agreement is to create an Arizona Child Abduction 
Response Team is to provide a pool of specialized investigators which are available to 
focus dedicated and intensive investigative, preventative, and general law enforcement 
efforts primarily with regard to cases involving abducted children.  CART agencies may 
request and render law enforcement assistance from other CART agencies in dealing 
with serious violations of law including, but not limited to, the investigation, arrest and 
prosecution of those involved in criminal child kidnapping, abduction, false 
imprisonment and similar or related violations (utilizing state and federal law and 
prosecutions, as appropriate), the rescue of the abducted child or children and the 
seizure and forfeiture of assets of those engaged in child abduction or otherwise 
supporting such activity (utilizing state and federal forfeiture options, as appropriate).  
 
Additionally, the location of each Party’s jurisdiction in relation to each other makes it 
advantageous to enter this particular Agreement in order to receive and extend mutual 
aid in the form of law enforcement services and resources to adequately respond to 
continuing, multi-jurisdictional criminal activity such as that described above. 
 
 
 
 
 

114



II. AUTHORITY 
 
A. The Parties are authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement pursuant to 
A.R.S §§11-951 et seq., A.R.S. §13-3872 and the respective provisions of their City 
Charters, Tribal Constitution or other governing statute or authority. 
 
If any Native American tribe that is a party to this Agreement request CART assistance, 
all assisting CART Team members shall be granted tribal peace officer authority for the 
duration of the CART activation within the applicable tribal jurisdiction. 
 
III. ACTIVATION, PROCEDURES, AND RESOURCES 
 
A. Any Party to the Agreement may request activation of CART. It shall be the 
responsibility of the Party requesting activation to contact assigned team leaders via the 
law enforcement communications center of each Party. 
 
B. The Party that has jurisdiction over the incident or investigation will remain as the 
lead agency during the duration of a particular CART activation, with support from 
CART agencies. 
 
C. Two CART Team Leaders will be selected by the CART Team members subject to 
final approval of chief law enforcement officers (Chiefs) of the CART agencies on a 
rotating basis for a term of at least one year, which shall correspond with the effective 
date of the Agreement.  In the event that a Team Leader is unable to complete his or 
her term due to a resignation from his or her agency or for any other reason, the CART 
members shall name a replacement, shall appoint a replacement subject to final 
approval of the Chiefs. 
 
D. The CART Team Leaders or designees will be responsible for coordinating on-going 
training, meetings, or other necessary supporting functions in support of the operational 
effectiveness of CART. Team Leaders shall be responsible for mediating any 
jurisdictional disputes between the Parties during a CART activation. In the event such 
mediation fails, the issue shall be brought to the attention of the CART Chiefs for 
appropriate resolution. 
 
E. Each Party shall, to the best of its ability, make at least one sworn law enforcement 
officer available along with supporting equipment such as vehicles in support of any 
CART activation.  Each Party shall designate a primary CART member to participate in 
activations, meetings, trainings, etc.  Each Party shall immediately inform other CART 
agencies when such designations change. In the event a primary CART member is not 
available, or as the situation dictates, a CART agency may provide officers not normally 
designated as CART members in support of a CART activation. 
 
F. Each Party shall have the sole discretion to determine how many or how long any of 
its personnel or resources shall be assigned in support of a CART activation. 
 

115



IV. COSTS AND ANY REIMBURSEMENT 
 
The Parties will be responsible for any and all associated costs accrued in implementing 
this Agreement that are incurred by their respective agencies to include, but  are not 
limited to, employee salary, shift differential pay, overtime compensation, benefits, 
vehicles, equipment, etc.   If any Party receives grant funds designated for the Arizona 
Child Abduction Response Team, some or all of these expenses may be reimbursed to 
the Parties.  In no event shall any Party charge other Parties for any administrative fees 
for any work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 
 
V. NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
The Parties to this Agreement shall comply with all applicable provisions of state and 
federal non-discrimination laws and regulations including, but not limited to Executive 
Order 75-5, as modified by Executive Order 99-4, which mandates that all persons, 
regardless of race, religion, sex, age, national origin, or political affiliation shall have 
equal access to employment opportunities and all other federal and state employment 
and educational opportunity laws, rules and regulations, including the Americans with 
Disabilities Act; provided however, an Indian Community is subject to 25 U.S.C. § 
450e(c).  No Party shall engage in any form of illegal discrimination.  
 
VI. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
To the extent permitted by law, each Party does hereby covenant and agree to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other Party, their elected officials, appointees, 
officers, employees, contractees, and agents from and against any and all suits, 
actions, legal or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, or damages of any kind 
or nature relating to this Agreement which, are the result of any act or omission of the 
Party, its officers, employees, contractees, agents, and anyone acting under its direction 
or control, whether intentional or negligent, in connection with or incident to this 
Agreement.  Failure of a Party to comply with the terms of this Agreement shall not 
provide the basis of any third party action against any of the Parties. 
 
VII. GOVERNING LAW 
 
The laws of the State of Arizona shall govern this Agreement.  Venue will be in the 
Maricopa County Superior Court unless the subject matter of the dispute involves an 
Indian Community, then venue shall be in the Federal District Court for the State of 
Arizona.  In the event of any litigation or arbitration arising out of this Agreement, the 
substantially prevailing Party in such litigation or arbitration shall be entitled to recover 
its reasonable attorney fees, expert witness fees and other costs of litigation.   
 
VIII. DURATION AND CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
A. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by the Parties hereto and 
filing with the appropriate County Recorder and shall remain in effect until July 1, 2020, 

116



unless otherwise terminated by the terms of this Agreement or operation of law.  Failure 
by one or more Parties to execute the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement as 
to those Parties who did so.  Any Party may withdraw from this Agreement with or 
without cause by giving thirty calendar days written notice to the other Parties to the 
Agreement. 
 
B. This Agreement may be administratively extended by each Party at the direction of 
the chief law enforcement officer for each Party on or before the Termination date for a 
period of an additional five years by notifying the other Parties in writing.  Any Party 
which fails to do so by the termination date listed above shall no longer by a Party to the 
Agreement.   
 
IX. CANCELLATION PROVISIONS PURSUANT TO A.R.S §38-511 
 
The Parties reserve all rights that each may have to cancel this Agreement for possible 
conflicts of interest under A.R.S. §38-511, as amended. 
 
X. MULTIPLE COUNTERPARTS 
 
This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. Neither a signature for every Party nor a signature line shall be required in 
each counterpart, except that on a counterpart being brought forward by a Party to its 
legislative body, or equivalent for approval, that particular counterpart shall have to be 
signed and executed in accordance with that Party’s practice.  The signature pages 
from one or more counterparts may be removed from such counterparts and such 
signature pages all attached to a single instrument so that the signatures of all Parties 
may be physically attached to a single document. 
 
XI. WORKERS COMPENSATION 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §23-1022 (D), for the purposes of worker’s compensation coverage, 
all employees of each Party covered by this Agreement shall be deemed to be an 
employee of all Parties.  The parent agency shall be solely liable for payment of 
worker’s compensation benefits. 
 
XII. OTHER PROVISIONS 
 
A. In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the 
validity or enforceability of any other provision herein. 
 
B. This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the Parties with respect 
to the subjects hereof and supersedes all prior negotiations and agreements. This 
Agreement may be amended only by an instrument in writing and signed by all the 
participating Parties.  The waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall not be deemed 

117



to amend this Agreement and shall not constitute waiver of any other subsequent 
breach.  Headings are for convenience and shall not affect interpretation. 
 
C. This Agreement shall be recorded with the appropriate County Recorder as 
described above upon execution and a copy shall be forwarded to each Party. 
 
D. Pursuant to A.R.S. §§35-391-06 and 35-393-06, each Party certifies that it does not 
have a scrutinized business operation, as defined in A.R.S. §§35-391 and 35-393, in 
either Sudan or Iran. 
 
E. Nothing within this Agreement shall be construed to limit the ability of participating 
Arizona Child Abduction Response Team members to provide or as otherwise allowed 
for by law, such assistance in any enforcement action as may be lawfully requested by 
a law enforcement officer having jurisdiction over an incident, crime or matter under 
consideration. 
 
XIII. COMPLIANCE WITH E-VERIFY PROGRAM 
 
A. To the extent provisions of A.R.S. §41-4401 are applicable, all Parties warrant to 
each Party that they will comply with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that 
relate to their employees and that each now complies with the E-Verify Program under 
A.R.S. §23-214(A). 
 
B. A breach of this warranty will be considered a material breach of this Agreement and 
may subject the breaching party to penalties up to and including termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
C. All of the Parties retain the legal right to inspect the papers of any employee who 
works pursuant to this Agreement or any related subcontract to ensure compliance with 
the warranty given above. 
 
D. Any Party may conduct a random verification of the employment records of any other 
Party to ensure compliance with this warranty. 
 
E. A Party will not be considered in material breach of this Agreement if it establishes 
that it has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by 8 USCA 
§1324(a) and (b) of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-Verify 
requirements prescribed by A.R.S. §23-214(A). 
 
F. The provisions of this Article must be included in any contract either Party enters into 
with any of all of its contractors or subcontractors who provide services under this 
Agreement. 
 
 
 
 

118



XIV. NOTICES 
 
Any notice required to be given under this Agreement will be provided to all Parties to 
this Agreement.  The CART leaders shall compile a list of each Party’s address, phone 
number and contact person and distribute said list to each member to this Agreement. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE Parties hereby subscribe their names this ____ day of 
____________, 2012. 
 
City of Peoria 
By: ______________________ 
         Carl Swenson  
         City Manager 
 
Date: _____________________ 
 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
           Wanda Nelson 

City Clerk 
 
 
 
This agreement is in proper legal form and is within the powers and authority granted 
under the laws of this state to those parties represented by the undersigned legal 
counsel. 
 
___________________________ 
Steve Kemp 
City Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

119



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  July 24, 2012  Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012   
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager     
 
FROM:   William Mattingly, Public Works – Utilities Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan K. Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve an Intergovernmental Agreement between Maricopa County 

Department of Transportation and the City of Peoria for the Exchange of 
Transportation Maintenance Services (Entente Program) 

 
Purpose:   
Discussion and possible action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement between Maricopa 
County  Department  of  Transportation  and  the  City  of  Peoria  to  establish  procedures  to 
authorize the Maricopa County Department of Transportation Director and the City Manager, 
(or their designees), to exchange goods or services to perform routine or emergency highway 
maintenance services. 
 
Background/Summary: 
Maricopa  County  has  a  number  of  roadways  and  intersections  which  are  immediately 
adjacent  to  the City of Peoria.    In many  instances  the operation and maintenance of  these 
roadways has a split or  joint responsibility.   This agreement recognizes  that  it may be more 
cost effective for either Maricopa County or the City of Peoria to effect certain limited repair 
or maintenance activity that benefits both agencies (Entente Program).  The Entente Program 
is designed to  focus on the maintenance task needed and the availability of resources.   The 
Program anticipates that the parties may enter into temporary Letters of Agreement (LOA(s)) 
and  provides  authorization  to  enter  into  separate  LOAs  for  each  routine  or  emergency 
highway maintenance project. 
 
Each LOA will describe the routine or emergency highway maintenance project and the goods 
or services that are being exchanged between the parties.  If applicable, the LOA will also state 
the  amount  of  reimbursement  owed  to  the  other  party  if  the  value  of  goods  or  services 
exchanged  is not of equal value. The  total aggregate  reimbursement  that  is  in excess of  the 
value of  the goods or  services  received  for all LOAs entered  into pursuant  to  this agreement 
shall  not  exceed  $200,000  per  fiscal  year.    The  following  are  examples  of  services  that  are 
anticipated  in  this  agreement;  roadway  grading,  debris  removal,  material  hauling,  culvert 
repair, barricading, equipment exchange and storm repairs 
 
A “Letter of Agreement” would be required before any funds are committed. Funds for projects 
the City would be performing through this agreement must be included in the fiscal year that 

120

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 13



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 2  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

the work is to be accomplished and would be budgeted in the Public Works – Utilities, Streets 
Operating or capital budget. 
 
This Agreement shall become effective as of  the date  it  is approved by  the Maricopa County 

Board of Supervisors, after approval of the City of Peoria Mayor and Council and will remain in 

full  force and effect  for  five  (5) years.   However, either party may  terminate  this agreement 

upon furnishing the other party a written notice at  least thirty (30) days prior to the effective 

termination date. 

Previous Actions: 
A  previous  agreement  was  entered  into  on  November  16th,  2006  (LCON  10105, Maricopa 
County IGA C‐64‐06‐078‐00).  
 
Options:  
A:   Council  could  act  to  approve an  Intergovernmental Agreement between Maricopa County 

Department of Transportation and the City of Peoria. 
 
B:  Council  could  decline  to  approve  the  proposed  Intergovernmental  Agreement  between 

Maricopa County Department of Transportation and  the City of Peoria and direct staff  to 
coordinate an IGA for each instance related to routine or emergency highway maintenance. 

 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
That the Mayor and City Council approve the Intergovernmental Agreement between Maricopa 
County Department of Transportation and the City of Peoria for the exchange of transportation 
maintenance Services. 
 
Fiscal Analysis:         
The proposed IGA with the Maricopa County Department of Transportation will allow the City 
of Peoria  to more efficiently accomplish  its highway maintenance program  that  is specifically 
identified  and  approved  as  part  of  the  Public Works  – Utilities,  Streets Operating  or Capital 
budget. 
 
Narrative:   
The Public Works – Utilities Department and the Maricopa County Department of 
Transportation continue to evaluate operational efficiencies and identified the above 
opportunities. Staff recommends approval of the agreement. 
 
Exhibit: 
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Maricopa County Department of Transportation 
 
Contact Name and Number:   
William Mattingly, Public Works – Utilities Director, 623‐773‐5151 

121



 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
BETWEEN MARICOPA COUNTY AND THE CITY OF PEORIA 

 
FOR THE EXCHANGE OF SERVICES (ENTENTE) 

 
(C-91-12- _______ -M-01) 

 
 

This Intergovernmental Agreement (Agreement) is between the County of Maricopa, 
a political subdivision of the State (County), and the City of Peoria, a municipal 
corporation (City). The County and City are collectively referred to as the Parties or 
individually as a Party. 

 
This Agreement shall become effective as of the date it is approved by the Maricopa 
County Board of Supervisors. 
 

STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION 
 
1. A.R.S. §11-251 and §§28-6701 et seq. authorize the County to layout, 

maintain, control and manage public roads within the County. 
 
2. A.R.S. §§11-951 et seq. authorize public agencies to enter into 

Intergovernmental Agreements for the provision of services or for joint or 
cooperative action. 

 
3. A.R.S. §§9-240 and §9-276 et seq. authorize the City to layout and establish, 

regulate, and improve streets within the City and to enter into this Agreement. 
 
 

DURATION 
 

4. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date it is approved by the 
Maricopa County Board of Supervisors and remain in full force and effect for five 
(5) years.  Any Party may terminate this Agreement upon furnishing the other 
Parties with a written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective 
termination date. 

 
BACKGROUND  

 
5. The Parties desire to develop and implement a cooperative highway 

maintenance program whereby routine or emergency highway maintenance 
will be performed more efficiently (the “Entente Program”).  The Entente 
Program is designed to focus on the maintenance task needed and the 

122



availability of resources.  The Entente Program is a method of providing goods 
and services to each Party by entering into temporary Letters of Agreement 
(the “LOA” or “LOAs”). The Parties desire to authorize the County 
Transportation Director and the City Manager, or their designees, to enter into 
separate LOAs for each routine or emergency highway maintenance project. 
 
 

PURPOSE OF THE AGREEMENT 
 
6. The purpose of this Agreement is to establish procedures to authorize the 

County Transportation Director and the City Manager, or their designees, to 
enter into LOAs to exchange goods or services between each Party in order to 
perform routine or emergency highway maintenance services. 

 
 

TERMS OF THE LOA 
 
7. Each LOA will describe the routine or emergency highway maintenance project 

and the goods or services that are being exchanged between the Parties.  If 
applicable, the LOA will also state the amount of reimbursement owed to the 
other Party if the value of goods or services exchanged is not of equal value; 
provided, however, the total aggregate reimbursement that is in excess of the 
value of the goods or services received for all LOAs entered into pursuant to this 
Agreement shall not exceed $200,000 per fiscal year. 
 

8. After the Parties enter into an LOA, if there are unexpected or unforeseen costs 
that cause the value of the goods or services exchanged to become unequal or 
add to the amount of reimbursement for that LOA, the Parties shall amend the 
LOA, in writing; provided, however, that the additional reimbursement shall not 
cause the total aggregate reimbursement for all LOAs to exceed $200,000 per 
fiscal year. 

 
9. All routine or emergency highway maintenance projects shall be performed in 

accordance with “Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction,” current edition/revisions as of the date of each LOA and the 
“Uniform Standard Details for Public Works Construction,” current 
edition/revisions as of the date of each LOA which are sponsored and 
distributed by the Maricopa Association of Governments (“MAG”) and any 
amendments or supplements adopted by the County and City, as applicable. 

 
10. All routine or emergency highway maintenance projects shall be performed with 

existing resources. 
 

11. Nothing in any LOA shall be interpreted to enlarge or expand the City's or 
County's authority. 

 
 

123



TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT 
 

12. Responsibilities of the County:  
 

12.1 The County Transportation Director or their designee is authorized to 
select routine or emergency highway maintenance projects suitable for 
an LOA and to enter into LOAs with the City; provided however, if the 
value of goods or services exchanged with the City is not of equal 
value, the total aggregate reimbursement to the City for all LOAs will 
not exceed $200,000 per fiscal year. 

12.2 Complete each routine or emergency highway maintenance project, 
such as those generally outlined in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference, in accordance with the County’s 
procurement code and policies and the “Uniform Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction,” current edition/revisions 
as of the date of each LOA and the “Uniform Standard Details for 
Public Works Construction,” current edition/revisions as of the date of 
each LOA which are sponsored and distributed by the Maricopa 
Association of Governments (“MAG”) and any amendments or 
supplements adopted by the County. 

12.3 Exchange goods or services that will be of similar value or to 
reimburse the City for the value of goods or services in excess of the 
value of goods or services received from the City; provided however, 
that the total aggregate reimbursement to the City for all LOAs will not 
exceed $200,000 per fiscal year. 

12.4 Permit the City to inspect the routine or emergency highway 
maintenance projects undertaken by the County on behalf of the City 
and pursuant to an LOA. If the City reasonably believes the project is 
not being conducted by the County in conformance with the LOA, or 
the City reasonably believes that that project has not been undertaken 
and conducted in a good and workmanlike manner, the County shall 
correct or re-perform it, as necessary, to the reasonable satisfaction of 
the City. 

12.5 Comply with existing law and all County policies, such as planning, 
budgeting and purchasing. 

12.6 Perform all obligations agreed to under an LOA. 
 

13. Responsibilities of the City: 
 

13.1 The City Manager or their designee is authorized to select routine or 
emergency highway maintenance projects suitable for an LOA and to 
enter into LOAs with the County; provided however, if the value of 
goods or services exchanged with the County is not of equal value, the 
total aggregate reimbursement to the County for all LOAs will not 
exceed $200,000 per fiscal year. 

124



13.2 Complete each routine or emergency highway maintenance project, 
such as those generally outlined in Exhibit A, in accordance with the 
City's procurement code and policies and the Uniform Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction,” current edition/revisions 
as of the date of each LOA and the “Uniform Standard Details for 
Public Works Construction,” current edition/revisions as of the date of 
each LOA which are sponsored and distributed by the Maricopa 
Association of Governments (“MAG”) and any amendments or 
supplements adopted by the City. 

13.3 Exchange goods or services that will be of similar value or to 
reimburse the County for the value of goods or services in excess of 
the value of goods or services received from the County; provided 
however, that the total aggregate reimbursement to the County for all 
LOAs will not exceed $200,000 per fiscal year. 

13.4 Permit the County to inspect the routine or emergency highway 
maintenance projects undertaken by the City on behalf of the County 
and pursuant to an LOA.  If the County reasonably believes the project 
is not being conducted by the City in conformance with the LOA, or the 
County reasonably believes that that project has not been undertaken 
and conducted in a good and workmanlike manner, the City shall 
correct or re-perform it, as necessary, to the reasonable satisfaction of 
the County. 

13.5 Comply with existing law and all City policies, such as planning, 
budgeting and purchasing. 

13.6 Perform all obligations agreed to under an LOA. 
 
14. Each Party will maintain a record of the goods and services exchanged over the 

life of the Agreement. For the purposes of calculating the $200,000 fiscal year 
limit, the total aggregate reimbursement made by one Party to the other Party 
will not be offset by the value of the goods or services received. 

 
 

MANNER OF FINANCING 
 
15. The County and the City shall budget, finance and bear the expense of each 

LOA separately. The County Transportation Director and the City Manager or 
their designee shall ensure that sufficient financing is available prior to entering 
into a LOA. 

 
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

16. By entering into this Agreement, the Parties agree that to the extent permitted 
by law, each Party will defend, indemnify and save the other Parties harmless, 
including any of the Parties’ departments, agencies, officers, employees, elected 

125



officials or agents, from and against all loss, expense, damage or claim of any 
nature whatsoever which is caused by any activity, condition or event arising out 
of the performance or nonperformance by the indemnifying Party of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement.  By entering into this Agreement, each Party 
indemnifies the other against all liability, losses and damages of any nature for 
or on account of any injuries or death of persons or damages to or destruction of 
property arising out of or in any way connected with the performance or 
nonperformance of this Agreement, except such injury or damage as shall have 
been occasioned by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of that other 
Party.  The damages which are the subject of this indemnity shall include but not 
be limited to the damages incurred by any Party, its departments, agencies, 
officers, employees, elected officials or agents. In the event of an action, the 
damages which are the subject of this indemnity shall include costs, expenses 
of litigation and reasonable attorney’s fees. 

17. This Agreement shall be subject to the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 

18. The Parties warrant that they are in compliance with A.R.S. § 41-4401 and 
further acknowledge that: 

 
18.1 Any contractor or subcontractor who is contracted by a Party to 

perform work on the Project shall warrant their compliance with all 
federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to their 
employees and their compliance with A.R.S. § 23-214(A), and shall 
keep a record of the verification for the duration of the employee’s 
employment or at least three years, whichever is longer. 

18.2 Any breach of the warranty, shall be deemed a material breach of 
the contract that is subject to penalties up to and including 
termination of the contract. 

18.3 The Parties retain the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
contractor or subcontractor employee who works on the Project to 
ensure that the contractor or subcontractor is complying with the 
warranty above and that the contractor agrees to make all papers 
and employment records of said employee available during normal 
working hours in order to facilitate such an inspection. 

18.4 Nothing in this Agreement shall make any contractor or 
subcontractor an agent or employee of the Parties to this 
Agreement. 

126



19. The Parties warrant that they do not have scrutinized business operations in 
Sudan or Iran, as prohibited by A.R.S. §§ 35-391.06 and 35-393.06, and further 
acknowledge that any contractor or subcontractor who is contracted by a party 
to perform work on the Project shall warrant that they do not have scrutinized 
business operations in Sudan or Iran. 

20. Each Party to this Agreement warrants that neither it nor any contractor or 
vendor under contract with the Party to provide goods or services toward the 
accomplishment of the objectives of this Agreement is suspended or debarred 
by any federal agency which has provided funding that will be used in the 
Project described in this Agreement. 

21. Each of the following shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and an 
event of default (“Default”) hereunder: A Party’s failure to observe or perform 
any of the material covenants, conditions or provisions of this Agreement to be 
observed or performed by that Party (“Defaulting Party”), where such failure 
shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after the Defaulting Party receives 
written notice of such failure from the non-defaulting party provided, however, 
that such failure shall not be a Default if the Defaulting Party has commenced to 
cure the Default within such thirty (30) day period and thereafter is diligently 
pursuing such cure to completion, but the total aggregate cure period shall not 
exceed ninety (90) days unless the Parties agree in writing that additional time is 
reasonably necessary under such circumstances to cure such default. In the 
event a Defaulting Party fails to perform any of its material obligations under this 
Agreement and is in Default pursuant to this Section, the non-defaulting party, at 
its option, may terminate this Agreement. Further, upon the occurrence of any 
Default and at any time thereafter, the non-defaulting party may, but shall not be 
required to, exercise any remedies now or hereafter available to it at law or in 
equity. 

22. All notices required under this agreement to be given in writing shall be sent to: 

Maricopa County Department of Transportation 
Attn: Intergovernmental Liaison 
2901 W. Durango St. 
Phoenix, AZ 85009 
 
City of Peoria 
Attn: City Engineer 
9875 N. 85th Avenue 
Peoria, AZ 85345 
 

 

127



All notices required or permitted by this Agreement or applicable law shall be in 
writing and may be delivered in person (by hand or courier) or may be sent by 
regular, certified or registered mail or U.S. Postal Service Express Mail, with 
postage prepaid, and shall be deemed sufficiently given if served in a manner 
specified in this paragraph. Either Party may by written notice to the other 
specify a different address for notice. Any notice sent by registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, shall be deemed given on the date of delivery 
shown on the receipt card, or if no delivery date is shown, the postmark thereon. 
If sent by regular mail, the notice shall be deemed given 72 hours after the 
notice is addressed as required in this paragraph and mailed with postage 
prepaid. Notices delivered by United States Express Mail or overnight courier 
that guarantee next day delivery shall be deemed given 24 hours after delivery 
of the notice to the Postal Service or courier. 

 
23.  This Agreement does not imply authority to perform any tasks, or accept any 

responsibility, not expressly stated in this Agreement. 

24.  This Agreement does not create a duty or responsibility unless the intention to 
do so is clearly and unambiguously stated in this Agreement. 

25. This Agreement does not grant authority to control the subject roadway, except 
to the extent necessary to perform the tasks expressly undertaken pursuant to 
this Agreement. 

26. Any funding provided for in this Agreement, other than in the current fiscal year, 
is contingent upon being budgeted and appropriated by the Maricopa County 
Board of Supervisors and the Peoria City Council in such fiscal year. This 
Agreement may be terminated by any Party at the end of any fiscal year due to 
non-appropriation of funds without any liability to the non-terminating party.  

27. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and 
their respective successors and assignees. Neither Party shall assign its interest 
in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.  

28. This Agreement and all Exhibits attached to this Agreement set forth all of the 
covenants, promises, agreements, conditions and understandings between the 
Parties to this Agreement, and there are no covenants, promises, agreements, 
conditions or understandings, either oral or written, between the Parties other 
than as set forth in this Agreement, and those agreements which are executed 
contemporaneously with this Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed as 
a whole and in accordance with its fair meaning and without regard to any 
presumption or other rule requiring construction against the party drafting this 
Agreement. This Agreement cannot be modified or changed except by a written 

128



instrument executed by all of the Parties hereto. Each party has reviewed this 
Agreement and has had the opportunity to have it reviewed by legal counsel. 

29. The waiver by any Party of any right granted to it under this Agreement is not a 
waiver of any other right granted under this Agreement, nor may any waiver be 
deemed to be a waiver of a subsequent right obtained by reason of the 
continuation of any matter previously waived. 

30. Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in 
such a manner as to be valid under applicable law, but if any provision shall be 
invalid or prohibited under the law, such provision shall be ineffective to the 
extent of such prohibition or invalidation but shall not invalidate the remainder of 
such provision or the remaining provisions. 

31. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all covenants, agreements, 
representations and warranties set forth in this Agreement or in any certificate or 
instrument executed or delivered pursuant to this Agreement shall survive the 
expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement for a period of one (1) year. 

32. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any partnership, joint venture 
or other agreement between the Parties hereto. Except as expressly provided in 
this Agreement, no term or provision of this Agreement is intended or shall be 
for the benefit of any person or entity not a party to this Agreement, and no such 
other person or entity shall have any right or cause of action under this 
Agreement. 

33. Time is of the essence concerning this Agreement. Unless otherwise specified 
in this Agreement, the term “day” as used in this Agreement means calendar 
day. If the date for performance of any obligation under this Agreement or the 
last day of any time period provided in this Agreement falls on a Saturday, 
Sunday or legal holiday, then the date for performance or time period shall 
expire at the close of business on the first day thereafter which is not a 
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. 

34. Sections and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference 
purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of 
this Agreement. 

35. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute the same 
instrument. Faxed, copied and scanned signatures are acceptable as original 
signatures. 

129



36. The Parties agree to execute and/or deliver to each other such other 
instruments and documents as may be reasonably necessary to fulfill the 
covenants and obligations to be performed by such party pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

37. The Parties hereby agree that the venue for any claim arising out of or in any 
way related to this Agreement shall be Maricopa County, Arizona. 

38. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona. 

 
End of Agreement - Signature Page Follows 

  

130



IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 
 
 
MARICOPA COUNTY     CITY OF PEORIA   
 
 
Recommended by:    Recommended by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ __________________________ 
John B. Hauskins, P.E.          Date       Date 
Transportation Director    City Manager 
 
 
Approved and Accepted by:   Approved and Accepted by: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ __________________________ 
Max Wilson, Chairman  Date      Date 
Board of Supervisors    Mayor 
 
 
Attest by:      Attest by: 
 
 
_______________________________ __________________________ 
Clerk of the Board   Date  Peoria Clerk   Date 
 

 
 

APPROVAL OF DEPUTY COUNTY ATTORNEY AND PEORIA 
ATTORNEY 

 
I hereby state that I have reviewed the proposed Intergovernmental Agreement and 
declare the Agreement to be in proper form and within the powers and authority granted 
to the Parties by their respective governing bodies under the laws of the State of 
Arizona. 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
Deputy County Attorney      Date          Peoria Attorney  Date 
 

131



EXHIBIT A 
 
 
Maintenance Tasks: 
 
 
a. Grading 
 
b. Sweeping 
 
c. Surface Treatment/Seal Coats 
 
d. Signage 
 
e. Striping 
 
f. Debris Removal 
 
g. Material Hauling 
 
h. Fence Repair 
 
i. Storm Drain/Culvert Repair 
 
j. Barricading 
 
k. Pothole Repair 
 
l. Signal Maintenance 
 
m. Equipment Exchange 
 
n. Concrete Repair 
 
o. Bridge Repairs 
 
p. Storm Repairs 

132



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  June 19, 2012  Council Meeting Date:  August 21st, 2012      
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   William Mattingly, Public Works – Utilities Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan K. Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Freedom  Grant  for  Fiscal  Year  2012  Intergovernmental  Agreement  (IGA) 

Amendment #1 for ADA Paratransit Service between the City of Peoria and the 
Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA) (Valley Metro Mobility Services 
FY2012) 

 

Purpose:   
 

Discussion and possible action to approve a Freedom Grant for Fiscal Year 2012 
Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Amendment #1 for ADA Paratransit Service  between the 
City of Peoria and the Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA). Contract Number 151‐
48‐2010‐01 (Previous Contract #151‐32‐2010). 
 
Background/Summary: 
 

The City of Peoria Transit Division currently provides Paratransit Service through the Dial‐A‐Ride 
program.  The program utilizes a hybrid of City owned buses that are funded through various 
federal grants and on demand Taxi‐Service utilizing RPTA’s existing contract with Total Transit.  
The City has determined that this Hybrid delivery model would be in the best interest of the 
City and the citizens who utilize the service.  
 
This Amendment (Amendment #1) amends the General provisions of the original agreement 
(Section 3) related to Term and Renewal (Subsection L) and Civil Rights (Subsection M). These 
changes were necessary to bring this agreement consistent with other agreements across the 
region and to comply with federal requirements. Additionally, this agreement allows for the 
reimbursement of 30% of Peoria’s program cost incurred in FY 2012 from the New Freedom 
Grant funding awarded to RPTA on the behalf of the Region. 
 
The attached Schedule “A” identifies the amount of the annual available funding from RPTA for 
FY 2012.  Schedule “A” is updated annually and is contingent upon the RPTA Board of Directors 
budget approval.    The maximum reimbursement to Peoria for FY 2012 is $29,142. 
 
Schedule “B” outlines the civil rights laws and regulations that each Party must comply with in 
accordance with applicable Federal directives, except to the extent that the Federal 
government determines otherwise in writing as may be amended from time to time. 

133

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 14



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 2  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Previous Actions: 
Council approved the  Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between the City of Peoria and the 
Regional Public Transportation Authority (RPTA). This amends the following items of the Transit 
Service Agreement entered into between the City of Peoria and the Regional Public Transportation 
Authority dated April 1, 2010 (Contract #151‐32‐2010) 
 
Options:  
 

A:  Approve  IGA Amendment #1 for ADA Paratransit Service between the City of Peoria and 
the RPTA. 

 
B:  Do not approve the IGA Amendment #1 and continue providing existing service with no 

reimbursement from RPTA under the New Freedom Grant. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 

Staff  recommends  approval  the  Intergovernmental  Agreement  Amendment  #2  for  ADA 
Paratransit  Service  between  the  City  of  Peoria  and  the  Regional  Public  Transportation 
Authority.   
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
           
Funding for this request was reflected in Transit’s Fiscal Year 2012 budget. 
 
Exhibit(s):  
 

Exhibit 1:   Valley Metro Mobility Services Agreement (FY2012) Contract Number 151‐48‐2010‐
01 
 
Contact Name and Number:  William Mattingly, Public Works – Utilities Director, 623‐773‐5151 

134



CONTRACT #. 151-48-2010-01 
(Previous Contract #151-32-2010) 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT AMENDMENT #1 
BETWEEN 

THE REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
AND  

THE CITY OF PEORIA 
 

(Funding Agreement – Valley Metro Mobility Services FY 2012) 
 

 
As of the 1st day of July, 2011, this amends the following items of the Transit Service Agreement 
entered into between the City of Peoria and the Regional Public Transportation Authority, dated the 
1st day of April, 2010. 
 
The following sections are added to the agreement entered into April 1, 2010. 
 

SECTION 3: GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 L. Term and Renewal,  If the parties have not renewed the term of this Agreement 
 before the current term of the Agreement expires, this Agreement shall 
 automatically renew for a one hundred eighty (180) day period on the same terms 
 and conditions to allow the parties to renew the term of the Agreement.  If this 
 Agreement is not renewed prior to the expiration of the one hundred eighty (180) 
 day period, the Agreement shall terminate upon the expiration of the one hundred 
 eighty (180) day period.  Without limiting the generality of the preceding 
 paragraph, if the parties are not able to agree upon renewal terms for the existing 
 Agreement prior to the expiration of the term of the existing Agreement, the 
 CITY shall make the payments required to be paid under this Agreement on or 
 before July 1 for the new fiscal year and thereafter for a one hundred eighty (180) 
 day period unless the parties agree upon renewal terms prior to the expiration of 
 such one hundred eighty (180) day period.  For example, if there is a 
 disagreement with the proposed rate for the new fiscal year, or if the renewal 
 Agreement is not signed, for any reason, the CITY shall make payments at the old 
 rate (the previous year’s rate) until such time that renewal Agreement can be fully 
 approved and executed. 

  
 M. Civil Rights.  The parties agree that as a condition of this Agreement they will 

 each comply with all applicable civil rights laws and regulations, in accordance 
 with applicable Federal directives, except to the extent that the Federal 
 government determines otherwise in writing.  These include, but are not limited 
 to, those civil rights laws and regulations set forth on Exhibit B, as such civil 
 rights laws and regulations may be amended from time to time. 

 

135



2 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

The following Schedule replaces and supersedes that Schedule of the agreement dated 
July 1, 2010. 
 
 The attached Schedule A replaces and supersedes Schedule A dated July 1, 2010. 
 
The following Exhibit B is hereby added to the agreement entered into April 1, 2010. 
 
 The attached Exhibit B 
 

136



3 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this instrument as of the date 
and year first set forth above. 
 
“CITY”      “RPTA” 
 
CITY OF PEORIA, an Arizona   REGIONAL PUBLIC, 
municipal corporation     TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, an  

Arizona public agency 
 
 
              
Carl Swenson, City Manager    Stephen R. Banta, Chief Executive Officer 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
              
Wanda Nelson, City Clerk    Jon Medwin, Contracts and Procurement  

Manager 
 
REVIEWED BY:  
 
 
       
Michael Taylor, Acting Director of Finance 

137



4 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT DETERMINATION 

 
In accordance with the requirements of §11-952(D), Arizona Revised Statutes, 

each of the undersigned attorneys acknowledge: (1) that they have reviewed the above 
Agreement on behalf of their respective clients; and, (2) that, as to their respective clients 
only, each attorney has determined that this Agreement is in proper form and is within the 
powers and authority granted under the laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ________________________________ 
Stephen M. Kemp, William J. Sims, Esq. 
City Attorney, City of Peoria   RPTA Attorney  
         
 
 

138



5 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

 
 

SCHEDULE A  
 
 

City of Peoria
Annual Contract Funding Schedule

Contract # 151-32-2010
Fiscal Year 2010-2011

Fiscal 
Year

Annual Contract 
Estimate

Actual/ 
Estimated 

Expenditures
Annual 

Variance Notes
2010 $100 $64.05 ($35.95) (1),(2)
2011 $25,000 $2,227.05 ($22,772.95) (3)
2012 $23,400 $9,200.00 ($14,200.00) (3)

$0 $0.00 $0.00 (3)

Total $48,500 $11,491.10 ($37,008.90)
(1) The initial agreement was for 3 months (4/1/10 to 6/30/10).
(2) Actual expenditures.
(3) Estimated expenditures.

(4) Original contract amount $48,500.

 
 
 
 
 
 

139



6 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE A Cont. 
 

Regional Public Transportation Authority
Valley Metro Mobility Services

Fiscal Year 2011-2012

Expenditures Peoria

Annual Contractor Cost $97,433
Passenger Fares (5,148)
Administration, Printing/Marketing 4,857
Total Program Costs $97,142

Funding
New Freedom Grants @ 30% $29,142
Local Funds 68,000
Total Funding $97,142  

 
 

 

140



7 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
a. Nondiscrimination in Federal Public Transportation Programs. The Recipient agrees to 
comply, and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other 
participant at any tier of the Project, with the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5332, which prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age, and prohibits 
discrimination in employment or business opportunity.  
 
b. Nondiscrimination – Title VI of the Civil Rights Act. The Recipient agrees to comply, 
and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other 
participant at any tier of the Project, with all provisions prohibiting discrimination on the basis of 
race, color, or national origin of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 
§§ 2000d et seq., and with U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted 
Programs of the Department of Transportation – Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act,” 49 C.F.R. Part 21. Except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient 
agrees to follow all applicable provisions of the most recent edition of FTA Circular 4702.1A, 
“Title VI and Title VI-Dependent Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” and 
any other applicable Federal directives that may be issued.  
 
c. Equal Employment Opportunity. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the 
compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of 
the Project, with all equal employment opportunity (EEO) provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5332, with 
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., and 
implementing Federal regulations and any later amendments thereto. Except to the extent FTA 
determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient also agrees to follow all applicable Federal EEO 
directives that may be issued.  Accordingly:  
 
 (1) General. The Recipient agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee 
or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, sex, disability, age, or national origin. 
The Recipient agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that 
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, 
disability, age, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, employment, 
upgrading, demotions or transfers, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoffs or 
terminations; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship.  
 
 (2) Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements for Construction Activities. For 
activities determined by the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) to qualify as “construction,” 
the Recipient agrees to comply and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third 
party contractor, or other participant, at any tier of the Project, with all requirements of U.S. 
DOL regulations, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor,” 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq.; with implementing Executive 
Order No. 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by Executive Order No. 

141



8 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

11375, “Amending Executive Order No. 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” 
42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, and with other applicable EEO laws and regulations, and also agrees to 
follow applicable Federal directives, except as the Federal Government determines otherwise in 
writing.  
 
d. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise. To the extent authorized by Federal law, the 
Recipient agrees to facilitate participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) in the 
Project and assures that each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at 
any tier of the Project will facilitate participation by DBEs in the Project to the extent applicable 
as follows:  
 
 (1) The Recipient agrees and assures that it shall comply with section 1101(b) of 
SAFETEA-LU, 23 U.S.C. § 101 note, and U.S. DOT regulations, “Participation by 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance 
Programs,” 49 C.F.R. Part 26.  
 
 (2) The Recipient agrees and assures that it shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, sex, or national origin in the award and performance of any subagreement, lease, third 
party contract, or other arrangement supported with Federal assistance derived from U.S. DOT in 
the administration of its DBE program and shall comply with the requirements of 49 C.F.R. 
Part 26. The Recipient agrees to take all necessary and reasonable steps as set forth in 49 C.F.R. 
Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of all subagreements, leases, 
third party contracts, and other arrangements supported with Federal assistance derived from 
U.S. DOT. As required by 49 C.F.R. Part 26, the Recipient’s DBE program approved by U.S. 
DOT, if any, is incorporated by reference and made part of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative 
Agreement for the Project. The Recipient agrees that it has a legal obligation to implement its 
approved DBE program, and that its failure to carry out that DBE program shall be treated as a 
violation of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project and this Master 
Agreement. Upon notification by U.S. DOT to the Recipient of the Recipient’s failure to 
implement its approved DBE program, U.S. DOT may impose the sanctions as set forth in 
49 C.F.R. Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, refer the matter to the appropriate Federal 
authorities for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. § 1001, or the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 
31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 et seq., or both.  
 
e. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex. The Recipient agrees to comply with all 
applicable requirements of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, 
20 U.S.C. §§ 1681 et seq., and with implementing U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination on 
the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 
49 C.F.R. Part 25, that prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.  
 
f. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age. The Recipient agrees to comply with all 
applicable requirements of:  
 
 (1) The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq., and 
with implementing U.S. Health and Human Services regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the 

142



9 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

Basis of Age in Programs or Activities Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 45 C.F.R. 
Part 90, which prohibit discrimination against individuals on the basis of age in the 
administration of programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance.  
 
 (2) The Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA) 29 U.S.C. §§ 621 through 
634 and with implementing U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S. EEOC) 
regulations, “Age Discrimination in Employment Act,” 29 C.F.R. Part 1625, which prohibits 
discrimination against individuals on the basis of age.  
 
g. Access for Individuals with Disabilities. The Recipient agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 
§ 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly individuals and individuals with 
disabilities have the same right as other individuals to use public transportation services and 
facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and 
facilities to implement transportation accessibility rights for elderly individuals and individuals 
with disabilities. The Recipient also agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability in the administration of programs or activities receiving 
Federal financial assistance; with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be 
made available to individuals with disabilities; with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations 
be accessible to individuals with disabilities; and with other laws and amendments thereto 
pertaining to access for individuals with disabilities that may be applicable. In addition, the 
Recipient agrees to comply with applicable implementing Federal regulations, and any later 
amendments thereto, and agrees to follow applicable Federal implementing directives, except to 
the extent FTA approves otherwise in writing. Among those regulations and directives are:  
 
 (1) U.S. DOT regulations, “Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities 
(ADA),” 49 C.F.R. Part 37;  
 
 (2) U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs 
and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance,” 49 C.F.R. Part 27;  
 
 (3) Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (U.S. 
ATBCB)/U.S. DOT regulations, “Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility 
Specifications for Transportation Vehicles,” 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. Part 38;  
 
 (4) U.S. DOJ regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and 
Local Government Services,” 28 C.F.R. Part 35;  
 
 (5) U.S. DOJ regulations, “Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public 
Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities,” 28 C.F.R. Part 36;  
 
 (6) U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, “Accommodations 
for the Physically Handicapped,” 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;  

143



10 
PEORIA VMMS 2012  

 
 (7) U.S. EEOC, “Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act,” 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;  
 
 8) U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, “Telecommunications 
Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech 
Disabled,” 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F;  
 
 9) U.S. ATBCB regulations, “Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility 
Standards,” 36 C.F.R. Part 1194;  
 
 10) FTA regulations, “Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons,” 
49 C.F.R. Part 609; and  
 
 11) Federal civil rights and nondiscrimination directives implementing the foregoing 
Federal laws and regulations, except to the extent the Federal Government determines otherwise 
in writing.  
 
h. Drug or Alcohol Abuse-Confidentiality and Other Civil Rights Protections. To the extent 
applicable, the Recipient agrees to comply with the confidentiality and civil rights protections of 
the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended, 21 U.S.C. §§ 1101 et seq., the 
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 
1970, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4541 et seq., and the Public Health Service Act of 1912, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 290dd through 290dd-2, and any amendments thereto.  
 
i. Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency. The Recipient agrees to 
facilitate compliance with the policies of Executive Order No. 13166, “Improving Access to 
Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-1 note, and follow 
applicable provisions of U.S. DOT Notice, “DOT Policy Guidance Concerning Recipients’ 
Responsibilities to Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Persons,” 70 Fed. Reg. 74087, 
December 14, 2005, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing.  
 
j. Environmental Justice. The Recipient agrees to facilitate compliance with the policies of 
Executive Order No. 12898, “Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations,” 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note, except to the extent that the 
Federal Government determines otherwise in writing.  
 
k. Other Nondiscrimination Laws. The Recipient agrees to comply with applicable 
provisions of other Federal laws and regulations, and follow applicable Federal directives 
prohibiting discrimination, except to the extent the Federal Government determines otherwise in 
writing. 
 
 

 

144



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  July 19, 2012  Council Meeting Date:  August 21, 2012      
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   William Mattingly, Public Works – Utilities Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan K. Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Amendment #3 for ADA Paratransit Service 

Agreement between  the City of Peoria and  the Regional Public Transportation 
Authority (RPTA) – FY 2013 

 

Purpose:   
 

Discussion and possible action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) Amendment 
#3 for ADA Paratransit Service Agreement between the City of Peoria and the Regional Public 
Transportation Authority (RPTA). Contract Number 151‐34‐2013 
 
Background/Summary: 
 

The City Of Peoria Transit Division currently provides American with Disabilities Act (ADA), 
Paratransit Service through the Dial‐a‐Ride program.  The City is eligible to receive 
reimbursement from RPTA to Peoria for certain allowable costs related to transporting ADA 
certified riders.   This agreement provides for reimbursement from RPTA to Peoria for those 
eligible costs and is valid for trip to be provided from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013 (FY 
2013).   
 
The attached Schedule “A” identifies the amount of the annual available funding from RPTA 
which is contingent upon approval of RPTA’s fiscal year budget by the RPTA Board of Directors.  
According to RPTA’s budget process, Schedule “A” will be updated annually. 
 
Additionally, Valley Metro has developed  a Platinum Pass Program which  allows  free use of 
fixed  route  bus  and  light  rail  by  ADA  certified  City  of  Peoria  residents.  The  City  will  be 
responsible for the cost of reduced fare on local service and full express fare on express service. 
Participation  in  this  program  is  voluntary  and  may  be  canceled  by  the  City  of  Peoria  by 
providing a ninety (90) calendar written notice to RPTA. 
 
Participation in the ADA Platinum Pass Program reduces ADA operational costs by encouraging 
ADA certified passengers to use fixed route service  in‐lieu of more traditional ADA Paratransit 
services.   Each eligible ADA certified passenger that opts to participate will receive a reduced 
fare ADA Platinum Pass to be used at rail fare vending machines and at bus fare boxes for the 

145

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 15



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 3  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

payment of reduced local fare, as defined by the Valley Metro RPTA Board approved fare policy 
in effect. 
 
RPTA shall administer this program on behalf of the City of Peoria and will deduct funding from 
City’s  annual ADA  allocation  of  Public  Transportation  Funds  (PTF)  that may  be  appropriated 
annually  to  the  city  of  Peoria  by  the  RPTA  Board  of  Directors.  The  City  of  Peoria  ADA‐PTF 
account  shall be debited  for  all pass uses by  residents of City on  an  annual basis up  to  the 
monthly  capped  amount  of  the  individual  reduced  fare  Platinum  Pass  and/or  express  fare 
Platinum Pass when applicable. 
 
It is estimated that City’s ADA PTF annual allocation for the ADA Platinum Pass Program shall 
incur a cost of $3,200.00 in FY13. In all cases CITY shall only be responsible for the actual costs 
incurred by its residents of record for use of this program.   
 
Previous Actions: 
 

On July 1, 2009 Council approved the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for ADA 
PARATRANSIT SERVICE between the City of Peoria and the Regional Public Transportation 
Authority (RPTA). 
 

October 2010 Council approved Amendment #1 Contract Number 151‐34‐2010‐01 for the 
reimbursement amount of $94,590.00. 
 

June 05, 2012 Council approved Amendment #2 Contract Number 151‐34‐2012 for the 
reimbursement amount of $100,722.00 and the addition of the Platinum Pass Program.  
 
Options:  
 

A:  Approve IGA Amendment #3 (FY 2013) for ADA PARATRANSIT SERVICE between the City of 
Peoria and the RPTA. 
 
B:  Do not approve the IGA Amendment #3 and continue providing existing service and not 
apply for eligible reimbursement for service provided to exiting residents.  
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 

Staff  recommends  approval  of  this  ADA  Paratransit  Service  Agreement  between  the  City  of 
Peoria  and RPTA  to  provide  reimbursement  from Regional Public  Transportation Authority  for 
eligible costs related to transporting ADA certified riders in Peoria and participation in the RPTA 
FY13 Platinum Pass Program administered by RPTA.   
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
           
Funding for this request is currently reflected in Transit’s Fiscal Year 2013 budget. 

146



Council Communication     
Page 3 of 3  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

 
 
Exhibit(s):  
 

Exhibit 1:  ADA Paratransit Service Agreement Contract #151‐34‐2013 (FY 2013) 
 
 
Contact Name and Number:  William Mattingly, Public Works – Utilities Director, 623‐773‐5151 

147



 
ADA PARATRANSIT SERVICE 

Contract # 151-34-2013 
(Previous Contract # 151-34-2010) 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT AMENDMENT #3 

BETWEEN 
THE REGIONAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND 
THE CITY OF PEORIA 

 
As of the 1st day of July 2012, this amends the following items of the ADA Paratransit Service 
Agreement entered into between the City of Peoria and the RPTA, dated the 1st day of July, 2009 
and as amended July 1, 2010, and July 1, 2011. 
 
The following Schedule replaces and supersedes that Schedule of the agreement dated 
July 1, 2011. 
 
 The attached Schedule A replaces and supersedes Schedule A dated July 1, 2011. 
 
 The attached Schedule B replaces and supersedes Schedule B dated July 1, 2011. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the _______day  
  
of               , 2012. 
 
 
By: _______________________________  By:_________________________________  
 Bob Barrett   Stephen R. Banta 
 Mayor    Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________  ATTEST: ____________________________  
 Peoria City Clerk  Jon Medwin       

Contracts and Procurement 
Manager 

 
     ATTEST: ____________________________ 
     Michael Taylor 
     Acting Director of Finance 
 

 
 
  

148



CITY OF PEORIA ADA 2012-13 
 

2

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT DETERMINATION 
 
 
In accordance with the requirements of A.R.S. Section 11-952(D), each of the undersigned 
attorneys acknowledge that: (1) they have reviewed the above Agreement on behalf of their 
respective clients; and, (2) as to their respective clients only, each attorney has determined that 
this Agreement is in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under the laws 
of the State of Arizona. 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________________ 
For the City of Peoria    Attorney for RPTA 
 
 

149



CITY OF PEORIA ADA 2012-13 
 

3

SCHEDULE A 
(FY 2013) 

 
For the period of July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 it is estimated that the City of Peoria may request 
reimbursement from Regional Public Transportation Authority for a maximum of $200,000.00 
for service consumed by RPTA ADA certified paratransit riders in Peoria.  Eligible ADA 
Paratransit expenses include only expenses associated with trips completed by passengers 
certified as ADA eligible using jurisdictionally approved alternatives to fixed route transit.  This 
amount is contingent upon approval of RPTA’s fiscal year 2012-2013 budget by the RPTA 
Board of Directors. 
 
Total reimbursements to the City will not exceed the net amount that factors in estimated and 
actual costs associated with operating RPTA’s In-Person Eligibility Determination Facility and 
ADA Certification office. 
 
Reimbursements must be requested by CITY on a PTF Reimbursement Request Form, 
Attachment A, and certified by the CITY’s chief financial officer or designee. RPTA will 
reimburse CITY within thirty (30) business days based upon availability of funds.  CITY may 
request that reimbursements be made electronically.  Wire transfers must be pre arranged 
through the RPTA Finance Department.  

 
 
 

150



CITY OF PEORIA ADA 2012-13 
 

4

SCHEDULE B 
 

VALLEY METRO ADA PLATINUM PASS PROGRAM (FY2013) 
 

It is estimated that CITY’s ADA PTF annual allocation for the ADA Platinum Pass Program 
shall incur a cost of $3,200.00 in FY2012-13. In all cases CITY shall only be responsible for the 
actual costs incurred by its residents of record for use of this program.  Residency is determined 
at the time the ADA card is issued and verified annually thereafter. In the event that CITY does 
not use its estimated funding provided through the RPTA Board approved ADA allocation, City 
may direct such remaining funding to other ADA programs approved by RPTA, including but 
not limited to, funding of dial-a-ride and other alternative transportation programs for ADA 
certified users within CITY. 

 
 

 

151



CITY OF PEORIA ADA 2012-13 
 

5

ATTACHMENT A 

 

152



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared: August 06, 2012  Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012   
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   William Mattingly, Public Works ‐ Utilities Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan K. Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Aquifer Storage and Recovery Well Agreement with Salt River Project 
 

 
Purpose:   
 
This  is  a  request  for    the City Council  to  authorize  the City  to  execute  the  attached Design, 
Construction and Operation Agreement  (“Agreement”)  for participation  in an Aquifer Storage 
and Recovery (ASR) well with the Salt River Project (SRP).   
 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The City has the opportunity to participate in the development and construction of an ASR well 
in conjunction with SRP.  SRP and the City currently share the use of the existing well which is 
located along 91st Avenue north of Olive Avenue (ADWR Registration 55‐565555).   The well was 
constructed in 1999, and some rehabilitation work is proposed to convert it to an ASR well.  The 
work to convert the well is expected to be much less expensive than construction of a new well.   
The well is not currently operated by the City for supply due to levels of arsenic that exceed the 
Maximum Contaminant Levels (MCLs) set by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).   
 
During low demand months, water which has been treated at the Greenway Water Treatment 
Plant will be delivered  through  the City’s distribution  system  and pumped underground  and 
stored.    This  stored water will  be  pumped  out  for  potable  use  by  the  City within  the  same 
calendar year under a recovery well permit, to supplement the City’s potable water production 
as required due to canal dry‐ups, drought, or other operational needs.   No Long‐Term Storage 
Credits will accrue.  The expectation is that the water stored underground will attenuate arsenic 
levels such that more water can be recovered than was put  in, and concentrations of arsenic 
will be well below EPA’s MCLs. 
 
SRP  and  the  City  propose  to  pursue  this  project  jointly.    SRP  will  be  the  technical  and 
operational  lead  and  will  be  responsible  for  acquiring  permits,  procuring  equipment  and 
contracting  for  technical  services and consulting.   The City will provide  the water  for  storage 
and other services.   Both parties will work closely with the other to communicate  information 

153

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 16



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 3  REV. 07/2011 
 
 

and coordinate activities.  If the project is successful, as expected, the City will gain use of the 
well, and the technique will be demonstrated to be an efficient and  lower‐cost alternative to 
drilling a new ASR well.  The City of Peoria share for Fiscal Year 2013 will not exceed $250,000.  
Peoria’s  total  cost  will  not  exceed  $305,000  and  is  contingent  on  approval  of  funding  an 
additional $55,000 in Fiscal Year 2014. 
 
 
Options: (include as many as reasonable) 
 
A:  Proceed on the basis of the Agreement with SRP with the joint ASR project, and restore 
the use of the well at 91st and Olive for potable water supply. 
 
B:  Construct a new well to replace the well at 91st and Olive at a cost of approximately $2 
million with the hope that arsenic contamination will not preclude its use. 
 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Agreement. 
       
 
Fiscal Analysis:   
 
The  cost  of  the  project will  be  split  equally  between  SRP  and  the  City,  as  outlined  in  the 
Agreement.    The  total  cost  to  the  City  will  not  exceed  $305,000.    The  City  has  budgeted 
$305,000  in  the  current  Capital  Improvement  Program  for  FY  2013‐2015,  (project  UT00319 
Peoria ‐ SRP Aquifer Storage Recovery Well Recharge).   This Agreement has been structured to 
allow  the City and SRP  to mutually agree  to halt  the project  if water quality analyses do not 
demonstrate a reduction in arsenic concentrations.  This project will allow the City to minimize 
costs  and  risks  typically  associated with  drilling  a  new well,  and  enjoy  the  benefits  of  this 
existing well at a lesser cost than installing an arsenic treatment plant. 
 
 
Narrative:   
 
Once  the Agreement  is  signed,  SRP will hire a  consultant  to obtain an Underground  Storage 
Facility permit and Water Storage permit  from  the Arizona Department of Water Resources.  
Once permitting nears  completion, design  and  construction will proceed.   Once operational, 
ASR well performance will be analyzed.  The final phase of the project will involve reporting on 
the project and technique.   
 
 

154



Council Communication     
Page 3 of 3  REV. 07/2011 
 
 

Exhibit: 
 
Exhibit 1:  Design, Construction and Operation Agreement 
 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Robin Bain, 623‐773‐7213 
 
 

155



                                              
                                                         
GROUNDWATER RESOURCES AND GEOHYDROLOGY   
P.O. Box 52025 -- 16ST52   
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025 
Phone (602) 236-2511 
Fax (602) 236-2987 
Bob.Pane@srpnet.com 
 

 
File: RC-12001 

 
August 1, 2012 
 
 
Mr. Brian Biesemeyer, P.E. 
Deputy Public Works-Utilities Director 
City of Peoria 
8401 W. Monroe St. 
Peoria, Arizona 85345 
 
RE: AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF PEORIA AND SRP FOR ASR WELL 
 RECHARGE DEMONSTRATION PROJECT 
 
Dear Brian: 
 
 Enclosed for your review and signature are two original documents of the Design, Construction 
and Operation Agreement (Agreement) between the City of Peoria (Peoria) and the Salt River Valley 
Water User’s Association (SRP) for the above referenced project.  The purpose of this project is to 
determine the feasibility of converting an existing SRP well to an ASR well for groundwater recharge.  
Unless this Agreement is terminated early as described in the Agreement, this project will terminate once 
the scope outlined in Exhibit A is completed. Though ongoing groundwater recharge via ASR using SRP 
supply wells may be desired by both SRP and Peoria, that is beyond the purpose of this Agreement. This 
Agreement is for a demonstration project to evaluate the practical and financial feasibility of the method. 
The project will be a joint effort between Peoria and SRP, with direct ASR expenses split evenly between 
the parties unless otherwise stated in the Agreement.  All water recharged will be provided by Peoria and 
any recharge credits accrued will belong to Peoria. 
 
The estimate of costs to Peoria for completing the scope of work is $305,000.  This cost estimate may 
change due to refinements in the scope.  The project scope will be finalized jointly by Peoria and SRP, 
and, if necessary, a revised cost estimate will be prepared.  At that time, Peoria and SRP will have the 
opportunity to re-evaluate their interest and, if either deems it necessary, cancel the Agreement and 
withdraw from the project. 
 
SRP will be the technical and operational lead on the project and will be responsible for procuring 
equipment and contracting for technical services and consulting. However, this is a joint project and it is 
anticipated that both parties will be actively involved. Both parties will work closely with the other to 
communicate information and coordinate activities.  
 
The design and construction process, including finalizing the scope and cost estimate, will proceed upon 
signing of the Agreement by both parties.  By signing the Agreement, Peoria acknowledges that it 
understands the scope and estimated cost contained herein. Peoria agrees to reimburse SRP for Peoria’s 
share of the project costs through partial and final billings submitted by SRP at several intervals 
throughout the project.  Additionally, Peoria understands and acknowledges that the cost estimates 
contained herein are for planning purposes only and that Peoria will be billed for actual costs.  Please 
keep one signed original Agreement for your own records and return the second signed original 
Agreement, including Exhibits A and B, to my attention at the above address.  
 156



 

Exhibit A contains the scope of work for the project and identifies the activities, items, and facilities 
which are to be provided by either SRP or Peoria. 
 
Exhibit B contains the estimate of costs and the portion of those costs anticipated to be incurred by SRP 
and those to be incurred by Peoria. 
 
We are very appreciative of Peoria’s interest in this project. It is an exciting opportunity to participate in a 
project with the potential to significantly improve the flexibility of both of our water delivery systems and 
make a significant contribution to advancing groundwater management in the valley.  
 
If you have any questions concerning the agreement, scope, or estimates please contact Mark Hay at 602-
236-2683 (email Mark.Hay@srpnet.com) or myself at 602-236-2511 (email Bob.Pane@srpnet.com ). 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Bob Pane, RG 
Manager, Groundwater Resources & Geohydrology 
Salt River Project 
 
 
Enclosure: Design, Construction and Operation Agreement 
 
C: Robin Bain, P.E., BCEE, City of Peoria 
 Arthur Lomeli, City of Peoria 
 Dave Roberts, Salt River Project 
 Mark Hay, Salt River Project 

  

157



 

 

DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION 
AGREEMENT 

 
 
This Agreement for design, construction, and operation of an Aquifer Storage and Recovery well recharge 
project (hereinafter AGREEMENT), is entered into this date, __________, by and between the Salt River 
Valley Water Users’ Association (hereinafter SRP), and City of Peoria (hereinafter PEORIA). 
 
WHEREAS, PEORIA has deemed it necessary or desirable that SRP accommodate certain water resource 
management or other needs of PEORIA and recognizes that SRP is best capable of providing such 
accommodation, AND; 
 
WHEREAS, SRP is capable of providing such accommodation, using its own employees and equipment, 
unless otherwise provided herein. 
 
THEREFORE, in consideration of the matters described herein and of the mutual benefits and obligations 
set forth herein, SRP and PEORIA agree as follows: 
 

1) SRP shall perform the work and services more particularly described in the SCOPE OF WORK 
(EXHIBIT A), attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein.  PEORIA and SRP 
understand that the SCOPE OF WORK may be revised. Any revisions to the SCOPE OF WORK 
will be agreed upon by both PEORIA and SRP. 

2) SRP shall complete the work and services described in the SCOPE OF WORK in a timely 
manner. In the event SRP is delayed in completing the Scope of Work due to acts of God, fire, 
flood, labor disputes or any other factor beyond the reasonable control of SRP, the time for 
completion shall be extended for a period of time commensurate with the delay so caused. 

3) SRP shall maintain all relevant and applicable insurance coverage, through its self insurance 
program or supplementary contracts of insurance it deems necessary. 

4) SRP shall at all times comply with laws applicable to performance hereunder, including 
acquisition of permits, licenses or other approvals. 

5) SRP and Peoria will equally share the cost of the ASR well recharge project. The estimated cost 
to PEORIA for completing the Scope of Work is $305,000. PEORIA understands that this 
estimate may change if the SCOPE OF WORK is revised. PEORIA also understands that this 
estimate is not binding and that PEORIA shall reimburse SRP for actual costs incurred in the 
performance and completion of the work and services performed. Payment to SRP shall be in 
accordance with the terms set forth in EXHIBIT B, attached hereto, and by this reference 
incorporated herein. 

6) SRP understands that PEORIA’s approved Capital Improvement rogram budget for this project is 
$305,000 with $250,000 available for July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 (FY 2013), and that SRP 
shall notify PEORIA by email or letter when actual expenditures are expected to approach 90% 
of $250,000 for FY 2013 and notify the City again when total expenses are expected to approach 
90% of $305,000. SRP shall terminate work on PEORIA’s behalf such that PEORIA’s actual 
costs do not exceed either the $250,000 for FY 2013 or the $305,000 total buget amount unless or 
until additional funding has been appropriated. 

7) SRP and Peoria understand that the funding of subsequent year budgets beyond FY 2013 are 
subject to the approval requirements normal to each.    

8) Neither SRP nor PEORIA shall have the right to assign any rights or interest created herein. 
9) This AGREEMENT shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the state of Arizona. 
10) PEORIA shall indemnify and hold harmless SRP from liability resulting from or arising out of 

SRP’s performance hereunder, whether such liability is for property damage, personal injury or 
death, unless such liability is attributed to SRP’s sole, exclusive negligence or willful action. 

158



 

Further, PEORIA shall release SRP from any of its claims related to SRP’s performance 
hereunder, unless such claim results from SRP’s sole, exclusive negligence or willful action. 

11) In the event that a revised SCOPE OF WORK results in a revised cost estimate that is greater 
than the cost estimate in EXHIBIT B, PEORIA or SRP shall have the right to terminate this 
Agreement. In this event, PEORIA shall reimburse SRP for PEORIA’s portion of costs, as 
described in EXHIBIT B, incurred to the effective date of such termination, and shall not be party 
to further scope and costs uniquely related to ASR well recharge activities. 

12) In the event of termination of this Agreement, PEORIA shall reimburse SRP in accordance with 
Item 5 herein for costs incurred in accordance with Item 10 herein and for those tasks that are 
essential to restore SRP’s ability to operate facilities affected by the unfinished SCOPE OF 
WORK, not to exceed a total cost to Peoria of $305,000. 

13) This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the parties hereto, and any prior or 
contemporaneous understanding or representation shall not be binding upon either party hereto. 

 
 
In witness, each party has caused the execution of this Agreement by the undersigned, who is vested with 
authority to bind such party to the terms and conditions herein. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Steve Kemp, City Attorney 
 
 
SALT RIVER VALLEY WATER  CITY OF PEORIA: 
USERS’ASSOCIATION: 
 
 
By:____________________________  By:________________________________ 
 (Please print name)      (Please print name) 
Title:_______________________  Title:___________________________ 
 
 
Signature:_______________________  Signature:___________________________ 
 
Date:___________________________  Date:_______________________________ 
 
  

159

rhondas
Typewritten Text

rhondas
Typewritten Text

rhondas
Text Box
_____________________Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk



 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
File No. RC-12001 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
General: 

This project is a demonstration project with a limited scope. Its purpose is to convert a single, existing, 

SRP supply well to ASR service using potable water provided by the City of Peoria and document its 

performance through injection and recovery modes. Unless this Agreement is terminated early as 

described below, this project will terminate once the scope outlined herein is completed. In general, the 

tasks will include: 

1. Well Selection – Participants will jointly select a well based on its construction, condition, 

proximity to Peoria and SRP water systems and other pertinent factors. If the well selected is 

not already directly connected to PEORIA’s water system, the connection and operation must 

comply with the requirements contained in the Water Delivery and Use Agreement (WDUA) 

between PEORIA and SRP. 

(Note: It is currently our intent to use well 3E-13.1N at the northeast corner of 91st Avenue and 

Olive Avenues. However, that selection needs to be further evaluated by Peoria and SRP with 

input from their technical contractors before making a final selection.) 

2. Permitting – Obtain necessary permits to comply with ADWR, ADEQ and County requirements 

for a USF permit. A consultant will be retained to assist with permitting. 

3. Well Conditioning & Testing – Rehabilitate the selected well as needed to ensure its condition 

is suitable for ASR. Perform testing to obtain well and aquifer specific information necessary 

for designing and sizing the ASR system. Testing may include aquifer/pump/injection testing, 

spinner log, sand production and water quality sampling. 

4. Site Design & Construction – Design and construct pipelines, controls and other items 

necessary to implement the ASR project. This will include making or enhancing the connections 

as needed to both Peoria and SRP systems for receiving and discharging water. 

5. ASR Performance & Analysis – Develop and perform operational steps to maximize recharge 

and recovery, protect the well and ensure its long-term viability. An ASR consultant will be 

retained to assist with this task. 

a. Recharge – Collect data on injection rates, water level changes, water chemistry before 

and after recharge, well performance, well condition, and other information necessary 

to understand and evaluate recharge performance and the impacts to the well and 

aquifer. 

 
160



 
 

 

b. Recovery – Collect data during recovery pumping to characterize changes in water 

chemistry, water levels, aquifer and well performance and pumped volumes required to 

return to original, native or improved water quality. 

6. Final Assessment & Report – Prepare a report that documents the work performed and 

addresses the goals listed above. 

 

SRP will provide the following as part of this Agreement: 

1. Provide one operational, water supply well for Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) system 

installation, testing and operation. The well will be jointly selected by SRP and Peoria. 

2. All design, construction and project management services required to outfit the well and convert 

it to ASR service. 

3. Acquire and install borehole flow control valve, if needed for ASR operations. 

4. Acquire equipment and provide associated power for dechlorination prior to recharge, if needed. 

5. Coordinate ASR design with PEORIA. 

6. Contract with a qualified consultant for ASR design, construction, and testing assistance. 

7. Contract with a qualified consultant for ASR permitting assistance. 

8. Conduct and evaluate well assessment surveys (video log, gyro, etc) as needed to convert the 

well to ASR service. 

9. Perform well rehabilitation activities necessary to ensure integrity of the well including, but not 

limited to brush and bail, sonar jetting, patch installation or liner placement. 

10. Three phase, single-source, underground, primary power for ASR system. 

11. Mag flow meters (SRP standard Endress+Hauser) as needed for accurate measurement of all 

recharged, received or discharged flows. Meters to be installed in accordance with manufacturer 

specifications for accurate water flow capacity measurements. All meter configurations will 

comply with WDUA requirements. 

12. Standard, mineral oil lubricated line shaft, vertical turbine pump. 

13. Shall be responsible for design and construction of all pipelines on SRP owned or controlled 

property. 

14. SCADA equipment and programming as needed to support ASR, SRP and PEORIA 

requirements. 

  

PEORIA shall provide the following as part of this Agreement: 

1. Shall provide potable drinking water to be used for recharge. The rate of flow of the drinking 

water supply for recharge will be determined during the ASR project but is anticipated to not be 

less than 1,000 gpm for a period of about four (4) months. 
161



 
 

 

 

 

2. Shall grant SRP all necessary utility and ingress/egress easements for SRP maintenance and 

repair work, pipelines and any permits as requested by SRP to safely and reasonably construct, 

operate and maintain the well site facility for the entire life of the well. 

3. Shall be responsible for any electric meter, equipment, and power supply cost required to 

operate PEORIA owned equipment associated with the well and well site operation. This 

includes but is not limited to chlorination/dechlorination equipment, eye wash equipment and 

other equipment required solely for PEORIA. 

4. Motorized waste valve for blow-off into the SRP system upon start up, if needed. 

5. Shall be responsible for design and construction of all pipelines off of SRP owned or controlled 

property. 

6. Shall be responsible for obtaining required Maricopa County approvals and any other permit(s) 

associated with using the well for a municipal source, including New Source Approval sampling 

and permitting requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

162



 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT "B" 
File No. RC-12001

 
COST ESTIMATE 

 
PEORIA shall reimburse the SRP for actual costs in the performance and completion of the  

work and services for this project.  Expenses that are normal to an operating water supply well providing 
water for irrigation will be paid by SRP. Expenses for upgrading the well for municipal supply will be paid 
by PEORIA. Expenses that are directly related to converting and operating the well for ASR recharge will 
be split evenly between the parties unless otherwise stated in the Agreement. An estimate of the anticipated 

costs directly related to ASR is outlined below. 
 

Task Total Estimate 

Estimated 
SRP           

Contribution 

Estimated 
PEORIA 

Contribution 
    

1. Well Selection $15,000 $7,500 $7,500 
2. Permitting $70,000 $35,000 $35,000 
3. Well Conditioning and Testing $160,000 $80,000 $80,000 
4. Site Design & Construction $210,000 $105,000 $105,000 
5. ASR Performance & Analysis $65,000 $32,500 $32,500 
6. Final Assessment & Report $25,000 $12,500 $12,500 
    
Sub-total $545,000 $272,500 $272,500 
    
Contingency (10%) $53,040 $26,520 $26,520 
Sub-total w/contingency $598,040 $299,020 $299,020 
    
A&G (2%) $11,960 $5,980 $5,980 
    
Total Estimate $610,000 $305,000 $305,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

163



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION  
 

Date Prepared: August 6, 2012   Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012     
 

 
TO:      Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:     John Sefton, Community Services Director 
 
THROUGH:    Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Request  for  authorization  to  expend  $118,714  to  pay  Mariners  and 

Padres share of Ticketing fees 
 

 
Purpose: 
 
This is a request for City Council to authorize the expenditure of $118,714 to pay the Mariners 
and Padres  their  respective  shares of Tickets.com convenience  fees  that have been collected 
from 2008‐2012.  
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The City of Peoria entered into a five year contract with a ticketing provider, Tickets.com, prior 
to  the  2008  Spring  Training  season  at  Peoria  Sports  Complex.  Per  contract,  Tickets.com 
possesses the authority to assess customer service and convenience fees on all ticket purchases 
that occur through the internet and over the phone. Also per contract, Tickets.com is obligated 
to pay  the City of Peoria 25% of  these  collected  fees, which  they have done. Recently,  in  a 
review of contractual  terms  from  the 1994 use agreement,  the City  recognized  that such  fee 
collections qualify for further distribution between the City of Peoria, the Seattle Mariners and 
San Diego Padres.  Such amounts would be distributed on a 50/50 basis based on each teams’ 
games.  
 
Based on  the  fees  collected  from online  and phone  tickets purchases made  for each  teams’ 
home games from 2008‐2012, the revenue that the City has received from Tickets.com for this 
five year period totals $237,428. By calculating the amount due using each teams’ home game 
schedule  for  each  year  in  that  time period,  the Mariners  are owed  $73,069;  the Padres  are 
owed $45,645. The table below illustrates these figures broken down over a five year period. 
 

  City  Mariners  Padres 

2012  $25,750  $14,506  $11,245 

2011  $21,035  $11,506  $9,530 

2010  $24,712  $16,928  $7,784 

2009  $19,919  $12,945  $6,974 

2008  $27,297  $17,185  $10,112 

164

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 17



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 2  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

TOTALS  $118,714  $73,069  $45,645 

 
Previous Actions: 
 
None 
 
Options:  
 
The following options are possible for the City Council to recommend: 
 
A. Approve  the  expenditure  of  $118,714  to  pay  the Mariners  and  Padres  their  respective 

shares of Tickets.com convenience fees that have been collected from 2008‐2012. This also 
requires the approval of the use of reserves a budget amendment for the aforementioned 
amount.  
 

B. Do not approve the authorization for the expenditure to pay the Mariners and Padres their 
respective shares of Tickets.com convenience fees collected from 2008‐2012. 

 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the expenditure of $118,714 to pay the Mariners 
and Padres  their  respective  shares of Tickets.com convenience  fees  that have been collected 
from 2008‐2012. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
Approval of  the expenditure  to  the Mariners  and Padres  requires  the use of  reserves  and  a 
budget amendment  in  the amount of $118,714  from Sports Complex  fund FY12  contingency 
account 2000‐2000‐570000 to Sports Complex fund FY12 Spring Training Miscellaneous Ticket 
Sales account 2000‐2001‐522103. 
 
Exhibit(s): None 
 
 
Contact Name and Number:    Chris Calcaterra, Sports Facilities Manager, x8703  
          Chris Easom, Sports Complex Manager, x8701 

165



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  August 6, 2012  Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012   
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Jeff Tyne, Management & Budget Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Transfer  cash  reserves  and  budget  appropriation  to  the  Self‐Insured Workers’ 

Compensation Fund 
 

 
Purpose:   
 
This is a request for the City Council to approve the transfer of cash from the Insurance Reserve 
Fund  to  the  Self‐Insurance  Workers’  Compensation  Fund,  and  the  transfer  of  budget 
appropriation  from the  Insurance Reserve Fund to the Self‐Insurance Workers’ Compensation 
Fund to provide funding to address a new large public safety workers’ compensation claim. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The City of Peoria provides a workers compensation program, which addresses compensation 
claims by employees affected by workplace injury or illness issues.  To support these expenses, 
the  City  self‐insures  its  workers  compensation  program,  setting  aside  reserves  to  address 
pending claims.  These reserves cover the cost of medical claims for the injured worker as well 
as potential estimated lost wages as determined by an actuary. 
 
Since FY2010, a Self‐Insurance Workers’ Compensation Fund has been used  to  support claim 
activity.    The  fund  receives  annual  contributions  from  other  operating  funds, with  charges 
based  on  actuarial  analysis  of  expected  claim  activity.    In  addition,  a  reserve  amount  of 
$950,000  is currently designated  in  the  Insurance Reserve Fund  to address  the unanticipated 
costs related to workers compensation.   
 
In  the  last  fiscal  year  that  ended  June  30,  2012,  the  Industrial  Commission  of  Arizona 
determined  that an  illness experienced by a public  safety employee was compensable under 
workers’  compensation  statutes.   As a  result of  that decision,  staff  recommends  transferring 
$700,000 in cash from the Insurance Reserve Fund and $700,000 in budget appropriation to the 
Self‐Insurance Workers’ Compensation Fund to provide for the current estimate of the future 
costs related to that injury claim.   
 

166

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 18



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 2  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

In addition to this action, staff recommends a budget amendment for FY 2012 of $465,000 to 
appropriately reflect the actuarially determined liabilities for all claims that must be recorded in 
the City’s  year end  financial  statements.    It  is  important  to note  that  this  second  amount  is 
simply an appropriation authorization and is not an additional cash requirement. 
 
Options: 
 
A:   That City Council approve a cash transfer of reserves  from the  Insurance Reserve Fund to 
the Workers’  Compensation  Fund,  as  well  as  a  FY  2012  budget  amendment  to  cover  the 
required year end accounting entries to properly record fund liabilities. 
 
B:  City Council does not approve the staff recommendation. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
That City Council approve  the cash  transfer of  reserves  totaling $700,000  from  the  Insurance 
Reserve  Fund    to  the Workers’  Compensation  Fund  and  a  budget  appropriation  transfer  of 
$700,000  from  the  General  Fund  contingency  account  (1000‐0300‐570000)  to  the Workers’ 
Compensation Fund claims account (3210‐3620‐523018) to provide for the expected costs of a 
workers’ compensation claim.   
 
In addition, City Council approve a budget appropriation transfer of $465,000 from the General 
Fund  contingency  account  (1000‐0300‐570000)  to  the Workers’  Compensation  Fund  claims 
account (3210‐3620‐523018) to properly reflect claim  liability for FY2012 as determined by an 
actuary. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
The  recommended  action  will  result  in  a  transfer  of  $700,000  in  cash  from  the  Insurance 
Reserve  Fund  to  the  Workers  Compensation  Fund  along  with  an  increase  in  budget 
appropriation  in  the Workers  Compensation  Fund  to  reflect  required  year  end  accounting 
entries. 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Jeff Tyne, (623) 773‐7114 

167



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  August 2, 2012  Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012      
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Jeff Tyne, Management and Budget Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan K. Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Budget Amendments 
 

 
Purpose:   
 
This is a request for City Council to approve the FY2012 Year‐End Budget Amendments.  
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The  following  are  budget  adjustments  for  year‐end  FY2012.   While  there  is  little  net  cash 
impact,  the  following  amendments help  to  ensure  the City properly  reflects budget  activity.  
The amendments are categorized into three areas. 
 

1) FY2012 Year End Budget Amendments 
These  include  amendments  that  are  considered  routine budget  adjustments, with no 
impact  on  cash  reserves.    The  attached  schedule  (Exhibit  1)  lists  the  budget 
amendments  for  FY2012  that,  under  current  Council  and/or  Administrative  policy, 
require Council  approval.    The  following  listing describes  the budget  amendments by 
category. 

 
Personnel – The adjustment in the Personnel category provides budget appropriation 
for the School Resource Officer portion of salary that is reimbursed by the Peoria 
Unified School District.  The Personnel adjustment totals $30,000. 

 
Operating – The adjustments in the Operating category include expenditure authority 
for several Fleet pass‐through accounts.  Also included is budget appropriation needed 
to match revenue/reimbursements for the LTAF II distribution, the PACE conference and 
the Prop 302 Grant Program.  The Operating adjustments total $665,449. 

 
Capital Items – This area primarily consists of the reconciliation of Engineering, 
Materials Management, and Arts chargebacks on capital projects, a transfer of budget 
from the 2008 MDA Transportation Sales Fund to the Transportation Sales Tax Fund, a 
change in G.O. Bond issues for two projects to align with a bond sale, transfers to 

168

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 19



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 3  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

correct the account numbers within the Sports Complex project and within the IVR 
project, and use of EDIS funds for Phase II of the Wagoner Plaza façade improvements.  
The Capital Items adjustments total $20,168,187. 
 

2) FY2012 Health Insurance Amendment 
This  second  amendment  will  adjust  the  budget  to more  accurately match  the  cost 
related  to  employee’s  changing  their health plan  selections offered by  the City.    The 
operating budget was developed prior  to employees  selecting a new health plan, and 
therefore created a gap between divisional budgets and the actual charge for the new 
plan.    In some divisions  this creates an “over budget”  in  the health  insurance account 
line while in other divisions it creates a savings.  Such accounts are reconciled so as not 
to unfairly reward or penalize line departments.  This amendment (Exhibit 2) develops a 
net  zero  in  the  health  insurance  account  for  each  division.   However,  the  net  result 
citywide is a credit back to reserves (savings) in the amount of $178,125 in FY2012. 
 

3) FY2012 Fire Department Budget Overage Amendment 
This third amendment is a final adjustment to the Fire Department budget for overages 
in FY2012 in the amount of $11,026.  The Fire and Management & Budget departments 
have  been  continually monitoring  budget  activity,  and working  together  to mitigate 
operating  budget  overages  related  to  higher  than  anticipated  costs.    Previously  in 
FY2012, staff had estimated and brought forward one‐time budget adjustments totaling 
$340,000  for  absence  coverage  due  to  high  number  of  injuries,  and  Wildland  Fire 
reimbursements  throughout  the  fiscal  year.    This  final  adjustment  to  the  absence 
coverage account  (Exhibit 3) will provide  the Fire department  the necessary authority 
for the Fiscal Year 2012 expenditures. 

 
These amendments have been reviewed by the Management and Budget Department and the 
Chief Financial Officer and are submitted to Council for approval. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
No previous action has been taken on these budget amendments. 
 
Options:  
 
A:  Approve all Budget Amendments as recommended. 
 
B:  Approve only select Budget Amendments. 
 
 
 
 

169



Council Communication     
Page 3 of 3  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Management  and  Budget  Department  staff  recommend  approval  of  the  attached  budget 
amendments for Fiscal Year 2012. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
The majority of these budget amendments have no fiscal impact to the city.  This would include 
budget amendments to provide expenditure authority for funds that have been received,  i.e., 
through  grants,  IGAs,  and/or  reimbursements  and  budget  amendments  moving  existing 
appropriation  to  the  proper  accounts.    The  budget  amendment  in  the  Fire  department  for 
absence coverage overtime has a fiscal impact of $11,026 to the General Fund reserves. 
         
Narrative:   
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  FY2012 Year End Budget Amendment Schedule 
Exhibit 2:  FY2012 Health Insurance Amendment 
Exhibit 3:  FY2012 Fire Department Amendment 
 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Jeff Tyne, 623‐773‐7114 

170



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Personnel
- Police - School Resource Officer IGA#4064

7422 7582 510000 $30,000Salaries and Wages - Regular

7990 7990 570000 $30,000Contingencies

Provide appropriation for the School Resource Officer portion of salary that is reimbursed by Peoria Unified School District.Comment:

$30,000Subtotal for Personnel Amendments: $30,000

Exhibit 1 - Page 1Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

171



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Operating
- Human Resources - Human Resources#4047

1000 0070 520505 $12,464In-House Employee Training

1000 0300 570000 $12,464Contingencies

Provide expenditure authority for the PACE conference expenses of $12,464.  There is a positive fiscal impact as revenue was 
received to offsett the expenditures in the amount of $22,692.

Comment:

- Non-Departmental - Non-Departmental#4052

6050 6050 520099 $690Other Professional Services

6040 6040 520099 $440Other Professional Services

1000 0300 570000 $1,130Contingencies

Improvement District title fees for delinquent assessments.Comment:

- Public Works - Fleet Maintenance#4057

3000 3420 524001 $100,000Motor Vehicle - Repairs and Maintenance

1000 0300 570000 $100,000Contingencies

Increase expenditure authority for Motor Vehicle R&M. This line is a pass-thru account; charges against it are passed on to Fleet 
customers, resulting in offset revenues. There is no financial impact as this does not impact Fleet reserves.

Comment:

- Public Works - Fleet Maintenance#4067

3000 3420 530503 $50,700Motor Vehicle - Replacement Parts

3000 3420 524001 $22,100Motor Vehicle - Repairs and Maintenance

3000 3420 531003 $21,800Oil and Lube Supplies

1000 0300 570000 $94,600Contingencies

Increase expenditure authority for Fleet pass-through accounts. Charges against these accts are passed on to Fleet customers, 
resulting in offset revenues. (no financial impact)

Comment:

- Community Services - Prop 302 Grant Program#4068

7850 7890 525501 $4,590Service Charges - Insurance Reserve

7990 7990 570000 $4,590Contingencies

Prop 302 Grant program appropriation needed to match revenue/reimbursements to close out FY2012.Comment:

- Community Services - Prop 302 Grant Program#4071

7850 7890 522501 $90Advertising

7990 7990 570000 $90Contingencies

Prop 302 Grant program appropriation needed to match revenue/reimbursements to close out FY2012.Comment:

Exhibit 1 - Page 2Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

172



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Operating
- Public Works - Hb2565 Transp Grant#4081

7160 7210 510000 $238,839Salaries and Wages - Regular

7160 7210 520099 $113,740Other Professional Services

7160 7210 512000 $38,565Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7160 7210 511501 $25,283Retirement - State

7160 7210 511001 $15,117Social Security - OASDI

7160 7210 512500 $7,229Workmen's Compensation

7160 7210 510100 $6,166Wages - Part Time

7160 7210 520002 $3,556Audit Services

7160 7210 511002 $3,535Social Security - HI

7990 7990 570000 $452,030Contingencies

The City received LTAF II distribution from the State totaling $452,030 in FY2012.  This allows for transit expenditures to be moved 
into the LTAF II fund as an offset in FY2012.

Comment:

- Non-Departmental - Non-Departmental#4084

3210 3620 520037 $310Investment Service Fees

7004 7054 520037 $135Investment Service Fees

8061 8061 520037 $57Investment Service Fees

6040 6040 520037 $23Investment Service Fees

2570 2690 520037 $20Investment Service Fees

1000 0300 570000 $545Contingencies

Allows Finance to allocate the investment charges to all appropriate funds at year end.Comment:

$665,449Subtotal for Operating Amendments: $665,449

Exhibit 1 - Page 3Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

173



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4038

7010 7075 CIPST PW00065544001 $45,158

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00296544001 $23,760

1000 0310 CIPOF CS00070544001 $22,082

4550 4550 CIPST EN00089544001 $19,744

4232 4232 CIPPK CS00022544001 $19,647

4250 4250 CIPOF CS00070544001 $19,261

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00170544001 $18,833

1000 0310 CIPOF ED00006544001 $14,085

7000 7050 CIPST COP0001544001 $12,293

4550 4550 CIPPK CS00034544001 $12,248

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00142544001 $11,475

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00134544001 $10,734

4220 4220 CIPST EN00241544001 $10,606

4220 4220 CIPST EN00271544001 $9,955

4550 4550 CIPST EN00313544001 $9,543

7010 7075 CIPST EN00089544001 $8,064

1000 0310 CIPOF ED00002544001 $7,805

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00123544001 $7,326

1000 0310 CIPPK COP0001544001 $7,292

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00253544001 $6,750

7010 7075 CIPST EN00241544001 $6,747

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00034544001 $6,520

7010 7075 CIPST EN00243544001 $6,075

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00266544001 $5,839

7010 7075 CIPST EN00177544001 $5,838

7001 7051 CIPST EN00177544001 $5,837

7905 7905 CIPPK CS00124544001 $5,670

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00139544001 $5,355

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00054544001 $5,220

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00307544001 $5,153

1970 1970 CIPOF PW10300544001 $4,860

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00225544001 $4,766

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00113544001 $4,722

4550 4550 CIPST CD00003544001 $4,590

2161 2221 CIPWR UT00117544001 $4,355

1000 0310 CIPST PW00025544001 $4,275

7010 7075 CIPST EN00088544001 $3,870

4220 4220 CIPDR PW00185544001 $3,848

4240 4240 CIPOF CS00070544001 $3,288

4220 4220 CIPST EN00313544001 $3,078

Exhibit 1 - Page 4Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

174



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
7000 7050 CIPST PW00046544001 $3,060

7915 7915 CIPPK CS00113544001 $3,018

4220 4220 CIPPK CS00095544001 $2,955

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00123544001 $2,709

4210 4210 CIPRT CS00091544001 $2,657

4210 4210 CIPST EN00241544001 $2,650

4240 4240 CIPST EN00241544001 $2,650

7010 7075 CIPST PW00207544001 $2,588

4210 4210 CIPRT CS00084544001 $2,475

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00095544001 $2,412

7910 7910 CIPOF CS00070544001 $2,349

4210 4210 CIPST EN00271544001 $2,335

7920 7920 CIPRT CS00091544001 $2,214

7010 7075 CIPST EN00252544001 $2,205

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00134544001 $2,160

7010 7075 CIPST EN00081544001 $2,160

4550 4550 CIPST EN00242544001 $2,025

4550 4550 CIPST EN00219544001 $2,012

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00266544001 $1,946

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00137544001 $1,800

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00125544001 $1,598

2510 2630 CIPWW UT00151544001 $1,510

4550 4550 CIPST EN00241544001 $1,445

7010 7075 CIPST EN00250544001 $1,395

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00134544001 $1,326

1000 0310 CIPST COP0001544001 $1,250

2050 2140 CIPWR EN00313544001 $1,077

2400 2550 CIPWW EN00313544001 $1,077

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00034544001 $987

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00151544001 $965

7920 7920 CIPRT CS00125544001 $958

4210 4210 CIPST PW00245544001 $855

4210 4210 CIPST EN00011544001 $798

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00206544001 $765

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00299544001 $765

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00299544001 $765

7010 7075 CIPST PW11190544001 $720

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00091544001 $664

4210 4210 CIPPK CS00095544001 $663

4250 4250 CIPRT CS00125544001 $639

1000 0310 CIPST PW00137544001 $630

Exhibit 1 - Page 5Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

175



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
7001 7051 CIPST EN00313544001 $615

7010 7075 CIPST EN00225544001 $589

7940 7940 CIPOF PW00360544001 $585

4220 4220 CIPST PW00152544001 $540

4210 4210 CIPST EN00219544001 $441

4230 4230 CIPST EN00162544001 $360

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00003544001 $360

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00116544001 $270

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00022544001 $198

4220 4220 CIPST EN00214544001 $135

4250 4250 CIPRT EN00371544001 $98

4240 4240 CIPDR PW00184544001 $90

7010 7075 CIPTC PW00133544001 $90

7010 7075 CIPST EN00290544001 $90

4250 4250 CIPRT CS00128544001 $46

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00098544001 $45

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00191544001 $45

1000 0310 CIPRT CS00065544001 $23

7920 7920 CIPRT CS00128544001 $19

7940 7940 CIPOF CB02012525507 $585Service Charges - Engineering

7905 7905 CIPOF CB02012525507 $1,762Service Charges - Engineering

7915 7915 CIPOF CB02012525507 $3,018Service Charges - Engineering

7920 7920 CIPOF CB02012525507 $3,191Service Charges - Engineering

2161 2221 CIPOF CB02012525507 $4,355Service Charges - Engineering

7001 7051 CIPOF CB02012525507 $6,452Service Charges - Engineering

4210 4210 CIPOF CB02012525507 $12,874Service Charges - Engineering

7901 7901 CIPOF CB02012525507 $14,186Service Charges - Engineering

2050 2140 CIPOF CB02012525507 $15,241Service Charges - Engineering

7000 7050 CIPOF CB02012525507 $15,353Service Charges - Engineering

4232 4232 CIPOF CB02012525507 $20,007Service Charges - Engineering

4250 4250 CIPOF CB02012525507 $28,976Service Charges - Engineering

2510 2630 CIPOF CB02012525507 $29,313Service Charges - Engineering

4220 4220 CIPOF CB02012525507 $31,117Service Charges - Engineering

4240 4240 CIPOF CB02012525507 $48,487Service Charges - Engineering

7010 7075 CIPOF CB02012525507 $109,188Service Charges - Engineering

4550 4550 CIPOF CB02012525507 $126,333Service Charges - Engineering

FY 2012 3rd Quarter Engineering Chargebacks.Comment:

Exhibit 1 - Page 6Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

176



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4039

4250 4250 CIPOF CS00070525515 $16,012Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPST PW00065525515 $5,346Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00034525515 $3,439Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00170525515 $2,465Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW01003525515 $1,702Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPST EN00089525515 $1,679Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPST EN00089525515 $1,659Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00138525515 $1,565Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00206525515 $1,137Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPST EN00313525515 $1,132Arts Commission Service Charge

4210 4210 CIPST EN00271525515 $1,122Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00296525515 $943Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPOF ED00006525515 $928Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPOF PW00506525515 $868Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPPK COP0001525515 $815Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPST EN00241525515 $686Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00307525515 $663Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00113525515 $643Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST COP0001525515 $562Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPDR PW00185525515 $496Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00027525515 $468Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00134525515 $435Arts Commission Service Charge

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00095525515 $412Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00991525515 $411Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPOF CS00070525515 $408Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPOF CS00070525515 $394Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00316525515 $313Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00302525515 $302Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPST EN00313525515 $266Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00225525515 $250Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00299525515 $219Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00299525515 $219Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPST PW00152525515 $180Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW EN00313525515 $171Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00262525515 $147Arts Commission Service Charge

7915 7915 CIPPK CS00113525515 $138Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00191525515 $126Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00134525515 $121Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00134525515 $115Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00123525515 $109Arts Commission Service Charge

Exhibit 1 - Page 7Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

177



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
2050 2140 CIPWR UT00143525515 $97Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW11160525515 $93Arts Commission Service Charge

4210 4210 CIPRT CS00084525515 $78Arts Commission Service Charge

1210 0350 CIPOF PW00320525515 $71Arts Commission Service Charge

4210 4210 CIPPK CS00095525515 $48Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPST EN00243525515 $44Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00142525515 $38Arts Commission Service Charge

1970 1970 CIPOF PW00320525515 $29Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00262525515 $27Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPOF ED00007525515 $27Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPST PW00207525515 $21Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR EN00313525515 $18Arts Commission Service Charge

1970 1970 CIPOF AT02012525515 $29Arts Commission Service Charge

7915 7915 CIPOF AT02012525515 $138Arts Commission Service Charge

4210 4210 CIPOF AT02012525515 $1,248Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPOF AT02012525515 $2,113Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPOF AT02012525515 $2,269Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPOF AT02012525515 $2,494Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPOF AT02012525515 $2,840Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPOF AT02012525515 $2,986Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPOF AT02012525515 $4,530Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPOF AT02012525515 $4,801Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPOF AT02012525515 $9,785Arts Commission Service Charge

4250 4250 CIPOF AT02012525515 $16,424Arts Commission Service Charge

FY 2012 3rd Quarter Arts Chargebacks.Comment:

Exhibit 1 - Page 8Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

178



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4042

7010 7075 CIPST PW00146543001 $30,999Street System

7010 7075 CIPST EN00162543001 $20,000Street System

7010 7075 CIPST EN00162544001 $1,440

7010 7075 CIPST PW00146544002 $973

7010 7075 CIPST PW00146525515 $300Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPST PW00146544001 $135

7010 7075 CIPST EN00162525515 $8Arts Commission Service Charge

4230 4230 CIPST EN00162525515 $8Arts Commission Service Charge

4230 4230 CIPST PW00146544001 $135

4230 4230 CIPST PW00146525515 $300Arts Commission Service Charge

4230 4230 CIPST PW00146544002 $973

4230 4230 CIPST EN00162544001 $1,440

4230 4230 CIPST EN00162543001 $20,000Street System

4230 4230 CIPST PW00146543001 $30,999Street System

Move budget for 2008 MDA Transportation Sales Fund (4230) projects to the Transportation Sales Tax Fund (7010). The 2008 MDA 
Bond Fund has been closed.

Comment:

Exhibit 1 - Page 9Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

179



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4043

1000 0310 CIPOF ED00006544002 $3,317

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00296544002 $3,029

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00316544002 $2,163

1000 0310 CIPST COP0001544002 $1,587

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00203544002 $1,587

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00191544002 $1,587

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00116544002 $1,587

7000 7050 CIPST PW00993544002 $1,587

4240 4240 CIPPS PD00013544002 $1,442

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00054544002 $1,442

4232 4232 CIPPK CS00022544002 $1,427

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00315544002 $1,190

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00123544002 $842

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00299544002 $794

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00299544002 $793

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00134544002 $642

1970 1970 CIPOF PW10300544002 $577

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00204544002 $577

4220 4220 CIPST PW00152544002 $577

7000 7050 CIPST PW11160544002 $433

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00315544002 $397

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00123544002 $312

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00206544002 $288

7000 7050 CIPST PW00991544002 $288

7000 7050 CIPST PW00138544002 $288

4220 4220 CIPST EN00271544002 $234

4220 4220 CIPDR PW00185544002 $144

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00170544002 $144

7010 7075 CIPST EN00290544002 $144

7010 7075 CIPST EN00252544002 $144

4550 4550 CIPST EN00313544002 $91

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00134544002 $80

4210 4210 CIPRT CS00091544002 $70

7920 7920 CIPRT CS00091544002 $57

4210 4210 CIPST EN00271544002 $54

4220 4220 CIPST EN00313544002 $28

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00091544002 $17

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00022544002 $15

2050 2140 CIPWR EN00313544002 $10

2400 2550 CIPWW EN00313544002 $10

Exhibit 1 - Page 10Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

180



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
7001 7051 CIPST EN00313544002 $5

7001 7051 CIPOF CB02012525507 $5Service Charges - Engineering

7920 7920 CIPOF CB02012525507 $57Service Charges - Engineering

4210 4210 CIPOF CB02012525507 $124Service Charges - Engineering

7010 7075 CIPOF CB02012525507 $432Service Charges - Engineering

4220 4220 CIPOF CB02012525507 $983Service Charges - Engineering

4232 4232 CIPOF CB02012525507 $1,427Service Charges - Engineering

7901 7901 CIPOF CB02012525507 $1,754Service Charges - Engineering

7000 7050 CIPOF CB02012525507 $2,596Service Charges - Engineering

4240 4240 CIPOF CB02012525507 $2,943Service Charges - Engineering

4550 4550 CIPOF CB02012525507 $5,667Service Charges - Engineering

2050 2140 CIPOF CB02012525507 $5,816Service Charges - Engineering

2161 2221 CIPOF CB02012525507 $8,196Service Charges - Engineering

FY 2012 3rd Quarter Materials Management Chargebacks.Comment:

- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4049

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00089520099 $76,200Other Professional Services

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00089540000 $76,200Land

Agua Fria Open Space Land Acquisition - Transfer budget within project from land account to other professional services account for 
cultural survey work.

Comment:

- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4051

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00034543005 $679,000Park Improvements

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00089540000 $679,000Land

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00089540000 $679,000Land

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00034543005 $679,000Park Improvements

Community Park #2 (CS00034) & Agua Fria Open Space Land Acquisition (CS00089) - Switch G.O. bond issues being used for these 
projects to align with forthcoming bond sale. This action does not change the budgeted amounts for either project.

Comment:

- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4054

4232 4232 CIPPK CS00022540500 16,331,030Buildings

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00022540500 $209,698Buildings

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00022543005 $209,698Park Improvements

4232 4232 CIPPK CS00022543005 16,331,030Park Improvements

Sports Complex Improvements - Design and construction budgeted in park improvements account (543005); need to change this to 
buildings and improvements account (540500); This is a purely administrative adjustment with no financial impact.

Comment:

Exhibit 1 - Page 11Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

181



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4058

1000 0310 CIPOF MS00002543007 $109,209Technical Systems

1000 0310 CIPOF MS00002520510 $880Overnight Travel and Training

2050 2140 CIPOF MS00002520510 $880Overnight Travel and Training

2400 2550 CIPOF MS00002520510 $880Overnight Travel and Training

2050 2140 CIPOF MS00002543007 $880Technical Systems

2400 2550 CIPOF MS00002543007 $880Technical Systems

1000 0310 CIPOF MS00002542007 $110,089Computer Software

IVR Replacement Project - Move budget for project-related travel from capital account to operating account. Also, correct the use of 
account 542007 for the general fund portion of the project, using 543007 instead.

Comment:

- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4062

4550 4550 CIPOF ED00006540500 $886,000Buildings

4550 4550 CIPOF ED00007540500 $886,000Buildings

Move budget for Phase II of the Wagoner Plaza façade improvements from the Economic Development Opportunity Fund (ED00007) 
to the Old Town Commercial Rehabilitation (ED00006). (no financial impact)

Comment:

Exhibit 1 - Page 12Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

182



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4073

4550 4550 CIPST EN00219544002 $5,614

4232 4232 CIPPK CS00022544002 $2,465

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00116544002 $1,867

7000 7050 CIPST COP0001544002 $1,603

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00206544002 $1,493

1000 0310 CIPST PW00025544002 $1,369

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00139544002 $1,369

7000 7050 CIPST PW11160544002 $1,369

7000 7050 CIPST PW00046544002 $1,369

4210 4210 CIPST EN00219544002 $1,232

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00134544002 $1,219

1000 0310 CIPPK COP0001544002 $1,116

4220 4220 CIPST EN00241544002 $1,098

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00123544002 $1,000

4550 4550 CIPPK CS00034544002 $927

7010 7075 CIPST EN00241544002 $696

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00170544002 $622

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00034544002 $492

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00123544002 $369

4210 4210 CIPST EN00241544002 $273

4240 4240 CIPST EN00241544002 $273

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00191544002 $249

7000 7050 CIPST PW00991544002 $249

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00134544002 $150

4550 4550 CIPST EN00241544002 $149

1000 0310 CIPST COP0001544002 $144

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00204544002 $125

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00296544002 $125

4240 4240 CIPPS PD00013544002 $125

7010 7075 CIPST PW00065544002 $125

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00054544002 $125

1000 0310 CIPRT CS00065544002 $118

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00034544002 $74

1000 0310 CIPOF ED00006544002 $68

1000 0310 CIPOF CS00070544002 $60

4210 4210 CIPRT CS00091544002 $60

4550 4550 CIPOF ED00006544002 $57

4250 4250 CIPOF CS00070544002 $51

7920 7920 CIPRT CS00091544002 $50

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00022544002 $25

Exhibit 1 - Page 13Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

183



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
4240 4240 CIPRT CS00091544002 $15

4240 4240 CIPOF CS00070544002 $8

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00065544002 $7

7910 7910 CIPOF CS00070544002 $6

7915 7915 CIPOF CB02012525507 $6Service Charges - Engineering

7920 7920 CIPOF CB02012525507 $50Service Charges - Engineering

7901 7901 CIPOF CB02012525507 $494Service Charges - Engineering

4250 4250 CIPOF CB02012525507 $543Service Charges - Engineering

4220 4220 CIPOF CB02012525507 $1,098Service Charges - Engineering

7000 7050 CIPOF CB02012525507 $1,402Service Charges - Engineering

4210 4210 CIPOF CB02012525507 $1,565Service Charges - Engineering

2050 2140 CIPOF CB02012525507 $1,618Service Charges - Engineering

2161 2221 CIPOF CB02012525507 $2,241Service Charges - Engineering

4232 4232 CIPOF CB02012525507 $2,465Service Charges - Engineering

4240 4240 CIPOF CB02012525507 $4,090Service Charges - Engineering

7010 7075 CIPOF CB02012525507 $4,631Service Charges - Engineering

4550 4550 CIPOF CB02012525507 $9,797Service Charges - Engineering

FY 2012 4th Quarter Materials Management Chargebacks.Comment:

Exhibit 1 - Page 14Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

184



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4075

4232 4232 CIPPK CS00022544001 $29,923

1000 0310 CIPOF CS00070544001 $26,160

7010 7075 CIPST PW00065544001 $24,745

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00296544001 $23,288

4250 4250 CIPOF CS00070544001 $22,820

4550 4550 CIPST EN00089544001 $21,680

4550 4550 CIPPK CS00034544001 $14,818

4550 4550 CIPST EN00313544001 $14,469

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00139544001 $13,545

7000 7050 CIPST COP0001544001 $11,260

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00170544001 $9,878

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00142544001 $8,990

7010 7075 CIPST EN00089544001 $8,855

4220 4220 CIPST EN00241544001 $8,559

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00034544001 $7,887

2161 2221 CIPWR UT00117544001 $7,128

1970 1970 CIPOF PW10300544001 $7,065

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00134544001 $6,769

4220 4220 CIPST EN00271544001 $6,463

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00123544001 $6,405

1000 0310 CIPPK COP0001544001 $6,380

1000 0310 CIPOF ED00006544001 $6,112

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00054544001 $5,850

7001 7051 CIPST EN00177544001 $5,635

7010 7075 CIPST EN00177544001 $5,635

7010 7075 CIPST EN00241544001 $5,444

4550 4550 CIPOF ED00006544001 $5,206

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00266544001 $5,198

4220 4220 CIPST EN00313544001 $4,667

7000 7050 CIPST PW00046544001 $4,590

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00137544001 $4,545

1000 0310 CIPOF ED00002544001 $4,275

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00225544001 $4,085

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00253544001 $4,050

4240 4240 CIPOF CS00070544001 $3,896

4550 4550 CIPST CD00003544001 $3,870

7010 7075 CIPST EN00243544001 $3,780

4550 4550 CIPST EN00219544001 $3,413

7910 7910 CIPOF CS00070544001 $2,782

1000 0310 CIPST PW00025544001 $2,723

Exhibit 1 - Page 15Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

185



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
4220 4220 CIPDR PW00185544001 $2,453

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00123544001 $2,370

7010 7075 CIPST EN00250544001 $2,205

4210 4210 CIPST EN00241544001 $2,138

4240 4240 CIPST EN00241544001 $2,138

7010 7075 CIPST EN00088544001 $1,890

4210 4210 CIPRT CS00091544001 $1,750

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00307544001 $1,733

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00266544001 $1,732

2050 2140 CIPWR EN00313544001 $1,633

2400 2550 CIPWW EN00313544001 $1,633

4210 4210 CIPST EN00271544001 $1,515

7920 7920 CIPRT CS00091544001 $1,458

7905 7905 CIPPK CS00124544001 $1,350

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00125544001 $1,283

4210 4210 CIPST PW00245544001 $1,260

7010 7075 CIPST EN00252544001 $1,215

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00034544001 $1,195

4550 4550 CIPST EN00241544001 $1,166

1000 0310 CIPST COP0001544001 $1,125

7001 7051 CIPST EN00313544001 $933

4220 4220 CIPST EN00214544001 $900

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00134544001 $836

7010 7075 CIPST PW11190544001 $810

2510 2630 CIPWW UT00151544001 $769

7920 7920 CIPRT CS00125544001 $769

4210 4210 CIPST EN00219544001 $750

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00134544001 $720

1000 0310 CIPST PW00137544001 $675

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00113544001 $632

7010 7075 CIPST EN00081544001 $585

4250 4250 CIPRT CS00125544001 $513

7010 7075 CIPST EN00225544001 $505

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00151544001 $491

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00091544001 $437

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00003544001 $405

7915 7915 CIPPK CS00113544001 $403

4210 4210 CIPST EN00011544001 $400

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00022544001 $302

4550 4550 CIPST EN00242544001 $270

2161 2221 CIPWR UT00233544001 $245

Exhibit 1 - Page 16Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

186



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
4220 4220 CIPPK CS00095544001 $220

2161 2221 CIPWR UT00148544001 $195

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00206544001 $180

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00191544001 $180

4240 4240 CIPST EN00277544001 $180

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00095544001 $180

7010 7075 CIPST PW00207544001 $180

4250 4250 CIPRT EN00371544001 $163

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00203544001 $158

7010 7075 CIPTC PW00133544001 $135

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00148544001 $120

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00305544001 $100

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00116544001 $90

4220 4220 CIPST PW00152544001 $90

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00305544001 $80

4210 4210 CIPPK CS00095544001 $50

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00233544001 $25

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00204544001 $23

7915 7915 CIPOF CB02012525507 $403Service Charges - Engineering

7920 7920 CIPOF CB02012525507 $6,359Service Charges - Engineering

7001 7051 CIPOF CB02012525507 $6,568Service Charges - Engineering

4210 4210 CIPOF CB02012525507 $7,863Service Charges - Engineering

7901 7901 CIPOF CB02012525507 $8,220Service Charges - Engineering

2050 2140 CIPOF CB02012525507 $9,798Service Charges - Engineering

4220 4220 CIPOF CB02012525507 $23,352Service Charges - Engineering

4240 4240 CIPOF CB02012525507 $37,284Service Charges - Engineering

2161 2221 CIPOF CB02012525507 $39,253Service Charges - Engineering

4250 4250 CIPOF CB02012525507 $44,787Service Charges - Engineering

4550 4550 CIPOF CB02012525507 $64,892Service Charges - Engineering

7010 7075 CIPOF CB02012525507 $85,797Service Charges - Engineering

4232 4232 CIPOF CB02012525507 $86,208Service Charges - Engineering

FY 2012 4th Quarter Engineering Chargebacks.Comment:

- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4076

4550 4550 CIPOF ED00010540500 $2,663Buildings

4550 4550 CIPOF ED00007540500 $2,663Buildings

Move $2,663 budget (appropriation) from Economic Development Opportunity Fund (ED00007) project to BioScience Incubator 
(ED00010) project to cover permit expenses.

Comment:

Exhibit 1 - Page 17Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

187



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
- Non-Departmental - Gen Fund Capital Projects#4079

7010 7075 CIPST PW00065525515 $21,629Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPOF CS00070525515 $14,157Arts Commission Service Charge

4250 4250 CIPOF CS00070525515 $10,388Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00296525515 $9,962Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPDR EN00134525515 $7,759Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPOF ED00006525515 $7,289Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPST EN00089525515 $6,637Arts Commission Service Charge

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00034525515 $5,449Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00253525515 $4,526Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00034525515 $4,058Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPTC EN00170525515 $3,735Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00138525515 $3,188Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPOF AT02012525515 $2,938Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00233525515 $2,600Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPPK CS00034525515 $2,425Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00262525515 $2,151Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW01003525515 $2,012Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00123525515 $1,882Arts Commission Service Charge

7001 7051 CIPST EN00313525515 $1,877Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPPK COP0001525515 $1,808Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00022525515 $1,729Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPPS PD00013525515 $1,579Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00203525515 $1,526Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST COP0001525515 $1,346Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPST EN00219525515 $1,068Arts Commission Service Charge

7905 7905 CIPPK CS00124525515 $926Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW11160525515 $837Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00116525515 $809Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00266525515 $805Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00206525515 $802Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00027525515 $797Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00315525515 $730Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPOF CS00070525515 $620Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00134525515 $587Arts Commission Service Charge

4210 4210 CIPST EN00219525515 $524Arts Commission Service Charge

2161 2221 CIPWR UT00170525515 $505Arts Commission Service Charge

1210 0350 CIPPS PD00007525515 $500Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00991525515 $436Arts Commission Service Charge

7901 7901 CIPPK CS00054525515 $374Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00993525515 $347Arts Commission Service Charge

Exhibit 1 - Page 18Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

188



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
7010 7075 CIPTC EN00225525515 $314Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPST PW00146525515 $305Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00143525515 $298Arts Commission Service Charge

2161 2221 CIPWR UT00233525515 $275Arts Commission Service Charge

4250 4250 CIPOF IT00004525515 $262Arts Commission Service Charge

4232 4232 CIPPK CS00022525515 $260Arts Commission Service Charge

4210 4210 CIPST EN00271525515 $253Arts Commission Service Charge

4250 4250 CIPRT CS00125525515 $251Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPDR PW00185525515 $228Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPST COP0001525515 $227Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00046525515 $191Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPPK CS00113525515 $173Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPOF PW11150525515 $165Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00262525515 $147Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPST EN00313525515 $137Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00266525515 $129Arts Commission Service Charge

1970 1970 CIPOF PW10300525515 $118Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00302525515 $108Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPPK CS00134525515 $98Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00191525515 $77Arts Commission Service Charge

4210 4210 CIPRT CS00091525515 $75Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00146525515 $75Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPST EN00242525515 $74Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPST PW00992525515 $64Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00142525515 $60Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW UT00307525515 $59Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR UT00204525515 $56Arts Commission Service Charge

4250 4250 CIPPK CS00095525515 $50Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPOF IT00006525515 $27Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPOF ED00010525515 $27Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPST EN00243525515 $25Arts Commission Service Charge

2510 2630 CIPWW UT00171525515 $24Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPST EN00313525515 $20Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPRT CS00125525515 $18Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPST EN00162525515 $9Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPWR EN00313525515 $6Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPWW EN00313525515 $6Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPST PW00992525515 $5Arts Commission Service Charge

2510 2630 CIPOF AT02012525515 $24Arts Commission Service Charge

1970 1970 CIPOF AT02012525515 $118Arts Commission Service Charge

4232 4232 CIPOF AT02012525515 $260Arts Commission Service Charge

Exhibit 1 - Page 19Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

189



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 1 - Budget Amendment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Capital
2161 2221 CIPOF AT02012525515 $780Arts Commission Service Charge

4210 4210 CIPOF AT02012525515 $852Arts Commission Service Charge

7901 7901 CIPOF AT02012525515 $1,300Arts Commission Service Charge

7001 7051 CIPOF AT02012525515 $1,877Arts Commission Service Charge

4220 4220 CIPST EN00241525515 $3,303Arts Commission Service Charge

7000 7050 CIPOF AT02012525515 $9,159Arts Commission Service Charge

2050 2140 CIPOF AT02012525515 $10,198Arts Commission Service Charge

4550 4550 CIPOF AT02012525515 $10,251Arts Commission Service Charge

2400 2550 CIPOF AT02012525515 $14,599Arts Commission Service Charge

4240 4240 CIPOF AT02012525515 $16,213Arts Commission Service Charge

4250 4250 CIPOF AT02012525515 $16,400Arts Commission Service Charge

7010 7075 CIPOF AT02012525515 $26,017Arts Commission Service Charge

1000 0310 CIPOF AT02012525515 $26,662Arts Commission Service Charge

FY 2012 4th Quarter Arts Chargebacks.Comment:

$20,168,187Subtotal for Capital Amendments: $20,168,187

Exhibit 1 - Page 20Printed Tuesday, August 07, 2012

190



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 2 - Health Insurance Budget Amendment
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Health Insurance Amendment
- Non-Departmental - Non-Departmental#4082

1000 0300 570000 $178,125Contingencies

1000 1260 512000 $114,425Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1021 512000 $88,774Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1020 512000 $34,805Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1200 512000 $23,951Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7000 7030 512000 $20,561Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1010 512000 $18,723Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2000 2000 512000 $17,459Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1000 512000 $15,495Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2400 2496 512000 $11,954Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2400 2470 512000 $11,210Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0650 512000 $10,986Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7420 7580 512000 $10,567Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1220 512000 $9,433Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7000 7043 512000 $7,904Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1550 512000 $6,464Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0230 512000 $5,700Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1570 512000 $4,972Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0810 512000 $4,844Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0040 512000 $4,421Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7526 7772 512000 $4,356Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0351 512000 $4,056Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0812 512000 $3,850Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0570 512000 $3,501Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1450 512000 $3,405Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0480 512000 $2,790Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1410 512000 $2,575Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1500 512000 $2,501Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2090 512000 $2,458Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2600 2810 512000 $2,306Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0025 512000 $2,305Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0400 512000 $2,245Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2135 512000 $2,241Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0620 512000 $2,008Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2590 2720 512000 $1,835Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2400 2495 512000 $1,821Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0430 512000 $1,723Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0420 512000 $1,639Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3250 3650 512000 $1,553Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0490 512000 $1,518Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

Exhibit 2 - Page 1Printed Monday, August 06, 2012

191



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 2 - Health Insurance Budget Amendment
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Health Insurance Amendment
7000 7000 512000 $1,483Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7350 7500 512000 $1,476Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0042 512000 $1,314Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2061 512000 $1,287Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0900 512000 $1,216Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1480 512000 $1,176Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7000 7040 512000 $1,128Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0750 512000 $985Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2120 512000 $814Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1530 512000 $782Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1230 512000 $730Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1600 512000 $606Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1490 512000 $291Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1510 512000 $291Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0500 512000 $287Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1250 512000 $284Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1532 512000 $260Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1470 512000 $69Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7000 7020 512000 $393Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0820 512000 $432Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2600 2770 512000 $882Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2050 512000 $1,276Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2700 2900 512000 $1,666Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2060 512000 $1,672Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0450 512000 $1,829Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7150 7200 512000 $1,876Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0410 512000 $1,889Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0041 512000 $2,196Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0352 512000 $2,217Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0250 512000 $2,479Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0020 512000 $3,115Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0460 512000 $3,152Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7865 7815 512000 $3,213Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3000 3420 512000 $3,264Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7000 7010 512000 $3,294Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3250 3700 512000 $3,481Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3300 3751 512000 $3,749Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7110 7160 512000 $3,792Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1430 512000 $4,147Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1030 512000 $4,222Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2600 2750 512000 $5,033Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

Exhibit 2 - Page 2Printed Monday, August 06, 2012

192



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 2 - Health Insurance Budget Amendment
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Health Insurance Amendment
1000 1420 512000 $5,801Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1400 512000 $6,230Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1210 512000 $6,240Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0610 512000 $7,186Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0210 512000 $7,468Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1060 512000 $7,705Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3200 3610 512000 $8,180Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0010 512000 $8,824Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0070 512000 $8,912Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0200 512000 $9,096Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3250 3660 512000 $9,300Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3300 3760 512000 $9,321Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1240 512000 $9,575Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0600 512000 $9,878Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0813 512000 $10,330Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3250 3690 512000 $10,393Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

7180 7250 512000 $11,898Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1520 512000 $13,155Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3300 3750 512000 $13,184Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2055 512000 $14,114Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2400 2490 512000 $15,273Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1040 512000 $15,795Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0470 512000 $17,352Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1025 512000 $17,597Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0440 512000 $18,695Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2080 512000 $20,723Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2050 2070 512000 $22,511Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1531 512000 $22,567Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0150 512000 $24,611Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2600 2760 512000 $25,138Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 0550 512000 $26,824Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

2400 2480 512000 $27,999Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

3250 3661 512000 $28,935Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

8062 8062 512000 $30,613Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1560 512000 $31,322Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1050 512000 $33,818Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

1000 1540 512000 $40,106Hospital, Dental and Life Insurance

Adjust health insurance budgets to equal the cost for each division.  Net result citywide is savings of $178,125.Comment:

$665,938Subtotal for Health Insurance Amendment Amendments: $665,938

Exhibit 2 - Page 3Printed Monday, August 06, 2012

193



CreditDebitTransfer #  -  Department - Division Fund - Division - Account - Account Description - Prgm - Proj/Grant

EXHIBIT 3 - Fire Department Budget Amendment
Fiscal Year 2012 Amendments

Fire Operations
- Fire - Fire Operations#4083

1000 1260 510209 $11,026Wages - Absence Coverage Overtime

1000 0300 570000 $11,026Contingencies

Final adjustment in the Fire department for absence coverage overage in FY2012 ($11,026).Comment:

$11,026Subtotal for Fire Operations Amendments: $11,026

Exhibit 3 - Page 1Printed Monday, August 06, 2012

194



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
Date Prepared:  August 1, 2012 Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012  
 
 
 
TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brent D. Mattingly, Chief Financial Officer 
 
THROUGH: Susan Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Investment Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 
 
 
Purpose:  
 
This is a request for City Council to review and accept the Investment Report for the Year Ended 
June 30, 2012. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The Finance Department has prepared a quarterly report in compliance with Peoria’s adopted 
Investment Policy.  The report summarizes the City’s investment activity for the period from 
July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2012.  The City’s total investment portfolio earned an average yield of 
0.52% for the fiscal year and 0.45% for the 4th quarter of FY 2012. This represents investment 
income of $1,357,269 for the fiscal year and $328,960 for the 4th quarter.  The average cash 
balance of the City’s portfolio during the 4th quarter was $321,730,549 and the ending balance 
for the total investment portfolio was $319,286,192 which represents all securities and money 
market funds. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
There are no previous actions for this item. 
 
Options:  
 
Council may select the following options: 
 
A: Accept the Annual Investment Report as presented 
 
B: Not accept the Annual Investment Report and request additional information from 
 staff 
 
 

195

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 20



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that Council review and accept the Investment Report for the Year Ended 
June 30, 2012 as presented. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       
This item has no financial implications.  
 
Narrative:   
 
The annual investment report provides comparative investment yields, portfolio composition, 
average maturity lengths, comparisons of market value and book value, and a brief summary of 
the economy.  An Inventory Holdings Report, which itemizes each security in the City’s 
investment portfolio by fund, security type, and cusip number has been included as Exhibit 2.  A 
brief glossary of security definitions has also been included as Exhibit 3. 
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  Investment Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012  
 
Exhibit 2:  Inventory Holdings Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 
 
Exhibit 3:  Glossary of Security Definitions   
 
 
 
Contact: 
 
Deborah Card, Treasury Manager, X7148  

196



 
 

CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA 
 
 

 
 
 
 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Report 
 

Period Ended  
 

June 30, 2012 
 
 

Brent D. Mattingly, Chief Financial Officer 
 

Finance Department 

197



 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 Section Description Page 
 
 I.  INTRODUCTION ............................................................. 2 
 
 II. TOTAL INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE ........ 3 
 
 III. INVESTMENT POLICY COMPLIANCE ........................... 3 
 
 IV. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE ..................................... 3 
 
          A.  Portfolio Composition .............................................. 3 
 
   B. Average Invested Cash Balances ........................... 4 
 
   C. Investment Income .................................................. 5 
 
   D. Comparative Investment Yields ............................... 5 
 
   E. Average Maturity of Portfolio ................................... 5 
 
   F. Comparison of Market Value and Book Value ......... 5 
 
  V. ECONOMIC REVIEW ...................................................... 7 
 
  VI. SUMMARY DATA ............................................................ 8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

198



 2

I. INTRODUCTION  
 
 This report reflects investment activity for the period of July 1, 2011 to June 
30, 2012 for the City’s investment management program.  The City’s Investment 
and Portfolio Policies, approved and adopted in January 1992 by the City Council, 
with revisions approved in June 2005, requires that the City’s investment program 
meet the following criteria, listed in order of importance: 

 
Safety - Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks 

to insure the preservation of capital in the overall 
portfolio. 

 
Liquidity - The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to  
  enable the City to meet all operating requirements. 
 
Yield - The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 

objective of obtaining a market rate of return throughout 
budgetary and economic cycles, while taking into 
account the City’s strict risk constraints. 

 
 In keeping with these principles, the Finance Department continued to 
invest the City’s funds only in allowable, safe securities and to structure the 
maturity of the investment portfolio to assure liquidity.  Short-term needs (6 
months or less) are being met by investments in overnight repurchase 
agreements, commercial paper, money market funds, and the State’s 
Investment Pool.  Funds not required to meet specific short-term needs are 
invested primarily in Treasury Notes and U.S. Government Agency Securities.  
 
 Only after the safety and liquidity requirements are met does the Finance 
Department attempt to maximize earnings.  For the Quarter Ended June 30, 
2012, the weighted average annualized yield on investments was as follows:   
 
Table 1 
 

AVERAGE ANNUALIZED 
INVESTMENT YIELD 

 FY 12 
Q1 

FY 12 
Q2 

FY 12 
Q3 

FY 12 
Q4 

Year Ended 
6/30/12 

General Portfolio 0.62 0.58 0.53 0.47 0.55 

Bond Funds 0.34 0.28 0.31 0.31 0.31 

Total Portfolio 0.59 0.55 0.51 0.45 0.52 

  
 The average annual yield of 0.52% represents a decrease of 0.11% from 
the total portfolio annualized yield of 0.63% experienced for the Year Ended 
June 30, 2011. 
 This quarter’s average yield of 0.45% for the total portfolio represents a 
decrease of 0.06% from the total portfolio annualized yield of 0.51% 
experienced for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2012.  

199



 3

 
 
II. TOTAL INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO STRUCTURE 
 
 The City’s overall portfolio is identified by source and use of funds in 
accordance with the City’s investment policy.  The general operating funds are 
composed of all funds of the City with the exception of restricted capital project 
funds containing direct bond proceeds and escrow funds.  The interest from the 
operating fund portfolio is allocated pro rata to the General Fund and other 
commingled funds making up the portfolio.  Funds identified in this category are: 
 
  General Fund 
  Special Revenue Funds 
  Enterprise Funds 
  Internal Service Funds 
  Debt Service Funds 
  Trust and Agency Funds 
 
 Capital project funds are managed in unique portfolios identified by 
individual bond issue in order to fulfill all U.S. Government tax requirements and 
to simplify reporting and arbitrage calculations.  
 
 During the past quarter, the City’s investment portfolio has been divided 
between general funds and several bond fund accounts.  For purposes of this 
performance report, however, the operating portfolio is reported as a whole and 
reference to performance and strategy are directed toward the portfolio in its 
entirety.   
 
 
III. INVESTMENT POLICY COMPLIANCE 
 
 The City’s Investment Policy, as approved by City Council, applies to all 
the financial assets and funds held by the City of Peoria.  All investments follow 
the provisions established in that Policy.  
 
 
IV. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
 
A. Portfolio Composition. It is the policy of the City to diversify its 
portfolio by security type and institution to minimize market volatility risk and 
credit risk. The Policy stipulates maximum investment levels by market sector to 
insure diversification.  Diversification is further accomplished through the 
laddering of maturities, which mirror anticipated cash flows for the various funds.  
If not matched to specific cash flows, the funds are invested with a priority of 
liquidity and safety until specific cash flow needs are identified.  
 
 The table below illustrates the diversification structured into the portfolio 
composition with dollar amounts and percentages by investment type (market 
sector).  The table shows the overall conservative nature of the portfolio and its 

200



 4

diversified structure.  The fluctuation in percentages between fiscal quarters 
represents a shifting of value between market sectors from the varying 
economic conditions throughout the year.  The concentration on Treasury Notes 
and Agency Securities illustrates the portfolio’s safety priority. 
 
Table 2 
 

TOTAL PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

Security Type FY 12 – Q1 FY 12 – Q2 FY 12 – Q3 FY 12 – Q4 

 Amt % Amt % Amt % Amt % 

Money Market  36.4 12.2 38.5 12.2 30.3 9.4 52.0 16.3

Agency 
Securities 152.4 50.9 173.4 55.1 183.1 56.9 170.9 53.5

 
Treasury 
Bills 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Treasury Notes 25.6 8.6 15.6 4.9 15.5 4.8 12.1 3.8

Commercial 
Paper 84.9 28.3 84.4 26.8 92.3 28.7 83.8 26.2

Repurchase 
Agreements 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

State Pool 0.1 0.0 3.0 1.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.2

TOTALS: 299.4 100.0 314.9 100.0 321.3 100.0 319.3 100.0 

 
B. Average Invested Cash Balances.   The average investment cash 
balance of the overall portfolio for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 was 
$312,071,778 as compared to $309,032,295 for the Year Ended June 30, 2011. 
    
The average investment cash balance of the overall portfolio for the Quarter 
Ended June 30, 2012 was $321,730,549 as compared to $318,404,229 for the 
Quarter Ended March 31, 2012.   
 
 Fluctuations in the quarterly balances shown in the chart below 
represent normal cash flows throughout the fiscal year, the addition of new bond 
proceeds, investment of earned interest, and the spend down of existing bond 
proceeds for capital projects. 
 
C. Investment Income.    Total investment income for the Year Ended 
June 30, 2012 was $1,357,269, which represents a decrease of 21.3% from the 
$1,725,207 earned for the Year Ended June 30, 2011.   

201



 5

  
 Total investment income for the 4th Quarter of FY12 was $328,960, 
which represents a decrease of 5.8% from the $349,082 earned in the 3rd 
Quarter of FY12.   
 
D. Comparative Investment Yields.  Since the Investment Policy of the 
City restricts investment primarily to the U.S. fixed income and money markets, 
the portfolio performance is measured directly against these markets for 
comparison purposes.  The maximum maturity of securities purchased for the 
portfolio is restricted to five (5) years.  The weighted average maturity should not 
exceed 365 days.  The actual weighted average maturity for the 4th Quarter of 
FY12 was 332 days. The average rates of comparable benchmarks are shown 
in the table below. 
 
Table 3 
 

COMPARATIVE ANNUALIZED 
INVESTMENT YIELDS 

 
 

FY 12 
Q1 

FY 12 
Q2 

FY 12 
Q3 

FY 12 
Q4 

City of Peoria 
(General Portfolio) 0.62 0.58 0.53 0.47 

3 Month T-Bill 0.02 0.01 0.06 0.08 

6 Month T- Bill 0.06 0.04 0.11 0.14 

1 Year T-Bill 0.12 0.10 0.14 0.18 

2 Year Treasury 0.27 0.26 0.28 0.28 

 
E. Average Maturity of the Portfolio.    For the Quarter ended June 30, 
2012, the average maturity of the portfolio was 332 days as compared to 351 
days on March 31, 2012. Matching maturities to known cash flows requires the 
maintenance of a somewhat short portfolio.  This assures the City’s liabilities 
can be met as they come due.  Cash not needed to match immediate cash flow 
needs (within a nine month rolling horizon of liabilities) is normally extended 
somewhat to take advantage of higher yields.  Longer maturities are used to 
capture yields at purchase and to capture capital gains during the period. 
 
F. Comparison of Market Value and Book Value.    The book value of 
the portfolio is captured on an amortized cost basis recognizing the City’s 
position in the securities on a straight-line amortization of premiums and 
discounts.  Book and market values do not include accrued interest on the 
securities.  The market value reflects the then current market price at which 
these securities could be sold in the open market.  A comparison of book and 
market reflects the changes in market rates as well as the performance of the 
portfolio against the market.  Since the shortest portion of the portfolio is 
matched against anticipated cash flows, rate changes will more directly affect 
their relative gain/loss positions.  A summary of market and book values for the 
total portfolio for the Quarter are shown below. 
 

202



 6

 Beginning Book Value ....................... $321,336,470  
 Beginning Market Value .................... $321,365,109 
 
 Ending Book Value ........................... $319,286,192 
 Ending Market Value ......................... $319,361,196 
 
 At quarter’s end, the market value of the portfolio exceeded the book 
value of securities resulting in an overall unrealized gain in value of $75,004. 
 
 

 
 

203



 7

ECONOMIC REVIEW AS OF 6-30-12:   
 
 Gross Domestic Product (GDP)  There had been some question as to how much the 
unseasonably mild winter weather that prevailed in the first quarter bolstered growth early 
in the year at the expense of subsequent quarters. Although all the numbers have yet to be 
crunched for the most recently completed period, the slowdown appears to be substantial. 
The final reading of first quarter growth was a disappointing 1.9%, but the third straight 
month of negative retail sales reports caused many Wall Street analysts to trim second 
quarter GDP forecasts into the 1.2% to 1.5% range, with as much as half being inventory 
accumulation.  The media has picked up on the “impending fiscal cliff” story, and consumer 
confidence levels are falling as Americans grow increasingly concerned that hundreds of 
billions in tax cuts and extended unemployment benefits will expire at the same time as 
across-the-board expense cuts go into effect.          
 
 Nonfarm Payrolls   Job growth has slowed significantly in the spring months. Much of 
this may have had to do with accelerated hiring in the winter months. Nonfarm payrolls 
grew by just 80,000 during the month of June. During the quarter, company payrolls 
averaged just 75,000. This was the slowest quarterly growth rate since the third quarter of 
2010, and a significant decline from the 225,000 average pace during the first quarter of 
2012. The unemployment rate rose from 8.1% to 8.2% in May, the first increase in a year, 
and remained at 8.2% in June.  According to the most recent “JOLT” survey, as of May, 
there were 3.5 unemployed job seekers for every job opening. This ratio was 1.6 in 
November 2007 before the recession began, but rose to 6.7 immediately after the 
recession officially ended in July 2009.  
   
 U.S. Home Sales  Freddie Mac’s 30-yr mortgage index averaged a record low of 
3.53% for the week ending July 18, 2012. In 1982, the average rate was over 16%.  So, 
after roughly 6½ years of decline, the housing market may have finally reached bottom and 
begun to dig itself out. Inventory levels, although far from lean, are improved. CNBC 
reported in June that there were 2.49 million homes listed for sale, 20% below a year 
ago. The median price for an existing home rose 7.9% year-over-year to $189,400 in June, 
while housing starts rose 6.9% to a 760k annual unit rate, the highest in three years. But, 
not all the news was good. Existing home sales dropped 5.4% in June to a seasonally 
adjusted annual pace of 4.37 million, while new home sales fell 8.4% in June to a 
annualized pace of 350k.  Although still a fraction of 2005 peak levels, both are well above 
recession lows.   

 
 Retail Sales The decreased rate of U.S. job growth, combined with deteriorating 
conditions in Europe and the impending fiscal cliff have combined to dampen spending and 
confidence. The Conference Board’s measure of consumer confidence dropped for the 
fourth straight month in June, falling to lowest level since January. Retail sales 
unexpectedly fell by 0.5% in June, following declines in both April and May. The last time 
retail sales were negative for three straight months was October 2008 through December 
2008, during the deepest point of the recession.  For the entire quarter, retail sales declined 
by an annualized 0.8%.  In the previous quarter, sales had risen by an annualized 6.7%.  
After reaching a post-recession high of 15 million for annualized sales of cars and light 
trucks in February, the pace of vehicle sales has decelerated, hitting 13.7 annualized in 
May.  
 
- Scott McIntyre, First Southwest Asset Management 

204



 8

SUMMARY DATA 
 
Table 4 
 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
General Funds 

Security Type 
FY 12 – Q1 

Ending 
09/30/11 

FY 12 – Q2 
Ending 
12/31/11 

FY 12 – Q3 
Ending 
03/31/12 

FY 12 – Q4 
Ending 
06/30/12 

Money Market $30,687,565 $30,671,406 $24,556,931 $33,432,537 

Agency Securities $145,375,479 $168,421,183 $178,078,029 $168,842,838 

Treasury Notes $20,122,338 $10,068,188 $10,030,807 $8,053,238 

Treasury Bills $0 $0 $0 $0 

Commercial Paper $65,910,591 $70,394,215 $78,366,240 $67,872,524 
Repurchase 
Agreements $0 $0 $0 $0 

State Pool $70,818 $2,974,199 $52,355 529,637 
Totals: $262,166,791 $282,529,191 $291,084,362 $278,730,774 

Avg Yield 0.62 0.58 0.53 0.47 

Avg Maturity (Years) 1.07 1.03 1.04 0.98 

State Pool Yield 0.06 0.04 0.10 0.11 

 
 
Table 5 
 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
G.O. Bonds 2007

 
Security Type 

FY 12 – Q1 
Ending 
09/30/11 

FY 12 – Q2 
Ending 
12/31/11 

FY 12 – Q3 
Ending 
03/31/12 

FY 12 – Q4 
Ending 
06/30/12 

Money Market $3,003 $1,450,450 $1,192,802 $1,630,677

Agency Securities $0 $0 $0 $0

Treasury Notes $1,506,057 $1,503,435 $1,500,830 $1,010,212

Treasury Bills $0 $0 $0 $0

Commercial Paper $4,497,489 $0 $0 $0
Repurchase 
Agreements $0 $0 $0 $0

Totals: $6,006,549 $2,953,885 $2,693,632 $2,640,889

Avg Yield 0.46 0.20 0.17 0.08

Avg Maturity (Years)                  0.31                  0.16                  0.09                  0.36
 
 
 

205



 9

Table 6 
 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
G.O. Bonds 2009

 
Security Type 

FY 12 – Q1 
Ending 
09/30/11 

FY 12 – Q2 
Ending 
12/31/11 

FY 12 – Q3 
Ending 
03/31/12 

FY 12 – Q4 
Ending 
06/30/12 

Money Market $2,634,840 $3,646,226 $2,213,087 $3,209,367

Agency Securities $4,006,237 $2,000,316 $2,000,232 $2,000,148

Treasury Notes $4,016,153 $4,009,159 $4,002,213 $3,030,635

Treasury Bills $0 $0 $0 $0

Commercial Paper $7,991,233 $7,995,076 $8,980,572 $8,983,133
Repurchase 
Agreements $0 $0 $0 $0

Totals: $18,648,463 $17,650,777 $17,196,104 $17,223,283

Avg Yield 0.36 0.31 0.30 0.33

Avg Maturity (Years) 0.32 0.24 0.29 0.44

 
 
Table 7 
 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
G.O. Bonds 2010

 
Security Type 

FY 12 – Q1 
Ending 
09/30/11 

FY 12 – Q2 
Ending 
12/31/11 

FY 12 – Q3 
Ending 
03/31/12 

FY 12 – Q4 
Ending 
06/30/12 

Money Market $3,115,676 $2,724,759 $2,373,419 $2,844,971

Agency Securities $3,021,501 $3,014,092 $3,006,675 $0

Treasury Notes $0 $0 $0 $0

Treasury Bills $0 $0 $0 $0

Commercial Paper $6,493,634 $5,988,723 $4,982,278 $6,982,302
Repurchase 
Agreements $0 $0 $0 $0

Totals: $12,630,811 $11,727,574 $10,362,372 $9,827,273

Avg Yield 0.26 0.25 0.37 0.41

Avg Maturity (Years) 0.35 0.26 0.31 0.25

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

206



 10

Table 8 
 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
G.O. Bonds 2012*

 
Security Type 

FY 12 – Q1 
Ending 
09/30/11 

FY 12 – Q2 
Ending 
12/31/11 

FY 12 – Q3 
Ending 
03/31/12 

FY 12 – Q4 
Ending 
06/30/12 

Money Market $0 $0 $0 $10,863,973

Agency Securities $0 $0 $0 $0

Treasury Notes $0 $0 $0 $0

Treasury Bills $0 $0 $0 $0

Commercial Paper $0 $0 $0 $0
Repurchase 
Agreements $0 $0 $0 $0

Totals: $0 $0 $0 $10,863,973

Avg Yield 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Avg Maturity (Years) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

*   Bond proceeds received 6/28/12 
 
 
 

207



EXHIBIT 2
Page 1 of 2City of Peoria

Detail of Security Holdings
As of  06/30/2012

CUSIP Settle Date Sec. Type Sec. Description CPN Mty Date Next Call Call Type  Par Value Purch Price  Orig Cost  Book Value Mkt Price  Market Value Days to Mty

General Fund

WF-ADVGOV MMF Wells Fargo Adv Govt MMF 33,432,536.89 100.000 33,432,536.89 33,432,536.89 100.000 33,432,536.89 1
3024A0H65 11/10/11 CP - DISC FCAR Owner Trust 08/06/12 10,000,000.00 99.550 9,955,000.00 9,994,000.00 99.985 9,998,460.00 37
36959HH75 02/09/12 CP - DISC GE Capital Corp 08/07/12 8,000,000.00 99.840 7,987,200.00 7,997,368.88 99.984 7,998,736.00 38
36959HJ40 03/07/12 CP - DISC GE Capital Corp 09/04/12 8,000,000.00 99.839 7,987,128.89 7,995,377.76 99.963 7,997,064.00 66
36959HKB2 04/12/12 CP - DISC GE Capital Corp 10/11/12 5,000,000.00 99.833 4,991,658.33 4,995,325.00 99.937 4,996,855.00 103
31331JY56 09/23/11 AGCY BULET FFCB 0.400 11/02/12 5,000,000.00 100.173 5,008,650.00 5,002,625.45 100.080 5,004,000.00 125
89233GL53 02/10/12 CP - DISC Toyota Mtr Cr 11/05/12 5,000,000.00 99.559 4,977,956.94 4,989,593.05 99.900 4,995,020.00 128
3024A0L94 02/14/12 CP - DISC FCAR Owner Trust 11/09/12 4,000,000.00 99.537 3,981,468.89 3,990,975.56 99.897 3,995,892.00 132
3024A0L94 02/16/12 CP - DISC FCAR Owner Trust 11/09/12 4,000,000.00 99.540 3,981,606.67 3,990,975.56 99.897 3,995,892.00 132
89233GL95 02/17/12 CP - DISC Toyota Mtr Cr 11/09/12 6,000,000.00 99.535 5,972,070.00 5,986,245.00 99.897 5,993,838.00 132
313376HQ1 12/20/11 AGCY BULET FHLB 0.210 12/10/12 6,000,000.00 100.016 6,000,978.00 6,000,444.60 100.020 6,001,200.00 163
3137EACQ0 12/20/11 AGCY BULET FHLMC 0.625 12/28/12 9,580,000.00 100.438 9,621,941.24 9,600,183.43 100.200 9,599,160.00 181
3024A0NF8 04/20/12 CP - DISC FCAR Owner Trust 01/15/13 8,000,000.00 99.543 7,963,400.00 7,973,160.00 99.812 7,984,968.00 199
89233GPR1 05/31/12 CP - DISC Toyota Mtr Cr 02/25/13 10,000,000.00 99.543 9,954,250.00 9,959,502.80 99.633 9,963,330.00 240
313376KL8 03/29/12 AGCY BULET FHLB 0.400 06/21/13 9,500,000.00 100.154 9,514,658.50 9,511,613.85 100.130 9,512,350.00 356
31331JPK3 01/30/12 AGCY BULET FFCB 1.375 06/25/13 4,465,000.00 101.627 4,537,650.02 4,515,951.01 101.110 4,514,561.50 360
31331JPK3 03/12/12 AGCY BULET FFCB 1.375 06/25/13 7,900,000.00 101.405 8,010,995.00 7,984,906.44 101.110 7,987,690.00 360
313376GY5 01/23/12 AGCY BULET FHLB 0.330 07/01/13 10,000,000.00 100.084 10,008,400.00 10,005,843.10 100.060 10,006,000.00 366
3134G2SQ6 07/26/11 AGCY STEP FHLMC 0.400 07/26/13 07/26/12 ONE TIME 10,000,000.00 100.000 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 100.000 10,000,000.00 391
3136FPGA9 10/19/11 AGCY CALL FNMA 1.000 09/20/13 09/20/12 ONE TIME 8,000,000.00 100.558 8,044,640.00 8,010,664.24 100.050 8,004,000.00 447
3135G0EU3 10/25/11 AGCY CALL FNMA 0.625 10/25/13 10/25/12 QRTLY 8,000,000.00 100.000 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 100.080 8,006,400.00 482
3135G0FG3 01/19/12 AGCY CALL FNMA 0.600 11/14/13 11/14/12 ONE TIME 10,000,000.00 100.266 10,026,600.00 10,011,999.90 100.080 10,008,000.00 502
3135G0FS7 11/29/11 AGCY CALL FNMA 0.600 11/21/13 11/21/12 QRTLY 5,000,000.00 99.850 4,992,500.00 4,994,722.50 100.050 5,002,500.00 509
912828PL8 06/29/12 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury 0.750 12/15/13 8,000,000.00 100.668 8,053,437.50 8,053,238.00 100.640 8,051,200.00 533
3134G3BF6 02/09/12 AGCY BULET FHLMC 0.625 12/23/13 10,000,000.00 100.548 10,054,820.00 10,043,302.00 100.380 10,038,000.00 541
3134G3MM9 02/27/12 AGCY CALL FHLMC 0.400 02/27/14 02/27/13 ONE TIME 8,000,000.00 100.000 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 100.050 8,004,000.00 607
313379MX4 06/19/12 AGCY CALL FHLB 0.500 06/19/14 09/19/12 QRTLY 10,000,000.00 100.000 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 99.950 9,995,000.00 719
313379MX4 06/19/12 AGCY CALL FHLB 0.500 06/19/14 09/19/12 QRTLY 7,150,000.00 100.000 7,150,000.00 7,150,000.00 99.950 7,146,425.00 719
31398A3G5 03/29/12 AGCY BULET FNMA 1.500 09/08/14 7,025,000.00 102.382 7,192,335.50 7,174,915.05 102.040 7,168,310.00 800
3135G0EM1 11/07/11 AGCY CALL FNMA 1.000 11/07/14 11/07/12 QRTLY 5,000,000.00 100.000 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 100.200 5,010,000.00 860
3134G3BL3 12/05/11 AGCY CALL FHLMC 1.000 12/05/14 12/05/12 QRTLY 5,000,000.00 100.000 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 100.170 5,008,500.00 888
3133XW4A4 08/26/11 AGCY STEP FHLB 2.000 12/24/14 12/24/12 ONE TIME 4,800,000.00 102.049 4,898,352.00 4,835,666.74 100.650 4,831,200.00 907
3135G0LK7 06/04/12 AGCY CALL FNMA 0.750 06/04/15 12/04/12 QRTLY 10,000,000.00 100.000 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00 99.990 9,999,000.00 1,069
3136G0BT7 04/25/12 AGCY CALL FNMA 1.000 01/25/16 10/25/12 QRTLY 8,000,000.00 100.000 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 100.160 8,012,800.00 1,304

Total for  General Fund 277,852,536.89 278,300,234.37 278,201,136.81 278,262,888.39 391

208



EXHIBIT 2
Page 2 of 2City of Peoria

Detail of Security Holdings
As of  06/30/2012

CUSIP Settle Date Sec. Type Sec. Description CPN Mty Date Next Call Call Type  Par Value Purch Price  Orig Cost  Book Value Mkt Price  Market Value Days to Mty

GO Bond - Series 2007 A

WF-ADVGOV MMF Wells Fargo Adv Govt MMF 1,630,677.37 100.000 1,630,677.37 1,630,677.37 100.000 1,630,677.37 1
912828NC0 04/30/12 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury 1.375 05/15/13 1,000,000.00 101.219 1,012,187.50 1,010,211.61 100.980 1,009,800.00 319

Total for  GO Bond - Series 2007 A 2,630,677.37 2,642,864.87 2,640,888.98 2,640,477.37 123

GO Bond - Series 2009

WF-ADVGOV MMF Wells Fargo Adv Govt MMF 3,209,367.23 100.000 3,209,367.23 3,209,367.23 100.000 3,209,367.23 1
36959HH75 02/09/12 CP - DISC GE Capital Corp 08/07/12 3,000,000.00 99.840 2,995,200.00 2,999,013.33 99.984 2,999,526.00 38
89233GL95 02/17/12 CP - DISC Toyota Mtr Cr 11/09/12 4,000,000.00 99.535 3,981,380.00 3,990,830.00 99.897 3,995,892.00 132
313376HQ1 12/20/11 AGCY BULET FHLB 0.210 12/10/12 2,000,000.00 100.016 2,000,326.00 2,000,148.20 100.020 2,000,400.00 163
3024A0NF8 04/20/12 CP - DISC FCAR Owner Trust 01/15/13 2,000,000.00 99.543 1,990,850.00 1,993,290.00 99.812 1,996,242.00 199
912828NC0 04/30/12 TREAS NOTE U.S. Treasury 1.375 05/15/13 3,000,000.00 101.219 3,036,562.50 3,030,634.83 100.980 3,029,400.00 319

Total for  GO Bond - Series 2009 17,209,367.23 17,213,685.73 17,223,283.59 17,230,827.23 135

GO Bond - Series 2010

WF-ADVGOV MMF Wells Fargo Adv Govt MMF 2,844,970.93 100.000 2,844,970.93 2,844,970.93 100.000 2,844,970.93 1
89233GJ49 12/12/11 CP - DISC Toyota Mtr Cr 09/04/12 2,000,000.00 99.481 1,989,616.67 1,997,472.22 99.963 1,999,266.00 66
89233GL95 02/17/12 CP - DISC Toyota Mtr Cr 11/09/12 3,000,000.00 99.535 2,986,035.00 2,993,122.50 99.897 2,996,919.00 132
3024A0QB4 06/14/12 CP - DISC FCAR Owner Trust 03/11/13 2,000,000.00 99.558 1,991,150.00 1,991,707.22 99.612 1,992,238.00 254

Total for  GO Bond - Series 2010 9,844,970.93 9,811,772.60 9,827,272.87 9,833,393.93 105

GO Bond - Series 2012

WF-ADVGOV MMF Wells Fargo Adv Govt MMF 10,863,973.00 100.000 10,863,973.00 10,863,973.00 100.000 10,863,973.00 1

Total for  GO Bond - Series 2012 10,863,973.00 10,863,973.00 10,863,973.00 10,863,973.00 1

State Pool 529,637.00 529,637.00 529,637.00 529,637.00
Total for  City of Peoria 318,931,162.42 319,362,167.57 319,286,192.25 319,361,196.92 353

209



EXHIBIT 3 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 

                                                                                                       

               

 

Security Acronyms:   

AGCY – DISCO      Agency Discount Note 

AGCY – BULET      Agency Bullet 

AGCY – CALL      Agency Callable Note 

AGCY – STEP      Agency Step‐Up Note 

CP – DISC      Commercial Paper Discounted 

FFCB         Federal Farm Credit Bank   

FHLB        Federal Home Loan Bank  

FNMA         Federal National Mortgage Association or “Fannie Mae” 

FHLMC        Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or “Freddie Mac”   

FCAR Owner Trust    Ford Credit Asset Receivable  

GE Capital Corp     General Electric Capital Corp  

MMF        Money Market Fund 

 

Security Definitions: 

Agency Notes  ‐   A debt security  issued by a  federal or  federally sponsored agency.   These are widely 

considered  to be  among  the  safest  types of  fixed  income  securities,  although  they  are not  explicitly 

guaranteed  by  the  Federal  government,  there  is  a  market  peerception  that  there  is  an  implicit 

government guarantee.   The following are Government‐Related Enterprises, originally created by an act 

of  Congress:    Federal  Farm  Credit  Bank,  Federal  Home  Loan  Bank,  Federal  National  Mortgage 

Association (Fannie Mae) and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac).     

  Federal  Farm Credit Bank  (FFCB)  ‐  The  Federal  Farm Credit Bank  System  is  the oldest of  the 

  government  sponsored  enterprises,  created  by  an  act  of  congress  in  1916.    Its mission  is  to 

  provide a reliable and low cost source of funds to support agriculture in the United States.  FFCB 

  debt obligations are highly liquid and its senior debt is AAA‐rated. Yields on FFCB obligations are 

  often slightly lower than yields on FHLB, FNMA or FHLMC obligations because they issue fewer 

  bonds and are in demand as portfolio diversifiers. 

210



EXHIBIT 3 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) ‐ The Federal Home Loan Bank system was created by an act of 

  Congress  in  1932  as  a  system of  12  regional banks  that provide  funds  to  its member banks. 

  FHLB’s  primary mission  is  to  support  residential  and  community  lending.  Its membership  of 

  more  than 8,000  financial  institutions  includes savings banks, commercial banks, credit unions 

  and  insurance companies active  in housing finance. FHLB debt obligations are highly  liquid and 

  its senior debt is AAA‐rated.  

  Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or “Fannie Mae”) ‐ Fannie Mae was chartered in 

  1938 under  the Federal National Mortgage Association Act  to provide a secondary market  for 

  mortgage  loans  in  the  United  States,  by  purchasing  existing  home  loans  and  pooling  them 

  together to create mortgage‐backed securities that can them be sold to investors, along with a 

  guaranty of  the  timely payment of principal and  interest on  the underlying  loans. Fannie Mae 

  was  privatized  in  1968,  and  operated  as  a  private  stockholder‐owned  company  for  40  years 

  before  the  housing market  collapse  forced  them  into  federal  government  conservatorship  in 

  September 2008. Fannie Mae currently continues operation under government control and has 

  been instrumental in the government’s attempts to revive the housing sector. Fannie Mae debt 

  obligations are highly liquid and its senior debt is AAA‐rated.  

  Federal  Home  Loan  Mortgage  Corporation  (FHLMC  or  “Freddie  Mac”)  ‐    Freddie  Mac  was 

  created by an act of Congress  in 1970 as a shareholder‐owned company to further expand the 

  secondary  market  for  mortgage  loans  in  the  United  States.    Freddie  Mac  buys  existing 

  mortgages and pools them together to create mortgage‐backed securities that can then be sold 

  to  investors, thereby providing  liquidity to  lenders who can then make additional  loans.   Along 

  with Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac was placed into government conservatorship in September 2008, 

  but  continues  full  operations  under  government  control  and  has  been  instrumental  in  the 

  government’s attempt to revive the housing sector. Freddie Mac securities are highly liquid and 

  its senior debt is AAA‐rated.     

Agency Bullet‐ An agency  security  that matures at a  single point  in  time and does not  feature a  call 

option. This security will earn a fixed rate of  interest and the entire face value will be returned to the 

investor at maturity. The security does not amortize or make periodic payments of principal. 

Agency  Callable  ‐  An  agency  security where  the  issuer  has  the  option  to  call  the  security  away,  or 

redeem it,  prior to maturity. This allows the issuer to return principal to the investor prior to the stated 

maturity date. 

Agency Discount Note ‐ Similar to a Treasury Bill, an agency discount note is a zero coupon bond sold at 

a  discount  to  face  value. At maturity  the  investor will  receive  face  value.  The  income  earned  is  the 

difference between the cost paid for the security and its face value. 

211



EXHIBIT 3 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

Agency Step‐Up Note ‐ An agency security that provides for the fixed rate of interest to adjust, or “step‐

up” at predetermined  intervals based on a specific schedule. The schedule may  include one or several 

rate adjustments over the  life of the security. In most cases, the security  is also callable at the step‐up 

dates. 

Commerical Paper  – An unsecured short –term promissory note issued by corporations, with maturities 

ranging  from  2  to  270  days.    Examples  of  commercial  paper  include  Ford  Credit  Asset  Receivable, 

General Electric Capital Corporation,  Johns Hopkins Health System  and Toyota Motor Credit.   

Treasury   Bill – Short‐term U.S. government non‐interest bearing debt securities with maturities of no 

longer than one year and issued in minimum denominations of $10,000. 

Treasury Note  ‐   U.S. government debt securities with maturities of ten years or  longer, and  issued  in 

minimum denominations of $1,000. 

  

 

212



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  July 30, 2012 Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012 
 

 
TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Scott Whyte, Economic Development Services Director 
 
THROUGH: Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008, Ventana Picachos,  
  Northeast Corner 89th Avenue & Calle Lejos 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
This is a request for City Council to approve a Petition for Formation, adopt the Resolution of 
Intention, and Resolution Ordering the Improvements for a proposed Maintenance 
Improvement District No. 1008, Ventana Picachos, located at the Northeast corner of 89th 
Avenue & Calle Lejos, as well as authorize the City Clerk to record the Maintenance 
Improvement District with the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office subject to the following 
stipulations: 
 

1. All civil and landscape/irrigation plans must be approved by the City of Peoria (City) 
prior to recordation of the Maintenance Improvement District; 

 

2. The final plat for the subdivision must be approved by City Council and recorded 
with the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office prior to recordation of the Maintenance 
Improvement District; and 

 
3. The developer must provide a fully executed Petition, Waiver and Consent to 

Formation of a Municipal Improvement District.  
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The purpose of the Maintenance Improvement District is for the operation, maintenance, repair 
and improvements to landscaping adjacent to designated public roadways and parkways within 
the proposed district , as well as drainage and retention within each proposed district.   Until such 
time as the Homeowner’s Association fails, and the Council directs City staff to assume 
maintenance responsibility, the additional charge to the residents will show as $0.00 on their 
property tax bills. 
 
Pursuant to the provision of A.R.S. 48-574, et. seq., the Mayor and Council are empowered to 

213

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 21



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 3 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

adopt a Resolution ordering the formation of a Maintenance Improvement District.  A Petition 
and Resolution of Intention are attached for formation of City of Peoria Maintenance 
Improvement District No. 1008, Ventana Picachos, located at the Northeast corner of 89th 
Avenue & Calle Lejos.  In this special situation, in which all of the property owners have 
presented a petition for formation, the ordinary publication and protest period are not required 
by law, and the Council may then adopt a Resolution ordering the improvements when 
necessary once the Resolution of Intention is first adopted. The Resolution Ordering the 
improvements finalizes the formation of the Maintenance Improvement District process. 
 
Under Arizona State law, commencing in October 2013, the residents will receive an additional 
charge on their property tax bill for maintenance of the landscape, irrigation and drainage 
improvements, located adjacent to and within the public rights-of-way and tracts. However, 
until such time as the Homeowner’s Association fails, and the Council directs City staff to 
assume maintenance responsibility, the additional charge to the residents will be $0.00.  In 
accordance with State statute, an assessment diagram and map, listing each parcel of property 
within the district has been prepared. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
The final plat for Ventana Picachos was approved by the City on March 7, 2006 and recorded 
with the County. 
  
Options:  
 
A: The Maintenance Improvement District has been approved through the Economic 
Development Services Department.  An option would be to not accept the proposed 
Maintenance Improvement District; although it should be noted that not approving the 
Maintenance Improvement District will prevent any additional charges from being assessed on 
the property tax bills for those properties located within the District, and any and all fees 
incurred by the City of Peoria as a result of assuming the maintenance responsibility would be 
paid using City of Peoria funds. 
 
B:  The other option would be to formally approve the Maintenance Improvement District to 
allow for the taxing district to be recorded and in place in the event the Homeowner’s 
Association fails. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the approval and subsequent recordation of the attached Petition for 
Formation, Resolution of Intention to Create, and Resolution Declaring Intention to Order. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       

214



Council Communication   
Page 3 of 3 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

There is no direct budgetary impact to the City to approve the Maintenance Improvement 
District.  However, the City would incur the additional charges associated with the maintenance 
responsibilities should the taxing district not be approved and recorded, and the Homeowner’s 
Association fail. 
 
 
Narrative:   
 
The acceptance of this Maintenance Improvement District will allow any additional charges 
associated with the maintenance reponsibilities should the Homeowner’s Association fail, to be 
assessed on the property tax bill for the properties located within the District. 
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  Petition for Formation 
 
Exhibit 2:  Proposed Resolution of Intention to Create 
 
Exhibit 3:  Proposed Resolution Declaring Intention to Order 
 
 
Contact Name and Number:   
 
Traci Varland, Engineering Technician II, x7612 

215



216



217



218



219



220



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2012-94 
 
  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF PEORIA, ARIZONA, DECLARING ITS INTENTION 
TO CREATE AN IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT TO 
MAINTAIN LANDSCAPING INCLUDED WITHIN, NEAR 
AND ADJACENT TO A PARKWAY AND RELATED 
FACILITIES TOGETHER WITH APPURTENANT 
STRUCTURES AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS, FOR 
MAINTENANCE WITHIN AN AREA IN THE CITY OF 
PEORIA AS DESCRIBED HEREIN; ADOPTING PLANS 
FOR CITY OF PEORIA MAINTENANCE 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1008, VENTANA 
PICACHOS, AS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
HEREIN, AND DECLARING THE WORK OR 
IMPROVEMENT TO BE OF MORE THAN LOCAL OR 
ORDINARY PUBLIC BENEFIT, AND THAT THE COST 
OF SAID WORK OR IMPROVEMENT SHALL BE 
ASSESSED UPON A CERTAIN DISTRICT, AND 
PROVIDING THAT THE PROPOSED WORK OR 
IMPROVEMENT SHALL BE PERFORMED UNDER 
ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES TITLE 48, CHAPTER 4, 
ARTICLE 2, AND AMENDMENTS THERETO AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
  WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona, 
declare that the Maintenance of the landscaping included within, near and adjacent to 
a parkway and related facilities in the District to be of more than local or ordinary 
public benefit, and further that the cost of said maintenance shall be assessed on a 
certain District; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona, 
declare that the maintenance of landscaping included within, near, and adjacent to a 
parkway and related facilities in the District is incidental to the maintenance and 
preservation of the parkway and related facilities, has aesthetic value, and maintains 
and increases the value of property within the District; and 

221



Resolution No. 2012-94 
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 2 of 10 Pages 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council declares that the maintenance of 
landscaping included within and adjacent to a parkway and related facilities preserves 
and promotes the health, safety, and welfare of those citizens of the City of Peoria 
living within the District as well as preservation of the streets and parkways which may 
be adversely impacted by drainage and other water formations; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City of Peoria declares that the maintenance of a 
landscaped buffer between a parkway and the adjacent developments reduces the 
visual and other impact of light, air and noise pollution and tends to increase personal 
and vehicular safety on the parkway and decreases the likelihood vehicular accidents 
will harm adjacent developments in furtherance of the health, safety and welfare of 
those citizens of the City living within the District; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council declares that maintenance of landscaped 
drainage and other water control facilities and features within, near or adjacent to a 
parkway and related facilities tends to preserve the structural integrity of the parkway 
and mitigates flooding of adjacent areas and the structural integrity of the parkway 
and mitigates flooding of adjacent areas and the parkway by draining water to and 
from the parkway in furtherance of the health, safety and welfare of those citizens of 
the City of Peoria living within the District: 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEORIA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  Section 1. Definitions. 
 
  In this Resolution, the following terms shall have the following 
meanings: 
 
  "Assessment Diagrams" shall mean those duplicate diagrams of the 
property contained in the Assessment District is to be filed with the Clerk and 
approved by the Mayor and Council. 
 
  "Assessment District" shall mean the lots, pieces or parcels of land 
lying within the boundaries described on Exhibit B attached hereto and as shown on 
the map on file with the City Engineer. 
 
 
 
 
 

222



Resolution No. 2012-94 
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 3 of 10 Pages 
   
  "City" shall mean the City of Peoria, Arizona. 
 
  "City Council" or "Council" shall mean the Mayor and Council of the 
City. 
  "Clerk" shall mean the City Clerk. 
 
  "Engineer" shall mean City Engineer.  
 
  "Lots" shall mean all lots, pieces or parcels of land lying within the 
Assessment District. 
 
  "Parkways" shall mean those streets and rights-of-way which are 
designated in Exhibit B as "Parkways," and specifically those portions of Pedestrian 
Facilities, Parks, Retention, Detention and Storm Water Management Facilities 
included within or adjacent to the Assessment District. 
 
  "Plans and Specifications" shall mean the engineer's estimate for the 
Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008 filed with the Clerk prior to the adoption 
of this Resolution. 
 
  "Superintendent of Streets" shall mean the City Engineer.  
 
  Section 2. Declaration of Intention to Order an 
     Improvement. 
 
  The public interest or convenience requires, and it is the intention of the 
Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona, to order the following work, 
hereinafter "Work," to be performed, to wit: 
 
  The maintenance of all landscaping, including replacement of  
  landscape materials, in the area generally described as follows: 
 
  SEE EXHIBIT "A", LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF CITY OF PEORIA MAINTENANCE 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1008 
 
  The Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona designate as 
parkways, those areas set forth on Exhibit "B” Assessment Diagram in accordance 
with Title 48, Chapter 4, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes.  The public interest and 
convenience require, and it is the intention of the City Council to order the Work 
adjacent to the designated parkways to be performed as stated herein.  All items of 
the Work shall be performed as prescribed by the Plans and Specifications hereby  

223



Resolution No. 2012-94 
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 4 of 10 Pages 
 
approved and adopted by the Council and on file in the Office of the City Engineer 
and no assessment for any lot shall exceed its proportion of the Estimate. The 
estimate of the cost and expenses of the work or improvements on file in the offices of 
the Superintendent of Streets and the Clerk of the City are hereby approved and 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City.  In addition to the requirements of law, 
the procedures set forth in the City Code will be followed regarding acceptance of 
bids and setting tax levies.  For purposes of this Resolution and of all resolutions, 
ordinances and notices pertaining to this Resolution, the improvement as herein 
described is hereby designated City of Peoria Maintenance Improvement District No. 
1008. 
 
  Section 3. Determination of Need. 
 
  In the opinion of the City Council, the Work is of more than local or 
ordinary public benefit.  The City Council hereby orders that all amounts due or to 
become due with respect to the Work shall be chargeable upon the respective lots, 
pieces and parcels of land within the Assessment District. 
 
  Section 4. Preparation of Assessment Diagrams. 
 
  The City Engineer is hereby authorized and directed to prepare 
duplicate diagrams (Assessment Diagrams) of the property contained within the 
Assessment District.  The diagrams shall show each separate lot, numbered 
consecutively, the approximate area in square feet of each lot, and the location of the 
lot in relation to the work proposed to be done. 
 
  Section 5. Exclusion of Certain Property. 
 
  Any public street or alley within the boundaries of the Assessment 
District is hereby omitted from the assessment hereafter to be made.  Any lot 
belonging to the United States, the State, a county, city, school district or any political 
subdivision or institution of the State or county, which is included within the 
Assessment District shall be omitted from the assessment hereafter made. 
 
  Section 6. Officers Not Liable. 
 
  In no event will the City of Peoria or any officer thereof be liable for any 
portion of the cost of said Improvement District nor for any delinquency of persons or 
property assessed. 
 
 

224



Resolution No. 2012-94 
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 5 of 10 Pages 
 
  Section 7. Annual Statement. 
 
  The City Council shall make annual statements and estimates of the 
expenses of the District which shall be provided for by the levy and collection of ad 
valorem taxes upon the assessed value of all real and personal property in the District 
as provided in A.R.S. § 48-574 and amendments thereto. 
 
  Section 8. Statutory Authority. 
 
  The Work and all proceedings pertaining thereto shall be performed 
under the provisions of Title 48, Article 2, specifically Section 48-574, and all 
amendments thereto and pursuant to Article I, Section 3, (8) of the Peoria City 
Charter. 
 
  Section 9. Delegation of Authority. 
 
  The City Engineer is hereby authorized to fill in any blanks and to make 
any minor corrections necessary to complete the Plans and Specifications and the 
Contract Documents. 
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Peoria, Arizona, this _____ day of _________________, 2012. 
  
 ________________________ 
                                                                                                  Bob Barrett, Mayor           
  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________                                                    
Wanda Nelson, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________________                                                        
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 
 
 
 

225



Resolution No. 2012-94 
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 6 of 10 Pages 
 
 
 CERTIFICATION OF CITY ENGINEER 
 
  I hereby certify that I have read the description set out under the 
definition "Assessment District" and approve the same.  I further certify that I have 
read the description set out under the definition "Work" and approve the same. 
 

                                                                    
______________________________ 

      Andrew Granger, Engineering Director 
 
 
 
 CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
 
  I hereby certify that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 2012-94 
duly passed by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona at a regular 
meeting held on _________________, 2012 and that a quorum was present there 
and that the vote thereon was _______ ayes and _______ nays.  ______ were no 
vote or absent. 

     
                            
                             
__________________________ 

       City Clerk, City of Peoria 
 
 
 
 
 

226



227



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

   Resolution No. 2012-94 

 

 

 

 
 

 EXHIBIT "B" 

 

 

 IS ON FILE IN THE 

 

 

 CITY OF PEORIA 

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

8401 W. Monroe Street 

Peoria, AZ 85345 

 

228



229



Resolution No. 2012-94 
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 9 of 10 Pages 
 
 CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA 
 
 NOTICE  
 

OF THE PASSAGE OF A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE 
IMPROVEMENT CONSISTING OF AUTHORIZING THE 
MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPING INCLUDED WITHIN, 
NEAR, AND ADJACENT TO A PARKWAY AND RELATED 
FACILITIES TOGETHER WITHIN APPURTENANT 
STRUCTURES AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS FOR THE 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT KNOWN AS CITY OF PEORIA 
MAINTENANCE  IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1008, 
VENTANA PICACHOS. 

 
This notice is given pursuant to the provisions of Title 48, Chapter 4, Article 2, Sections 
48-571 to 48-619, both inclusive, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended.   
 
On the 21st day of August 2012 the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria adopted 
Resolution No. 2012-94; ordering the improvements of maintaining landscaping included 
within, near, and adjacent to a parkway and related facilities together within appurtenant 
structures shown on the plans, within the corporate limits of the City and creating an 
Improvement District known as the City of Peoria Maintenance Improvement District No. 
1008, pursuant to Title 48, Chapter 4, Arizona Revised Statutes; and amendments thereto 
for the purpose of maintaining landscaping included within, near, and adjacent to a 
parkway and related facilities together within appurtenant structures, which includes a 
charge for the maintenance of landscaping and other related items, together with all 
appurtenant structures as shown on the plans; and directing that this notice been given.  
 
Any owner, or any other person having an interest in any lot, piece or parcel of land 
situated within the above-described assessment district, who claims that any of the 
provisions, acts or proceedings relative to the above described improvements are 
irregular, defective, illegal, erroneous or faulty, may file with the City Clerk, Room 150, 
8401 West Monroe Street, Peoria, Arizona 85345, within 15 days from the date of the first 
publication of this notice, a written notice specifying in what way said acts or proceedings 
are irregular, defective, illegal, erroneous or faulty. 
 
Further information concerning City of Peoria Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008 
may be obtained by contacting Mr. Andrew Granger, Engineering Director, City of Peoria, 
Arizona, 8401 West Monroe, Peoria, Arizona 85345, (623) 773-7367. 
 
 
 
 

230



 
Resolution No. 2012-94 
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 10 of 10 Pages 
 
 
 

DATED AND SIGNED this _____ day of _______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
__________________________ 

             Andrew Granger             
    Acting Superintendent of Streets 
           City of Peoria, Arizona           

 
 
 

231



 

 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2012- 95          
 

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF PEORIA, ARIZONA DECLARING ITS INTENTION TO 
ORDER THE IMPROVEMENTS OF A CERTAIN AREA 
WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY AND 
CREATING AN IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT KNOWN AS THE 
CITY OF PEORIA MAINTENANCE IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 1008, VENTANA PICACHOS; PROVIDING 
THAT THE COST OF THE MAINTENANCE OF THE 
LANDSCAPING INCLUDED WITHIN, NEAR, AND ADJACENT 
TO A PARKWAY AND RELATED FACILITIES TOGETHER 
WITH APPURTENANT STRUCTURES AS SHOWN ON THE 
PLANS, SHALL BE ASSESSED UNDER THE PROVISIONS 
OF TITLE 48, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 2, ARIZONA REVISED 
STATUTES, AS AMENDED; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

PEORIA, ARIZONA, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1.  The public interest or convenience require and it is the 
intention of the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona to order the maintenance 
of landscaping within the proposed district and that the cost of maintaining landscaping 
included within, near, and adjacent to a parkway and related facilities together with 
appurtenant structures be assessed upon a certain improvement district to be known as 
Peoria Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008. 
 

The estimate of the cost and expenses for the maintenance of the 
landscaping on file with the Superintendent of Streets and the City Clerk is approved and 
adopted by the Mayor and Council of the City. 

 
SECTION 2.  The maintenance of the landscaping, therefore, in the opinion 

of the Mayor and Council of the City, are of more than local or ordinary public benefit, and 
are of special benefit to the respective lots, pieces and parcels of land within the real 
property described herein.  The Mayor and Council of the City make and order that the 
cost and expense for the maintenance of the landscaping included within, near, and 
adjacent to a parkway and related facilities together with appurtenant structures be 

232



Resolution No. 2012- 95          
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 2 of 5 Pages 
 

chargeable upon a district to be known and designated as the City of Peoria Maintenance 
Improvement District No. 1008 and as described and bounded as set forth on Exhibits A 
and B attached, and declare that the district in the City benefited by the maintenance of 
landscaping included within, near, and adjacent to a parkway and related facilities together 
with appurtenant structures to be assessed, to pay the costs and expenses thereof in 
proportion to the benefits derived therefrom. 
 
The City shall not assess the costs and expenses for the maintenance of landscaping 
included within, near, and adjacent to a parkway and related facilities together with 
appurtenant structures, which are for the general public benefit against the respective lots, 
pieces and parcels of land located within the boundaries of the City of Peoria Maintenance 
Improvement District No. 1008 and if a portion of the costs and expenses for the 
maintenance of landscaping is for the general public benefit, the City shall assess the 
boundaries of the City of Peoria Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008 only that 
portion of such costs and expenses which benefits the lots, pieces and parcels of land 
located within the boundaries of the City of Peoria Maintenance Improvement District No. 
1008. 
 

SECTION 3.  The costs and expense for the maintenance of landscaping 
shall be made and all proceedings therein taken; that the Superintendent of Streets of the 
City shall post or cause to be posted notices thereof; that the City Clerk shall certify to the 
passage of this Resolution of Intention; that the Engineer shall prepare duplicate diagrams 
of the City of Peoria Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008 described in Section 2 of 
this Resolution to be assessed to pay the costs and expenses thereof, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of Title 48, Chapter 4, Article 2, Arizona Revised Statutes, 
as amended.  
 

SECTION 4.  The majority of owners of all of the real property within the 
proposed district have executed a Petition for formation of a Maintenance Improvement 
District and the City Council has verified the ownership of the property.  Publication and 
posting of the notice of the passage of the Resolution of Intention will be completed as 
prescribed by the State Statues. 
 

SECTION 5.  Any Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict with the 
provisions of this Resolution are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 6.  The immediate operation of the provisions of this Resolution is 
necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety and an emergency is 
declared to exist, and this Resolution will be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, Arizona as required 

233



Resolution No. 2012- 95          
MID 1008 – Ventana Picachos 
August 21, 2012 
Page 3 of 5 Pages 
 

by law and is exempt from the referendum provisions of the Constitution and laws of the 
State of Arizona. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and Council of the City 
of Peoria, Arizona, this 21st day of August, 2012. 
 
 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Bob Barrett, Mayor                 

 
Date Signed: ____________________             

                               
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Wanda Nelson, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 
 
 
 

234



235



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

   Resolution No. 2012-95 

 

 

 

 
 

 EXHIBIT "B" 

 

 

 IS ON FILE IN THE 

 

 

 CITY OF PEORIA 

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

8401 W. Monroe Street 

Peoria, AZ 85345 

 

236



237



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  July 10, 2012  Council Meeting Date:  August 21, 2012 
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager   
 
FROM:   Andy Granger, P.E., Engineering Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Deeds and Easements, Various Locations  
 

 
Purpose: 
 
This  is  a  request  for City Council  to  adopt  a Resolution  accepting Deeds  and  Easements  for 
various  Real  Property  interests  acquired  by  the  City.    The  deeds  and  easements  have  been 
recorded by the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office and this process will formally accept them 
into the system. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The  City  of  Peoria  periodically  acquires  a  number  of  property  interests  including  deeds, 
roadway dedications and various types of easements.  All documents are reviewed for accuracy 
and  recorded.   A Resolution  to accept  these documents has been prepared, which  lists each 
document  by  recording  number  and  provides  information  related  to  each  so  the  property 
interest to be accepted can be identified. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
This  is  an ongoing process which occurs when we have  acquired  a number of  real property 
interests. 
 
Options: 
 
A:  Approve  the  adoption  of  the  Resolution  accepting  Deeds  and  Easements  into  our 

system. 
 
B:  Deny adoption of  the Resolution  that  formally accepts  the Deeds and Easements  into 

our  system,  resulting  in  the  City  not  having  an  official  record  of  what  has  been 
transferred to the City through recordation in the Maricopa County Recorder’s office. 

   

238

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 22



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 2  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff  recommends  the  adoption  of  a Resolution  accepting Deeds  and  Easements  for  various 
Real Property  interests acquired by the City and previously recorded by the Maricopa County 
Recorder’s Office to ensure completeness of the process. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the City. 
 
Narrative: 
 
This Resolution  includes Real Property  interests  acquired  since  the  adoption of  the previous 
acceptance resolution.  The acceptance of the Resolution by City Council would bring the deeds 
and easements into our system and is the final step in the process. 
 
Exhibit(s): 
 
Exhibit 1:  Resolution 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Kris Luna, Sr Real Property Administrator, (623) 773‐7199 

239



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-96 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF PEORIA, MARICOPA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA ADOPTING A RESOLUTION FORMALLY 
ACCEPTING DEEDS AND EASEMENTS FOR 
PROPERTY RIGHTS CONVEYED TO THE CITY OF 
PEORIA. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the real estate interests hereinafter referenced have been 

conveyed to the City of Peoria; 
 
WHEREAS, it is to the advantage of the City of Peoria to accept said real 

property interests; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that acquisition of these property 

interests is in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Peoria, Maricopa County, Arizona as follows: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the following real property interests are hereby 

accepted by the City of Peoria and referenced by the recording number issued by the 
Maricopa County Recorder’s Office. 

 
 

New River Trail Project     Rose Garden Lane & 
Riverview Acres, LLC     77th Avenue Alignment 
SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 
Maricopa County Recording No. 2012-0557144 
(Project No. EN00371) 
 
Clean-Up - 79th Avenue & Camino de Oro  SEC 79th Ave & Camino De Oro 
John A. & Joanne Snavely 
QUIT CLAIM DEED – ROADWAY EASEMENT 
Maricopa County Recording No. 1997-0413550 
  

240



Resolution No. 2012-96 
Acceptance of Deeds and Easements  
August 21, 2012 
Page: 2 
 
 
Clean-Up – 71st Avenue & Villa Lindo   East of 71st Avenue 
Devlin, Ralph & Janet     north side of Villa Lindo 
EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC WATER LINE 
Maricopa County Recording No. 2003-1559635 
 
 
Clean-Up – 71st Avenue & Villa Lindo   East of 71st Avenue 
Devlin, Ralph & Janet     north side of Villa Lindo 
EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC WATER LINE 
Maricopa County Recording No. 2003-1559636 
 
 
Spirit of Grace Church     71st Avenue & Cactus Road 
Spirit of Grace Church of God 
DEDICATION OF PUBLIC ROADWAY 
Maricopa County Recording No. 2012-0550158 
(Project No. R110026 / Deed12-012) 
 
 
Ventana Picachos      89th Avenue & Calle Lejos Road 
Shea Homes of Phoenix 
STORMWATER/SURFACE CROSS DRAINAGE EASEMENT 
Maricopa County Recording No. 2012-0521434 
(Project No. R120017 / Deed12-013) 
 
 

SECTION 2.  Public Easement and Land Rights 
 

That the Mayor and Council accept the deeds and public easements 
transferred to the City of Peoria as described herein. 

 
 
SECTION 3. Recording Authorized 

 
That the City Clerk shall record the original of this Resolution with the 

Maricopa County Recorder's Office.  
  

241



Resolution No. 2012-96 
Acceptance of Deeds and Easements  
August 21, 2012 
Page: 3 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, 
Arizona, this 21st day of August 2012. 
 
  
                                   _______________________________ 
                                                                              Bob Barrett, Mayor               
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 

242



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  July 10, 2012  Council Meeting Date:  August 21, 2012 
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Andy Granger, P.E., Engineering Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Designate Roadways, Establish Rights‐of‐Way, Various Locations 
 
 

 
Purpose: 
 
This is a request for City Council to adopt a Resolution designating various Real Properties to be 
used as City roadways and authorize the establishment of Public Rights‐of‐Way to be opened 
and maintained by the City as a Public Street.  The deeds and easements have been recorded by 
the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office and this process will formally incorporate them into the 
system. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The City of Peoria has, by separate Resolution, accepted each right‐of‐way to be designated as a 
public street.   The attached Resolution  lists each document that conveyed the property rights 
to be designated as public rights‐of‐way.  The description found in the attached Resolution lists 
each document by recording number and provides information related to each.  The individual 
description also identifies the type of roadway and type of improvement for each parcel. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
This is an ongoing process that occurs after real property has been accepted into our system. 
 
Options: 
 
A:  Approve the adoption of the Resolution designating various Real Property to be used as 

City  roadways and authorize  the establishment of Public Rights‐of‐Way  to be opened 
and maintained by the city as a Public Street. 

   

243

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 23



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 2  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

 
B:  City Council denies the formal designation of various Real Property into our system.  The 

result would be that the Public Rights‐of‐Way would not be maintained by the City as a 
Public Street. 

 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the adoption of a Resolution designating various Real Properties to be used 
as City roadways and maintained by the City. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
There is no significant fiscal impact to the City. 
 
Narrative: 
 
The adoption of the Resolution by City Council would bring the Real Property interests into our 
maintenance system and is the final step in the process. 
 
Exhibit(s): 
 
Exhibit 1:  Resolution 
 
Contact Name and Number:   Kris Luna, Sr Real Property Administrator, (623) 773‐7199 

244



 
 
 
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2012-97   
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF PEORIA, MARICOPA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA ADOPTING A RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF PUBLIC 
STREETS, TO BE OPENED AND MAINTAINED BY 
THE CITY. 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City find and determine that the 

public health, safety and welfare require the establishment of public streets to be 
opened and maintained by the City; 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council are vested with the authority pursuant 
to Article 1, Section 3 (6) of the Peoria City Charter and Section 23-18 of the Peoria City 
Code (1992) to establish the general location and routing of public streets; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Engineering Director of the City having submitted a map 

indicating the general location of the proposed public streets and recommends the 
acceptance of the street by the City for inclusion in the City Street system. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the 
City of Peoria as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  Recommendation of Engineering Director to Establish a 
Public Street. 

 
That the Mayor and Council find and determine that it is in the interest of 

the public health, safety and welfare of the city to accept the recommendation of the 
Engineering Director to establish public streets in accordance with the general location 
set forth herein and accept the street for inclusion in the city street system and 
designate the streets for inclusion on the street classification map required by this 
chapter.   

 
SECTION 2.  Designation of a Public Street 

 
That the Mayor and Council find and determine that the proposed public 

streets, as described below shall be designated to be either a major arterial, a minor 
arterial, a collector street or a local street, to be opened as a public street and 
maintained by the City. 
  

245



Resolution No. 2012-97 
Authorizing Establishment of Public Streets 
August 21, 2012 
Page 2  
 
 
Spirit of Grace Church     71st Avenue and Cactus Road 
Spirit of Grace Church of God 
DEDICATION OF PUBLIC ROADWAY 
Maricopa County Recording No. 2012-0550158 
(Project No. R110026 / Deed12-012) 
 
 
 

SECTION 3.  Amendment of Plans and Maps 
 
That the Mayor and Council find and determine that the Transportation 

Plan of the City’s general plan, the street classification map and the local streets plan 
shall be amended in the manner required by law to reflect the addition of a public street 
as set forth herein. 

 
SECTION 4.  Signage, Posting and Effective Date 

 
(a) That the Engineering Director or his designee are authorized to 

post such signage as deemed appropriate to indicate the existence of a public roadway 
and to provide for the safe and orderly movement of vehicular and pedestrian traffic on 
the public streets as set forth herein. 

(b) That the City Attorney or his designee shall draft and submit the 
ordinances necessary to establish a speed limit for the public streets as set forth herein. 

(c) That this Resolution shall become effective sixty-days after 
enactment by the City Council. 
  

246



Resolution No. 2012-97 
Authorizing Establishment of Public Streets 
August 21, 2012 
Page 3  
 
 
 
  SECTION 5. Recording Authorized 
 
  That the City Clerk shall record the original of this Resolution with the 
Maricopa County Recorder’s Office. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, 

Peoria, Arizona this 21st day of August 2012. 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
                                                                                  Bob Barrett, Mayor                
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 

247



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:  August 2, 2012  Council Meeting Date:  August 21, 2012 
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Andy Granger, P.E., Engineering Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Abandonment of Public Utility Easement, 75th Avenue and Thunderbird Road 
 

 
Purpose: 
 
This  is  a  request  for  City  Council  to  authorize  the  abandonment  of  a  portion  of  the  City’s 
interest in a Public Utility Easement, located along the south side of Thunderbird Road west of 
75th Avenue. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The City is currently constructing the improvements to widen the 75th Avenue and Thunderbird 
Road intersection.  Expansion of the intersection requires the relocation of any utilities that are 
in  conflict with  the new  improvements.   There  is an existing Salt River Project  irrigation  line 
located under the eastbound travel lanes of Thunderbird Road west of 75th Avenue.  The United 
States of America Bureau of Reclamation  (BOR) holds  the  land  rights  for  the area where  the 
irrigation  line  is  located  and  is  requiring  the City  to  relocate  the  irrigation  line  and  the  land 
rights to outside of the travel lanes. 
 
In order for the  irrigation  line to be relocated the City will exchange  land rights with the BOR.  
The BOR does not allow other utilities to run parallel to their facilities within the easement.  The 
City, in conjunction with the utility companies, has designed all utility relocations to fall outside 
of the ultimate BOR exchange area.  In order for the land exchange to occur, the City will have 
to abandon that portion of the existing 8‐foot wide public utility easement that falls within the 
new BOR land rights. 
 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
Salt River Project has agreed to relocate the portions of their irrigation lines that are in conflict 
with our new roadway improvements.   

248

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 24



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 2  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Options: 
 
A:  Approve the abandonment, removing this title encumbrance from the property, which 

will allow  for  the  relocation of  the  irrigation  line and ultimate exchange of  land  rights 
with the BOR. 

 
B:  Deny  the  abandonment  maintaining  the  current  easement  encumbrance  on  the 

property, resulting in the City’s inability to complete construction of the improvements 
for the eastbound leg of Thunderbird Road west of 75th Avenue. 

 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff  recommends  the  adoption  of  a  Resolution  declaring  an  emergency  to  abandon  City 
interest  in a Public Utility Easement encumbering  land on the south side of Thunderbird Road 
west of 75th Avenue and authorize the City Clerk to record the Resolution. 
 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
There is no fiscal impact to the City associated with this abandonment. 
 
 
Narrative: 
 
This  abandonment  will  allow  for  the  City  to meet  a  requirement  of  the  BOR  for  the  land 
exchange to facilitate the relocation of the  irrigation  line along Thunderbird Road west of 75th 
Avenue. 
 
 
Exhibit(s): 
 
Exhibit 1:  Vicinity Map 
 
Exhibit 2:  Location Map 
 
Exhibit 3:  Resolution 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Kris Luna, Sr Real Property Administrator, x7199 

249



BELL RD

95
TH

 A
VE

87
TH

 A
VE

79
TH

 A
VE

71
ST 

AV
E

ACOMA DR

99
TH

 A
VE

91
ST 

AV
E

83
RD

 A
VE

75
TH

 A
VE

JOMAX RD

11
1T

H A
VE

10
3R

D 
AV

E

UTOPIA RD

CHOLLA ST

BUTLER DR

11
5T

H A
VE

10
7T

H A
VE

CACTUS RD

OLIVE AVE

PEORIA AVE

YEARLING RD

CALLE LEJOS

WILLIAMS RD

GROVERS AVE

PARADISE LN

GREENWAY RD

DYNAMITE BL

DIXILETA DR
PEAK VIEW RD

NORTHERN AVE

BEARDSLEY RD

MONTGOMERY RD

ROSE GARDEN LN

SWEETWATER AVE

UNION HILLS DR

THUNDERBIRD RD

DEER VALLEY RD

DOVE VALLEY RD

HAPPY VALLEY RD

MOUNTAIN VIEW RD

PINNACLE PEAK RD

LONE MOUNTAIN RD

PINNACLE VISTA DR

J

VICINITY MAP

_̂
75th Ave & Thunderbird Rd
Public Utility Easement Abandonment

LEGEND

_̂

250



City of Peoria
7 5 t h  A v e  &  T h u n d e r b i r d  R d

P u b l i c  U t i l i t y  E a s e m e n t  
A b a n d o n m e n t

J

Source Document: O:\PROJECTS\ENGINEERING\Individuals\Angela\Maps by William\75th_Thunderbird_PUE_Abandonment.mxd     ENG     WRB    2012-08-02

75
TH

 A
VE

T H U N D E R B I R D  R D

LEGEND
8' PUE

Location Map
251



 

 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2012-98 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF PEORIA, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA 
FINDING THAT CERTAIN PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT 
TO BE UNNECESSARY TO CITY PURPOSES AND NO 
LONGER REQUIRED TO BE RETAINED BY THE CITY 
AND DIRECTING THAT SUCH UNNECESSARY PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENT BE DISPOSED OF IN THE MANNER 
PROVIDED BY LAW AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Peoria as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-402, the City Council of the City of 
Peoria is vested with the power to determine and find that a certain public easement 
may no longer be necessary to the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to A.R.S. 9-402, the City Council of the City of 

Peoria is vested with the power to vacate such easement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council find and determine that a portion of 
that certain Public Utility Easement located in the City of Peoria, Maricopa County, 
Arizona, west of 75th Avenue south of Thunderbird Road, and more specifically 
described in the Legal Description (Exhibit A) attached to this Resolution is no longer 
needed by the City for public utility purposes. 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  That Mayor and Council find and determine that a portion of 

that 8.00-foot wide Public Utility Easement as shown on Final Plats recorded in Book 
578 Page 36, Book 720 Page 8 and Book 957 Page 50, records of Maricopa County 
and more specifically set forth on Exhibit “A” attached to this Resolution be and is 
hereby declared abandoned as provided by Chapter 4, Article 1, Title 9 of the Arizona 
Revised Statutes.  

252



Resolution No. 2012-98 
Easement Abandonment 
75th Avenue & Thunderbird Road 
Page:  2 
 
 

SECTION 2.  That the City Engineer is directed to prepare and provide 
descriptions for the retention of such easements for public utilities, if any, as may be 
deemed appropriate across the described property. 
 
  SECTION 3.  That the City Clerk shall record the original of this Resolution 
with the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office. 
 

SECTION 4.  The immediate operation of the provisions of this Resolution 
are necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety of the City of 
Peoria, an EMERGENCY is hereby declared to exist and this Resolution shall be in full 
force and effect from and after its passage, adoption and approval by the Mayor and 
Council of the City of Peoria, and it is hereby exempt from the referendum provision of 
the Constitution and laws of the State of Arizona. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, 
Arizona this 21st day of August, 2012. 
 
 
 _______________________________________ 

 Bob Barrett, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
1. Exhibit A – Legal Description 

253



RES. 2012-98 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
THAT PORTION OF THAT 8.00-FOOT WIDE PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT AS 
SHOWN ON FINAL PLATS RECORDED IN BOOK 578 PAGE 36, BOOK 720 
PAGE 8 AND BOOK 957 PAGE 50, RECORDS OF MARICOPA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: 
 
THAT PORTION OF THE SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST 
OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN, MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT A CITY OF PEORIA BRASS CAP IN HAND HOLE 
MARKING THE COMMON CORNER OF SECTIONS 11, 12, 13 AND 14 OF 
SAID TOWNSHIP AND RANGE, FROM WHENCE A CITY OF PEORIA BRASS 
CAP IN HAND HOLE MARKING THE COMMON QUARTER CORNER OF SAID 
SECTIONS 13 AND 14 LIES SOUTH 00°48’51” WEST A DISTANCE OF 
2633.82 FEET; AND FROM WHENCE A CITY OF PEORIA BRASS CAP 
FLUSH, MARKING THE INTERSECTION OF 77TH AVENUE AND 
THUNDERBIRD ROAD LIES SOUTH 88°44’53” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 
1377.42 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°44’53” WEST, ALONG THE CENTERLINE 
OF SAID THUNDERBIRD ROAD, 106.16 FEET; THENCE, AT A RIGHT ANGLE, 
SOUTH 01°15’07” EAST, 65.52 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
 
THENCE SOUTH 88°44’53” WEST, PARALLEL WITH AND 65.52 FEET SOUTH 
OF SAID CENTERLINE OF THUNDERBIRD ROAD, 207.28 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 81°07’39” WEST, 77.65 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°38’28” WEST, 
97.39 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°06’14” WEST, 587.77 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 01°53’46” WEST, 26.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°06’14” EAST, 
588.50 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°38’28” EAST, 95.80 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 81°07’39” EAST, 77.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°44’53” EAST, 
PARALLEL WITH AND 91.52 FEET SOUTH OF SAID CENTERLINE OF 
THUNDERBIRD ROAD, 209.59 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°15’07” WEST, 
26.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

254



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared:    August 2, 2012    Council Meeting Date:    August 21, 2012 
 

 
TO:    Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Andy Granger, P.E., Engineering Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Bridge Construction and Access Easement, Maricopa Water District Canal 
 

 
Purpose: 
 
This is a request for City Council to authorize the execution of a Bridge Construction and Access 
Easement  that  will  allow  for  a  crossing  of  the  Maricopa  Water  District  (MWD)  canal 
approximately a mile and a quarter west of Lake Pleasant Parkway on the Old Carefree Highway 
alignment. 
 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The owners of Canyon Raceway, a private race  facility  located on State Trust Land have been 
accessing their  facilities using the Old Carefree Highway which crosses the MWD canal to the 
north and then continues back southerly to the original alignment.  The use of this crossing has 
become  an  area  of  concern  for  a  number  of  reasons.    It was  not  constructed  to  carry  the 
amount of  traffic  it currently  receives and  the public use of  this private crossing has created 
some maintenance and safety concerns for the MWD. 
 
Doug Gabbard  of Canyon Raceway  has  been working with City  staff,  the MWD  and Arizona 
Public  Service  (APS)  to  construct  a  new  bridge  crossing  of  the  canal  on  the  section  line 
alignment of the Old Carefree Highway.  This will eliminate the current loop in the road, create 
a safer crossing, and allow the City to have a public crossing of the canal. 
 
The MWD and APS are both  in favor of the new crossing.   The MWD has agreed to grant the 
City the Bridge Construction and Access Easement and will waive all fees generally associated 
with this type of easement.   APS has agreed to participate  in the  funding associated with the 
bridge construction.   

255

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 25



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 2  REV. 07/2011 
 
 

Previous Actions: 
 

• There  have  been  no  previous  Council  actions  associated  with  this  proposed  bridge 
construction. 

 
 
Options: 
 
A:  Approve  the  Bridge  Construction  and  Access  Easement  that  will  allow  the  private 

developer to construct an additional public crossing of the MWD canal. 
 
B:  Deny the Bridge Construction and Access Easement which will prohibit the construction 

of the bridge by Canyon Raceway 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff  recommends  the  approval  of  the  execution  of  the  Bridge  Construction  and  Access 
Easement by the City Manager. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
There are no costs associated with the acceptance of the easement.  All fees generally charged 
by the MWD for construction permitting and administration have been waived. 
 
 
Narrative: 
 
Upon execution of  this document by  the City, Canyon Raceway will  finalize  the  construction 
plans for the bridge and create the construction schedule.  
 
 
Exhibit(s): 
 
Exhibit 1:  Vicinity Map 
 
Exhibit 2:  Location Map 
 
Exhibit 3:  Bridge Construction and Access Easement 
 
 
Contact:  Kris Luna, Sr. Real Property Administrator, (623) 773‐7199 

256



BELL RD

95
TH

 A
VE

87
TH

 A
VE

79
TH

 A
VE

71
ST 

AV
E

ACOMA DR

99
TH

 A
VE

91
ST 

AV
E

83
RD

 A
VE

75
TH

 A
VE

JOMAX RD

11
1T

H A
VE

10
3R

D 
AV

E

UTOPIA RD

CHOLLA ST

BUTLER DR

11
5T

H A
VE

10
7T

H A
VE

CACTUS RD

OLIVE AVE

PEORIA AVE

YEARLING RD

CALLE LEJOS

WILLIAMS RD

GROVERS AVE

PARADISE LN

GREENWAY RD

DYNAMITE BL

DIXILETA DR
PEAK VIEW RD

NORTHERN AVE

BEARDSLEY RD

CAREFREE HWY

MONTGOMERY RD

ROSE GARDEN LN

SWEETWATER AVE

UNION HILLS DR

THUNDERBIRD RD

DEER VALLEY RD

DOVE VALLEY RD

HAPPY VALLEY RD

MOUNTAIN VIEW RD

PINNACLE PEAK RD

LONE MOUNTAIN RD

PINNACLE VISTA DR

J

VICINITY MAP

_̂
Old Carefree Highway
New MWD Bridge

LEGEND

_̂

257



City of Peoria
N e w  M W D  B r i d g e

J

Source Document: O:\PROJECTS\ENGINEERING\Individuals\Angela\Maps by William\MWD_Bridge.mxd     ENG     WRB    2012-08-06

O L D  C A R E F R E E  H I G H W A Y

LEGEND
New MWD Bridge Location Map
Old MWD Bridge

258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION  
 

Date Prepared: July 31, 2012   Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012     
 

 
TO:      Carl Swenson, City Manager   
 
FROM:     John Sefton, Community Services Director 
 
THROUGH:    Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:    Community Services Department Field Allocation Policy 
 

 
 
Purpose: 
 
This  is  a  request  for  the  City  Council  to  approve  the  Community  Services Department  Field 
Allocation  Policy  and  formally  adopt  this  classification  system  for  use when  allocating  park 
fields and associated amenities offered by the City of Peoria. 
 
Background/Summary: 
 
The City of Peoria offers a variety of park  fields and adjacent amenities with which  to  serve 
both  youth  and  adults,  for  both  residents  and  non‐residents.  Given  the  demand  for  these 
facilities, City staff strives to regulate use of these fields in a fair and equitable manner. This has 
traditionally  been  done  by  using  a  classification  system,  which  prioritizes  use  and 
administration of fees.  Going forward, City staff seeks to adopt a formal field allocation policy 
as supported by City Council.   
 
The City of Peoria manages the use of  fields  in 37 parks and outdoor  facilities.   However, the 
recreational use of these fields can be restricted, recognizing sports  lighting standards,  lack of 
restrooms, limited parking, and overall impact on the surrounding neighborhoods.  Given these 
conditions, more extensive field programming occurs at targeted locations.   
 
The  city utilizes  six  lighted youth ball  fields,  four adult  softball  fields, and  two multi‐purpose 
fields at Rio Vista Park.    In addition,  the City maintains  joint decision making ability with  the 
Peoria Unified School District on use of lighted facilities at Sunrise Mountain High School multi‐
purpose field and Cheyenne and Coyote Hills Elementary ball fields.   
 
Field use is traditionally booked by user groups in June, October and February for practices and 
league play. Tournament allocations often are set  in October  for  the  following calendar year.  
City staff commonly assess fees for use of lights, additional staff, use of electricity or other hard 
costs  affiliated with  the  field  rental.    All  fee  levels  are  based  on  the  City  Council  Policy  for 

273

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 26



Council Communication     
Page 2 of 3  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

Community Services Recreation Pricing and Fees, which was adopted by City Council at the May 
1st regular meeting.  Fields are classified into two types of facilities: Premium Facilities (Rio Vista 
Community Park, Osuna Park or Centennial Plaza) or regular use facilities (all other parks).   
 
Existing department practice offers priority field use to City of Peoria programs, and are often 
accounted for before any other allocations are made.  Overall a classification system is used to 
prioritize usage, which categorizes user groups into the following: 
 

1. City of Peoria Programs and Events 
2. Peoria Unified School District Usage (per agreement) 
3. Individual Resident/Not‐for‐Profit Requests 
4. Non‐Resident/Corporate Requests 

 
The Peoria Sports Complex operates under a different business model. Serving as an enterprise 
operation,  the  field  usage  is  closely  coordinated with  clients  such  as Major  League  Baseball 
teams.  As such, the user groups and facility guidelines for the Sports Complex differ from those 
for  the  other  City  fields.  Information  specific  to  the  Peoria  Sports  Complex  has  also  been 
outlined  in  the  Community  Services  Department  Field  Allocation  Policy.    However,  this 
information is compiled in a separate section at the end of the document.  
 
Previous Actions: 
 
A draft Community Services Department Field Allocation Policy document was reviewed by the 
Council  Subcommittee on Community Culture. The  Subcommittee,  in unanimous  agreement, 
was  supportive  of  staff  recommendations  and  recommended  forwarding  the  policy  to  the 
Council as a whole during an upcoming Study Session meeting. 
 
During  the  Study  Session  on  June  20,  2012,  the City Council  reviewed  the  draft Community 
Services  Department  Field  Allocation  Policy  document  and,  in  unanimous  agreement, 
recommended  that  the policy be placed on  the agenda  for an upcoming Council Meeting  for 
formal adoption.  
 
Options:  
 
The following options are possible for the City Council to recommend: 
 
A. Direct staff to maintain current practices and not adopt a formal Field Allocation Policy.  

 
B. Direct  staff  to  rewrite  the  Draft  Field  Allocation  Policy.  This  option would  likely  include 

Council direction regarding staff research and expected committee meeting follow‐up. 
 

274



Council Communication     
Page 3 of 3  REV. 08/2011 
 
 

C. Adopt the Field Allocation Policy and put it into place as a guiding document for future field 
rentals. 

 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
To  incorporate a formalized framework for field rentals and allocation, staff requests that the 
proposed Community Services Department Field Allocation Policy be adopted.  
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
The Community Services Department Field Allocation Policy will provide  future guidelines  for 
field rentals and fees charged to certain user groups. As fee increases are proposed during the 
budget  process  each  year,  there  could  be  a  potential  for  increased  revenue.  However,  the 
Policy in itself will not cause a fiscal impact.  
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  Community Services Department Field Allocation Policy 
 
Contact Name and Number: Brenda Rehnke, 623‐773‐7131 
 

275



Page 1  8/7/2012 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 
FIELD ALLOCATION POLICY 

 
 
The City of Peoria has neighborhood and community parks that are considered a community 
asset and are available to use.  Citizens can use our parks at no charge on a first come, first 
served basis when they are available.  However, if a citizen, organization or business would like 
to rent a sports field for exclusive use, the following guidelines will apply. 
 
DEFINITIONS 
 
User Groups – Agencies or organizations 
 
Good Standing – An agency or organization that successfully had prior tournaments or field 
rentals and has no outstanding debt with the City of Peoria. 
 
In Season - The following months are considered in-season use for the following sports: 

Football – August to November 
Soccer – September to March 
Baseball – February to July 

 
Youth – Ages 18 and below.  Child: Under the age of 13.   Teen: Ages 13 through 18. 
 
Adult – Ages 19 and up. 
 
Resident – Any person permanently residing or living within the corporate limits of the City of 
Peoria and/or paying property taxes to the City.  Acceptable proof is a copy of the property tax 
statement showing the physical location of the residence or staff viewing the website – 
www.maricopa.gov. 
 
Non-Resident – Any person permanently residing or living outside the corporate limits of the 
City of Peoria and who does not pay property taxes to the City. 
 
USER GROUPS  
The following user groups have been established for the purpose of allocating field use and 
charging the appropriate fees 
 
Category 1 – City use for activities, tournaments, and leagues sponsored by the City of Peoria or 
co-sponsored events conducted in cooperation with outside individuals, organizations or 
agencies. 
 
Category 2 –School Districts that have an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the City of 
Peoria for joint facility use. 
 
Category 3 - Non-profit groups, youth sports organizations, clubs, schools, charitable 
organizations, youth tournaments, Peoria residents and Peoria businesses. The following 
requirements must be updated each January or 3 months before the playing season begins: 

276



Page 2  8/7/2012 

• League president’s name with address and telephone number and league representative name 
that would reserve the field(s) with address and telephone number. 

• Copy of Liability Insurance Policy naming the City of Peoria as additional insured for two 
million dollars. 

• IRS letter of determination of 501 c (3) non-profit status. 
• League boundaries include the City of Peoria.  Documentation must be provided. 
 
Category 4 – All other groups, i.e., commercial uses, adult tournaments, non-residents, non-
Peoria businesses.   
 
NON-TOURNAMENT USE  
 
The following group prioritization will be used when allocating fields: 

1.  Category 1 - Programs, events and activities 
2. Category 2 - Programs, events and activities  
3. Category 3 - Historic users of City of Peoria facilities - retention of previous year’s use 

providing user is in good standing. 
4. Category 3 - New requests  
5. Category 4 - New requests  

 
Requests will be accepted in accordance with the schedule below and reviewed by the Sports 
Supervisor.  Allocations will be completed by the posted award date. 
 
Requests for continuous bookings of field(s) for in season league games can be made in three 
blocks of time during the year. 
 For the months of: Requests due by:  Awards Made by: 
 August – December      June 1   June 20 
 January – April      October 1   October 20 
 May - August       February 1   February 20   
 
All requests for use of field(s) are to be in writing and directed to the City of Peoria Recreation 
Division, Sports Supervisor.  There is no priority assigned for turning in early requests – all 
requests will be reviewed after the “requests due date”. 
 
Use by groups outside of the recognized in-season will be subject to category 3 fees. 
 
 
The field(s) is available to rent from 8 a.m. – 10 p.m., 7 days/week. Category 1 user group takes 
precedent on field use at all parks and may impact availability. 
 
Long term reservations by individual teams will be no longer than four (4) weeks. 
  
The organization President or representative is responsible for booking the field(s) for the league 
teams.  An organization requesting continuous bookings of field(s) for in-season sports must 
submit the following: 
• Number of participants in the league 
• Number of teams 
• Field(s) utilization plan (i.e., field(s) requested, dates, times, etc.) 

277



Page 3  8/7/2012 

• Date and times the lights will be used 
• Schedules of the games 
• League Boundaries 
 
Any changes to the league and/or organization (i.e., games, starting/ending dates, times, 
boundaries, etc.) must be communicated to the Peoria Recreation Division, Sports Supervisor.   
 
It is the responsibility of each organization to notify the Peoria Recreation Division, Sports 
Supervisor of cancelled games.  Each organization must designate a specific individual to 
perform this responsibility. 
 
The City of Peoria staff will perform all field preparations. 
 
TOURNAMENT BOOKING/RESERVATIONS 
 
The following group prioritizing will be used when allocating fields: 

1.  Category 1 - Programs, events and activities 
2. Category 2 - Programs, events and activities  
3. Category 3 - Historic users of City of Peoria facilities - retention of previous year’s use 

providing user is in good standing 
4. Category 3 - New requests 
5. Category 4 - New requests 

 
Tournaments are booked in October and November for the following calendar year through a 
solicitation of requests from tournament promoters and private entities.  Contact the Peoria 
Recreation Division, Sports Supervisor to be included in this process. 
 
A cleanup and reservation deposit will be required of all category 3-4 organizations/individuals 
reserving the softball or multipurpose complex.  Organizations/individuals, which book the 
field(s) or complex and do not utilize them, will result in the loss of the reservation deposit and 
the organization/individual may not be able to use the field(s) in the future. 
 
It is the responsibility of each organization to notify the Peoria Recreation Division, Sports 
Supervisor of cancelled games.  Each organization must designate a specific individual to 
perform this responsibility. 
 
The City of Peoria staff will perform all field preparations. 
 
CONDUCT OF TEAMS/INDIVIDUALS 
 
All participants of the organization and individuals who rent the field(s) or complex are 
responsible for maintaining the cleanliness of them.  Organizations/individuals are responsible 
for removing all trash from dugout areas, parking lots and the rented field(s) or complex.  Failure 
to do so will result in the loss of the cleanup deposit and may result in the loss of the field(s) or 
complex in the future. 
 
Placing dumpsters, portable toilets, etc. is prohibited at all parks unless arrangements have been 
made with the Peoria Recreation Division, Sports Supervisor. 

278



Page 4  8/7/2012 

 
Coaches, players and spectators must park their vehicles in designated parking areas only.  
Vehicles can be driven to specific areas for loading and unloading only.  Vehicles are not to be 
driven or parked on the ball fields, playgrounds or grass areas at any time. All vehicle notice 
signs must be adhered to. 
 
All animals must be on a leash. 
 
No tobacco or alcoholic products on the fields (i.e., dugouts). 
 
Concessions are the exclusive rights of the City’s concessionaire at Rio Vista Park.  Concessions 
at the other parks can be discussed with the Sports Supervisor. 
 
Selling of merchandise is prohibited unless arrangements have been made with the Peoria 
Recreation Division, Sports Supervisor. 
 
Park Ordinances must be adhered to at all times.  A copy of the ordinances is located at 
www.peoriaaz.gov/parks. 
 
A facility reservation/cleanup deposit will be administered if the multipurpose complex or 
softball complex. If the tournament promoter/organizer, for any reason, cancels the tournament 
or uses less than 50% of the time scheduled, the deposit is forfeited to the City.  This deposit will 
go into the cleaning deposit only if the tournament occurs.  Deposits made with a check will be 
refunded 2-3 weeks after the tournament is completed.  Deposits made with credit cards will be 
refunded 2-3 days after the completion of the tournament.  The cleanup deposit will be refunded 
at the conclusion of the tournament with the approval of the City’s Sports Supervisor. 
 
The City Manager or his designee can make discretionary decisions considered in the best 
interest of the City of Peoria. 
 
Please refer to Section 2-207 of the City code for the field rental fees. 
 
  

279



Page 5  8/7/2012 

PEORIA SPORTS COMPLEX GUIDELINES OF USE 
 
The City of Peoria owns and operates the Peoria Sports Complex on an annual basis. All usage 
areas are considered rentable areas and therefore if a citizen, organization or business would like 
to rent one of these areas for exclusive use, the following guidelines will apply. 
 
USER GROUPS  
 
Category 1 – Major League Baseball Tenants per lease agreements 
 
Category 2 – City of Peoria programs and Peoria Diamond Club use, per contract. (To include 
Official City-sponsored or co-sponsored programs and events.) 
 
Category 3 – Non-profit groups, youth sports organizations, schools and charitable 
organizations. The following is required from these groups: 

 Event organizer name with address and telephone number. 
 Copy of Liability Insurance Policy naming the City of Peoria as additional insured for 

two million dollars. 
 IRS letter of determination of 501 c (3) non-profit status. 

 
Category 4 - General or commercial use including tournaments. 
 
REQUEST FOR USE OF SPORTS COMPLEX FACILITIES  
 
Requests can be submitted to Sports Complex Manager or members of the Operations Team at 
any time during the year. All requests will be handled on an event by event basis and will be 
decided upon and scheduled based on sports complex availability, projected revenues and overall 
viability.  
 
FACILITY GUIDELINES - CONDUCT OF TEAMS/INDIVIDUALS 
 
No one is allowed on the stadium field at any time without proper credentials. If anyone enters 
onto the field without proper credentials, he/she will be immediately ejected from the stadium 
without a refund. The same ejection rule applies for the practice fields. Anyone using obscene or 
abusive language or causing any type of discomfort to the guests around them will be asked by 
Peoria Stadium personnel to cease this conduct. If the offensive conduct persists, those involved 
will be subject to ejection from the ballpark without a refund.  

Smoking is prohibited in any public seating area or restroom. Smoking is permitted in designated 
areas only. 

By city ordinance, there is no overnight parking at Peoria Sports Complex. For more information 
on parking, 

All Mariners and Padres Practice Fields have covered bleachers. Patrons are permitted to bring 
their own portable chairs and shade to these areas, provided it does not obstruct the view of 
others. 

280



Page 6  8/7/2012 

Food, beverage and coolers are permitted in the Practice Fields, with the exception of glass 
containers and alcoholic beverages. Concessions are open for purchase at select events. 

Pets are not permitted in Peoria Stadium with the exception of guide, signal and service animals. 

Pets are permitted in the Practice Fields provided they are leashed. Owners should pick up and 
properly dispose of pet waste. 

 
 
 
 
 

281



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared: July 16, 2012 Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012  
 

 
TO:   Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Scott Whyte, Economic Development Services Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Final Plat, Vistancia North Phase III Parcel F1 Phase 2, Vistancia Boulevard and 

Westland Road (Project No. R110032) 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
This is a request for City Council to approve a Final Plat of Vistancia North Phase III Parcel F1 
Phase 2, located on Westland Road west of Vistancia Boulevard, and authorize the Mayor and 
City Clerk to sign and record the Replat with the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office subject to 
the following stipulations: 

 

1. All civil and landscape/irrigation plans must be approved by the City of Peoria (City) 
prior to recordation of the Replat. 

 

2. An approval of design from the City Engineering Department for the necessary 
improvements in accordance with the City Subdivision Regulations, as determined by 
the City Engineer, must be obtained prior to recording the Replat. 

 

3. The developer must provide a financial assurance in the amount agreed upon by the 
City Engineer and an Agreement to Install for construction of the infrastructure 
improvements in accordance with the City Subdivision Regulations, prior to recordation 
of the Replat. 

 

4. In the event that the Replat is not recorded within 60 days of Council approval, the 
Replat will become void.  The developer may request re-approval from the City, with the 
understanding that the City has the option of imposing additional requirements or 
stipulations. 

 
Background/Summary: 
 
The purpose of the Final Plat is to phase a previously platted residential subdivision.  This Final 
Plat is a replat of 57 lots within the previously platted Vistancia Parcel F1.  A portion of the 

282

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 27



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

previously platted Vistancia Parcel F1 has already been replatted as Vistancia North Phase III 
Parcel F1 Phase 1 (recorded in Book 1108, Page 47); this Final Plat will complete the phasing of 
the original Parcel F1.  This development is within the City’s water\sewer service area.  All 
internal roadways are public and all necessary right of way is being dedicated. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
Vistancia North Phase III Parcel F1 was approved by the City Council and recorded in February 
2011.  No significant changes were made to the parcel layout, other than splitting the 
previously platted parcel into phases.  The first phase, Vistancia North Phase III Parcel F1 Phase 
1 was approved by the City Council in January 2012 and recorded in March 2012. 
 
Options:  
 
A: The Final Plat has been approved through the Economic Development Services Department.  
An option would be to not accept the proposed Final Plat; although it should be noted that not 
approving the Final Plat will hinder the Developer from developing this land as planned. 
 
B: The other option would be to formally approve the Final Plat and allow this parcel to be 
developed. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the approval and subsequent recordation of the attached Replat. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       
There is no direct budgetary impact to the City to approve the Replat. 
 
Narrative:   
 
The acceptance of this Replat by City Council will allow the developer to move forward in 
developing this property. 
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  Replat 
 
Exhibit 2:  Vicinity Map 
 
Contact Name and Number:   
Jodi Breyfogle, PE, CFM: 623-773-7577 

283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared: June 12, 2012 Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012  
 

 
TO:   Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Scott Whyte, Economic Development Services Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  RePlat, A Portion of Trilogy at Vistancia - Parcel C12, Trilogy Boulevard and 

Claret Cup Road 
 

 
Purpose:  
 
This is a request for City Council to approve a Replat of A Portion of Trilogy at Vistancia - Parcel 
C12, located on Trilogy Boulevard and Claret Cup Road, and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign and record the Replat with the Maricopa County Recorder’s Office subject to the 
following stipulations: 

 

1. All civil and landscape/irrigation plans must be approved by the City of Peoria (City) 
prior to recordation of the Final Plat. 

 

2. An approval of design from the City Engineering Department for the necessary 
improvements in accordance with the City Subdivision Regulations, as determined by 
the City Engineer, must be obtained prior to recording the Final Plat. 

 

3. The developer must provide a financial assurance in the amount agreed upon by the 
City Engineer and an Agreement to Install for construction of the infrastructure 
improvements in accordance with the City Subdivision Regulations, prior to recordation 
of the Final Plat. 

 
4. In the event that the Replat is not recorded within 60 days of Council approval, the 

Replat will become void.  The developer may request re-approval from the City, with the 
understanding that the City has the option of imposing additional requirements or 
stipulations. 

 
Background/Summary: 
 

292

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 28



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

The purpose of the Replat is to adjust lot lines for 15 lots within a residential subdivision, to 
allow for the creation of a model complex.  In addition, the waterline easement is adjusted 
based on revision to the waterline plans. 
 
Previous Actions: 
 
The preliminary plat was reviewed by the City and completed in January 2007.  The original 
Final Plat for the subdivision was approved by City and recorded in Dec 2010. 
 
Options:  
 
A: The Replat has been approved through the Economic Development Services Department.  An 
option would be to not accept the proposed Replat; although it should be noted that not 
approving the Replat will prevent the Developer from constructing the desired home products 
on these lots. 
 
B: The other option would be to formally approve the Replat and allow the developer to 
construct the desired homes products. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends the approval and subsequent recordation of the attached Replat. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       
There is no direct budgetary impact to the City to approve the Replat. 
 
Narrative:   
 
The acceptance of this Replat by City Council will allow the developer to move forward in 
constructing homes on these lots. 
 
 
Exhibit(s):  
 
Exhibit 1:  Replat 
 
Exhibit 2:  Vicinity Map 
 
Contact Name and Number:   
 
Jodi Breyfogle, PE, CFM: 623-773-7577 

293



294



295



296



297



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 

 

Date Prepared: August 6, 2012 Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012    
 

 
TO:   Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brent Mattingly, Finance Director 
 
THROUGH:  Susan K. Thorpe, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Public hearing: Proposed Recommendations by the City to the Arizona   

State Liquor Board for a new restaurant liquor licenses and a new bar 
liquor license. 

 

 
Purpose:  
 
Pursuant to Arizona Law the City must recommend to the State Liquor Board for approval, 
applications to sell alcoholic beverages in the City.  The Standard for the recommendation is 
whether the best interest of the community will be served by the issuance of these licenses and 
whether the public convenience is served.   
 
Background/Summary: 
 
Seung J. Lee, Agent for Sumo Sushi & Grill, has applied for a New Restaurant Liquor License 
(Series 12) located at 16055 N. Arrowhead Fountain Center Drive Building B.   
Thomas R. Aguilera, Agent for Humble Pie Pizza Wine Spirits, has applied for a New Restaurant 
Liquor License (Series 12) located at 15703 N. 83rd Avenue Suite #100. 
Theresa J. Morse, Agent for Taps, has applied for a New Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) 
located at 9780 W. Northern Avenue Suite #1110.  
Scott P. Richmond, Agent for Peoria Pines Golf & Restaurant, has applied for a New On-Sale All 
Liquor License (Series 06) located at 8411 N. 107th Avenue.   
The public hearing notices were posted for at least 20 days, and no comments were received 
during the posting period.  The license applications were reviewed according to State law and 
all Departments gave approvals.   
 
Previous Actions: 
 
May 2012, the Mayor and Council recommended approval to Arizona State Liquor Board for 
Ebisu Sushi and Grill for a New Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) at 16055 N. Arrowhead 
Fountain Center Drive Building B. 
February 2010, the Mayor and Council recommended approval to Arizona State Liquor Board 
for Prime Pizzeria for a New Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) at 15703 N. 83rd Avenue Suite 
#100. 

298

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 29



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 3 REV. 07/2011 
 
 

February 2011, the Mayor and Council recommended approval to Arizona State Liquor Board 
for Rustica Cafe for a New Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) at 9780 W. Northern Avenue 
Suite #1110. 
August 2000, the Mayor and Council recommended approval to Arizona State Liquor Board for 
Rustica Cafe for a New On-Sale All (Bar) Liquor License (Series 06) at 8411 N. 107th Avenue. 
 
 
Options:  
 
A: Recommend approval to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New Restaurant Liquor License 
(Series 12) for Sumo Sushi & Grill, located at 16055 N. Arrowhead Fountain Center Drive 
Building B, Seung J. Lee,  Applicant, LL#20005768. 
Recommend approval to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New Restaurant Liquor License 
(Series 12) for Humble Pie Pizza Wine Spirits, located at 15703 N. 83rd Avenue Suite #100, 
Thomas R. Aguilera, Applicant, LL#20005990. 
Recommend approval to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New Restaurant Liquor License 
(Series 12) for Taps, located at 9780 W. Northern Avenue Suite #1110, Theresa J. Morse 
Applicant, LL#20005160. 
Recommend approval to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New On-Sale All (Bar) Liquor 
License (Series 06) for Peoria Pines Golf & Restaurant located at 8411 N. 107th Avenue, Scott P. 
Richmond, Applicant, LL#20005659. 
B: Recommend denial to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New Restaurant Liquor License 
(Series 12) for Sumo Sushi & Grill, located at 16055 N. Arrowhead Fountain Center Drive 
Building B, Seung J. Lee, Applicant, LL#20005768. 
Recommend denial to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New Restaurant Liquor License 
(Series 12) for Humble Pie Pizza Wine Spirits, located at 15703 N. 83rd Avenue Suite #100, 
Thomas R. Aguilera, Applicant, LL#20005990. 
Recommend denial to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New Restaurant Liquor License 
(Series 12) for Taps, located at 9780 W. Northern Avenue Suite #1110, Theresa J. Morse 
Applicant, LL#20005160. 
Recommend denial to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New On-Sale All (Bar) Liquor License 
(Series 06) for Peoria Pines Golf & Restaurant located at 8411 N. 107th Avenue, Scott P. 
Richmond, Applicant, LL#20005659. 
 

Staff’s Recommendation: 
 

That the Mayor and Council recommend approval to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New 
Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) for Sumo Sushi & Grill, located at 16055 N. Arrowhead 
Fountain Center Drive Building B, Seung J. Lee, Applicant, LL#20005768. 
That the Mayor and Council recommend approval to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New 
Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) for Humble Pie Pizza Wine Spirits, located at 15703 N. 83rd 
Avenue Suite #100, Thomas R. Aguilera, Applicant, LL#20005990. 

299



Council Communication   
Page 3 of 3 REV. 07/2011 
 
 

That the Mayor and Council recommend approval to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New 
Restaurant Liquor License (Series 12) for Taps, located at 9780 W. Northern Avenue Suite 
#1110, Theresa J. Morse Applicant, LL#20005160. 
That the Mayor and Council recommend approval to the Arizona State Liquor Board for a New 
On-Sale All (Bar) Liquor License (Series 06) for Peoria Pines Golf & Restaurant located at 8411 N. 
107th Avenue, Scott P. Richmond, Applicant, LL#20005659. 
 

Fiscal Analysis: 
 

The item has no financial implications. 
 

Narrative:   
 

The appropriate fees have been paid and the applicants have been advised that a 
representative needs to be present at the meeting to answer any questions that the Council or 
public may have. 
 

Exhibit 1:  New Liquor License Application. 

300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380



381



382



383



384



385



386



387



388



389



390



391



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402



403



404



405



406



407



408



409



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
Date Prepared: August 14, 2012                  Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012       
 

 

TO: Honorable Mayor and Council  

FROM: Stephen M. Kemp, City Attorney 

SUBJECT: Proposed amendment to City Code pertaining to Parking of Recreational 

Vehicles 

 

Purpose:  

This is a request for City Council to adopt an amendment to Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code 

(1992) pertaining to the parking of recreational vehicles. 

Background/Summary: 
 
Currently, Section 14-110 of the City Code prohibits the parking of recreational vehicles in 
public view, except for loading and unloading.  The code creates a presumption that parking 
longer than twenty-four (24) hours is not for loading and unloading. There has been some 
confusion about parking longer than twenty-four (24) hours to load and unload recreational 
vehicles. There have also been questions about what constitutes loading and unloading of a 
recreational vehicle.   
 
The proposed ordinance allows recreational vehicles to be parked in public view for a twenty-
four (24) hour period.  This does not impact requirements for a dust mitigated surface.  The 
purpose of amending the code would be to remove the definition of loading and unloading 
recreational vehicles.   
 
The Neighborhood Services Section of the Police Department and the City Attorney’s Office 
reviewed this matter and prepared the proposed ordinance.   
 
Previous Actions: 
 
At a City Council Study Session staff was instructed to bring a proposed ordinance to the next 
City Council meeting that provided a twenty-four (24) hour parking provision for recreational 
vehicles without referencing to loading and unloading. 
 
Discussion on this topic occurred before the City Council Subcommittee on Public Safety on 
different concepts which may be applied. 
 

410

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 30



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 07/2011 

Options:  
 
A:  That the Mayor and Council adopt the proposed amendment to the City Code. 
 
B:  That the Mayor and Council reject the proposed amendment to the City Code. 
 
Staff’s Recommendation: 
 
That the Mayor and Council adopt the proposed amendment to the City Code if they desire to 
eliminate the presumption pertaining to loading and unloading recreational vehicles.   
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
       
None 
 
Narrative:   
 
None 
 
Exhibit:   
 
Exhibit 1:  Proposed Ordinance 
 
 

411



 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-18 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA AMENDING CHAPTER 14 OF 
THE PEORIA CITY CODE (1992) BY AMENDING SECTION 
14-110 PERTAINING TO PARKING; RECREATIONAL 
VEHICLES; UTILITY TRAILERS; PRIVATE PROPERTY 
PARKING AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED By the Mayor and Council of the City of 
Peoria, Arizona as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Chapter 14 of the Peoria City Code (1992) is amended by 
amending Section 14-110 pertaining to parking; recreational vehicles; utility trailers; 
private property parking and which shall read as follows: 
 
Sec. 14-110. Parking; recreational vehicles; utility trailers; private property parking. 
 
 (a) Recreational vehicles and Utility trailers, as defined above, shall be allowed to 
be parked within the garage or carport in the single family residential zoning districts. 
Recreational vehicles and Utility trailers shall also be permitted to be parked within a 
side or rear yard when located within a single family residential zoning district and 
appropriately screened in accordance with the provisions of the zoning ordinance and 
section 14-111 of this code. 
 
 (b) Recreational vehicles located on properties zoned for single family residential 
uses may not be utilized for living purposes by any person. 
 
 (c) Properties located within a single family residential zoning district and used 
primarily for commercial agricultural purposes and boats anchored or docked on water 
shall be exempt from the regulations contained in sections 14-110 through 14-111 of 
this code. 
 
 (d) Recreational vehicles and Utility trailers used for a non-commercial purpose 
and located on properties zoned for single family residential uses may be parked in the 
front yard only when in the process of loading or unloading. There shall be a rebuttable 
presumption that parking in the front yard for a period in excess of twenty-four 
continuous hours is not for the purpose of loading and unloading. in public view for a 
period of twenty-four consecutive hours. 

412



Ordinance No. 2012-18    
Parking of Recreational vehicles  
August 21, 2012 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
 (e) Utility trailers used for a commercial purpose shall not be parked in the front 
yard or upon any public right of way, street, alley or easement between the hours of 
6:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such utility trailers that are the 
property of the state, a political subdivision of this state, the City, a public service 
corporation regulated by the Arizona Corporation Commission or a telecommunications 
corporation may be parked upon a public right of way, street, alley or easement for the 
purposes of street and utility repair. 
 
 (f) There shall be no limit on the number of Recreational vehicles or Utility trailers 
lawfully permitted on any parcel of land and where not otherwise prohibited. 
 
 (g) All Recreational vehicles and Utility trailers shall be maintained in good repair 
as required by this code and all parking areas shall be maintained in accordance with 
this code; zoning ordinances and the city's subdivision regulations as applicable. 
 
 (h) The regulations contained within this chapter are not intended to supersede 
any lawfully established covenants, conditions and restrictions relating to the parking of 
Recreational vehicles and Utility trailers nor shall the granting of any special permit 
supersede any lawfully established covenants, conditions and restrictions applicable to 
the subject property. 
 
 (i)  For purposes of sections 14-107 through 14-113 of this code, the terms 
 
  (1) “Park, parked, parking” shall include attaching a utility trailer or other  
  trailer to a motor vehicle for the purpose of towing. 
  
  (2) "Single family residential zoning district" shall include all residential  
  zoning districts that currently or have previously permitted single family of  
  two-family residential dwelling units. 
 
 SECTION 2.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any 
Court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 
 SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall become effective in the manner provided by 
law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

413



Ordinance No. 2012-18    
Parking of Recreational vehicles  
August 21, 2012 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Peoria, 
Arizona, this 21st day of August, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
Dated:    
   Bob Barrett,  Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
Stephen M.  Kemp, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Published in Peoria Times   
Publication Dates: August 24 and 31, 2012 
Effective Date: ___________________ 

414



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA
COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

Date Prepared: August 9, 2012 Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012

TO: City Council

FROM: Bob Barrett, Mayor

SUBJECT: Electronic Billboard Ad Hoc Committee

Purpose:
This is a request for City Council to create an Electronic Billboard Ad Hoc Committee to research
and provide recommendations to the Council regarding the electronic billboard program.

Background/Summary:
Currently City staff are conducting an outreach effort to gain public comments regarding the
potential placement of electronic billboards in the City of Peoria. I am proposing that we form
an Ad Hoc Citizen's Committee charged with reviewing the comments once that research is
complete. The Ad Hoc committee would review the information gathered by staff, request any
additional information or conduct further public involvement as they deem necessary, and
provide a recommendation to the Council with regards to potential placement of electronic
billboards in Peoria.

Previous Actions:
None taken.

Options:

A: Create an Electronic Billboard Ad Hoc Committee
B: Do not create a Electronic Billboard Ad Hoc Committee

Staff’s Recommendation:
None

Fiscal Analysis:
None

Narrative: N/A

Exhibits: N/A

Contact Name and Number: Rachel Aja 623-773-7368

415

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 31



 

City Council Calendar  
 
 
 
 

Color Key: 
City Council 

 

< July August 2012 September > 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      

1  2  3  4  

5  6  7  8  9  10  11  

12  13  14  
City Council 
Subcommittee 

on Policy & 
Appointments 

15  16  
CANCELED 
City Council 

Subcommittee on 
Community Culture 
& Public Safety 

17  18  

19  20  21  
Regular City 
Council 

Meeting 
 
Special City 

Council Meeting & 
Study Session 

22  23  24  25  

26  27  28  29  30  31  

 

 
  

416

http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/?Mo=7&Yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/?Mo=9&Yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsDay.asp?dy=14&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526152&dy=14&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526152&dy=14&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526152&dy=14&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526152&dy=14&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsDay.asp?dy=16&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527097&dy=16&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527097&dy=16&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527097&dy=16&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527097&dy=16&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527097&dy=16&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsDay.asp?dy=21&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526903&dy=21&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526903&dy=21&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526903&dy=21&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526902&dy=21&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526902&dy=21&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526902&dy=21&mo=8&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/event.asp?ID=43526152�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/event.asp?ID=43527097�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/event.asp?ID=43526902�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/event.asp?ID=43526903�


 

City Council Calendar  
 
 
 
 

Color Key: 
City Council 

 

< August September 2012 October > 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

            

1  

2  3  4  
Special City 
Council 

Meeting & Study 
Session 

5  6  7  8  

9  10  11  
City Council 
Subcommittee 

on Policy & 
Appointments 

12  13  14  15  

16  17  18  
Regular City 
Council 

Meeting 

19  20  
City Council 
Subcommittee 

on Community 
Culture & Public 
Safety 

21  22  

23  24  25  26  27  28  29  

30  

            

 

417

http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/?Mo=8&Yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/?Mo=10&Yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsDay.asp?dy=4&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526904&dy=4&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526904&dy=4&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526904&dy=4&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526904&dy=4&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsDay.asp?dy=11&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526153&dy=11&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526153&dy=11&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526153&dy=11&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526153&dy=11&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsDay.asp?dy=18&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526905&dy=18&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526905&dy=18&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43526905&dy=18&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsDay.asp?dy=20&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527098&dy=20&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527098&dy=20&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527098&dy=20&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527098&dy=20&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/events/eventsID.asp?ID=43527098&dy=20&mo=9&yr=2012�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/event.asp?ID=43526904�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/event.asp?ID=43526153�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/event.asp?ID=43526905�
http://citynet.peoriaaz.com/EventsCalendar/event.asp?ID=43527098�


CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
Date Prepared:  August 1, 2012 Council Meeting Date:   August 21, 2012  
 
 
TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager  
 
FROM:  Scott Whyte, Economic Development Services Director 
  Chris Jacques, Planning & Community Development Director 
 
THROUGH: Susan J. Daluddung, Deputy City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Building and Development Activity Projections 
 
 
Summary: 
Over the last several months, the greater Phoenix region has experienced a new strength in the 
real estate market.  Higher absorption rates in the housing and commercial markets suggest a 
more stable outlook to these sectors.  This is further bolstered by recent upticks in residential 
and commercial construction.  Regional economic analysts are suggesting that the new home 
market will continue to grow over the next few years.  The same is true for commercial activity, 
where vacancy rates in the retail and office markets are continuing to decline.  
 
Locally, the Peoria market  has experienced this upsurge in activity.  Over the last six months, 
single family residential permits have jumped appreciably.  Single family residential permit 
activity has seen a 58% increase over the last six months, as compared to the previous six 
months. Moreover commercial construction is exceeding expectations, with almost 700,000 
square feet of new development expected in the next several months, compared to the 80,000 
square feet of commercial development projected in the Fall of 2012. 
 
Recently, City staff has reached out to the development community to gauge trends for the 
Peoria area.  Based on their feedback, City staff is projecting that heightend development 
activity will continue well into the foreseeable future.  With reduced staff levels in the Building 
Division of the Economic Development Services Department (EDS), resulting from several years 
of budget reductions, and increased activity in residential and commercial development,work 
volume is beginning to exceed workload capacity.  
 
Based on these market conditions, the Building Development division is experiencing some 
stress in meeting its service level targets.  Key employees supporting plan review, permitting 
and inspection services are all experiencing a high volume of workload, and concerns persist 
about the impact on turnaround times.  For the building community, such delays can result in 
key subcontractor and material scheduling delays. 
 

418

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 33A



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 09/2011 
 

Likewise, the Planning and Community Development Department has experienced significant 
service challenges.  As the front-end of the development process, the department  experienced 
a 36% increase in FY12 development cases with recent notable increases in entitlement cases 
(General Plan Amendments, Rezones) and residential subdivisions. The recent increase includes 
large, complex and time-intensive PCD/Development Agreement amendments such as 
Saddleback Heights and Lake Pleasant Heights. With reduced staff levels in the Planning and 
Zoning Division coupled with an expanded mission to include strategic planning, transportation, 
utilities and open space coordination, workflow is beginning to exceed workload capacity.     
 
The attached exhibits offer a glimpse of development and workload trends over the next few 
years.  In the next weeks, City staff will be exploring options for addressing these critical service 
needs.  Staff intends to offer a recommendation to City Council in a September council session. 
 
Exhibit(s): 
Exhibit A:  EDS Projected Development Activity 
Exhibit B:  EDS Residential & Commercial Permit Trends 
Exhibit C:  EDS Residential & Commercial Inspection Trends 
Exhibit D:  EDS Residential & Commercial Plan Review Trends 
Exhibit E:  Development Case Trends (Planning) 
   
 
Contact Name and Number:   Dennis Marks 623-773-7232 

Chris Jacques 623-773-7609 (Planning) 
 

419



Exhibit A: EDS Projected Development Activity

Subdivision Location
Ori
Lot 

ginal 
Count

Building 
Timefram

Mont

Permit 
e (in 

hs)
P

In 
lanning

Prob
= 

ability  (5 
highest)

Council 
District

Cibola Vista 1B 91st Ave & Jomax Rd 7 0 5 Mesquite
Melton Ranch II NEC Calle Lejos & Lake Pleasant Pky 31 0 5 Mesquite
Ventana Picachos 89th Ave & Calle Lejos 52 0 5 Mesquite
Travata 91st Ave & Greenbrian 156 0 5 Ironwood
Vistancia F5 Westland Rd & Vistancia Blvd 74 0 5 Mesquite
Sunset Ranch IID Williams Rd & Lake Pleasant Pky 3 3 * 5 Willow
Sunset Ranch IIC Williams Rd & Lake Pleasant Pky 16 3 * 5 Willow
Umbria Estates Williams Rd & Lake Pleasant Pky 14 3 * 5 Willow
Hunter Field Estates 85th Ave & Deer Valley Rd 22 3 5 Willow
Estates at Happy Valley SEC 75th Ave & Happy Valley Rd 28 3 5 Mesquite
Terramar 9B Terramar Blvd & Happy Valley Rd 28 3 5 Mesquite
Vistancia F3 Ph1 Vistancia Blvd & Westland Rd 49 3 5 Mesquite
Vistancia F4 Ph1 128th Ave & Westland Rd 56 3 5 Mesquite
Vistancia A4 NEC Vistancia Blvd & Lone Mountain Rd 33 3 5 Mesquite
Tierra Del Rio Tierra Del Rio Blvd & North Of Jomax 800 3 5 Mesquite
Tierra Del Rio Tierra Del Rio Blvd & South Of Jomax 240 3 5 Mesquite
Plaza Del Rio Ph1 Thunderbird & 91st Ave 25 3 * 4 Pine
Plaza Del Rio Ph2 Thunderbird & 91st Ave 47 3 * 4 Pine
Plaza Del Rio Ph3 Thunderbird & 91st Ave 90 3 * 4 Pine
Vistancia F1 Ph2 Vistancia Blvd & Westland Rd 57 6 5 Mesquite
Sunset Ranch IIE Williams Rd & Lake Pleasant Pky 5 6 * 5 Willow
Silver Canyon Ranch Unit 1 79th Ave & Happy Valley Rd 26 6 5 Mesquite
Vistancia C12 Trilogy Blvd w/o Vistancia Blvd 100 6 5 Mesquite
Florenza SWC Yearling & Lake Pleasant Pky 117 6 5 Mesquite
The Meadows 4A  Phase I 91st Ave & Deer Valley Rd 121 6 * 5 Willow
The Meadows 4A  Phase II 91st Ave & Deer Valley Rd 98 6 * 5 Willow
Vistancia A29 SEC Vistancia Blvd & Ridgeline Rd 158 6 4 Mesquite
Rock Springs 83rd Ave & Jomax Rd 160 6 * 5 Mesquite
Vistancia G1 135th Ave & Lone Mountain Rd 130 9 5 Mesquite
Westwing Mt Parcel 2 Edge Wild Dr & Buckskin Trl 15 9 5 Mesquite
Silver Canyon Ranch Unit 2 79th Ave & Happy Valley Rd 22 9 5 Mesquite
Terramar 10B NEC 75th Ave & Happy Valley Rd 43 9 5 Mesquite
Vistancia B6 El Mirage Rd & Lone Mountain Rd 48 9 5 Mesquite
Vistancia G2 135th Ave & Lone Mountain Rd 101 9 5 Mesquite
Vistancia F1 Ph1** Vistancia Blvd & Westland Rd 48 9 3 Mesquite
Campanos Estates SWC 77th Ave & Pinnacle Peak Rd 18 12 3 Willow
Tierra Buena 75th Ave & Tierra Buena 42 12 * 4 Willow
Aviara SWC 93rd Ave & Happy Valley Rd 120 12 4 Mesquite
Peoria 53 91st Ave & Butler 165 12 4 Pine

420



Vistancia A3 Sunrise Point & Lone Mountain Rd 31 12 5 Mesquite
Riverwalk 77th Ave & Pinnacle Peak Rd 50 15 * 3 Willow
Aloravita NEC 75th Ave & Jomax Rd 1288 15 3 Mesquite
Caballos Del Rio NWC New River & Happy Valley Rd 38 18 2 Mesquite
Rock Springs Estates 77th Ave & Pinnacle Peak Rd 150 18 * 3 Willow
Boulders at White Peak SWC 135th & Dixileta 465 18 3 Mesquite
Total Lot Count 5387

**Vistancia F1 Ph1 Bought by Maracay Homes ‐ timeframe not confirmed.

421



Exhibit A: EDS Projected Development Activity

Commercial Property Location Sq.Ft./  Count
Timef

Mo
rame in 
nths Pl

In 
anning

Probability  (5 
= highest)

Council 
District

83rd Avenue Professional Plaza 15525 N. 83rd Ave 12,000 sq.ft. Minor PAD * Willow
Sports Complex Club Houses 83rd & So. Of Bell Road 120,000 sq.ft.  In Design 5 Willow
Santana Village Apartments 76th & Peoria Ave 263,789 sq.ft. IP 5 Acacia
McDonald's 107th Ave & Olive 4,000 sq.ft. IP * 5 Pine
Aprisa Mexican Cuisine SEC 84th & Thunderbird 400 sq.ft. In for CUP * Palo Verde
Dutch Brothers Coffee SEC 84th & Thunderbird 428 sq.ft.
Silverado Senior Living 
(Alzheimer's Facility) NEC 94th Drive & Redwood Drive 53,000 sq.ft. IP * 5 Pine
Maxwell Technologies NW corner Thunderbird & Loop 101 75,000 sq.ft. 3 5 Ironwood

Coldwater Ranch Happy Valley & Vistancia
200 acres / 

590 units 3 5 Mesquite
Rock Springs Estates N/O Williams Rd. \b\ 79th Ave & 75th Ave 78 acres Rezone & GPA Mesquite
Community Park II 83rd Ave & Olive Road 82 acres IP 5 Acacia

Tierra Buena NWC 75th Ave. & Tierra Buena Ln. 9.25 acres
Rezone MF to 

SF & PP Willow

The Meadows Parcel 4 NEC 91st Ave. & Deer Valley Rd. 219 lots Preliminary Plat
Willow

Cibola Vista (Timeshare Resort) LPP & Cibola Vista Drive 80 units 3 5 Mesquite
Lighthouse Assembly of God 14185 N. 83rd Ave Site Plan * Palo Verde
KB Homes @ Plaza Del Rio 93rd Ave. & Wood Dr. DR * Pine
T D l hiToyota Dealership (Demo/Rebuild) Bell Road 80000 sq.ft. 3 5 Willow
Hyundai Addition Bell Road 12000 sq.ft. 3 5 Willow
Dodge Addition Bell Road 12000 sq.ft. 3 5 Willow

Sahara Behavioral Health Center 88th Ave & Thunderbird 11.03 acres 2 Pine
Riverwalk N & S Pinnacle Peak Rd \b\ 75th & 77th Ave Rezone & GPA * Willow
Rock Springs NEC Jomax & 83rd Av Alignment PAD Amend Mesquite
Rock Springs II NWC 75 Ave & Jomax Rd. PAD Amend Mesquite

Sunset Ranch II N/O NEC Lake Pleasant Pkwy. & Williams Rd.

GPA, PP & 

Major PAD 

Amend Willow

Umbria Estates NEC 101st Ave. & Williams Rd. Preliminary Plat
Willow

Vistancia Parcel F1 NWC Vistancia Blvd. & Westland Rd. Design Review Mesquite
QT 67th Ave & Happy Valley Road 5,500 sq.ft. IP 5 Mesquite
Peoria Regional Hospital LPP & Jomax Road 73,000 sq.ft. Stalled 5 Mesquite
Total Sq.Footage 632,617 (Does Not include PRMC)

Total Acreage 369.25

422



New Residential Permits Other Residential Permits

FY10  400 1581

FY11 395 1573

FY12 604 1749

3 FTE's

3 FTE's

2 FTE's

2 FTE's

2 FTE's

2 FTE's

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

P
e
rm

it
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Permits Issued FY10, FY11 and FY12

Exhibit B
EDS Residential Permit Trends

EDS Commercial Permit TrendsEDS Commercial Permit Trends

New Residential Permits Other Residential Permits

FY10  400 1581

FY11 395 1573

FY12 604 1749

3 FTE's

3 FTE's

2 FTE's

2 FTE's

2 FTE's

2 FTE's

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

P
e
rm

it
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Permits Issued FY10, FY11 and FY12

New Commercial (Comm 
Shell)

Commercial Tenant 
Improvement

Other Commercial Permits

FY10  18 90 296

FY11 9 95 314

FY12 10 112 281

3 FTE's
3 FTE's

3 FTE's
2 FTE's 2 FTE's 2 FTE's2 FTE's 2 FTE's 2 FTE's

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

P
e
rm

it
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Permits Issued FY10, FY11 and FY12

423



New Residential Other Residential Inspections

FY10 (8 Inspectors) 16563 8737

FY11 (6 Inspectors) 13953 9356

FY12 (5 Inspectors) 21190 10948

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

In
sp
e
ct
io
n
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Inspections Performed FY10, FY11 and FY12

EDS Commercial

Exhibit C
EDS Residential Inspection Trends

EDS Commercial Inspection Trends  Inspection Trends

New Residential Other Residential Inspections

FY10 (8 Inspectors) 16563 8737

FY11 (6 Inspectors) 13953 9356

FY12 (5 Inspectors) 21190 10948

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

In
sp
e
ct
io
n
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Inspections Performed FY10, FY11 and FY12

New Commercial 
(Comm Shell)

Commercial 
Tenant 

Improvement

Other 
Commercial 
Inspections

FY10 (8 Inspectors) 2122 2670 2698

FY11 (6 Inspectors) 1406 3302 1740

FY12 (5 Inspectors) 780 3134 1676

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

In
sp
e
ct
io
n
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Inspections Performed FY10, FY11 and FY12

424



FY11 FY12

Residential Plan Review

# of Plan Reviews 1345 1760

2 FTE's 2 FTE's

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000

P
la
n
 R
e
vi
e
w
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Residential Plan Reviews

Total Commercial Plan Reviews

Exhibit D
EDS Residential Inspection Trends

EDS Commercial Plan Review Trends

FY11 FY12

Residential Plan Review

# of Plan Reviews 1345 1760

2 FTE's 2 FTE's

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000

P
la
n
 R
e
vi
e
w
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Residential Plan Reviews

FY11 FY12

Commercial Plan Review

# of Plan Reviews 584 599

3 FTE's 1 FTE

575

580

585

590

595

600

605

P
la
n
 R
e
vi
e
w
 C
o
u
n
t

Total Commercial Plan Reviews

425



Pl i & C it D l t

200

Total Cases ‐ PLANNING

158
Planning & Community Development

Development Case Trends
50

100

150

Total

117 97

67

105

Select Planning Cases by Type

0

FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12

26

37

30

35

40

10

20 20

16

13

23

20

17
16

15

20

25

0

10
9

1

4

0

7

4

0

5

10

General Plan Rezonings & PAD/PCD Preliminary Plats Conditional Use Permits Site Plan Review Design ReviewGeneral Plan 
Amendments

Rezonings & PAD/PCD 
Amendments

Preliminary Plats Conditional Use Permits Site Plan Review Design Review

FY10 FY11 FY12

EXHIBIT E

426



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
Date Prepared:  August 13, 2012 Council Meeting Date:  August 21, 2012  
 
 
TO:   Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Roy W. Minter, Chief of Police  
 
SUBJECT:  Crime Shield Crime Prevention Program 
 
 
Summary: 
This is a request for City Council to review information regarding the Crime Shield Crime 
Prevention Program by the Peoria Police Department.  This update will brief Council on the 
program that will be instituted in September 2012.   
 
The Peoria Police Department continues to strive to be a leader by developing proactive 
policing programs.  This program, an evolution of the Operation Identification Program, is 
designed to accomplish the following: 
 

 Reduce crime and the fear of crime through partnerships with members of our 
community. 

 Work in partnership with our community to dramatically impact property crime through 
target hardening, deterrence, and awareness. 
 

The program is centered on four basic crime prevention tactics: 
 

 Marking and documenting valuables. 
 Taking basic measures to reduce the chance of victimization. 
 Awareness and education  
 Crime deterrence  

 
The program is designed to prevent crimes at four specific targeted locations:   

 Care homes 
 Residences 
 Businesses 
 Construction sites 

 
Citizens and business owners will be contacted and instructed how to mark and document their 
valuables.  Volunteers and on-duty personnel will meet and discuss additional crime prevention 
strategies as part of the certification process.  Certified properties will be provided signs or 
placards indicating that the property is protected by the Peoria Police Department Crime Shield 
Program. 

427

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 33B



Council Communication   
Page 2 of 2 REV. 08/2011 
 
 

 
The police department will inform the community through media, social media, Channel 11, 
block watch meetings and community meetings.   
 
Staff recommends the implementation of this program as a proactive means to prevent 
targeted property crimes. 
 
Fiscal Analysis: 
 
The initial implementation of the program will cost approximately $5000 for 1000 signs, stickers 
and placards.  Police Volunteers and on-duty officers will assist with the program.  A single 
burglary is estimated to cost society approximately $13,000 according to the 2011 RAND 
Corporation Cost of Crime Calculator. 
       
Exhibit(s):  
 
None  
 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Lieutenant Chuck Bezio, 623-773-7028 
      Lieutenant Kevin Moran, 623-773-8041 

428



CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA  
CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 

Date Prepared:  July 25, 2012 Council Meeting Date: August 21, 2012     
 

 
TO:  Carl Swenson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Carin Imig, Neighborhood and Revitalization Administrator 
 
THROUGH: Chris Jacques, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT: HOA Budgeting Class 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 

The Planning and Community Development Department, in partnership with Associated Asset 
Management, LLC, is offering a new educational opportunity to the City’s HOA’s and their 
residents at no cost.  This seminar will be held on September 13th, 2012 at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Point of View Room located on the first floor of the Development and Community Services 
Building (DCSB).  Under the direction of Laura Ziff, a former educator and real estate banking 
professional, AAM opened its doors in 1990.  In addition to serving as a respected HOA 
property Management Company in the Valley, AAM also provides HOA property management 
consulting services.  One of these services is the seminar “Understanding HOA Budgets.” 

“Understanding HOA Budgets” will teach HOA’s how the budget is prepared, common budget 
mistakes to avoid, and the overall HOA budget process. It will help communities assess their 
budgetary needs, formulate a plan and then, educate them how to execute and live within that 
plan to have a successful, healthy, balanced operating budget and reserve fund.  Both 
homeowners and HOA board members are invited to attend this seminar.  The class size is 
limited and therefore an advanced RSVP is required by September 10, 2012.   

Staff is working with the Office of Communication to prepare a press release for the first week 
of August 2012 and will also provide the registration form to the City Council Office for 
consideration to release through Council Listserv’s.  Additionally, the information will be 
announced through the HOA Academy Listserv and will be posted to the Division’s website by 
August 6, 2012. 

Exhibit 1:  Budget Seminar Flyer 
 
Contact Name and Number:  Jaime Gonzalez, Neighborhood Programs Coordinator x5140 

429

rhondas
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item: 34A



 

 

 

UNDERSTANDING 
the HOA Budget Process 

 

The City of Peoria and AAM, LLC  
are pleased to present a free educational seminar.  

  

Learn how the budget is prepared, common budget mistakes to avoid  
and the overall HOA budget process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If you are a homeowner or HOA board member 
you won’t want to miss this event. 

 

************************************************************************ 
WHEN:   Thursday, September 13, 2012 
 

TIME:  5:30-7:00 pm 
 

WHERE:   9875 N. 85th Ave.  (Approx. 1/2 mile north of Olive)  
Development and Community Services Building 
POINT OF VIEW Conference Room (1ST room on the LEFT) 
 
 
 
 

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

  

 

Class size is limited - Advanced RSVP Required - Deadline September 10, 2012 
     

Name:              HOA is located in the City of Peoria Council District  
Phone:    Email:                Acacia  Ironwood       Mesquite          
HOA:         Palo Verde   Pine                  Willow  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
Name:              HOA is located in the City of Peoria Council District  
Phone:    Email:                Acacia  Ironwood       Mesquite          
HOA:         Palo Verde   Pine                  Willow  
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
 
 
 
 

Questions:   
Contact Vicki at (602)288-2622  

or VSears@aamaz.com 
  

**PLEASE RSVP** 
 

MAIL or IN PERSON:  9875 N. 85th Ave. Peoria, AZ  85345 
Neigh. Revitalization Div.   Attn: Jaime Gonzalez 

EMAIL:  jaime.gonzalez@peoriaaz.gov 
FAX:  623-773-7233 

430

http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://2.bp.blogspot.com/-FTvuxk0Rhqg/T0cvk05M4iI/AAAAAAAABFo/YAYjrls8GIA/s1600/budget.jpg&imgrefurl=http://rabbishishler.blogspot.com/2012/02/soul-budget.html&usg=__DU6UMMYnNUceOlHINJZkQebYTkI=&h=307&w=462&sz=40&hl=en&start=5&zoom=1&tbnid=SuramQsmsrko7M:&tbnh=85&tbnw=128&ei=8e_MT6nBMqy70QGSiYHyDg&prev=/search?q=budget+pics&hl=en&safe=active&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1�
http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://images.stockfreeimages.com/327/big/free_3274038.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.stockfreeimages.com/3274038/Dollar-Signs-Money-Clip-Art-2.html&usg=__WkZScP92rsucSrRwZTq8k26xmvk=&h=300&w=300&sz=36&hl=en&start=60&zoom=1&tbnid=1TekBR88dToaNM:&tbnh=116&tbnw=116&ei=kP_MT4b4Kcfu0gG60Yi4Cg&prev=/search?q=money+clipart&start=42&hl=en&safe=active&sa=N&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1�
http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://images.stockfreeimages.com/327/big/free_3274038.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.stockfreeimages.com/3274038/Dollar-Signs-Money-Clip-Art-2.html&usg=__WkZScP92rsucSrRwZTq8k26xmvk=&h=300&w=300&sz=36&hl=en&start=60&zoom=1&tbnid=1TekBR88dToaNM:&tbnh=116&tbnw=116&ei=kP_MT4b4Kcfu0gG60Yi4Cg&prev=/search?q=money+clipart&start=42&hl=en&safe=active&sa=N&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1�
http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://images.stockfreeimages.com/327/big/free_3274038.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.stockfreeimages.com/3274038/Dollar-Signs-Money-Clip-Art-2.html&usg=__WkZScP92rsucSrRwZTq8k26xmvk=&h=300&w=300&sz=36&hl=en&start=60&zoom=1&tbnid=1TekBR88dToaNM:&tbnh=116&tbnw=116&ei=kP_MT4b4Kcfu0gG60Yi4Cg&prev=/search?q=money+clipart&start=42&hl=en&safe=active&sa=N&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1�
http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://cdn.fearlesscompetitor.com/site/wp-content/uploads/2011/10/dollarpuzzle.jpg&imgrefurl=http://fearlesscompetitor.com/2012/01/19/how-big-should-our-marketing-budget-be-2/&usg=__5u7mfLI5kuZsLyVp7dlkoEziK2A=&h=567&w=847&sz=678&hl=en&start=3&zoom=1&tbnid=6T2TNsPkowIb7M:&tbnh=97&tbnw=145&ei=8e_MT6nBMqy70QGSiYHyDg&prev=/search?q=budget+pics&hl=en&safe=active&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1�
http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.asianetnews.tv/images/stories/budget/a-look-at-the-budget.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.asianetnews.tv/union-budget-2012-13/269-hopesonbudget/3014-whatthebudgetcoulddo&usg=__co-8e5GNiU_DeCTo2hPB2W3mM80=&h=1619&w=1452&sz=410&hl=en&start=8&zoom=1&tbnid=-8chih19xuIA0M:&tbnh=150&tbnw=135&ei=8e_MT6nBMqy70QGSiYHyDg&prev=/search?q=budget+pics&hl=en&safe=active&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1�
http://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.financefox.ca/wp-content/uploads/2012/03/budgeting_planing_budget.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.financefox.ca/do-you-budget/&usg=__93A844u7YmU-w0e6tjeYnpZkAKw=&h=1783&w=1463&sz=457&hl=en&start=10&zoom=1&tbnid=l_H7XVkZ72Db1M:&tbnh=150&tbnw=123&ei=8e_MT6nBMqy70QGSiYHyDg&prev=/search?q=budget+pics&hl=en&safe=active&gbv=2&tbm=isch&itbs=1�
mailto:VSears@aamaz.com�
mailto:jaime.gonzalez@peoriaaz.gov�


   

 MINUTES OF THE VISTANCIA COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT BOARD 
 CITY OF PEORIA, ARIZONA 
 CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
 June 5, 2012 
 
 
A Special Meeting of the Vistancia Community Facilities District Board was convened 
at 8401 West Monroe Street in open and public session at 8:57 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Board Chairperson Bob Barrett; Vice Chairperson Ron Aames; 
Board Members Cathy Carlat, Joan Evans, Carlo Leone, Dave Pearson and Tony 
Rivero. 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Other Municipal Officials Present:  Carl Swenson, District Manager; Susan 
Daluddung, Deputy District Manager; Steve Kemp, District Counsel; Wanda Nelson, 
District Clerk; Katie Gregory, Interim Management and Budget Director; Stacy Irvine, 
Interim Fire Chief; Chris Jacques, Planning and Community Development Director; Bo 
Larsen, Public Information Manager; Bill Mattingly, Public Works and Utilities Director; 
Brent Mattingly, Finance Director; Dan Nissen, Assistant City Engineer; Rocky Smith, 
Deputy Police Chief; Jeff Tyne, Interim Community Services Director; Rhonda 
Geriminsky; Chief Deputy District Clerk. 
 
Audience:  Approximately 3 members of the public were present. 
 
Note:  The order in which items appear in the minutes is not necessarily the order 
in which they were discussed in the meeting. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: All items listed with a “C” are considered to be routine or have 
been previously reviewed by the District Board and will be enacted by one motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board Member so 
requests; in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of Business 
and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 
Chairperson Barrett asked if any Board Member wished to have an item removed from 
the Consent Agenda. Having no requests from the Board, motion was made by Board 
Member Rivero, seconded by Board Member Evans, to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 

CONSENT – New Business: 

1C Minutes 
 
Approved the minutes of May 15, 2012. 
 
 
 
 

431



Vistancia Community Facilities District Board Special Meeting 
June 5, 2012 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
2C Contract, MGC Contractors, Inc., Vistancia  Wells No. 4 and 9 Equipping 

Project 
 
Awarded a construction contract in the amount of $1,952,705 to MGC Contractors, Inc. 
for equipping Vistancia Wells No. 4 and 9. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

  
NEW BUSINESS 

 
3R PUBLIC HEARING - Budget and Tax Levy, Fiscal Year 2013 

 
STAFF REPORT 
 
Brent Mattingly, Finance Director, reported that the Board reviewed the proposed 
Budget of the Vistancia Community Facilities District Budget and tax levy information 
and adopted a tentative budget on May 15, 2012.  Mr. Mattingly reported that the Fiscal 
Year 2013 Final Budget is $30.9 million.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
Board Chairperson Barrett opened the Public Hearing and asked if any Board Member 
or Citizen wished to comment on the Budget and Tax Levy, Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
There being no comments from those present, Board Chairperson Barrett declared the 
Public Hearing closed. 
 
BOARD ACTION: 
 
No Board action required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

432



Vistancia Community Facilities District Board Special Meeting 
June 5, 2012 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
4R District Budget and Tax Levy Estimates, Fiscal Year 2013 

 
RESOLUTION NO. VCFD 2012-02 

(VISTANCIA) 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF 
VISTANCIA COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
(1)(A) APPROVING A FINAL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2013 PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §48-716; (B) ORDERING 
THAT AN AD VALOREM TAX BE FIXED, LEVIED AND 
ASSESSED ON THE ASSESSED VALUE OF ALL THE 
REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE DISTRICT IN AMOUNTS 
SPECIFIED IN FILED STATEMENTS AND ESTIMATES; 
AND (C) PROVIDING FOR CERTIFIED COPIES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION TO BE DELIVERED TO THE MARICOPA 
COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND THE ARIZONA 
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE; AND (2) PROVIDING THAT 
THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BE EFFECTIVE AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE AND APPROVAL ACCORDING TO LAW. 

Motion was made by Board Member Carlat, seconded by Vice Chairperson Aames, to 
adopt RES. VCFD 2012-02 approving a Final Budget and Tax Levy Estimates for Fiscal 
Year 2013. 
 
Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  (NON-AGENDA ITEMS) 
 
None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 

 Being no further business to come before the District Board, the meeting was duly 
adjourned at 9:01 p.m. 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Bob Barrett, Board Chairperson   
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim District Clerk 
 
 
 
 

433



Vistancia Community Facilities District Board Special Meeting 
June 5, 2012 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct summary of the 
proceedings of the Special Meeting of the Vistancia Community Facilities District held 
on the 5th day of June, 2012.  I further certify that the meeting was duly called and held 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this 21st day of August, 2012.                                                    
 
 
(Seal) 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Rhonda Geriminsky, Interim District Clerk 
 

434



435

rhondas
Typewritten Text
VCFD Agenda Item: 36



436



 
 
 

VISTANCIA COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
DISTRICT  

PEORIA, ARIZONA 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual Report 
 

Period Ended  
 

June 30, 2012 
 
 
 

Brent D. Mattingly 
 

 District Chief Financial Officer 
 

437



 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 Section Description Page 
 
 I.  INTRODUCTION ............................................................ 2 
 
 II. INVESTMENT POLICY COMPLIANCE .......................... 3 
 
 III. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE .................................... 3 
 
          A.  Portfolio Composition .............................................. 3 
 
   B. Average Invested Cash Balances ........................... 4 
 
   C. Investment Income ................................................. 4 
 
   D. Comparative Investment Yields .............................. 4 
 
   E. Average Maturity of Portfolio................................... 5 
 
   F. Comparison of Market Value and Book Value ........ 5 
 
  V. ECONOMIC REVIEW ..................................................... 6 
 
  VI. SUMMARY DATA ........................................................... 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

438



 2

I. INTRODUCTION  
 
 This report reflects investment activity for the period of July 1, 2011 to June 
30, 2012 for the District’s investment management program.  The District’s funds 
are invested in accordance with the City’s Investment and Portfolio Policies, 
approved and adopted in January 1992 by the City Council, with revisions 
approved in June 2005.  The policy requires that the investment program meet the 
following criteria, listed in order of importance: 

 
Safety - Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks 

to insure the preservation of capital in the overall 
portfolio. 

 
Liquidity - The investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to  
  enable the City to meet all operating requirements. 
 
Yield - The investment portfolio shall be designed with the 

objective of obtaining a market rate of return throughout 
budgetary and economic cycles, while taking into account 
the City’s strict risk constraints. 

 
 In keeping with these principles, staff continued to invest the District’s 
funds only in allowable, safe securities and to structure the maturity of the 
investment portfolio to assure liquidity.  Short-term needs (6 months or less) are 
being met by investments in overnight repurchase agreements, commercial 
paper, and money market funds.  Funds not required to meet specific short-term 
needs are invested primarily in Treasury Notes and U.S. Government Agency 
Securities.  
 
 Only after the safety and liquidity requirements are met does staff attempt 
to maximize earnings.  For the Quarter and Year Ended June 30, 2012, the 
weighted average annualized yield on investments was as follows:   
 
Table 1 
 

AVERAGE ANNUALIZED 
INVESTMENT YIELD 

 FY12 
Q1 

FY12 
Q2 

FY12 
Q3 

FY12 
Q4 

Year 
Ended 
6/30/12 

CFD Bonds, Series 2002 (Reserve) 0.97 0.68 0.67 0.57 0.72 

CFD Bonds, Series 2005 0.76 0.49 0.69 0.67 0.65 

CFD Bonds, Series 2006 0.38 0.30 0.31 0.30 0.32 

Total Portfolio 0.49 0.36 0.40 0.38 0.41 

  
  

439



 3

The average annual yield of 0.41% for the total portfolio represents a decrease of 
0.10% from the annualized yield of 0.51% experienced for the Year Ended June 
30, 2011.  
 
 The quarter’s average yield of 0.38% for the total portfolio represents a 
decrease of 0.02% from the total portfolio annualized yield of 0.40% experienced 
for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2012.  
 
 
II. INVESTMENT POLICY COMPLIANCE 
 
 The City’s Investment Policy, as approved by City Council, applies to all 
the financial assets and funds held by the City of Peoria, including Vistancia 
Community Facilities District funds.  All investments follow the provisions 
established in that Policy.  
 
 

III. INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE 
 
A. Portfolio Composition. All investment proceeds are diversified by 
security type and institution to minimize market volatility risk and credit risk. The 
Policy stipulates maximum investment levels by market sector to insure 
diversification.  Diversification is further accomplished through the laddering of 
maturities, which mirror anticipated cash flows for the various funds.  If not 
matched to specific cash flows, the funds are invested with a priority of liquidity 
and safety until specific cash flow needs are identified.  
 
 The table below illustrates the diversification structured into the portfolio 
composition with dollar amounts and percentages by investment type (market 
sector).  The table shows the overall conservative nature of the portfolio and its 
diversified structure.  The fluctuation in percentages between fiscal quarters 
represents a shifting of value between market sectors from the varying economic 
conditions throughout the year.  The concentration on Treasury Notes and 
Agency Securities illustrates the portfolio’s safety priority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

440



 4

Table 2 
 

TOTAL PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

Security Type FY 12 – Q1 FY 12 – Q2 FY 12 – Q3 FY 12 – Q4 

 Amt % Amt % Amt % Amt % 

Money Market 2.7 15.1 3.8 20.8 3.8 20.9 3.3 18.2

Agency 
Securities 9.9 54.5 8.9 49.0 6.4 35.2 10.4 57.2

 
Treasury 
Bills 

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Treasury Notes 3.0 16.6 3.0 16.5 3.0 16.5 0.0 0.0

Commercial 
Paper 2.5 13.8 2.5 13.7 5.0 27.4 4.5 24.6

Repurchase 
Agreements 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

TOTALS: 18.1 100.0 18.2 100.0 18.2 100.0 18.2 100.0

 
B. Average Invested Cash Balances. The average cash balance of the 
portfolio for the Year Ended June 30, 2012 was $18,559,784 as compared to 
$20,379,561for the Year Ended June 30, 2011. 
  
 The average investment cash balance for the portfolio for the Quarter 
Ending June 30, 2012 was $18,208,246 as compared to $18,185,944 for the 
Quarter Ended March 31, 2012. 
 
 Fluctuations in the quarterly balances shown in the chart below represent 
normal cash flows throughout the fiscal year, the addition of new bond proceeds, 
investment of earned interest, and the spend down of existing bond proceeds for 
capital projects. 
 
C. Investment Income.  Total investment income for the Year Ended June 
30, 2012 was $68,374 which represents a decrease of 30.5% from the $98,359 
earned for the Year Ended June 30, 2011.   
 
 Total investment income for the 4th Quarter of FY12 was $16,132 which 
represents a decrease of 0.17% from the $16,159 earned in the 3rd Quarter of 
FY12.   
 
D. Comparative Investment Yields.  Since the Investment Policy restricts 
investment primarily to the U.S. fixed income and money markets, the portfolio 
performance is measured directly against these markets for comparison 
purposes.  The maximum maturity of securities purchased for the portfolio is 
restricted to five (5) years.  The weighted average maturity cannot exceed 365 
days.  The actual weighted average maturity for the 4th Quarter of FY 12 was 

441



 5

294 days, in keeping with the investment policy requirement for liquidity and 
safety. The average rates of comparable benchmarks are shown in the table 
below. 
 
Table 3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E. Average Maturity of the Portfolio.    For the Quarter ended June 30, 
2012, the average maturity of the portfolio was 294 days as compared to 268 
days on March 31, 2012.  Matching maturities to known cash flows requires the 
maintenance of a somewhat short portfolio. Cash not needed to match 
immediate cash flow needs (within a nine month rolling horizon of liabilities) is 
normally extended somewhat to take advantage of higher yields.  Longer 
maturities are used to capture yields at purchase and to capture capital gains 
during the period. 
 
F. Comparison of Market Value and Book Value.    The book value of the 
portfolio is captured on an amortized cost basis recognizing the position in the 
securities on a straight-line amortization of premiums and discounts.  Book and 
market values do not include accrued interest on the securities.  The market 
value reflects the then current market price at which these securities could be 
sold in the open market.  A comparison of book and market reflects the changes 
in market rates as well as the performance of the portfolio against the market.  
Since the shortest portion of the portfolio is matched against anticipated cash 
flows, rate changes will more directly affect their relative gain/loss positions.  A 
summary of market and book values for the total portfolio for the Quarter are 
shown below. 
 
 Beginning Book Value ......................... $18,189,463  
 Beginning Market Value ...................... $18,189,409 
 
 Ending Book Value .............................. $18,211,344 
 Ending Market Value ........................... $18,214,708 
 

 At quarter’s end, the market value of the portfolio exceeded the book 
value of securities resulting in an overall unrealized gain in value of $3,364. 

COMPARATIVE ANNUALIZED 
INVESTMENT YIELDS 

 
 

FY 12 
Q1 

FY 12 
Q2 

FY 12 
Q3 

FY 12 
Q4 

Total Portfolio 0.49 0.36 0.40 0.38 

3 Month T-Bill 0.02 0.01 0.06 0.08 

Money Market Fds 0.01 0.01 0.01 0.01 

6 Month T- Bill 0.06 0.04 0.11 0.14 

1 Year T-Bill 0.12 0.10 0.14 0.18 

2 Year Treasury 0.27 0.26 0.28 0.28 

442



 6

ECONOMIC REVIEW AS OF 6-30-12: 
 
 Gross Domestic Product (GDP)  There had been some question as to how much the 
unseasonably mild winter weather that prevailed in the first quarter bolstered growth early in 
the year at the expense of subsequent quarters. Although all the numbers have yet to be 
crunched for the most recently completed period, the slowdown appears to be substantial. 
The final reading of first quarter growth was a disappointing 1.9%, but the third straight 
month of negative retail sales reports caused many Wall Street analysts to trim second 
quarter GDP forecasts into the 1.2% to 1.5% range, with as much as half being inventory 
accumulation.  The media has picked up on the “impending fiscal cliff” story, and consumer 
confidence levels are falling as Americans grow increasingly concerned that hundreds of 
billions in tax cuts and extended unemployment benefits will expire at the same time as 
across-the-board expense cuts go into effect.          
 
 Nonfarm Payrolls   Job growth has slowed significantly in the spring months. Much of 
this may have had to do with accelerated hiring in the winter months. Nonfarm payrolls grew 
by just 80,000 during the month of June. During the quarter, company payrolls averaged 
just 75,000. This was the slowest quarterly growth rate since the third quarter of 2010, and a 
significant decline from the 225,000 average pace during the first quarter of 2012. The 
unemployment rate rose from 8.1% to 8.2% in May, the first increase in a year, and 
remained at 8.2% in June.  According to the most recent “JOLT” survey, as of May, there 
were 3.5 unemployed job seekers for every job opening. This ratio was 1.6 in November 
2007 before the recession began, but rose to 6.7 immediately after the recession officially 
ended in July 2009.  
   
 U.S. Home Sales  Freddie Mac’s 30-yr mortgage index averaged a record low of 
3.53% for the week ending July 18, 2012. In 1982, the average rate was over 16%.  So, 
after roughly 6½ years of decline, the housing market may have finally reached bottom and 
begun to dig itself out. Inventory levels, although far from lean, are improved. CNBC 
reported in June that there were 2.49 million homes listed for sale, 20% below a year 
ago. The median price for an existing home rose 7.9% year-over-year to $189,400 in June, 
while housing starts rose 6.9% to a 760k annual unit rate, the highest in three years. But, 
not all the news was good. Existing home sales dropped 5.4% in June to a seasonally 
adjusted annual pace of 4.37 million, while new home sales fell 8.4% in June to a 
annualized pace of 350k.  Although still a fraction of 2005 peak levels, both are well above 
recession lows.   

 
 Retail Sales The decreased rate of U.S. job growth, combined with deteriorating 
conditions in Europe and the impending fiscal cliff have combined to dampen spending and 
confidence. The Conference Board’s measure of consumer confidence dropped for the 
fourth straight month in June, falling to lowest level since January. Retail sales unexpectedly 
fell by 0.5% in June, following declines in both April and May. The last time retail sales were 
negative for three straight months was October 2008 through December 2008, during the 
deepest point of the recession.  For the entire quarter, retail sales declined by an annualized 
0.8%.  In the previous quarter, sales had risen by an annualized 6.7%.  After reaching a 
post-recession high of 15 million for annualized sales of cars and light trucks in February, 
the pace of vehicle sales has decelerated, hitting 13.7 annualized in May.  
 
- Scott McIntyre, First Southwest Asset Management 

443



 7

 SUMMARY DATA 
 
Table 4 
 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
Vistancia CFD Bonds, Series 2002*

 
Security Type 

FY 12 – Q1 
Ending 
09/30/11 

FY 12 – Q2 
Ending 
12/31/11 

FY 12 – Q3 
Ending 
3/31/12 

FY 12 – Q4 
Ending 
6/30/12 

Money Market $7,160 $8,155 $13,167 $14,543

Agency Securities $2,049,979 $2,049,953 $2,049,320 $2,046,839

Treasury Notes $0 $0 $0 $0

Treasury Bills $0 $0 $0 $0

Commercial Paper $0 $0 $0 $0
Repurchase 
Agreements $0 $0 $0 $0

Totals: $2,057,139 $2,058,108 $2,062,487 $2,061,382

Avg Yield 0.97 0.68 0.67 0.57

Avg Maturity (Years) 2.13 2.16 2.06 1.79

* Represents Debt Service Reserve Funds 
 
Table 5 
 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
Vistancia CFD Bonds, Series 2005*

 
Security Type 

FY 12 – Q1 
Ending 
09/30/11 

FY 12 – Q2 
Ending 
12/31/11 

FY 12 – Q3 
Ending 
03/31/12 

FY 12 – Q4 
Ending 
06/30/12 

Money Market $5,385 $6,377 $1,910 $3,910

Agency Securities $2,349,959 $2,349,939 $2,358,277 $2,357,435

Treasury Notes $0 $0 $0 $0

Treasury Bills $0 $0 $0 $0

Commercial Paper $0 $0 $0 $0
Repurchase 
Agreements $0 $0 $0 $0

Totals: $2,355,344 $2,356,316 $2,360,187 $2,361,345

Avg Yield 0.76 0.49 0.69 0.67

Avg Maturity (Years) 1.70 1.34 1.96 2.35

* Represents Debt Service Reserve Funds 
 
 
 
 

444



 8

 
 
Table 6 
 

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
Vistancia CFD Bonds, Series 2006 

 
Security Type 

FY 12 – Q1 
Ending 
09/30/11 

FY 12 – Q2 
Ending 
12/31/11 

FY 12 – Q3 
Ending 
03/31/12 

FY 12 – Q4 
Ending 
06/30/12 

Money Market $2,721,465 $3,760,665 $3,776,340 $3,302,568

Agency Securities $5,504,626 $4,499,963 $2,000,000 $5,999,129

Treasury Notes $3,012,115 $3,006,869 $3,001,660 $0

Treasury Bills $0 $0 $0 $0

Commercial Paper $2,498,000 $2,494,271 $4,988,789 $4,486,920
Repurchase 
Agreements $0 $0 $0 $0

Totals: $13,736,206 $13,761,769 $13,766,789 $13,788,617

Avg Yield 0.38 0.29 0.31 0.30

Avg Maturity (Years) 0.38 0.34 0.33 0.39

 
 
 

445



EXHIBIT 2
Page 1 of 1

City of Peoria
Detail of Security Holdings
As of  06/30/2012

CUSIP Settle Date Sec. Type Sec. Description CPN Mty Date Next Call Call Type  Par Value Purch Price  Orig Cost  Book Value Mkt Price  Market Value Days to Mty

Vistancia Project 2002 - Debt Service Re

WF-ADVGOV MMF Wells Fargo Adv Govt MMF 14,542.70 100.000 14,542.70 14,542.70 100.000 14,542.70 1
3134G2TR3 07/29/11 AGCY STEP FHLMC 0.450 07/26/13 07/26/12 ONE TIME 500,000.00 100.000 500,000.00 500,000.00 99.990 499,950.00 391
3135G0FP3 11/15/11 AGCY CALL FNMA 0.550 11/15/13 11/15/12 ONE TIME 500,000.00 99.990 499,950.00 499,965.64 100.050 500,250.00 503
31398A3G5 03/29/12 AGCY BULET FNMA 1.500 09/08/14 1,025,000.00 102.382 1,049,415.50 1,046,873.73 102.040 1,045,910.00 800

Total for  Vistancia Project 2002 - Debt Service Re 2,039,542.70 2,063,908.20 2,061,382.07 2,060,652.70 623

Vistancia Project 2005 - Reserve Fund

WF-ADVGOV MMF Wells Fargo Adv Govt MMF 3,909.75 100.000 3,909.75 3,909.75 100.000 3,909.75 1
3134G2TR3 07/29/11 AGCY STEP FHLMC 0.450 07/26/13 07/26/12 ONE TIME 500,000.00 100.000 500,000.00 500,000.00 99.990 499,950.00 391
3135G0FP3 11/15/11 AGCY CALL FNMA 0.550 11/15/13 11/15/12 ONE TIME 500,000.00 99.990 499,950.00 499,965.64 100.050 500,250.00 503
31398A3G5 03/29/12 AGCY BULET FNMA 1.500 09/08/14 350,000.00 102.382 358,337.00 357,469.08 102.040 357,140.00 800
3136G0EJ6 04/30/12 AGCY CALL FNMA 0.750 10/30/15 04/30/13 QRTLY 1,000,000.00 100.000 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 100.190 1,001,900.00 1,217

Total for  Vistancia Project 2005 - Reserve Fund 2,353,909.75 2,362,196.75 2,361,344.47 2,363,149.75 826

Vistancia Project 2006 - Construction

WF-ADVGOV MMF Wells Fargo Adv Govt MMF 3,302,567.84 100.000 3,302,567.84 3,302,567.84 100.000 3,302,567.84 1
89233GKN5 01/26/12 CP - DISC Toyota Mtr Cr 10/22/12 2,500,000.00 99.543 2,488,562.50 2,495,213.20 99.924 2,498,100.00 114
313376TL9 06/28/12 AGCY BULET FHLB 0.125 01/17/13 2,000,000.00 99.956 1,999,116.00 1,999,129.32 99.940 1,998,800.00 201
3024A0QB4 06/14/12 CP - DISC FCAR Owner Trust 03/11/13 2,000,000.00 99.558 1,991,150.00 1,991,707.22 99.612 1,992,238.00 254
313379K81 05/23/12 AGCY CALL FHLB 0.300 06/14/13 08/23/12 QRTLY 4,000,000.00 100.000 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 99.980 3,999,200.00 349

Total for  Vistancia Project 2006 - Construction 13,802,567.84 13,781,396.34 13,788,617.58 13,790,905.84 188

Total for  City of Peoria 18,196,020.29 18,207,501.29 18,211,344.12 18,214,708.29 320

446



EXHIBIT 3 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 

                                                                                                       

               

 

Security Acronyms:   

AGCY – DISCO      Agency Discount Note 

AGCY – BULET      Agency Bullet 

AGCY – CALL      Agency Callable Note 

AGCY – STEP      Agency Step‐Up Note 

CP – DISC      Commercial Paper Discounted 

FFCB         Federal Farm Credit Bank   

FHLB        Federal Home Loan Bank  

FNMA         Federal National Mortgage Association or “Fannie Mae” 

FHLMC        Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation or “Freddie Mac”   

FCAR Owner Trust    Ford Credit Asset Receivable  

GE Capital Corp     General Electric Capital Corp  

MMF        Money Market Fund 

 

Security Definitions: 

Agency Notes  ‐   A debt security  issued by a  federal or  federally sponsored agency.   These are widely 

considered  to be  among  the  safest  types of  fixed  income  securities,  although  they  are not  explicitly 

guaranteed  by  the  Federal  government,  there  is  a  market  peerception  that  there  is  an  implicit 

government guarantee.   The following are Government‐Related Enterprises, originally created by an act 

of  Congress:    Federal  Farm  Credit  Bank,  Federal  Home  Loan  Bank,  Federal  National  Mortgage 

Association (Fannie Mae) and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac).     

  Federal  Farm Credit Bank  (FFCB)  ‐  The  Federal  Farm Credit Bank  System  is  the oldest of  the 

  government  sponsored  enterprises,  created  by  an  act  of  congress  in  1916.    Its mission  is  to 

  provide a reliable and low cost source of funds to support agriculture in the United States.  FFCB 

  debt obligations are highly liquid and its senior debt is AAA‐rated. Yields on FFCB obligations are 

  often slightly lower than yields on FHLB, FNMA or FHLMC obligations because they issue fewer 

  bonds and are in demand as portfolio diversifiers. 

447



EXHIBIT 3 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

  Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) ‐ The Federal Home Loan Bank system was created by an act of 

  Congress  in  1932  as  a  system of  12  regional banks  that provide  funds  to  its member banks. 

  FHLB’s  primary mission  is  to  support  residential  and  community  lending.  Its membership  of 

  more  than 8,000  financial  institutions  includes savings banks, commercial banks, credit unions 

  and  insurance companies active  in housing finance. FHLB debt obligations are highly  liquid and 

  its senior debt is AAA‐rated.  

  Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or “Fannie Mae”) ‐ Fannie Mae was chartered in 

  1938 under  the Federal National Mortgage Association Act  to provide a secondary market  for 

  mortgage  loans  in  the  United  States,  by  purchasing  existing  home  loans  and  pooling  them 

  together to create mortgage‐backed securities that can them be sold to investors, along with a 

  guaranty of  the  timely payment of principal and  interest on  the underlying  loans. Fannie Mae 

  was  privatized  in  1968,  and  operated  as  a  private  stockholder‐owned  company  for  40  years 

  before  the  housing market  collapse  forced  them  into  federal  government  conservatorship  in 

  September 2008. Fannie Mae currently continues operation under government control and has 

  been instrumental in the government’s attempts to revive the housing sector. Fannie Mae debt 

  obligations are highly liquid and its senior debt is AAA‐rated.  

  Federal  Home  Loan  Mortgage  Corporation  (FHLMC  or  “Freddie  Mac”)  ‐    Freddie  Mac  was 

  created by an act of Congress  in 1970 as a shareholder‐owned company to further expand the 

  secondary  market  for  mortgage  loans  in  the  United  States.    Freddie  Mac  buys  existing 

  mortgages and pools them together to create mortgage‐backed securities that can then be sold 

  to  investors, thereby providing  liquidity to  lenders who can then make additional  loans.   Along 

  with Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac was placed into government conservatorship in September 2008, 

  but  continues  full  operations  under  government  control  and  has  been  instrumental  in  the 

  government’s attempt to revive the housing sector. Freddie Mac securities are highly liquid and 

  its senior debt is AAA‐rated.     

Agency Bullet‐ An agency  security  that matures at a  single point  in  time and does not  feature a  call 

option. This security will earn a fixed rate of  interest and the entire face value will be returned to the 

investor at maturity. The security does not amortize or make periodic payments of principal. 

Agency  Callable  ‐  An  agency  security where  the  issuer  has  the  option  to  call  the  security  away,  or 

redeem it,  prior to maturity. This allows the issuer to return principal to the investor prior to the stated 

maturity date. 

Agency Discount Note ‐ Similar to a Treasury Bill, an agency discount note is a zero coupon bond sold at 

a  discount  to  face  value. At maturity  the  investor will  receive  face  value.  The  income  earned  is  the 

difference between the cost paid for the security and its face value. 

448



EXHIBIT 3 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

Agency Step‐Up Note ‐ An agency security that provides for the fixed rate of interest to adjust, or “step‐

up” at predetermined  intervals based on a specific schedule. The schedule may  include one or several 

rate adjustments over the  life of the security. In most cases, the security  is also callable at the step‐up 

dates. 

Commerical Paper  – An unsecured short –term promissory note issued by corporations, with maturities 

ranging  from  2  to  270  days.    Examples  of  commercial  paper  include  Ford  Credit  Asset  Receivable, 

General Electric Capital Corporation,  Johns Hopkins Health System  and Toyota Motor Credit.   

Treasury   Bill – Short‐term U.S. government non‐interest bearing debt securities with maturities of no 

longer than one year and issued in minimum denominations of $10,000. 

Treasury Note  ‐   U.S. government debt securities with maturities of ten years or  longer, and  issued  in 

minimum denominations of $1,000. 

  

 

449


	Agenda
	Open Space Preservation Program Update
	Open Space Program - Study Session memo 
	Open Space Program Brochure
	Memo regarding closure of Boluders OHV area

	Old Town Metrics
	Old Town Metrics CC
	Exhibit A: Draft Old Town Enonomic and Community Indicators
	Exhibit B: Old Town Entertainment District boundary map

	Major General Plan Amendment, Senate Bill 1598 - Aggregate Mining
	GPA12-0002 Staff Memo
	GPA12-0002 Exhibit A
	GPA12-0002 Exhibit B

	Recognition to Tim and Willy of KMLE Country Radio and Willy Townsend, Peoria Sanitation regarding Peoria’s recycling efforts.
	Council Communication

	Minutes
	July 3 Study Session Minutes
	July 3 Regular Session Minutes

	Ratification of Ordinance No. 2012-14
	Council Communication
	ORD 2012-14

	Code Amendment, Chapter 14, Banner/Special Event Signs
	TA12-0001_CC 8.21.12
	TA12-0001 P&Z report
	ORD. 2012-17

	Code Amendment, Chapter 14 (1977 Edition), Temporary Use Permits and Zoning Ordinance Amendment Notification; and Chapter 16 (1992 Edition), Music Festivals
	TA12-0002 CC_8.21.12
	TA12-0002 P&Z report
	ORD. 2012l-15
	ORD. 2012-16

	Contracts, Raftelis Financial Consultants and Duncan Associates, Comprehensive Impact Fee Study
	Impact Fee Contract CC

	Grant, Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC), Crime Victim Assistance Program
	FY13 ACJC CC
	FY13 ACJC Agreement

	Purchase, Fire Engine, Lake Pleasant Fire Station
	Type_3_Truck_CC

	Intergovernmental Agreement, Arizona Child Abduction Response Team, Law Enforcement Services and Resources for Child Abduction Cases
	Council Communication
	Intergovernmental Agreement

	Intergovernmental Agreement, Maricopa County Department of Transportation, Exchange of Transportation Maintenance Services
	CC - Maricopa County Transportation Entente Program
	IGA - Maricopa County Transportation Entente Program

	Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment, Regional Public Transportation Authority, Americans with Disabilities Act Paratransit Service, Fiscal Year 2012
	CC - IGA ADA Paratransit Service
	IGA - ADA Paratransit Service

	Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment, Regional Public Transportation Authority, Americans with Disabilities Act Paratransit Service, Fiscal Year 2013
	CC - ADA Paratransit Service Agreement
	IGA - ADA Paratransit Service Agreement 

	Design, Construction and Operation Agreement, Salt River Project, Aquifer Storage and Recovery Well
	CC - Aquifer Storage Recovery Well Agreement with SRP
	Agreement - Aquifer Storage Recovery Well with SRP

	Authorize Expenditure, Seattle Mariners and San Diego Padres, Ticket Convenience Fees
	CC_TeamTicketingConvenience

	Transfer Cash Reserves and Budget Appropriation, Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation Fund
	CC Workers' Compensation transfers

	Fiscal Year 2012 Budget Amendments
	FY 2012 Year-End Budget Amendments CC
	Exhibit 1 - FY 2012 Year-End Budget Amendments List
	Exhibit 2 - FY 2012 Health Insurance Budget Amendment
	Exhibit 3 - FY 2012 Fire Department Budget Amendment

	Investment Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012
	Annual Inv Report Council Communication 
	Annual Inv Report for YE 6_30_12
	Securities Holding Report 
	security definitions

	Maintenance Improvement District No. 1008, Ventana Picachos, Northeast Corner 89th Avenue and Calle Lejos
	cc_08212012_MID1008
	Petition for Formation
	RES. 2012-94
	Resolution order

	Deeds and Easements, Various Locations
	Council Communication
	RES. 2012-96

	Designate Roadways, Establish Rights-of-Way, Various Locations
	Council Communication
	RES. 2012-97

	Abandonment of Public Utility Easement, 75th Avenue and Thunderbird Road
	Council Communication
	Vicinity Map
	Location Map
	RES. 2012-98
	Exhibit to Resolution

	Bridge Construction and Access Easement, Maricopa Water District Canal, Old Carefree Highway Alignment
	Council Communication
	Vicinity Map
	Location Map
	Bridge Construction and Access Easement

	Field Allocation Policy
	CC_FieldAllocationPolicy 8 21
	Policy_Sportsfieldallocation 8 21

	Final Plat, Vistancia North Phase III Parcel F1 Phase 2, Vistancia Boulevard and Westland Road
	cc_082112_F1 Ph2
	Final Plat
	Vicinity Map

	RePlat, A Portion of Trilogy at Vistancia Parcel C12, Trilogy Boulevard and Claret Cup Road
	cc_082112_C12
	RePlat_C12
	Vicinity Map_C12

	Public Hearing - Liquor Licenses, Various Locations
	Liquor License CC
	Sumo App
	Humble App
	Taps App
	Peoria Pines App

	Code Amendment, Chapter 14, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, Parking; Recreational Vehicles; Utility Trailers
	Council Communication - Recreational Vehicles 
	ORD. 2012-18

	Electronic Billboard Ad Hoc Committee
	Electronic Billboard Committee Council Communication 

	Council Calendar
	Council Calendar

	Building and Development Activity Projections
	CC Building and Development Activity Projections
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit E

	Crime Shield Crime Prevention Program
	Council Communication

	Home Owner's Association Budgeting Class Information
	HOA Budgeting Class Information
	HOA Budget Seminar Flyer

	Minutes
	Minutes 

	Investment Report for the Year Ended June 30, 2012
	VCFD Invest Report communication
	VCFD Annual Investment Report
	VCFD Securities Holding Report
	Security Definitions




